


ERRA
Global success

IAV



ci ii

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Fiscal 2009 was defining year for Viterra

one that broadened our global presence and

established our leadership position in the supply

of high-quality food ingredients to customers

around the world

Through our combination with ABB Grain Ltd ABB in

Australia we gained strong and strategically important

foothold with new sources of supply in close proximity to

growing markets in Asia Viterra now has facilities and offices

on four continents giving us greater ability to meetthe

growing demand forfood ingredients throughoutthe world

Our growth in 2009 represents another significant step in the

transformation of our Company Over the past decade we have

shown great resilience and discipline establishing reputation

for efficiently run operations and the delivery of high-quality

products and services The benefits have translated into

significant growth in market capitalization which since

January 2005 has increased from approximately $80 million

to nearly $4 billion today demonstrating the steady progress

of our operational excellence and growth strategies and the

continuing support of our investors

Now we are focused on the further expansion of our enterprise

and we are creating connections that add to our ability to serve

shareholders destination customers farmers and employees

With urbanization in many countries reducing the amount of

arable land food producers are being asked to do more with

less This rising demand for agricultural productivity must be

achieved without compromising the land and resources needed

for long-term sustainable production

Viterras people bring range of knowledge and perspectives

that are ideally suited to address this challenge and our

commitment to innovation and performance excellence will

amplify our opportunities

Driven by an entrepreneurial spirit we will build on

our position of strength and enhance our brand as

leading provider of high-quality food ingredients

COMBINING PERFORMANCE WITH GROWTH

While commodity prices declined in 2009 relative to 2008

the demand forfood and the value of food ingredients

is expected to increase overthe long term.The Food and

Agriculture Organization FAO of the United Nations

estimates that prices forfood commodities will be at least

25% higher in the decade ahead

These projections are in keeping with our analysis and are

the foundation upon which we are identifying our future path

for growth Atthe same time we remain firmlyfocused on

optimizing operational performance to ensure that we are

delivering value from our strategic position in the marketplace
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In fiscal 2009 our consolidated sales and other operating

revenues reached $6.6 billion which compared to $6.8 billion in

2008 Operationally Viterra performed well in an environment of

declining commodity prices particularly in our grain operations

where we shipped 17.0 million tonnes of grains and oilseeds

record for our North American operations In Agri-products

we stayed focused on delivering to our customers specific

needs even while experiencing some challenging weather

early in the growing season We saw fertilizer pricing and

margins significantly impactfinancial performance in

that segment

Net earnings were $113.1 million for 2009 or $0.45 per share

compared to $288.3 million or$1.31 per share in 2008 Cash

flowfrorn operations remained strong at$223.4 million while

free cash flow prior to working capital changes and after

capital expenditures was$148.1 million

invite readers to review Managements Discussion and

Analysis which is contained in our Financial Review for

thorough discussion of our 2009 performance

We executed ourtransaction with ABB and as promised

retained very strong balance sheet The total value of this

transaction was $1.4 billion achieved through an offering to

ABB shareholders of combination of equity and cash in which

ABB shareholders elected the maximum share consideration

The transaction was completed on September 23 2009 At

October 31 2009 ourtotal debt-to-capital ratio was 31% and

we had over $1 billion of cash and short-term investments on

the balance sheet

The integration of our Australian operations will create

cross-pollination bringing together the best systems

ideas and people from two distinct agricultural regions We

anticipate benefits on both sides making Viterra stronger

Company globally Current expectations are for synergies of

approximately $30 million delivered we believe over the next

24 months

We completed the year as more geographically diverse

Company yet we maintained the financial stability that has

become our hallmark It is this discipline thatwill allow us to

explore additional opportunities as we move forward while

being careful stewards of the financial resources entrusted

to us by our shareholders and lenders

Our investment guidelines and profile are clear we strive for

profitable growth by investing to earn more than our cost of

capital We intend to maintain healthy balance sheet with

debt-to-capital ratio of between 30% and 40% We prefer

existing businesses with low risk profile and that naturally

fit our core competencies Where we see strategic fit or

opportunities to acquire companies that are scalable and are

consistent with our value-chain approach we will act

THE GROWING FOCUS ON FOOD

There is fundamental driver behind our business

the world is going to need more food

The global population is expected to increase from its cLirrent

6.8 billion people to 9.0 billion by 2050 To meetthe needs of this

burgeoning population it is estimated that food production must

increase by 70% with an additional billion tonnes of cereal

crops and 200 million tonnes of meat requirements

While these are long-term projections it is important to note

thatthe impact is realitytoday It is an ongoing story-- and

one that is unfolding at an increasingly rapid rate

Countries around the world will be required to significantly

increase their investment in seed technology fertilizer and

infrastructure to support additional food production Viterras

value chain is built around these growing needs
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Viterra has over $1 billion of cash

and short-term investments

Viterras market capitalization has grown

to nearly $4 billion

Debt-to-capital ratio

The key however is our abilityto collect and market grain

to geographically diverse areas Our high throughput port

terminals on Canadas WestCoastare an important gateway to

the Pacific Rim while Thunder Bay Ontario serves Europe and

the United States U.S. OurAustralian operations optimize

movement of grain and non-grain commodities to Asian

countries and provide another source by which we can

satisfy customers

Our global operations provide access to the largest export

origination for the core ingredients we handle Canada and

Australia comprise over 40% market share of the worlds

aggregate wheat barley and canola exports With our

geographic diversity multiple originations and shipping

capabilities we can arbitrage vessel logistics valuable

advantage as we build relationships with destination

customers around the world

In November we opened an international trading office

in Geneva Switzerland It is strategically located in the

commodity trading capital of the world Ourteam is responsible

for developing new relationships and identifying opportunities

in European regions where large portion of the worlds new

grain production will be grown in the future

Some areas like the Black Sea region of eastern Europe will

play an increasingly important role in addressing global food

demand butthe area also presents greater risk According

to the U.S Food and Agriculture Policy Research Institute

FAPRI net trade exports of wheat barley and canola from

this region alone will increase by 7.6 million tonnes overthe

next 10 years That makes it importantfor us to start building

relationships in this area We will approach the region with

the same patience and diligence that has characterized our

previous actions

In other areas of the world ourtrading offices in Japan

Singapore and China put us closerto destination customers

providing us better insights and understanding of their needs

and challenges while accessing better market intelligence on

global scale

Much change is occurring around the world and we must be

prepared For instance it has been reported that Saudi Arabia

will end domestic wheat production by 2016 to conserve water

This could result in imports of more than 2.5 million tonnes of

wheat per year In order to be competitive Canada and Viterra

as the largest grain company in this nation must ensure that

we are efficient competitive and have high-quality products

available to meetthese growing appetites

Given the anticipated rise in global food

consumption we believe our activities now

position us for growth and success in the

years ahead

as at October 31 2009

$80 million

2005

January31

31
2009

October31

as at October 31 2009
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Canary Seed Mustard
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LEVEL OF TRUST

While our physical assets are essential for our

success Viterra is also distinguishing itself through

our commitment to reliable supply food quality and

food safety

Viterra has transformed from handler of raw commodities to

become preferred supplier of high-quality food ingredients

with operations tailored to meet the specific needs of

destination customers around the world We have designed

systems arid processes that protect the integrity of the

ingredients supply allowing us to build stronger connections

to world-class business partners and enabling usto receive

premium for our products

In short we have established level of trust that is deeply

valued by customers employees and our communities

This begins with our commitment to Viterras core values of

integrity trust respect and high performance By remaining

steadfast in our commitment to these values we have given

our people the
ability to take pride in their Company and

they in turn have made us exceedingly proud of their efforts

This becomes an important point of differentiation one

that helps us attract the brightest employees and the best

customers This is an important building blockfor our Company

one we will defend vigorously as we continue to grow

PLATFORM FOR GROWTH

As we look ahead to fiscal 2010 and beyond we believe

we are well positioned to continue to deliver results for

our stakeholders

We have the infrastructure to compete on global level and the

relationships to fuel future growth Most importantly we have

built team of people who are committed to our vision and

goals who are motivated to help Viterra achieve new levels

of success and who are relentlesslyfocused on

creating value

Given the increasing importance of food ingredients we expect

considerable opportunities to generate additional value for our

stakeholders particularly in the value-added sector In North

America we intend to expand our service offerings and agri

products retail presence and bring more proprietary products

to farmers to reduce their risk In our processing operations

we will look for acquisitions that enable us to capitalize on core

capabilities while addressing the growing demand for healthy

food ingredients

Our ability to achieve this will always be closely

linked to our core values and our continued

commitment to serving the farmers destination

customers and communities who view Viterra as

trusted business partner

Creating connections is about building on these relationships

It is about connecting supply and demand and farmers to

consumers to build successful enduring and prosperous

future for our Company

MAYO SCHMIDT

President and Chief Executive Officer

SOUTHERN EUROPE

Wheat Durum Peas

Lettiis Beats Mustard etc

AFRICA

Wheat Durum

Beats Mustard etcVITERRAS GLOBAL MARKETS

Viterra oxruorts premium-quality ingredients

over 50 auntries worldwide

MIDDLE EAST

Wheat Barley Cunolu

Feed Barley Pulses etc

AUSTRALIA

Wheat Barley Malt Burley Cantla

Durum Mustard Bats etc

.j
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR DISCLOSURE

Managements Discussion and Analysis MDAwas

prepared based on information available to Viterra Inc referred

to herein as Viterra orthe Company as of January 212010

This MDA includes key financial statement information for the

12 months ended October 312009 compared to the 12-month

results of the Company to October 312008 Included in this

information are resultsfromABB Grain Ltd referred to herein

as ABB Viterra Australia or Viterra for the period

September 242009 to October 312009 Viterras 2008

results do not contain contributions fromABB

On May 19 2009 Viterra and ABB leading Australian agri

business entered into an Implementation Agreement under

which Viterra would acquire all the issued and outstanding

shares in ABB for mixture of cash and shares via Scheme of

Arrangement On September 92009 ABB shareholders voted

to approve the Scheme and removed 15% limit on the amount

of shares any one shareholder could hold Viterra assumed

control of ABB on September 23 2009

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Viterra is vertically integrated global agri-business

headquartered in Canada.The Company was founded in 1924

and has extensive operations across Western Canada and

Australia with facilities in the south central United States

U.S and New Zealand Viterra has offices in Canada

Australia New Zealand Japan Singapore China Switzerland

and India

As major participant in the value-added agri-food supply chain

the Company operates in five interrelated segments including

Grain Handling and Marketing Agri-products Food Processing

Feed Products and Financial Products Geographically Viterras

North American operations are diversified across Canada

primarily in Western Canada and throughoutthe south

central United States Viterra wholly owns livestock feed

manufacturing operations canola processing and oat milling

facilities Viterras North American operations also participate

in malt processing through 42% ownership interest in Prairie

Malt Limited Prairie Malt and in fertilizer manufacturing

through its 34% ownership in Canadian Fertilizers Limited

CFL Viterra is also involved in other commodity-related

businesses through strategic alliances and supply agreements

with domestic and international grain traders and food

processing companies The Company markets commodities

directly to customers around the world in more than

50 countries

On September 232009 Viterra acquired all of the issued

and outstanding common shares of ABB Recently renamed

Viterra the Australian agri-business has multi-faceted

operation Viterras Australian and New Zealand operations

are organized into the Companys existing segments Grain

Handling and Marketing Agri-products Food Processing

and Feed Products The domestic grain business consists of

country storage and handling assets port terminal operations

as well as merchandising and logistics management The food

processing operation includes eight malt manufacturing plants

across Australia The feed products operation is located in

New Zealand and includes feed milling storage and maize

processing The agri-products business is involved in fertilizer

and agricultural chemicals sales livestock and wool marketing

and wool brokering

Viterras shares trade on the Toronto Stock Exchange TSX
under the symbol VT Viterras CHESS Depositary Interests

CDIs issued in connection with the acquisition of ABB

See Section 10 of this MDA and Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements began trading on the Australian

Securities Exchange ASX under the symbol VTA
on September 142009

BUSINESS MODEL

Viterras business model is designed to optimize its position in

the agri-food value chain by connecting producers and their

commodities with destination customers around the world

generating revenue at each stage of the handling processing

and marketing process

3.1 North American Business Model

In North America Viterras relationship with producers is

extremely important given that they are both Viterras customer

and supplier of products The Company provides farmers

with agronomic and planning advice financial products and

other services atthe beginning of the crop cycle and delivers

customized agricultural solutions and products aimed to ensure

Viterra 2009 Annual financial Review



high-quality high-yielding crops are available to meet demands Australian Business Model

in the international marketplace

In North America Viterra sells wide variety of agri-products

such as proprietary and public seed varieties along with

fertilizer crop protection products and small agricultural

equipment The Company bundles agri-products with

production contracts trucking premiums financing options

and targeted marketing programs to attract commodities into

its high throughput grain handling network in Canada Viterra

cleans dries and blends grains oilseeds and specialty crops

before they are sold to the domestic or export market Viterra

markets the grain directly to destination customers through

its commodity merchandisers orthrough the Canadian Wheat

Board CWB or Board The products are shipped from

the Prairies either by truck or by rail to various markets

domestically or to port position

The Company manages the transportation and logistics

requirements to the destination and is responsible for

maintaining the integrity of the product while en route and

in storage For grains that originate from Canada and are

destined for the international marketplace the product moves

through one of Viterras exportterminal facilities Before being

loaded onto vessels the product is graded bythe Canadian

Grain Commission CGCto ensure it meets the quality

specifications demanded by the international marketplace

Viterras food processing ingredients can be found in food

products around the world whetherthey are in breakfast

cereals or snack bars sourced fromViterras oat mills canola oil

that is processed through its canola crushing facility or in malt

products derived from its investment in Prairie Malt Viterra

products are also traded through strategic alliances and supply

agreements with other food processing and consumer products

companies internationally Viterra develops relationships

globallyto secure demand for Prairie agricultural products

completing the value chain to the consumer

Viterra is involved in value-added feed processing through

its Feed Products group which operates feed manufacturing

plants in Western Canada Texas Oklahoma and New

Mexico Viterra provides full line of feed and nutritional feed

formulations advisory services financing and other related

services to beef and dairy cattle swine poultry and other

livestock producers

Viterras Australian and New Zealand operations primarily

consist of grain handling and marketing services agri-products

food processing and feed products Viterras business model

in South Australia is anchored by comprehensive storage and

handling system that includes up-country elevator capacity

and significant investments in export capabilities The primary

focus is on grain accumulation and the marketing of growers

commodities to destination customers both domestically

and internationally

The Companys Grain Handling and Marketing segment

warehouses grain and oilseeds grown in South Australia

in bunkers silos and grain sheds Viterra also owns and

operates all of South Australias bulk grain exportterminals

The majority of the South Australia crop moves through

Viterras infrastructure to reach destination markets

Growers deliver their commodities via truck either to

up-country storage or directly to port The commodities are

then purchased by grain marketers including Viterra Most

marketers utilize Viterras southern Australian infrastructure

to store and handle their purchased commodities prior to

movement to select destinations

Viterra is also the largest maltster in Australia operating

63% of Australias malt production capacity under the Joe

White Maltings brand and representing approximately 68%

of the countrys malt exports It competes with domestic and

international malt producers to supply brewers growing

malt demand particularly from the Asian-Pacific region

Barley is the second largest crop grown in Australia with

average production of approximately million tonnes annually

Therefore Viterra is well positioned in the heart of the malt

barley growing region

Viterras Australian Agri-products business offers growers

variety of products including fertilizer seed and crop

protection products through retail operation Viterra also

operates wool accumulation and sales business

Viterra is well positioned to provide feed products to the

growing New Zealand market leveraging Viterras global

sourcing capabilities Viterra is key importer and distributor

of grains and meals into New Zealand through its storage

maize processing and feed milling operations
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ROtail Locations By Province 2009 Seeded Acreage By Province

33 Agri-products

Viterra is involved in the sale of seed crop protection products

fertilizer and equipmentto producers The Agri-products

operations also include an ownership interest in nitrogen

fertilizer manufacturer and network of retail locations

331 Agri-products North America

Viterras Agri-products segment in Canada operates network

of 259 retail locations throughout Western Canada which are

geographically distributed throughoutthe growing regions of the

Prairies The Company is involved in the specialized storage and

sales of bulk fertilizer seed crop protection products and small

agricultural equipment such as storage bins and grain augers

All facilities offer variety of agronomic services including seed

soil and moisture testing Viterras retail stores are staffed by

individuals with agronomic and agri-business expertise and are

supported by team of professional agronomists

Viterras research and development centre at the University

of Saskatchewan focuses on developing high-yielding seed

products primarily canola and flax designed to thrive in

Western Canadas diverse climate Viterra contracts with

Prairie growers to produce the seed and through its retail

network sells proprietary seed varieties and certified seeds

that offer improved yield potential and other value-added

traits Viterra also sells third-party varieties provided through

suppliers such as Bayer CropScience Dow AgroSciences

Pioneer Hi-Bred and Monsanto

Viterra has 34% investment in CFL nitrogen fertilizer

manufacturing plant in Medicine Hat Alberta The Company is

entitled to receive 34% of approximately 1.5 million tonnes of

merchantable product split equally between granular urea and

anhydrous ammonia NH3 Viterra also holds 53% patronage

interest in Interprovincial Co-operative Limited supplier and

manufacturer of crop protection products in Canada

Agri-products Market Environment North America

The agri-products market in Western Canada is mature and

highlyfragmentedwith over900 locationsthroughoutthe

region operated by grain companies co-operatives fuel

companies and independent retailers Viterras operations

represent approximately 30% of the market Independent

retailers who collectively comprise another 30% are the

single biggest competitor Some offer full range of products

including seed fertilizer crop protection and small agricultural

equipment while others specialize in specific product lines

Unlike the Grain Handling and Marketing segment deregulation

globalization and consolidation have had little effect on the

agri-products distribution network

The western Canadian market is defined based on total

seeded acreage which has remained at approximately

60 million acres over the last decade Agri-products usage

has however climbed and since 1999 the overall market

excluding equipment sales has grown from about $2.6 billion

in sales to about $4.2 billion in 2007 In 2008 sales increased to

$5.4 billion mainly due to record commodity prices particularly

fertilizer Additional sales were realized in that period as

well as result of farmers increasing their application rates

to capitalize on the high commodity prices Since that time

commodity prices including fertilizer prices have declined

This has led to decrease in gross industry sales for 2009

The fertilizertable on page illustrates the trend in estimated

wholesale fertilizer prices for the two main products sold

through Viterras North American retail system since the

fall of 2008

The Agri-products business starts with the seed New seed and

seeding technologies together with less summer-fallowed

acres the development of new crop protection products that

address long-term plant disease issues and shifts in crop mix

from cereal grains to oilseeds and special crop commodities

have all influenced the growth in the seed market

There are good opportunities for differentiation in seed

products Access to proprietary seeds can drive higher

sales and margins and can be the basis for product bundling

strategies Most retail locations that sell seed offer third-party

varieties while few larger companies like Viterra have their

own proprietary seed products Apart from proprietary seed

and certain proprietary rights to specific brands of chemical

products competition is based primarily on price information

service and availability

The industry is seasonal and highly dependent on weather

conditions with more than 75% of the Companys seed fertilizer

and crop protection products delivered from mid-April to the end

of June although 80% of seed orders are typically placed prior

to January This means that capacity is fully utilized during

this period and under-utilized for the remainder of the year

31%
AI.BTA/

BRITISH COLUMBIA

81 sites

50%
SASKATCHEWAN

130 sites

Souce Viterra Company Reports

30.1%

ALBERTA/

BRITISH COLUMBIA

Sourcet Statistics Canada Field Crop Reporting Series VOL 88 Flo8
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Fertilizer Pricing Urea vs Phosphate
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Source Vitarra Company Reports

This short-term high-volume delivery period requires superior

logistics managementto ensure products are in the hands of

customers when needed Timely deliveries by manufacturers

and central warehousing facilities are essential to meet

customer demands Spring season logistical challenges can be

eased by strong fall season which typically runs from August

to November depending on weather and harvest conditions In

those years the fall season can represent about 15% of annual

agri-products sales volumes in North America the majority of

which are typicallyfertilizer sales

Key Agri-products Profit Drivers North America

Key performance drivers in this segment are the volume of

sales in each of the main product lines and the related margins

Demand for crop inputs is strongly correlated to the acres

seeded in the crop production year and grain pricing As noted

previously seeded acreage in Western Canada has averaged

about 60 million acres per year

Crop mix can influence both the level of sales and margins

For example canola and other special crops require more

inputs than wheat and barley resulting in greater seed

fertilizer and crop protection product sales in years when the

seeded acres are more heavily weighted to those crops Crop

mix can vary depending on commodity price outlooks input

costs crop rotation requirements and weather conditions

The latter may delay spring seeding and influence the producer

to shiftto products with earlier germination and shorter

maturation characteristics Margins may also be affected

by crop mix since some seed varieties have better margin

contribution than others

Average Crop Input Costs in Canada

range per coral

i1IVLI Canola

22 44 66 88 120

Source Viterra Estmates

As mentioned earlier Viterra is involved in fertilizer

manufacturing through its interest in CFL The largest cost

component in nitrogen-based fertilizer manufacturing is

natural gas which makes up approximately 75% of the cost

of producing urea The Company manages its share of natural

gas costs to limit its exposure through the use of financial

instruments Fertilizer production typically occurs throughout

the year while sales are substantially executed during the

compressed spring and fall seasons

Western Canadian nitrogen fertilizer wholesale prices are

generally predicated upon the NOLA New Orleans Louisiana

price plus freightto Western Canada adjusted for foreign

exchange During periods of increasing fertilizer prices Viterra

may experience margin appreciation between the time of

production and the time of sale or margin compression in

period of declining fertilizer prices Producers buying behaviour

in terms of both consumption and timing will also change

depending on input costs underlying commodity prices and

their views on the market outlook

The most dramatic sales growth and price appreciation in

fertilizer came in 2008 when the industry experienced both

dramatic commodity price increases and rising demand

High fertilizer demand result of high commodity prices

contributed to record prices even though natural gas costs

the most significant input for nitrogen-based products were

lower compared to the prior year

During the latter part of 2008 fertilizer prices began to decline

function of lower corn prices and an anticipation of slower

demand Prices have remained depressed and number of

industry participants wrote down inventories in 2009 as result

The most significant driver in this business is weather which

influences the timing and quantity of sales Farmers regularly

purchase crop inputs in the spring and fall periods Extremely

wet or dry conditions can alterthe timing and type of input

purchases depending on the level of plant disease and insect

infestations in the case of crop protection products or the

lWheat
amount of soil moisture for seed and fertilizer application

However favourable weather patterns can also enhance

JBarlev
seedfertilizer and crop protection product sales as

producers strive to optimize crop yields

In termsof sensitivity to overall earnings management

estimates that each 1% change in North American agri-products

retail sales revenue represents approximately $2.0 to $4.0 million

of EBITDA see Non-GAAP Canadian GenerallyAccepted

Accounting Principles Measures in Section 18 Management

estimates that 1% change in North American gross margin

typicallytranslates into about$12.0 to $17.0 million of EBITDA

Seeded Acreage Western Canada

in millions nf acres
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332 Agri-productsAustralia

In Australia Viterra operates six retail stores five of which are

located in South Australia and one in New South Wales and

10 depots located alongside Viterra grain storage and handling

facilities through which it sells seed fertilizer crop protection

products and other farm-related items The Company also has

five fertilizer warehouses in the region four in South Australia

and one in Victoria and operates wool brokering and export

business livestock marketing business and two real estate

offices in South Australia

The Company manages portfolio of more than 30 field crop

seed varieties with the majority being barley and wheat

varieties It participates in research and developmentthrough

an equity ownership in the University of Adelaide Barley

Breeding Program which allows Viterra the first right of refusal

over new barley varieties The Company also has an agreement

with the South Australian Research and Development Institute

for the commercialization rights to the National Oat Breeding

Program for milling oatvarieties

Viterras wool operation an important link in Viterras

relationship with growers in Australia extends to South

Australia Western Australia and Victoria Viterra acts as

broker direct buyer and exporter in this industry

Agri-products Market Environment Australia

Seeded acreage is the principal driver of crop inputs in Australia

as well The average area sown tofield crops in Australia over

the past 10 years is approximately 51 million acres with the

breakdown by region illustrated in the graph above The primary

crops grown in the region include wheat barley sorghum

canola oats and lupins

In 2008 the Australian fertilizer market was approximately

3.9 million tonnes

The total Australian crop protection products market was

estimated to be worth approximately $1.4 billion in 2008

Herbicides make up 45% of this market while 35% is animal

health 13% insecticides and 7% includes fungicides and plant

growth regulators The Australian agri-products market is

dominated by several large players

According to the International Wool Textile Organisation

IWTOAustralia isthe largestglobal producerand exporter

of wool accounting for nearly one-quarter of global production

Western Canadian Production

and Primary Elentor Supiaent
thoutiod otnee

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2000 2006 2007 2006 2008 2010

Source Statistic Caned and C.n.di.n Grain Commission

Approximately 98% of Australias wool is exported with China

being the dominant destination taking 67% of Australias wool

exports Viterras wool business has two components domestic

and export Domestically Viterra moves wool from the farm to

sell at auction For about 60% of the volume Viterra acts as

broker forthe wool grower and for 40% of the business acts as

the principal buyer either
selling

into auction or supplying to

destination customers in countries such as China India and
Italy

Key Profit Drivers for Agri-products Australia

Weather is key profit driver for agri-products in Australia as

it is in all grain growing regions Fertilizer pricing and demand

are the other key factors in profitability Fertilizer pricing is

driven by global fertilizer supply and demand fundamentals

Approximately 60% of Viterras Australian fertilizer sales are

phosphate and 40% are nitrogen-based Local demand is

primarily dependent upon adequate moisture and soil nutrient

levels the growers views on future commodity prices and

weather Viterra must accurately assess grower demand

and manage required inventory positions to guard against

the impact of declining or volatile fertilizer prices

3.4 Grain Handling and Marketing

The Grain Handling and Marketing segment accumulates stores

transports and markets grains oilseeds and special crops This

business includes grain storage facilities and processing plants

strategically located in the prime agricultural growing regions of

North America and Australia This segment also includes wholly

owned port exportterminals located in Canada and Australia

3.4.1 Grain Handling and Marketing North America

In its Grain Handling and Marketing segment in North America

Viterra contracts markets and transports grain from the

farmto end-use markets through the Companys 85 licensed

primary grain elevator locations and through its port terminals

in Vancouver British Columbia Thunder Bay Ontario and

Prince Rupert British Columbia Grain handling begins with

the movement of the commodity from the farm to Viterras

geographically dispersed and strategically located country

elevator network where the product is dried weighed graded

cleaned and prepared for shipment Grain is then shipped from

the country elevator to North American customers such as

flour mill oilseed crusher maltster feed grain consumer

or biofuel plant or to port terminal usually for shipment

to an offshore destination customer

Goare Aniapsitan IursaottiAricultoraI and Rasorirce Economic ABAPE
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Proportion of Viterras Western Canadian Grain Receipts

Source Viterre Company Reports

2009 2008

Viterra actively buys grain and oilseeds from farm customers

throughout the year Viterra tests the commodities for quality

then cleans dries and blends them in preparation for shipping

Viterra earns margin for these services Volumes quality

and export demand are key drivers in this business Viterra

markets open market grains and oilseeds directly to destination

customers and buys and sells wheat and barley as an Agent

and Accredited Exporter of the CWB The grains regulated by

the CWB are known as Board grains or CWB grains

The CWB has monopoly over the domestic sale of western

Canadian wheat used for human consumption and barley

used for malting purposes The CWB is also the sole export

marketing agency for all western Canadian wheat and barley

Underthis monopoly the CWB controls the sales price as well

as the flow and timing of wheat and barley deliveries into the

elevator system by issuing contract calls to the producers The

flow of shipments to portterminals is also determined by the

CWB through its management of rail logistics

Mostwestern-based grain companies operate as agents of

the CWB buying grain from producers on behalf of the CWB

and delivering itto position at port or to designated domestic

customer Many grain companies including Viterra are also

CWB-Accredited Exporters and secure wheat and barley sales

in the global marketplace on behalf of the CWB Viterra contracts

transports and markets open market grains such as canola

oats flax peas and other special crops for its own account

Viterra has extensive access to domestic and international

markets developed through its marketing relationships with

destination customers Through its primary sales offices across

Western Canada and its International Grain Group with

offices in Vancouver Singapore Geneva Tokyo and Beijing

the Company markets its grains and oilseeds to more than

50 countries and is the largest canola exporter in Canada

The International Grain Group maintains strong relationships

in destination markets and exporting countries in order to gain

access to grains and oilseedsfrom new regions and capture

greater share of the global demand base

Grains and Oilseeds Market Environment North America

On average Western Canada produces about 49 million tonnes

of grains and oilseeds based on the 10-year average of the

six major grains and oilseeds excluding the unusual 2002

drought as well as variety of other specialty crops

Typically about6O% to 65% of the total grains and oilseeds

approximately 30 to 32 million tonnes are shipped over the

subsequent 12-month period through the primary elevator

system by grain handling companies such as Viterra The

remaining grain production is consumed domestically by food

processors oilseed crushers feedlots or held on-farm for

future marketings Viterra has about 35% of the industrys

primary storage capacity and the largest market share

representing about 45% of the market based on receipts

producers deliveries intothe system

Traditionally wheat has been the dominant crop in Western

Canada but in more recent years the crop mix has seen

significant shift in favour of oilseeds and special crops This

has been driven by number of contributing factors Producers

are diversifying to higher value crops to reduce price risk and

enhance overall returns Heightened demand for oilseeds

and special crops together with better seed varieties have

provided farmers with new cropping options and access to the

better pricing associated with those commodities

Approximately 50% of the Companys total shipments are

now Board grains based on five-year average In recent

years the Company has seen shift in production from

wheatto canola and other special crops which has driven

corresponding shift in the proportion of CWB grains to open

market grains that are handled

Key Profit Drivers for Grain Handling and Marketing

North America

The key drivers in Viterras North American grain handling

business are volumes and margins Volume is important

because of the high fixed-cost nature of the business The more

grain that flows through Viterras grain handling and marketing

infrastructure the lower the cost per tonne The volume of

grain shipments is based mainly on production volumes in the

previous growing season adjusted for changes in on-farm

inventories Accordingly volume is key driver of profitability

given the fee-for-service business model These fees or tariffs

are typically adjusted annually and are fairly predictable once

exporttargets and destination customer demands have been

determined Management estimates that every 5% change in

production volumes has about $15.0 to $18.0 million impact

on EBITDA assuming corresponding increase or decrease in

grain receipts
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Factors that may influence the timing and amount of shipments

in given year include the producers expectations of

commodity prices in the near and longer term the timing and

quality of the crop harvested export demand foreign exchange

rates rail transport capabilities the financial needs of farmers

and direct sales byfarmers to domestic millers maltsters and

oilseed crushers

Viterra measures market share based on its share of overall

producer deliveries of the six major grains into its Canadian

primary elevator system The Companys extensive and

geographically dispersed network of assets positions Viterra

to capture significant proportion of the market relative to

the production in each of the Prairie Provinces and assists in

reducing revenue riskfrom localized production variances

The ability to source grains and oilseeds in the western

Canadian market as result of this highly efficient

infrastructure is competitive advantage

In 2008 Viterra continued to invest in its country assets as it

looked to improve efficiencies upgrading multi-car loading

capabilities at four locations In addition construction

continues on Viterras new facility
in Sexsmith Alberta slated

for completion in 2010 This focus on country infrastructure

positions Viterra well as its competitors also look to expand

their country operations Management believes that Viterras

market share forthe six major grains will remain strong

in the 45% range as it completes its efficiency and

expansion strategies

All major grain handling companies have the ability to elevate

store clean blend market and transport grain As such

companies compete on the basis of price and service which

in turn can be influenced bythe companys level of efficiency

Viterra with the most efficient elevator network multi-car

rail loading capacity and
logistics expertise has the

ability to

maximize throughput in the system keeping costs per tonne

low and consequently outperform competitors in the industry

see discussion of Core Capabilities in Section

The ability to attract market share is significantfactor

in profitability Management estimates that 1% change

in Viterras market share could result in about

$7.0 to $8.0 million change in EBITDA

13.5%
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Market share must be appropriately balanced with the level

of margins achieved Viterras competitive strength therefore

comes from deploying its core capabilities so that it can

enhance market share by offering competitive value tofarmers

while preserving and enhancing its own margin capabilities

see discussion of Core Capabilities in Section

Export volumes are also important to profitability as increased

activity at Viterras port terminals and export-accredited inland

terminals generate additional revenue from services such as

elevation cleaning drying and blending As fee-for-service

or tolling business Viterra earns maximum margins on those

commodities that it receives into its primary system ships

through port terminal and manages directly to the destination

As such the level of CWB sales worldwide supply and

demand and the quality and price of grains oilseeds and other

commodities influence export levels and are factors that can

impact profitability

Due to the relativelyfixed cost nature of the business

management estimates that each $1 pertonne change in margins

translates into about $15.Oto $16.0 million impact on EBITDA

As noted earlier Viterra recently established an International

Grain Group that is responsible for furthering the development

of customer relationships in destination and origination markets

seeking out international value-added opportunities and

marketing grains and oilseeds to capture greater share of

the global demand base Margins earned by the Grain Group in

North America include the tariffs and services charged atthe

primary elevator rail incentives and port terminal charges For

certain customers and certain commodities the International

Grain Group will assume responsibility once the product

arrives at export position managing the vessel freight and

delivery to the destination of choice The International Grain

Group also sources commodities from other countries when

it makes sense to do so taking possession at port position and

managing the vessel logistics trading margins and delivery to

the destination customer

3.4.2 Grain Handling and MarketingAustralia

In Australia Viterra stores contracts markets and transports

grain from its storage and handling system through export

port terminals to end-use markets through the Companys

108 licensed primary grain elevator locations Viterra is the

sole owner and operator of eight bulk export terminals in

Viterra capacity by Province

494%
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Five-Year Production of Principal Crops in Australia

South Australia which have combined storage capacity

of3 million tonnes or just under third of Viterras storage

and handling capacity in the region Three of the facilities

are situated at deep-sea ports and are capable of

loading Panamax vessels which can hold between

52000 to 75000 metric tonnes including the recently

commissioned Outer Harbor facility Viterra has aggregate

storage capacity of 9.6 million metric tonnes primarily

spread throughout South Australia

This segment also has 50% interest in Australian Bulk Alliance

ABA grain receival and export business in New South

Wales and Victoria In total ABA has eight country grain

elevator locations and 50% ownership in one exportterminal

atthe Port of Melbourne

Viterra has national accumulation team that sources grain

from growing regions across Australia The team utilizes suite

of grain marketing products in its sourcing activities Viterra

also sources grain to supply its malt processing and feed

manufacturing operations in Australia and New Zealand

Grain handling in Australia as in Canada begins with the

movement of the commodity from the farm to Viterras country

elevator receival network where the product is weighed

graded and prepared for shipment Grain is then shipped via

truck or rail from the country elevator to domestic customers

such as flour mill maltster orfeed facility orto port

terminal Viterra has long-term agreementfor bulk grain

railcar supply to supportthe movement of grain through its

southern Australian infrastructure and has the ability to source

additional capacity should it be required Unlike the Canadian

system there is virtually no on-farm storage in South Australia

Growers in this region use Viterras storage and handling

system and pay warehousing fees until such time as they

choose to sell their grain into the market Various marketers

bid on growers grain through the year As noted earlier Viterra

has 9.6 million tonnes of storage in South Australia while

production in the region has averaged 5.3 million tonnes over

the past five years Therefore inventory turns are low typically

less than one turn peryear

Grains and Oilseeds Market Environment Australia

Total average principal crop production for Australia overthe

last five years has been 31.9 million metric tonnes

The Australian wheat market was liberalized in July 2008

with the abolition of the single desk monopoly on bulk wheat

exports previously held by AWB Ltd Under the Wheat Export

Marketing Act of 2008 new export licensing scheme was

adopted Under the new arrangements wheat exporters are

required to hold licence from Wheat Exports Australia in order

to export wheat from Australia

To be eligible for bulk wheat export licence Viterra along

with other portterminal owners are required to have an access

undertaking approved by the Australian Competition and

Consumer Commission ACCC that provides fair and open

access to marketers who want to move grain through

Viterras port facilities The undertaking was approved on

September 29 2009 and the Companys two-year wheat

export licence was granted on September 302009

As result of the changes to the regulatory system grain

companies are now able to trade Australian grain commodities

both domestically and for export The new deregulated

environment has increased competition with more than

27 registered companies able to compete as marketers for

domestic and international sales

Key Profit Drivers for Grain Handling and Marketing Australia

In Viterras storage and handling business the key profitability

driver is volume which is directly linked to crop production

levels in South Australia Given that Viterra owns the majority

of the regions storage growers depend upon the Company for

their warehousing needs There is no significant competition

in southern Australian storage therefore Viterra competes

with other regions in Australia including Western Australia

Queensland and New South Wales in setting its fee structure

It must be competitive with other regions in order to encourage

marketers to purchase grain from South Australia

Another significant profit driver in this segment is commodity

prices With the deregulation of the market grain purchased

for Viterras account must be fully financed with the Companys

working capital Viterra employs hedging forward contracting

and position limits to assist in protecting itselffrom the impact of

adverse market moves

16.7%
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3.5 Food Processing

Viterras Food Processing segment is an important aspect of

the Companys value chain Overall this segment extends the

Companys pipeline by producing semi-finished and finished

food ingredients for consumer products companies and food

processors around the world

3.5 Food Processing North America

Viterras ingredients can be found in food products around

the world whetherthey are in breakfast cereals or snack bars

sourced from oat milling or salad dressings cooking sprays

or bottled oils sourced from Viterras canola processor Viterra

develops relationships globally to secure demand for Prairie

agricultural products completing the value chain to the consumer

Viterras North American Food Processing segment is

comprised of oat and specialty grain milling facilities

formerly known as Can-Oat Milling located in Portage Ia

Prairie Manitoba Martensville Saskatchewan and Barrhead

Alberta canola processing facility in Ste Agathe Manitoba

and 42% ownership interest in Prairie Malt one of

North Americas largest single-site malting plants

located at Biggar Saskatchewan

Food Processing North America Oats

Viterra is one of the worlds largest industrial oat millers and

controls approximately 21% of the total North American oat

milling capacity and approximately 36% of the industrial

ingredient supply market It processes raw oats into primary

intermediate and finished food products and has total milling

capacity of 380000 tonnes of oats per year Viterra is the

supplier of choice for many U.S food manufacturers Customers

are primarily North American marquee food manufacturers

who are consistent brand leaders in breakfast cereals whole

grain and healthyfood choices The food manufacturing market

is dominated by small number of larger manufacturers and

as result Viterra is dependent on its top five customers for

over 50% of its sales volumes however these customers

are large companies to which it has been supplying for

more than five years

Western Canada is the largest oat production area for milling

quality oats in the world Viterra estimates that at least 50% of

the oat production can be used for milling in an average year

of which its oat operations purchase approximately

20% per annum

Viterra Oat Processing Sales Volumes

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2008 2001 2009

Sowcs Vitens Company Reports oolumee raft sot 15 months of sils

Oats are encased by low-value hull which renders 30 to 35%

of the weight essentially unusable for human consumption

Due to the extra cost associated with shipping these low-value

byproducts mill locations closer to raw material supplies

have competitive advantage

In 2009 more than 90% of the milled oats were exported to the

United States Viterras Barrhead facility in Alberta also has

the capacity to process organic oats and has barley processing

capacity of 3500 to 7000 tonnes per year depending on

product mix

Products are classified into three types primary finished and

animal feed Primary products are used to produce finished

products such asflakesflour bran or blended oatmeal

combinations or are sold directly to customers with their

own finishing capacity

Oat Market Environment North America

Viterras oat business can be characterized as stable in an

industrythat is mature Canada is the second largest oat

producer and the largest oat exporter in the world representing

65% of the worlds oat export trade In 2009 total world oat

production increased to 25.4 million tonnes including oats for

feed and human consumption Canadas oat production has

remained relatively consistent over the past 15 years and

represents about 15% of the worlds total Close to

90% of Canadas oats are produced in Western Canada with

the majority about 78% grown in Saskatchewan and Manitoba

In 2009 total harvested area decreased in all three Prairie

Provinces due to poor weather loweryields and poor growing

conditions Despite these conditions the 2009 crop provides

sufficientsupplyto meet Viterras oat processing needs in 2010

The oat milling industry has seen steady growth in North

American demand over the Iastfive years As result

the percentage of total oat production that is utilized forfood

and industrial purposes has increased from 30% in 2004to

35% in 2009

The U.S the fourth largest oat producer in the world is also

the worlds largest importer of oats representing about

70% of the worlds oattrade Most of the oats are imported from

Canada with the balance imported from Scandinavia Canada

exports 40% to 45% of its oat production primarilyto the U.S

Canada exported more than 1.6 million tonnes to the U.S in the

Ce Oat Production
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12 months ended July 31 2009 2009 Crop Year representing expects capacity to rise to approximately million tonnes per

approximately 90% of that countrys total oat imports Despite

the strong demand in the U.S for
milling oats production

has declined over the last 15 years as U.S farmers increase

plantings of alternative crops like corn soybeans and wheat

Oat milling is an attractive segment of the food ingredients

market Oats are wholesome and natural whole grain grown

and processed with very little chemical application Oat

ingredients are functionally suitable for the rapidly growing

convenience food product categories another important

growth driver for the food industry Oat demand is particularly

resistant to adverse economic conditions since oats are very

affordable food source

The Food and Drug Administration FDA in the U.S has

approved health claim for oat-based products stating that

the soluble fibre from oatmeal as part of low-saturated fat

low-cholesterol diet may reduce the risk of heart disease

This official view of whole grain consumption has heightened

consumer interest in oat-based foods Many cereal and snack

bar makers are now altering their productlinesto include whole

grains positive developmentfor the oat industry over the

long term

Food Processing North America Canola

Viterra operates canola crush plant which it purchased

in June 2009 that has an annual crush capacity of up to

345000 metric tonnes The plant produces and competes in the

canola oil processing and canola meal markets primarily within

Canada and the U.S The business is segmented into three

areas including seed oil and meal

Canola seed crushing is an attractive segment of the food

market Canola oil has distinct advantage over other

vegetable oils due to its fat content characteristics which

are low in saturated fats and high in mono-unsaturated fat

Canola oil represents approximately 50% of the vegetable oil

consumed in Canada 50% of that consumed in Japan and

25% of that consumed in Mexico

Globally large multinationals dominate the oilseed processing

industry The Canadian oilseed crushing industry is comprised

of five companies operating total of 10 crushing plants with

current crush capacity of 5.8 million tonnes per year Several

companies are currently expanding their operations and Viterra

year which equates to 7.2 million tonnes of annual production

assuming 90% capacity utilization When all announced

expansion plans are complete there will be 12 plants in Canada

operated by seven companies

Canola Market Environment

Canola is the primary oilseed crushed in Canada From the

early 1980s to the most recent five-year period production of

canola has increased by approximately 175% and surpassed

12 million tonnes for the first time in 2008 According to

Statistics Canada Western Canada is expected to produce

approximately 11.8 million tonnes of canola in the 2010 crop

year Crush volumes have increased by 5.7% compounded

annual growth rate since the early 1980s The early 1990s and

the most recent five-year period have seen the most significant

increases in volume Since the mid-1990s the export market for

canola oil has driven the increase in total crush volumes Today

Canada is the worlds largest exporter of canola oil while the

U.S is the worlds largest importer

Despite the increase in total crush volumes the percentage

of canola production crushed domestically has remained

relatively constant at 42% with the balance of canola seed

being exported and crushed at destination

The two dominant export markets for canola oil are the U.S and

China Aside from occasional purchases by Europe other Asian

countries comprise most of the remaining demand for canola

oil The increase in volumes to the U.S is largely related to the

burgeoning demand for oils suitable for producing low or zero

transfatfood products In addition to the Canadian crush industry

several crush plants in the U.S access canola from Canada and

the demand from these facilities has been increasing

Other facilities that crush canola are switch plants that also

crush several oilseeds such as flax sunflower or soybeans

depending on economics and seed availability

Health concerns specifically related to the consumption of

saturated fats and trans fats are expected to have positive

impact on the consumption of canola relative to other vegetable

oil alternatives overthe medium term Canola oil has the lowest

level of saturated fat and is one of the highest in omega-3 levels

resulting in canola having healthier profile compared to all

other oils on the market today
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Canola meal production destined for the livestock feed industry

in Canada is expected to growfrom just over million metric

tonnes to close to 4.5 million metric tonnes based on the

additional capacity coming on-stream Canola meal is used as

feed for livestock primarily hogs dairy cattle and poultry

About 67% of canola meal produced in Canada is exported and

of that 94% goes to the U.S The primary reason for such high

percentage going into the U.S is the bulkiness of the product

that makes shipping it over longer distances expensive In the

latter part of fiscal 2009 the U.S FDA began testing Canadian

canola meal for salmonella under its zero tolerance guidelines

This has resulted in the rejection of certain shipments by

industry participants Viterra is currently working with other

participants who are actively seeking resolution with the FDA

Food Processing North America Malt

Viterra has 42% ownership interest in Prairie Malt located

in the heart of Canadas Prairie region where some of the best

barley in the world is grown within 100-kilometre radius

of the plant Prairie Malt has an annual capacity of 220000

metric tonnes and produces top-quality malt that is shipped

to customers throughout Canada the U.S South Africa the

Pacific Rim and Latin American countries As part of the

Companys interest in Prairie Malt barley supply agreement

is in place requiring Prairie Maltto take majority of its

barley requirements fromViterra subjectto quality cost and

timeliness issues Viterras partner in Prairie Malt is Cargill

Limited Cargill who also is the majority owner and

operator of the plant

North America Malt Environment

The main raw material used in the production of malt is

malting-quality barley In Canada the CWB holds monopoly

on Canadian malt barley sales to domestic and international

customers Sales are made directly bythe CWB or by

Accredited Exporters of the CWB such as Viterra Canadian

maltsters purchase all of their malting barley from the CWB
with prices for malting barley based on North American and

international market prices The malting industry is the largest

value-added exporter of cereal grains in Canada and the largest

barley customer of the CWB Forthe coming crop year the

malting industry is expected to purchase more than 50% of

available CWB malting barley stocks

Key Profit Drivers for Food Processing North America

In Viterras oat milling business margins are impacted by yield

foreign exchange oat pricing and product mix Since low-

value hull which is unusable for human consumption encases

raw oats it takes 1.62 tonnes of raw oats to produce tonne

of oat ingredients in an average year Depending on the quality

of raw oats in particularyear this yield equation can vary

between 1.60 tonnes to 1.70 tonnes Every 0.01 tonne decrease

in yield can add about$0.4 million to the cost of production and

as such has an impact on the margins and profitability in this

business Raw oat quality in turn is influenced by oat varieties

soil conditions and farm practices

Oats as an international commodity are priced in U.S dollars

USD Prices are driven mainly by the world feed grain market

and can be quite volatile Prices of finished goods move up and

down on contract-to-contract basis with the price of oats and

the milling margin negotiated as separate component

In the canola processing business product mix can affect

earnings since different types of products will carry different

margin contributions For example primary canola meal

typically has lower margins than canola oil

Malt margins are significantly impacted by key manufacturing

inputs including natural gas labour and the processing yield

achieved from malt barley As well in Prairie Malts business

reliable quality is key factor in maintaining sales relationships

with international customers Only high-quality malt barley

is selected forthe malting process so crop quality can affect

supply and increase production costs The overall quality of the

2009 harvest was average when compared to the previous

five crop years

352 Food Processing Australia

Through the acquisition of ABB Viterra is now Australias

largest malt processor operating eight processing plants

strategically positioned across Australia with the largest

capacity volume in those states with the greatest barley supply

Underthe brand Joe White Maltings Viterras Australian malt

operation has an annual production capacity of up to

500000 metric tonnes of which 400000 tonnes are destined for

export markets and 100000 tonnes are consumed domestically

Viterra supplies maltto major domestic and international

brewers Viterras malt operations require approximately
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600000 tonnes of malt barley per year representing 25%

of the Australian malt barley crop

Viterra is leading malt supplier for key global markets

predominantly the Asian-Pacific region

Viterra has an investment in the University of Adelaides

Barley Breeding Program It is sponsor of various grower

and agronomic-driven projects and is focused on market

optimization and malt quality for brewing performance As

well Viterras malting operation has been actively involved

in research and development in the areas of microbial safety

biochemistry and protein modification

Market Environment Australia

Viterra owns 63% of Australias malt production capacity and

exports 68% of Australias malt It is well positioned to supply

Asian malt demand which together with other emerging

economies is expected to support world beer demand growth

going forward Annual global beer production growth rates

have averaged 3.3% over the last 10 years and from

2009 to 2013 are expected to rise to 3.8%

Key Profit Drivers for Food Processing Australia

Primary market drivers in the Australian malt barley industry

include the quantity and quality of the malt barley crop global

pricing and destination demand Priorto this year Australia

has been dealing with poor crop conditions Despite these

challenges Viterras malt operations have through its

combined merchandising expertise been able to source

sufficientquantities of malt barleyto meet its needs

The global financial crisis had an impact on the malt business

in 2009 primarily related to the timing of contract deliveries

The Company has developed long-standing relationships with

destination customers thatwill continueto serve itwell into the

future While contract flexibility over the past year was

required and resulted in softening of malt margins

management believes that average margins will be consistent

with previous years albeit at the lower end of the previously

attained range The Company expects margins to migrate

toward more traditional levels atthe higher end of the range as

financial conditions improve and malt demand increases

globally Management is currently assessing the proposed

construction of new 110000 tonne malt processing plant in

New South Wales that would position Viterras Australian malt

business to meet expected Asian demand growth

36 Feed Products

Viterras Feed Products segment has operations throughout

North America and New Zealand This business segment

extends Viterras pipeline by processing raw materials into

livestock feed ingredients and nutritional supplements

3.6.1 Feed Products North America

The core business activity in Viterras North American

operations consists of the manufacturing sale and distribution

of feed products and related micro macro and commodity

ingredients for commercial and acreage-based livestock

producers Specialtyfeed formulations and feed product

manufacturing is well diversified between dairy and beef

cattle poultry swine and other specialty livestock feeds Feed

manufacturing is conducted at six feed mills and one pre-mix

manufacturing facility located in British Columbia Alberta

and Manitoba Viterra also has feed manufacturing and

commodity sales outlet in Logan Montana

Viterra owns six feed mills in Texas Oklahoma and New Mexico

that manufacture complete feeds supplements pre-mixes and

commodity ingredientsfor ranchers and dairyfarmers in Texas

New Mexico Oklahoma and other south central U.S markets

Viterra also owns and operates shuttle train unloading facility

near its mill in Dexter New Mexico which steams and flakes

corn for regional dairy producers

Manufactured feeds provide all or significant portion of the

nutritional requirements of the livestock being fed Pre-mixes

and supplements supply base mix of vitamins and minerals

which along with commodities fulfils the needs of livestock

producers who complete their own on-farm feed manufacturing

To enhance its relationships with livestock customers

Viterra also provides value-added services to complement its

manufacturing selling and distribution of feed products These

include financial services nutritional consulting and ingredient

forward contracting services

Viterra offers financing programs to livestock producers

and borrowers are required to purchase their livestock feed

products from Viterra The Feed Products group in conjunction

with Viterra FinancialTM administers and acts as an agent for
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Canadian chartered bank which provides the financing for

the program Additional information regarding this activity can

be found in Section 3.7

Feed Products Market Environment North America

Canada accounts for approximately 3% of the global feed

market Western Canada accounts for about 22% of the

countrys commercial feed production The underlying

fundamentals of the animal feed industry are directly related

to the supply and demand trends in the livestock species that

consume feed

Traditionally Canada has exported about 50% of the beef and

pork it produces either as meat or live animals primarily to the

U.S The economic downturn weakness of the USD along with

non-tariff trade barriers such as Country of Origin Labeling

COOL in the U.S has limited market access and has

considerably reduced Canadian exports in the short term and

consequently reduced the demand for manufactured feed

To put demand into context during the first six months of the

calendar year 2009 Canadian beef exports to the U.S were

down 32.4% and pork exports were down 34.6% as compared

to the same period in calendar year 2008 In addition to the

aforementioned market pressures overall pork markets

declined due to an inappropriate worldwide association with

swine flu the H1N1 flu virus starting in the second quarter

of fiscal 2009

At times during 2009 beef dairy and pork producers in North

America were operating below their cost of production This

caused severe economic pressures on customers abilityto

pay and reduced the overall demand for manufactured feed

These economic challenges have resulted in farmfailures and

an extremely competitive environment given the shrinking

customer base

Viterra sells complete manufactured feed and vitamin and

mineral pre-mixes to the swine industry in Canada U.S feed

milling operations do not manufacture or sell significant

quantities of hog feed

For the North American beef sector Viterra supplies feed

supplements to ranchers feedlot operators and cow-calf

operators In addition to the aforementioned implications of

non-tariff trade barriers such as COOL industry feed demand

in 2009 was adversely affected by poor cattle markets and

lower demand for beef associated with the general

economic downturn

The dairy market in Canada is supply managed The matching

of supply and demand through quotas stabilizes the dairy

market and related feed pricing This market is expected to

remain stable forthe foreseeable future and any growth will

be driven by population growth Conversely in the U.S the

economic downturn in 2008 and 2009 led to wholesale milk

prices falling well belowthe cost of production This led to

feed demand decline due to herd reductions butthe primary

EBITDA impact was due to customers switching from higher

margin fully manufactured feeds and supplements to survival

rations consisting of low margin commodities and silage

Canadian poultry producers purchase complete manufactured

feed from commercial feed mills since few are large enough to

economically mill their own feed rations Poultry production is

tightly controlled both provincially and nationally under supply

managed quotas and the Company does not expect significant

expansion in this area apart from demand driven by population

growth U.S feed milling operations do not produce significant

quantities of poultry feed

The North American feed manufacturing industry is mature

industry with surplus capacity in some regions resulting in

competitive pricing and margin pressures particularly in the

2009 demand downturn Many competitorfeed manufacturing

assets are older with some in need of significant maintenance

capital sped by minimal investment by poorly funded players

during the past two years In addition growing consumer

concern over food safety has resulted in regulatory changes

that may prove challenging for on-farm feed manufacturing

operations and outdated commercial feed mills putting

additional economic pressures on marginal players Viterras

business model is solid Its assets are relatively new and have

been well maintained All of Viterras Canadian feed mills are

federally certified or compliant with Hazard Analysis Critical

Control PointHACCP guidelines the internationally

recognized system of quality control management for food

safety Viterras US feed milling assets are fully compliant with

local state and federal operating standards for feed milling
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Key Profit Drivers for Feed Products North America

The key performance drivers in feed manufacturing are the

volume of feed tonnes sold and the product mix of higher valued

ingredients versus lower margin commodities In Canada

margins have been relatively stable over 12-month period

The U.S market has traditionally undergone more seasonal

variability with lower margins earned in the spring and summer

when beef cattle are moved from pastures to commercial

feedlots where in many cases onsite feed manufacturing

takes place

Over normal 12-month period total feed and ingredient

volumes for Viterra are expected to average about

2.3 million tonnes of which about 0.9 million tonnes will be

manufactured and sold in Western Canada This tonnage is

influenced bythe demand forfeed which is driven by number

of economic factors including the demand for protein in

North America and around the world

In 2009 feed demand dropped due to lower demand from

hog operators and the overall reduction of demand for protein

and milk Regionally demand for livestock feed products

can be influenced by number of local factors such as dairy

and poultry quotas the availability
and cost of feed grains

along with other ingredients and the local farm ranching

infrastructure

Management estimates that each $1 increase in margin

per tonne equates to approximately $2.0 million in EBITDA

contribution from the North American operation Further

each 2% increase in feed volumes equates to $0.5 million

in EBITDA growth

3.6.2 Feed ProductsNew Zealand

Through the acquisition of ABB Viterra is now major player

in the New Zealand feed market with presence across the

supply chainfrom marketing and accumulation to storage

freight milling and the sale of end-use products It is key

importer and distributor of grains and meals to the New Zealand

market The Company operates three storage facilities in

close proximity to the prime dairy regions It is involved in

maize processing and also operates feed manufacturing

and distribution business with three feed mills representing

sales of approximately 155000 tonnes annually Viterra

is also constructing 180000 tonne capacityfeed mill in

South Auckland that is expected to be complete by mid-2010

Feed Products Market Environment New Zealand

In New Zealand the dairy industry is one of the countrys

largest industries and is the countrys number one exporter

Exports of dairy products accountfor 21.6% of total

merchandised exports and are valued at$9.3 billion New

Zealand Dollars NZD
New Zealands meal and grain imports have increased by

21% per annum since 1999 driven by new meal requirements

primarily in the dairy and poultry industries Viterra has

positioned itself to become market leader in ruminantfeed

sales in New Zealand through the recent purchases of feed

milling and processing companies

Key Profit Drivers for Feed Products New Zealand

Viterra is well positioned to provide feed products to the

growing New Zealand market leveraging its global sourcing

capabilities and import and distribution position The Company

owns critical storage infrastructure positioned at key import

locations and has long-term supply agreements with key

agri-commodity consumers

Key profit drivers in this business include demand for meal and

nutritional inputs

As noted above meal and grain imports have increased

since 1999 driven by meal which has increased from zero to

1.3 million tonnes Dairy herd numbers have increased by

2.2% per annum while milk solids have increased by

4.2% per annum since 1999 There has been healthy and

sustained growth in the number of dairy cows in New Zealand

over the last decade along with improvements in productivity

Atthe same time poultry production has grown at rate

of more than 2% per year over the last 10 years This has

underpinned the growth in grain and protein imports asfarmers

seek to maximize the productivity of their land

3.7 Financial Products

The Financial Products segment offersfinancial products to

producers in North America primarily consisting of credit

programs to support their on-farm cash flow requirements

Through Viterra FinancialTM the Company acts as an agent

of Canadian chartered bank On behalf of the bank Viterra

extends unsecured and secured trade credit at competitive

rates to the Companys agri-products and feed products

customers Credit advanced to agri-products customers
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enables them to purchase the Companys crop protection

fertilizer seed and equipment products The repayment

terms are structured to meetthe producers cash flow needs

Viterra FinancialTM offers secured loansfrom the bankto feed

products customers to purchase feeder cattle as well as

related feed inputs with terms that do not require payment until

the livestock is sold In both programs the Company directly

manages the customer relationship and receives fee for

performing front-end customer review arid credit adjudication

services Viterra provides an indemnity to the bank for portion

of any loan losses see Section 12.2 Total approved credit

managed by this group is approximately$1.5 billion

In addition to these credit programs this segment also offers

ancillaryfinancial and risk management products to producers

Financial Products Market North America

Credit demand is determined by the purchasing needs of

producers increases in the prices of crop inputs economics in

the livestock industry and the
availability

and pricing of other

sources of credit

The demand forfinancial services has increased dramatically

in the last 10 years Rising crop input prices the growing

number of larger more complex farming operations and the

reduction of traditional lenders willing to support 100% of farm

operating expenses have led to shift in how agri-businesses

are financed Many smaller crop input retailers are not able

to adequately finance the credit needs of their customers

and therefore do not have similar programs in place While

traditional trade credit is offered by many larger suppliers

Viterra FinancialTM is able to offer broad range of financing

options to better align
with customers cash flow requirements

For example Viterra offers extended terms that allow farmers

to repay their credit lines after harvest enabling customers to

take advantage of future grain delivery opportunities

Key Profit Drivers for Financial Products North America

Key performance drivers in the Financial Products segment

relate to the level duration and quality of credit in given year

These can be influenced by crop input and feed prices credit

quality producer cash flows and interest rates

The size of the lending portfolio is determined bythe value of

the underlying crop inputs orfeed purchases that comprise the

portfolio This in turn influences the level of interest income on

the portfolio and the resulting fees earned by the Company

The timing and duration of the credit programs are impacted

bythe credit quality within the portfolio Since the portfolio

is reviewed and renewed on an annual basis short-term

fluctuations in farm income or producer cash flow do not

typically result in any change in credit quality Viterra maintains

an extensive database to track credit history and performance

as part of its annual credit adjudication process Since the

Company indemnifies the bank for portion of its credit losses

see discussion in Section 12.2 credit quality can have an

impact on the earnings in the segment

Prevailing interest rates are also key component to

profitability in this segment Changing interest rates can affect

margins as Viterra FinancialTM typically offers programs with

extended paymentterms While programs are in place to

minimize the effects that increased funding costs might have

on the portfolio unexpected rate changes can still

affect profitability

STRATEGIC DIRECTION

Viterras successful acquisition of ABB during fiscal 2009 was

significant step in the Companys growth and diversification

strategy with the goal of becoming global agri-business

leader and key supplier of ingredients to the world Viterra

has also expanded its agri-products retail network in Canada

and has purchased canola crush facility in Manitoba The

scorecard atthe end of this section depicts the Companys

achievements with respect to its strategic growth plans

for 2009

As Viterra looks forward the Companys strategic focus

can best be defined by two key objectives geographical

diversification and expansion of value-added processing to

increase the earnings base while maintaining competitive

and flexible capital structure

Viterras international strategy specifically targets regions

that are in prime environments for consolidation beyond the

borders of the western Canadian grain and agri-products

industries The international diversification strategy is

focused on acquiring assets originating grains and oilseeds

and marketing commodities in regions of the world that grow
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commoditiesthatViterra already marketsthereby maximizing

full value chain margins

With the acquisition of ABB Viterra now has the scale and

scope to effectively serve and increase its influence with

destination customers For wheat barley and canola Canada

and Australia combined have the largest export origination

comprising over40% market share of the worlds aggregate

exports of these commodities Viterra markets its commodities

to over 50 countries worldwide

As part of this strategy Viterras International Grain Group

opened new trading office in Singapore in 2008 and during

2009 established an office in Geneva and jointventure

marketing agreement in India This staged approach was

designed to enhance the Companys international grain

expertise and allow Viterra to capitalize on the growing

global demands in agriculture

The acquisition of additional value-added processing

operations is also primary focus for Viterra as it will further

diversify Viterras earnings base and expand margins enabling

Viterra to balance its growth strategy and earnings stability

The Companys intention isto build on its existing capabilities

processing food and feed ingredients forthe global marketplace

With the acquisition ofABB which includes malt processing

assets Viterras malt production capacity has increased by

approximately 500000 metric tonnes annually

During the lastyear Viterra also acquired canola crush plant

in Manitoba with 345000 metric tonne annual production

capacity In orderto continue to grow its Food Processing

segment the Company will strategicallyfocus on opportunities

to expand processing capacity to meet the growing ingredients

demand in the most efficient manner Some key considerations

include the raw material source market demand transportation

logistics and customer expectations Viterras geographical

regions of expertise are in Canada the U.S and Australia

The Company will seek assets where it can leverage the

existing origination value chain and expertise to create

synergies and efficiencies

Value-added investment is expected to allow Viterra to earn

higher margins and further extend its reach along the entire

value chain The Company now has stable platform on which

to build its value-added capabilities While the Company has

not abandoned options to build the preference is to pursue

growth in manner that offers the greatest prospective

financial returns This includes acquisitions as well as initiatives

that enhance the value of existing assets which allow Viterra

to continue to participate in consolidation opportunities while

avoiding escalating construction costs Atthe same time it

provides for quicker market entry and expansion the prospect

of more immediate financial returns and the ability to acquire

management expertise Duality growth and earnings stability

will come from maximizing returns on its existing assets

and acquiring new businesses to leverage those returns

in the future

The Company assesses the strategic fit of all potential

opportunities and plans to pursue only those activities with

acceptable risk-adjusted return profiles Asthe Company

pursues growth itwillfocus on maintaining certain credit

quality objectives that are consistentwith its goal of achieving

investment grade credit ratings in the future

Metric Target

Total Debt-to-Capital 30% -40%

Total Debt-to-FBITDA

EBITDA nterest Coverage

See Non-GAAP Meaeeies
in

SeeSori 18

In pursuing its long-term goals Viterras focus is on controlled

strategic growth and diversification capturing value from

global industry consolidation while maintaining stable and

quality earnings profile The Company intendsto aggressively

manage its coststructure and prudently manage risksto

maximize shareholdervalue as it grows the business

Viterra continues to maintain one of the strongest balance

sheets in the industry and remains committed to preserving its

financial flexibility across business cycles

3X

5X



2009 Strategic Objectives Scorecard

Geographically expand core capabilitiesfocusing on regions that originate wheat canola and barley

Acquired ABE for $1.4 billion establishing Viterra as the leading South Australia
agri-business

Completed $450 million subscription receipt offering for ABB acquisition

Establish an integrated marketing and trading group to extend origination pipeline and expand international trading and logistics

Opened marketing office in Geneva Switzerland

Added
trading

and chartering expertise to Viterras portfolio

Established Indian joint venture to extend pulses and special crops pipeline

Invest in grain handling and agri-products to establish Viterra as the supplier of choice

Introduced 11 private label crop protection products in Western Canada

Expanded western Canadian equipment sales network

Invested $37 million to upgrade North American infrastructure

Acquired eight agri-product retails for total of 259 locations in Western Canada

Invest in value-added businesses to increase contributions from processing

Acquired canola crush facility with annual processing capacity of 345000 tonnes

Acquired ABBs malting business increasing Viterras malt processing capacity by 500000 tonnes

Enhance operational excellence to reduce costs and improve efficiency

Created an integrated global
information technology platform

Centralized oat procurement into Viterra

Launched Viterra brand corporate-wide

Establish Corporate Responsibility framework/commitment

Completed comprehensive baseline assessment of Viterras sustainability practices against global assessment criteria

Established Safety Health and Environment committee of the Board

Donated $1.2 million to charities and organizations focused on health wellness and safety

CORE CAPABLITES

In addition to the capital resources discussed in detail in the

Liquidity and Capital Resources section of this report Viterra

has number of core competencies that should enable itto

achieve its strategic initiatives

5.1 Soid Financial Position and Strong Operating

Leverage in Uncertain Times

Viterra currently enjoys certain benefits from its operating

leverage since the Grain Handling and Marketing and

Agri-products segments are largelyfixed-cost structures

As such incremental improvements in revenues and margins

translate almost directly into incremental improvements in

EBITDA The Company expects it will continue to generate

significantfree cash flowto enable itto pursue its strategic

growth objectives

During fiscal 2009 the Company issued $450 million of equity

which along with existing cash and short-term investments

fullyfunded the cash portion of the ABB transaction ABB

shareholders opted to receive the maximum share

consideration Viterra issued 78.3 million shares and



paid $703.4 million $751 million Australian Dollars AIJD in

cash to ABB shareholders as full consideration for the acquisition

In Julythe Company issued an additional $300 million of

long-term debt At October31 2009 Viterra had approximately

$800 million of cash and short-term investments that are

available for future growth initiatives

Viterras capital structure is solid with longerterm credit

facilities in place to support its ongoing financial requirements

The Company has an $800 million operating line in place to fund

its core operations in North America and provide the capacity

to finance its expanding business The Company through its

Australian subsidiary Viterra Australia also has separate

$1.2 billion AUD operating line in place to fund its Australian

operations In addition as at October 31 2009 the Company had

approximately$1.O billion of cash and short-term investments

on its balance sheet major portion of which as noted above

is not required to finance seasonal working capital needs and

is available for future growth initiatives

5.2 Healthy Customer Base

The majority of western Canadian farmers are financially

strong and have access to the necessary credit to fund their

ongoing operations Through Viterra FinancialTM farmers

have access to up to $1.5 billion in credit to support their agri

products and feed products purchases Australian growers

have been dealing with drought conditions over the past two

years which has had an impact on theirfinancial situation

However Australias harvest is now underway and current

forecasts suggest above average production this year which

should improve cash flow for growers in fiscal 2010

5.3 Diversified and Modern Facility Assets

In Canada substantial infrastructure renewal program to

upgrade and replace older smaller country grain elevators

with new more efficient high-throughput elevators HTEs
at strategic locations throughout the regions of Manitoba

Saskatchewan Alberta and British Columbia was substantially

completed throughout the 1990s

The Company believes the geographic dispersion and

strategic location of each of its facilities in addition to its

extensive port terminal operations in Vancouver and Prince

Rupert British Columbia and Thunder Bay Ontario make

it possible to attract the throughput volumes required for

the Company to be preferred supplierfor end-use grain

markets The Companys significant footprint in Western

Canada positions it as reliable originator of commoditiesfor

its domestic and international customers Not only does this

strategic network diversify the risk of localized weather but

it also allows Viterra to adopt value chain management

approach to maximize grain revenue and position itto optimize

further opportunities that may result from any change to the

regulatory environment

The geographic dispersion of Viterras extensive agri-products

retailing network throughout Western Canada permits Viterra

to reach broad group of farm customers This geographic

dispersion throughoutthe region serves to further diversify the

risk of localized economic or other market conditions

Viterra owns approximately 95% of the central storage and

handling system in South Australia where up to 20% of

Australias crops are grown As such growers and marketers

utilize the infrastructure to move agricultural commodities to

market providing Viterra with steady income stream from

storage and handling fees The infrastructure is made up of

combination of steel concrete and bunker storage with

approximately 25% of the 9.6 million tonnes being built in the

last 10 years

As in Canada Viterras country network in South Australia

was rationalized in the 990s with the selection of 33 strategic

sites across South Australia within 50 kilometres of each other

Capital was channelled into these super sites to ensure they

had fast receival and out-loading facilities and were able to

deal with large intakes As result Viterras receival network

across the grain growing regions of South Australia is efficient

Viterra also has the
flexibility to engage or temporarily close

less efficient storage on season-by-season basis depending

on the size of the harvest

5.4 Efficient Network/Logistics Expertise

In its Canadian operations the Companys efficient elevator

network and the related logistics expertise it uses to arrange for

the optimal receipt of grains into the facilities minimizes the

length of time the grain is held in storage and provides for timely

delivery to domestic and international customers Since railway

companies offer incentives for loading products into multi-car

unittrains maximizing railcar usage through its country network

is also an important contributor to profitability
The incentives
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for fiscal 2009 range from $4 to $5 per tonne for 50-car loads

to incentives of $8 per tonne on car loads of 100 or more Viterra

is well positioned with about 35% of the industrys 100-car

loading capacity allowing itto offer producers competitive

transportation premiums to attract grain into its system and

simultaneously capture profitable increase in market share

Viterra owns all of the South Australia port grain terminals and

loads its own grain as well as grain for other exporters South

Australia enjoys four advantages that make it an attractive and

reliable state for export logistics the grain growing regions

are relatively close to port so freight to port is cheaper overall

than in other states of Australia the port terminals are set up to

receive both road and rail the rail system serves the ports well

and finally there are five portterminals including two deep

water ports within relatively close proximity to each other to

provide flexibility and surge capacity to shippers

55 Quality Control

With consumer awareness and concerns overfood safety

and traceability the Company has established number

of processes to track and identify crops at every stage

of production from seed to customer to meet or exceed

international standards In North America Viterra applies

HACCP principles and maintains certificate of conformityto

the ISO 22000 HACCP standard the internationally recognized

Food Safety Management System to the operation of its

grain handling network Viterra is also registered to the ISO

90012000 standard an internationally recognized Quality

Management System for the processing and export of grains

oilseeds and special crops In the North American feed

business Viterra maintains Feed AssureTM certification

HACCP industry recognized standard

Viterras grain handling and malt operations in Australia have

met increasing market demands for traceability and food safety

programs as well and are certified to the ISO 22000 HACCP

standards This is the foundation for continuous improvement

ensuring customers expectations are met The ISO 90012000

and ISO 90012008 Quality Management System accreditations

cover Viterras Australia and New Zealand broader grain

handling malting operations and feed manufacturing

respectively As well these accreditations cover the operations

respective associated functions These accreditations

complement Viterras commitmentto its customers to

provide superior service

5.6 Customer Focused

Viterra is committed to monitoring economic financial and

regulatory developments in the agricultural communityto

anticipate changing needs and respond accordingly The

Company has Customer Solutions service group in Canada

that is responsible for nourishing customer relationships

analyzing product offerings that align with customer needs

and seeking opportunities to grow market share In Australia

Viterra has embarked on comprehensive analysis of the

customer base and intends to put in place similarcustomer

relationship strategy in that region Viterra believes that

executing on initiatives to deliver innovative solutions to its

customers will reinforce its position and provide it with

competitive advantage over others in the industry

5.7 Agronomic Services

To complementthe Companys other product offerings Viterra

has an agronomic service team in place throughout Western

Canada that includes Certified Crop Advisors CCAsand

21 Managers of Agronomic Services MASs The MASs are

dedicated business partners in farming communities across

the Prairies committed to the production cycle from seeding

through harvest Their industry-leading expertise keeps

customers current on the latest agronomic technologies and

helps customize product packages tailored to customers

specific needs They also serve as educators within Viterras

network training staff on the latest in agronomic trends and

product offerings so that front-line staff can tailor solutions-

based marketing programs Together the services provided

by Viterras CCAs and MASs provide the Company with unique

guidance and expertise integral to growers key business

decisions further distinguishing Viterra from its competitors

in the industry

5.8 Proprietary Seed Varieties

Developing the best seed varieties requires long-term

commitment and focus on breeding trait development and

extensive crop evaluation Viterras in-house breeding effort in

Canada is focused primarily on the oilseed sector and includes

proprietary canola Brassica riapusand Brass/ca juncea and flax

Operating the largest Canadian-owned canola breeding

program Viterra develops world-class proprietary canola
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varieties and is globally recognized for leadership in this area

Throughoutthe development process research and technology

collaborationsfrom around the globe such asthe Evogene

Abiotic Stress gene project initiated in 2008 have been key

to ensuring ongoing competitiveness In flax Viterra leads

the industry in breeding and has been successful in oil profile

modification and meeting the needs of both growers and

consumptive end-use customers

In other crops including cereals and forage seed Viterra

accesses genetics on an exclusive basis from its breeding

partners and tests them through Viterras development

group which represents the most extensive trialing system

in Western Canada Whether developed in-house or sourced

from suppliers Viterras goal is to provide growers with the

best genetics and superior seed varieties to maximize yield

and return on investment

Viterra is also actively involved in research and development

in Australia with primary focus on barley Viterra holds an

equity interest in the University of Adelaides Barley Breeding

Program which allows Viterra first
right

of refusal over new

barley varieties and also offers Viterra access to the latest

developments for malt barley research significant advantage

for its malt operations Viterra also has an agreement with the

South Australian Research and Development Institute for the

commercialization rights to the National Oat Breeding Program

for milling oat varieties

Proprietary products are key feature of Viterras seed line and

offer additional margin opportunities throughout the Companys

value chain Viterras proprietary seed line consists of 14 canola

varieties and 17 cereal varieties exclusive to Viterra In many

cases the seed is also identity preserved IP under contract

SELECT QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the quarters ended

in millions except per share amounts

Unaudited
_______________

Sales and other

operating revenues

Net earnings loss

Basic and diluted earnings

Farmers who purchase seed under IP contract are required

to return the production to Viterra at harvest time allowing

the Companyto capture full margin potentialfrom seed

development through to the sale to the end-use market

Through IP contracting Viterras farm customers are able to

access varieties with very good agronomics and at the same

time gain competitive advantage given that much of the IP

product sellsfor premium in the international marketplace

Viterras end-use customers receive product that meets their

strict specifications from quality and food safety perspective

It is model that Viterra is committed to in meeting the food

ingredient requirements of the global marketplace

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As noted earlier the Company acquired all of the issued and

outstanding shares of ABB which materially increased the

assets liabilities sales employees market share and operating

capacity of the Company However approximately five weeks

ofABBsfinancial results are included in the table belowfor the

period September 242009 to October 312009 The fiscal 2008

quarterly information does not contain ABBs results

6.1 .1 Quarterly Seasonality and Trends North America

There are distinct seasonaltrends in certain aspects of

Viterras North American businesses These are centred

around the growing season and the harvest period The

seasonality of the Companys North American business is most

notable in the Companys Agri-products operations because of

the relationship of sales to the life cycle of the crop Generally

more than 75% of the segments annual sales are generated

between mid-April to the end of June when the crop is first

planted and begins maturing

January 31 October31 July31 April 30 January 31

200901 200804 200803 200802 200801

October31 July31 April30

2009 04 2009 03 2009 02

1423.4 2222.4

0.9 120.7

1608.0 1381.7 1716.8 2218.2 1525.4 1317.1

26.3 33.0 46.8 166.7 33.6 41.2

losspershare 0.51 0.11 0.14 0.20 0.71 0.16 0.20

Includes results for Viterro Austrulia operations from September 24 2009 to October31 2009
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While grain deliveries shipments and exports occur fairly

steadily throughout each of the quarters there can be some

variation from quarter to quarter depending on demand from

destination customers the CWB export program weather

conditions rail interruptions harvest pressures commodity

pricing and producer cash flow requirements Shipments

through the Companys port terminals in Thunder Bay end

in late December when the St Lawrence Seaway is closed

for the winter months and typically resume near the end of

April In addition the month of July can he strong month for

grain deliveries as farmers sell their old crop and fill their CWB

contracts which expire July 31 or move it off-farm to make

room for the new crop that is harvested from late August to the

end of October

In the Food Processing operations earnings are relatively

fluid with ccntinuous demand for products throughout each

quarter Similarly Feed Products sales are also fairly steady

during the year but tend to peak during the winter months as

feed consumption increases Revenue in the Financial Products

segmentfollows the related pattern of underlying sales in the

Agri-products and Feed Products businesses

summary of the specific trends in the Agri-products business

for each of the quarters follows in this section

First Quarter November ito January31

Historically the Company averages about 10% to 12% of its agri

products sales during this quarter and receives pre-purchase

payments from customers for the spring agri-products At this

time producers have also completed harvest and are able to

assess the performance of their seed the condition of their

soil and may make early determinations on what crops they

intend to plant in the spring This period is an important sales

promotion and marketing period for the Company as it works

to secure sales commitments for the spring season

Second Quarter February ito April30

Historically Viterra generates an average of about 12% to 17%

of its agri-products sales in this quarter During this time the

Company prepares forthe highly compressed spring selling

period as it begins to source purchase and distribute product

through its retail network in anticipation of spring sales and

launch its spring promotional programs Agronomic specialists

are also actively working with producers during this time to

develop their operational plans and customize solutions based

on the specific needs of the producer

Third Quarter May ito July31

The Companys agri-products sales during this quarter

historically average about 58% to 61% of total sales During

this period producers take delivery of pre-purchased agri

products and begin planting fertilizing and tending to their

crops Producers carefully monitor crops for insects weeds

and disease during June and July and will applyvarious crop

protection products depending upon these factors Equipment

sales typically begin at the end of this quarter as producers

anticipate their storage requirements forthe harvest season

Fourth Quarter August ito October31

Agri-products sales during this period historically average

about 13% to 18% of total sales Producers purchase crop

protection products and equipmentfrom the Company in

preparation for harvest After harvest producers have their

soil tested for nutrient levels and begin to purchase fertilizers

Although not as intense as the spring period fertilizer sales also

increase in the fall once harvest is complete and producers

begin preparing the soil for nextyears crop The fall fertilizer

application restores nutrients to the soil that are needed for

spring planting

6.1.2 Quarterly Seasonality and TrendsAustralia

There are distinct seasonal trends in the Australian Agri

products and Grain Handling and Marketing businesses These

are based around grower seeding periods growing periods

and harvest periods As well grower payments for these

operations are typically received after sales revenue is

recognized summary of specific trends is provided in

each of the quarters below

In Viterras southern Australian Grain Handling and Marketing

operation the majority of grain flows into the system during

the harvest period which begins in October and continues

through until the end of January Viterra and other marketers

actively buy grain from grower customers throughout the year

and those commodities move through the system after those

purchases are made

The grain that is delivered into the Companys grain storage

and handling facilities is classified and blended in preparation

for export Viterra and other marketers then buy these grains
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and oilseeds and market them directly to destination customers retail and wholesale customers across Australia This is also

Shipping from the Companys portterminals in South Australia

typically commences in harvest and continues throughout

the year Income is derived from storage and handling fees

including receival monthly carrying and out-turn fees

Additional income is derived through non-grain commodities

handling and shipping year-round from select portterminals

With respect to Viterras Food Processing operations in

Australia malt manufacturing is constantthroughout the

year typically without seasonal fluctuations The operations

consistency reflects the factthat 80% of its malt production

is exported Due to the nature of the business the malt

manufacturing operations are notsubjectto the seasonal

supply and demand fluctuations present in other

agricultural businesses

First Quarter November ito January31

The Australian harvest begins in this period and is usually

complete by the end of January This is one of the busiest

quarters forthe Grain Handling and Marketing business

Grain export shipping commences in the harvest period and

continues for much of the year In conjunction with shipping

the Company also experiences an increase in road and rail

movements to transport grain to ports for shipping

The Company is also involved in gathering seed from farmers

around the country atthis time The grain is sampled cleaned

and treated if necessary before being bagged or left in bulk

and stored for sale The regional sales managers conduct

their final inspection of their seed crops just prior to harvest

to determine yield estimate Data around yield estimates

qualities and varieties are analyzed during this period

Second Quarter February ito April 30

The Australian Grain Handling and Marketing operations

typically receive the last of the grower grain deliveries from

the previous quarters harvest during this quarter In addition

income is derived from continued export shipping and domestic

sales of grain and oilseeds

Growers begin seeding in April and this is typically busytime

for several aspects of the Australian business The main selling

period for phosphate and potash fertilizers runs between

February and April as these are typically applied before the

seeding period As well seed is sold and distributed to both

the peak selling period for general crop protection products

applied during seeding

Third Quarter May ito July31

Growers continue seeding in May and June and phosphate

and potash fertilizers are applied during this period As well

growers monitor emerging crops for insects weeds and

disease during June and July and will apply various crop

protection products depending upon these factors These

higher value products include post-emergent fungicides

herbicides and insecticides Growers also begin to purchase

and apply nitrogen fertilizers during this period

In the Grain Handling and Marketing operations export

shipping and domestic grain sales continue in this quarter

Fourth Quarter August ito October31

Nitrogen fertilizer sales typically continue through this quarter

into October As well growers continue to monitor emerging

crops for insects weeds and disease and will apply various

crop protection products depending upon these factors These

higher-value products include post-emergentfungicides

herbicides and insecticides

In preparation for the upcoming harvest the Grain Handling and

Marketing operations continue to clear and consolidate stocks

of grains and oilseeds for shipping and begin recruiting casual

employees to assist with harvest activities at the elevator sites
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CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

FOURTH QUARTER OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

in thousands --

except percentages margins and per share amounts

For the Three Months Ended October31 2009
Better

Unaudited _________________
2009 2008 Worse

OPERATING RESULTS

Sales and other operating revenues 1423355 1716818 293463
Gross profit and net revenues from services 163073 223432 60359

Operating general and administrative expenses 122837 123174 337

EBITDA 40236 100258 60022
Amortization 31551 30226 1325
EBIPs 8685 70032 61347

Integration expenses 5143 2358 2785
Gain loss on disposal

of assets 1192 206 986
Net foreign exchange gain on acquisition 16701 16701

Financing expenses 24143 6271 17872
Net earnings loss 920 46790 47710

Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.20 0.20

Cash flow provided byused in operating activities 15165 73131 88296
Cash flow

per
share basic and diluted 0.05 0.31 0.36

Property plant and equipment expenditures 28110 20409 7701
GRAIN HANDLING AND MARKETING SEGMENTtm

Gross
profit

and net revenues from services 97750 108727 10977
EBITDA 54236 70091 15855
Sales and other operating revenues 986384 $1182716 196332
North American Operating Highlights

Industry receipts six major grains tonnes 8244 8526 282

Industry shipmentssix major grains tonnes 8249 8276 27
Primary elevator receipts tonnes 3896 3684 212

Primary elevator shipments tonnes 3902 3466 436

Six Major Grains 3713 3310 403

Industry terminal handle six major grains tonnes 6427 5741 686

Port terminal receipts tonnes 2714 2083 631

Margin$pergraintonneshipped 25.38 31.37 5.99

AGRI-PRODUCTS SEGMENTtm

Gross profit and net revenue from services 36548 89789 53241
EBITDA 4516 44033 39517
Sales and other operating revenues 240149 308072 67923
North American Salestmtm

Fertilizer 103772 228087 124315

Crop Protection 47136 40992 6144

Seed 1114 1588 414

Equipment sales and other revenue 47410 37405 10005

Average Margin for North America of Sales 18.2% 29.1% 10.9 pt

FOOD PROCESSING SEGMENTtm

Gross profit and net revenues from services 13657 8418 5239

EBITOA 6776 7j40 364

Sales and other operating revenues 120867 54187 66680

North American Operating Highlights

fonnes sold 142 80 62

Margin per
tonne 75.51 105.23 29.72

FEED PRODUCTS SEGMENTtm

Gross
profit

and net revenues from services 10922 11077 155
EBITOA 1270 7920 6650

Sales and other operating revenues 140427 181751 41324
North American Operating Highlights

Feed sales tonnes 466 501 35
Feed margin per

feed tonne sold 21.15 38.86 17.71

FINANCIAL PRODUCTS SEGMENT

EBITDA 3179 3907 728
CORPORATE EXPENSES

EBITOA 27201 16993 10208

irrciudes reosito io Viterra Australia operations from Septerrrber24 zuw to October 3t mu
Reievaet

orriy
for Viterrao North Americorr operations

0000oiidated sales from North American whoiesaie aod retaii operations

See Non-GAAS Measores in 5ection tb
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It should be noted thatthe fourth quarter includes approximately related to AU See discussion of Restructuring and Integration

five weeks of contribution from Viterras Australian operations

forthe period September 242009 to October 312009 The

results are included in the Companys consolidated statements

as well as each respective segments results where noted

Viterra generated $1.4 billion in sales and other operating

revenues in the final quarter of fiscal 2009 This compares to

sales of $1.7 billion in last years fourth quarter Commodity

prices have declined significantly from record highs last year

While this impacted the value of Viterras grain shipments the

biggest impactwas in the Agri-products business primarily

with fertilizer where Viterra saw fertilizer prices drop and

gross margins cut by more than 50% this quarter compared to

the same quarter last year

Consolidated EBlTDAforthethree months ended

October 31 2009 was $40.2 million compared to $100.3 million

in last years fourth quarter Contributions from Viterras Agri

products segmentwere well behind the previous years quarter

due to the significant reduction in fertilizer prices and margins

continuation of conditions being experienced bythe entire

industry over the past 12 months

Operating general and administrative OGA expenses

totalled $122.8 million down slightly from the $123.2 million

spent in last years final quarter Lower expenses in the Feed

Products and Agri-products segments were offsetthis year by

higher corporate expenses higher Food Processing expenses

and increased costs associated with handling larger volumes

of grain

Amortization expense of $31.6 million for the quarter was

up slightly compared to last years fourth quarter when

amortization was $30.2 million

Consolidated EBIT see Non-GAAP Measures in Section 18 for

the quarter was $8.7 million compared to $70.0 million in the last

quarter of fiscal 2008

Integration expenses incurred during the quarter were

$5.1 million which includes $2.3 million related to ABB and

$2.8 million related to Agricore United AU These costs

are comprised of signage and branding costs consulting

and advisory travel and other integration costs incurred by

the Company during the period These costs are up from

$2.4 million incurred forthe same period of 2008 which were

Actual

Three Months

Ended October31

2009 2008 Change

Financing expenses 24.1 6.3 17.8

Adjustments added back

Interest incnme 2.6 5.3 2.7

CWB carrying

chargerecovery______ 0.7 1.8 1.1

Adustedfinancingexpenses 27.4 13.4 14.0

Financing expenses during the quarter were $24.1 million

compared to $6.3 million in last years fourth quarter This

increase reflects the additional interest expense for the

$300 million of notes issued in July 2009 the additional

$100 million drawn on the term creditfacility and Viterra

Australias financing costs These interest costs were offset by

lower borrowings againstthe revolving creditfacility In addition

interest earned on short-term investments was reduced as

interest rates on those investments were significantly lower

in the fourth quarter of 2009

During the quarter Viterra recorded $16.7 million netforeign

exchange gain which was associated with the acquisition of

ABB Viterra implemented hedging strategy to protect

itselffrom any currencyfluctuations between the Canadian

and Australian dollar See Note 23 of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The consolidated net loss forthe final quarter of 2009 was

$0.9 million $0.00 per share which compares to net earnings

of $46.8 million last year $0.20 per share

Cash flow used in operations before changes in non-cash

working capital was $15.2 million $0.05 per share for the

three months ended October 312009 compared to cash flow

provided by operations of $73.1 million $0.31 per share in the

same three months of 2008

Matters in Section 11

ADJUSTMENTS TO FINANCING EXPENSES

in millions

Vitnrra 2009 Annual Financial Rnvinw 29



71 Grain Handling and Marketing

This quarters results include approximately five weeks of

contribution from Viterras Grain Handling and Marketing

operations in Australia During the fourth quarter the Australian

operations did not take in new grain because the crop has not

yet been harvested As such there is no significant revenue

associated with storage and handling charges and little export

movement of marketed grain

In the fourth quarter of 2009 total western Canadian industry

shipments forthe six major grains were 8.2 million tonnes

compared to 8.3 million tonnes last year Viterras shipments

for the quarter ended October 312009 were 3.9 million tonnes

up 12.6% orapproximatelyO.4milliontonnesoverthe previous

years fourth quarter For the six major grains Viterras

quarterly shipments rose 12.2% surpassing overall industry

increases by 12 percentage points

The split between Board and open market grains was

53/47 compared to 44/56 in the final quarter last year The

proportionately higher increase reflects the larger 2009 wheat

crop and stronger Board movement relative to the previous

three quarters as farmers shipped grain to make room for

the new harvest

At export position port terminal receipts for the industry

were up 0.7 million tonnes or 12% over last years fourth

quarter Viterras portterminal receipts were up 30.3% to

million tonnes driven by volumes atthe Companys

Vancouver export facilities where receipts reached

1.8 milliontonnesforthe quarter Performance atthe

Companys Vancouver port benefited from strong canola

and pea sales into the Asian Pacific region robust CWB

export program and good availability
of railcars

Gross margins per tonne for North American grain operations

were $25.38 per tonne forthe fourth quarter of 2009 compared

to $31.37 per tonne in the same quarter year ago The change

in margins quarter-over-quarter is consistentwith the full year

where industry participants experienced

Lower commodity prices which resulted in lower blending

revenues and

Fewer opportunities to extract premiums from the market

due to less commodity price volatility

OGAexpensesforthe Grain Handling and Marketing segment

of $43.5 million were up $4.9 million forthe quarter This

increase was despite lower pension obligation costs and was

mainly due to the $4.6 million in additional OGA expenses

added by Viterra Australia

Segment EBITDA for the quarter was $54.2 million compared

to the $70.1 million generated in the same period lastyear

reflecting the differences in margins per tonne relative to

last years fourth quarter partially offset by higher shipments

through Viterras North American pipeline EBIT for the quarter

was $39.7 million decrease from EBIT in the previous fourth

quarterwhichwas$59.Omillion Included inthisyearsfourth

quarter is approximately $5.8 million and $8.0 million in EBITDA

and EBIT losses respectively associated with the Grain

Handling and Marketing operations in Australia since

Viterras acquisition on September 232009

Agri-products

This quarters results include approximately five weeks of

results from Viterras Agri-products operations in Australia for

the period from September 24 2009 to October 312009 The

Australian operations contributed $40.7 million in revenue to

the fiscal 2009 results

Agri-products sales were $240.1 million during the fourth quarter

which compares to $308.1 million in lastyears fourth quarter

The decrease was largely reflection of lower fertilizer prices

slightly offset by higher sales volumes of dry fertilizer Selling

prices during last years fourth quarter were at record highs

This year fertilizer prices have declined substantially impacting

sales values While fall NH3 volumes were slightly ahead of last

year excessive moisture conditions in both years quarters

limited farmers ability to apply fertilizer As result sales were

not as robust as can be expected when weather co-operates

during the post-harvest period

Seed sales remained relatively the same compared to the

fourth quarter lastyear at$1.2 million Sales of the Companys

crop protection products increased $6.1 million primarily due

to the delayed harvest which increased glyphosate demand

for pre-harvest application Farmers will apply glyphosates to

advance the crop to maturity if they believe there is risk of

delayed harvest period
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Equipment sales and other revenues were $10.0 million higher

than the same period lastyear reflecting higher demand for

on-farm storage and related products i.e augers aeration

equipment which was partially offset by decrease of

$8.3 million in research and developmenttax credits

Gross margins declined during the quarter decreasing by

$53.2 million from $89.8 million to $36.5 million Lower fertilizer

margins for the quarter reflect very little price appreciation

compared to the prior year when fertilizer prices experienced

significant price increases from the summer to the fall This

resulted in significant appreciation on inventory positions which

was reflected in the margins forthe final quarter offiscal 2008

Lower quarterly crop protection product margins reflect

decline in glyphosate prices As well margins reflect lower

research and development investment tax credits this year as

previously noted

OGA expenses decreased by $13.7 million during the quarter

to $32.0 million Last years results included $9.9 million asset

retirement obligation charge ARO which was the primary

factor for the positive variance As well this years results also

include $2.0 million in OGA costs associated with Viterras

Agri-products operations in Australia from September 24 2009

to October 312009 In addition lower short-term incentive

accruals and reduction in the Companys bad debt provision

improved results for this years final quarter

EBITDAforthe Agri-products segmentforthe quarterwas

$4.5 million compared to $44.0 million in the final three months

of fiscal 2008 EBIT was loss of $6.1 million compared to

earnings of $29.8 million forthe same quarter of 2008

Agri-products segment results for the quarter included EBITDA

and EBIT losses from the Australian operations of $1.6 million

and $1.8 million respectively

7.3 Food Processing

This quarters results also include approximately five weeks of

results from Viterras Food Processing operations in Australia

for the period from September 24 2009 to October 31 2009

Sales for Viterras Food Processing segment were

$120.9 million significant increase from the previous years

fourth quarter sales of $54.2 million Sales volumes in Viterras

oat milling
business were on par with last years fourth quarter

however sales prices were down $5.3 million for the quarter

Sales from Viterras investment in Prairie Malt were up

approximately 13% reflecting higher malt prices Sales

from Viterras June 2009 purchase of the canola crushing

facility in Manitoba were included in the three months ended

October 31 2009 Viterras Australian malt processing business

recorded $34.7 million in sales forthe reporting period

OGA expenses forthe segmentwere $6.9 million compared to

$1.3 million in the same quarter year ago primarily reflecting

three months of expenses forViterras canola crush operation

Also included are five weeks of OGA expenses totalling

$0.6 millionforthe Food Processing operations in Australia

EBITDA for the segmenttotalled $6.8 million for the quarter

$4.4 million of which was generated by the North American

operations This compares to $7.1 million for the same period

year ago Viterras Food Processing operations in Australia

contributed about$2.4 million in EBITBA and $1 million in EBIT

Viterras oat milling operations generated EBITDA of $1.2 million

for the quarter which compares to $5.1 million last year Included

are marked-to-market losses of $5.7 million compared to losses

recorded in the final quarter of 2008 of $4.4 million

EBITDA from Viterras canola crushing facility was loss

of $0.3 million Viterras share of Prairie Malts EBITDA

contributions were $3.5 million compared to $2.0 million in the

corresponding period of fiscal 2008

For the quarter the segment as whole generated EBIT

of $4.0 million in the three months ended October 31 2009

compared to $5.7 million in the same period year ago

7.4 Feed Products

This quarters Feed Products results include approximately

five weeks of results from Viterras Feed Products operations

in New Zealand forthe period from September 24 2009 to

October 31 2009

Feed sales of $140.4 million forthe quarter ended

October 312009 were $41.3 million lower than the same

period last year The New Zealand operations contributed

$9.3 million to the segments revenues for the period

Gross margins for feed for the quarter were $10.9 million

compared to $11.1 million in the prior comparable period

Lowersalesvolumesand productmixshifttolowermargin

commodities resulted in the gross margin decrease This was
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attributable to difficult dairy market in the US and the swine

market in Canada along with lower commodity prices which

impacted sales values

North American OGA expenses for the quarterwere

$11.5 million $7.5 million lowerthan the same period lastyear

The decrease reflects the benefits of Viterras focus on cost

reductions and $4.2 million of losses in the prior year which

occurred when the Company settled number of existing

contractual obligations with several hog producers

The 2009 EBITDA loss forthe quarter was $1.3 million which

compares to an EBITDA loss of $7.9 million after provisions

and writedowns of $12.0 million for the same quarter ended

October 31 2008 Viterras feed operation in New Zealand had

an EBITDA of nil for its five-week period EBIT was loss of

$4.2 million for the three months ended October 31 2009

compared to an EBIT loss of $10.7 million in the

fourth quarter of 2008

75 Financial Products

Results for this segment have some component of seasonality

The fourth quarter reflects period in which accounts are still

typically high reflecting deferred producer purchase programs

Performance inthefourth quarterthisyearwas negatively

impacted by claims associated with pilot project entitled

SAFE which was targeted risk program offered in 2009

that provided yield and price guarantee to select group

of farmers who were required to purchase minimum

threshold of crop inputs and were required to sign grain

delivery contract

EBITDA for the quarter was $3.2 million as compared to

$3.9 millionforthe same period lastyear EBlTforthe quarter

was $3.2 million as compared to $3.8 million in last years

fourth quarter

75 Corporate

Corporate expenses of $27.2 million in 2009 compared to

$17.0 million in the same period of fiscal 2008 were

higher primarily due to the impact of the performance of

the Companys shares in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009

compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 In fiscal 2008

the share price declined through the fourth quarter reducing

the compensation expense recognized on stock-based

compensation programs for both employees and directors

In contrast the stock price rose through the fourth quarter

of fiscal 2009 creating significant difference in expense

recognition for the two periods In addition during the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company expensed $2.0 million of

costs related to growth initiatives that are no longer being

pursued Also included in the corporate expenses were

$1.0 million of corporate expenses from the Companys

Australian operations for the period from September 242009

to October 31 2009

ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

8.1 Summary of Consolidated Results

Consolidated sales and other operating revenues for the

year were $6.6 billion which compares to $6.8 billion in 2008

Lower sales values in the Grain Handling and Marketing and

Agri-products segments which were reflective of weakened

commodity prices were the primary factors behind the lower

overall consolidated sales The annual results include

sales contribution of $139.2 million from Viterras Australian

operations from September 24 2009 to October 312009

06 expenses were $526.3 million forthe 12-months ended

October 312009 $32.0 million higher than the comparable period

last year Higher OGA expenses reflect increased wages and

corporate costs as well as costs associated with the Companys

Australian operations detailed description of OGA expenses

is included in each segments discussion of annual results

The Company reported total pension benefit income of

$23.6 million for the 12 months ended October 31 2009 which

was included in the OGA expenses This is up slightly from

$20.8 million in 2008 reduction in corporate bond rates that

are used to value future pension obligations resulted in an

increase in the value of the Companys pension obligations

Under pension accounting rules the increase in obligation is

capitalized on the balance sheet and amortized into expense

overfuture periods However the increased obligations also

cause the reduction of valuation reserves held againstthe

Companys pension assets and those reductions are recognized

immediately into income See Section 12 of this MDA and

Note 20a of the Consolidated Financial Statements

During the 12-month period ended October3l2009Viterra

generated EBITDA of $323.7 million which compares to

$532.6 million last year The results for 2009 reflect stronger
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

in thousands except percentages and
per

share amounts

Actual Actual

Twelve Months Three Months

Ended October 31 Better Ended October 31 Better

2009 2008 Worse 2009 2008 Worse

Sales and other operating revenues 6635572 6777566 141994 1423355 1716818 293463

Grossprofitandnetrevenuesfromservices
849963 1026831 176868 163073 223432 60359

Operating general and

administrative expenses
526265 494227 32038 122837 123174 337

EBITOA 323698 532604 208906 40236 100258 60022

Amortization 109141 106832 2309 31551 30226 1325

EBIT 214557 425772 211215 8685 70032 61347

10191 14622 4431 5143 2358 2785

16701

3356 3356

10314 1263 11577 1192 206 986

61163 37785 23378 24143 6271 17872

156994 377984 220990 5092 61197 66289

Provision for corporate taxes

Current 14144 19422 5278 2579 3907 1328

Future 29723 70280 40557 6751 10500 17251

Netearningsloss
113127 288282 175155 920 46790 47710

Earnings per
share 0.45 131 0.86 0.20 0.20

includes results forviterra Ausrtalia operations from 5eptember 24 2009 to October31 2009

Actual

Three Months

Better Ended October 31 Better

2008 Worse 2009 2008 Worse

247922 299297 51375 54236 70091 15855

122617 276863 154246 4516 44033 39517

23791 29029 5238 6776 7140 364

12758 6086 18844 1270 7920 6650

9638 8846 792 3179 3907 728

93028 75345 17683 27201 16993 10208

323698 532604 208906 40236 100258 60022

Integration expenses

Net foreign exchange gain on acquisition

Recovery on pension settlement

Gain loss on disposal
of assets

24105

Financing expenses

24105 16701

BREAKDOWN OF EBITDA BY SEGMENT

in thousands

Grain Handling and Marketing

Agri-products

Food Processing

Feed Products

Financial Products

Corporate

Actual

Twelve Months

Ended October31

2009

Includes results for Oiterra Aostraha opetstl055 from Septembet 24 2009 to October31 2009
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grain shipments offset by levelling of gross margins per

tonne and significant decline in contributions from the

Agri-products business which was impacted by sharply lower

fertilizer prices and margins Viterras Australian operations

contributed net EBITDA loss of $6.2 million forthe period from

September 24 2009 to October 31 2009 for more information

on the Australian business earnings breakdown see Section

complete description of each segments operating

performance begins with Section 8.2

Amortization for the year was $109.1 million comparable to the

$106.8 million in the prioryear

Integration expenses incurred during the year were

$10.2 million which includes $2.3 million related to ABB and

$7.9 million related to AU These costs are comprised of signage

and branding costs consulting advisory costs travel and

other integration costs incurred by the Company in 2009 This

is decrease from the $14.6 million of integration expenses

incurred in 2008 which were related to AU See discussion of

Restructuring and Integration Matters in Section 11

Viterra recorded $24.1 million netforeign exchange gain in

fiscal 2009 which was associated with the acquisition of ABB
Viterra implemented hedging strategy to protect itself from

any currency fluctuations between the Canadian and Australian

dollar See Note 23 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company recorded $10.3 million loss on disposal of assets

related to number of capital asset sales during the year This

compares to last years gain on disposal of assets of $1.3 million

ADJUSTMENTS TO FINANCING EXPENSES

in millions Actual

Twelve Months

Ended October 31

2009 2008 Change

Financing expenses 61.2 378 23.4

Adjustments added back

Interest income

CWB
carrying

charge recovery
________________

Adlusted financing expenses

interest expense forthe $300 million of notes issued in

July 2009 the additional $100 million drawn on the term

credit facility and Viterra Australias financing costs These

interest costs were offset by lower borrowings against the

revolving credit
facility In addition interest earned on short-

term investments was reduced as interest rates on those

investments were significantly lower in fiscal 2009

Viterra recorded net corporate tax provision of $43.9 million

in the 12-month period ended October 31 2009 compared to

provision of $89.7 million in the same period of 2008 The

effective tax rate forthe 12 months ended October 31 2009

was 27.9% compared to 23.7% for the same period last year

The Companys effective tax rate ordinarily differs from the

estimated Canadian statutory rate of 30% due to variety

of factors including the change in future tax rates applied

to different tax assets and tax liabilities items deductible

for accounting but not for tax as well as the effect of foreign

income tax rates differing from Canadian income tax rates

At October 31 2009 the Company had consolidated loss

carryforwards of $62.6 million compared to $111.3 million at

October 31 2008 Fiscal 2009 includes $25.0 million of losses

from inactive subsidiaries of which the Company has less than

100% interest and $37.6 million from other subsidiaries Of the

$37.6 million $31.3 million is associated with Viterra Australia

and $6.3 million is associated with U.S operations full

valuation allowance has been recorded in respect of the losses

from inactive subsidiaries future tax asset has been recorded

forthe remaining losses

Viterras net earnings forthe year were $113.1 million

or$0.45 per share compared to $288.3 million or $1.31 per

share lastyear which reflects the challenges within the

commodity markets this year

8.2 Grain Handling and Marketing

This years segment results include approximately five weeks

of results from the Companys Grain Handling and Marketing

operations in Australia from September 24 2009 to

October 31 2009 see Section 7.1 During this period harvest

had notyet commenced and as such no new grain receivals

were recorded in Viterra Australias fourth quarter for further

information on seasonality of the business see Section

7.9 18.8 10.9

2.9 4.7

72.0 64.2 7.8

Financing expenses forthe year were $61.2 million up from

$37.8 million last year This increase reflects the additional
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8.2.1 Industry Shipments

Shipments in any given fiscal year are reliant upon production

levels and carry-out stocksfrom the prior year Grain flows

can fluctuate depending on global demand crop size prices

of competing commodities as well as the factors noted in

Sections 3.2 and 8.2

For the crop year ended July 31 2009 industry

shipments were up 12.3% from the previous years period

to 35.4 million tonnes reflecting last years large crop size

producers desire to market their crop and strong

CWB export program

4553

55928

118839

14522

39714

986384

11067 3455

59024 19310

$1182716 196332

282

GRAIN HANDLING AND MARKETING

in thousands except percentages and margins Actual Actual

Twelve Months Three Months

Ended October 31 Better Ended October 31 Better

2009 2008 Worse 2009 2008 Worse

Gross profit and net revenues

from services 437741 473657 35916 97750 108727 10977

Operating general and

administrative expenses 189819 174360 15459 43514 38636 4878

EBlTDA 247922 299297 51375 54236 70091 15855

Amoruzationtm 46084 41.531

EBIP 201838 257766

Sales and other operating revenuestm 4180657 4299496

______________________

North American Operating Highlights

Industry receipts

sixmajorgrainstonnes 35760 31347 4413 8244 8526

Industry shipments

six majorgrains tonnes 35379 31513 3866 8249 8276

Primaryelevatorreceiptstonnes 16325 13613 2712 3896 3684

Primary elevator shipments tonnes 16967 14699 2268 3902 3466

SixMalorGrains 16293 13650 2643 3713 3310

Industry terminal handle

sixmajorgrainstonnes 25812 20551 5261 6427

Port Terminal receipts tonnes 10434 7719 2715 2714

Vancouver 6503 4240 2263 1794

Thunder Bay 2311 2123 188 527

PrinceflupertGrainCompanyshare 1620 1356 264 393

Margin per grain tonne shipped primary 25.87 32.22 6.35 25.38

Licensed storage capacity tonnesr

5347 5312 35.0 5347 5312

1865 1868 3.0 1865 1868

Inventory turns shipments divided by capacity

6.62x 593x 0.69x 6.17x 6.23x 0.06x

9.lOx 7.87x 1.23x 8.37x 7.42x O.95x

Includes results for Viterra Austral operations from September24 2009to October31 2009

CSCs March 30 2000 edition of Stain Elesotors in canada updated to include new builds expansions and closures

This ratio
is

annusloed tube more meaningful measure

-Industry

-Company

5741

2083

1285

661

137

31.37

27

212

436

403

686

631

509

134

256

599

35.0

3.0

-Industry

-Company
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822 Viterra Shipments North America

Viterra shipped 17.0 million tonnes in fiscal year 2009 up 15.4%

or approximately 2.3 million tonnes over the previous year For

the six major grains Viterras annual shipments rose 19.4%

surpassing overall industry increases by 7.1% The increase in

Viterras total volumes reflects

The Companys ability to handle largerthan average crop

due to its significant inland terminal capacity

Strong execution of Viterras open market export program

particularlythrough the Port of Vancouver due to our

International Grain Groups presence in Asia

solid CWB export program and

Ample railcar supply due to slowdown in other sectors

potash and other commodities for example

For the 12-month period ended October 312009 the split

between CWB and open market grain shipments was 50/50

compared to 46/54forthe same period last year

At export position port terminal receipts for the industry

were up 25.6% year-over-year Overall Viterras portterminal

receipts increased 35.2% to 10.4 million tonnes All of Viterras

ports recorded improved volumes However the performance

of the Companys Vancouver port led the way benefiting from

strong canola and pea sales into the Asian Pacific region

robust CWB export program and good availability of railcars

823 Segment Results

Forfiscal 2009 average gross margins for Grain Handling and

Marketing were $25.87 per tonne in line with management

expectations for the year This compares to last years gross

margin of $32.22 pertonne The decrease in margins from 2008

mainly reflects

Lower commodity prices which resulted in lower blending

revenues and

Fewer opportunities to extract premiunis from the market

due to less commodity price volatility

Earnings associated with the Companys interest in Prince

Rupert Grain were $12.1 million for fiscal 2009 slight
increase

from fiscal 2008 earnings of $11.7 million

Forfiscal 2009 OGA expensesforthe Grain Handling and

Marketing segment totalled $189.8 million representing

$15.5 million increase from fiscal 2008 The increase is primarily

result of increased variable costs due to higher grain volumes

this year and additional wages salaries and benefits The

increase also reflects the addition of Viterra Australia and full

year of costs associated with the International Grain Group

Forthefiscalyearended October3l2009segmentEBlTDA

was $247.9 million compared to $299.3 million for the same

period of 2008 2009 was $201.8 million and for 2008

was$257.8 million Viterras Grain Handling and Marketing

operations in Australia contributed an EBITDA loss of

$5.8 million and an EBIT loss of $8.0 million for the period

of September 24 2009 to October 31 2009

8.3 Agri-products

Agri-products sales declined in fiscal 2009 direct result

of the reduction in fertilizer pricing year-over-year Sales

were $1.6 billion decrease of $55.3 million for the 12-months

ended October 312009 compared to the same period of

2008 The revenue contributions from Viterras Agri-products

operations in Australia are included forthe five weeks ended

October 31 2009 The Australian operations contributed

$40.7 million in revenue for the period from September 24 2009

to October 31 2009

Fertilizer sales were $897.3 million for the year compared to

$1011.9 million forthe same period of 2008 While overall

volumes were similar to the prior year fertilizer prices

decreased dramaticallyfrom previous record highs which

were followed by record low global demand and subsequent

price decreases through the firstthree quarters of 2009

Seed sales for the year were $184.4 million up from

$174.5 million for fiscal 2008 Sales increases reflect higher

selling prices for canola seed due to greater demand for higher

valued hybrid varieties slightly offset by less demand for

cereal seed due to lower commodity prices

Sales of Viterras North American crop protection products

decreased by $9.9 million to $406.9 million this year

Unfavourabie growing conditions as result of late cool

spring reduced demand for pre-seed products and drier

than normal weather throughout certain parts of the Prairies

coupled with cooler temperatures in the early summer months
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Gross
profit

and net revenues from servicestm

Operating general and

administrative expensestm

EBITDAtm

North American Sales

Eertilizere

Crop Protection

897310

406876

Seed 184432

101715

17.5%

Includes results for Vrterra Austreho operations from 5eptember 24 2009 no Ocrober 31 2009

Consolidared sales from Norrh American wholesale and retail operations

reduced product demand This was somewhat offset by

higher demand for glyphosates to aid in the delayed harvest

although pricing was not as strong

Equipment sales and other revenue were up by $18.7 million

from 2008 The increase in sales reflected strong demand for

on-farm storage and related products i.e augers and aeration

equipment The sales increases were partially offset by an

$8.3 million reduction in investment tax credits this year

Gross margins were $278.6 million for the year which were

$159.0 million lower thanthe$437.6 million in gross margins

recorded in fiscal 2008 This years gross margins included an

inventory writedown of $28.1 million that was taken in

January 2009 which partially offset realized losses in the

second and third quarters Natural gas costs were

$64.5 million in 2009 and in 2008 were $114.9 million

The primary reason for the variance from the prior year reflects

lower fertilizer margins due to negative margin sales and very

little in-season appreciation linked primarily to phosphate

fertilizer Also contributing to these results were lower crop

protection margins due to lower volumes for the full year and

decreases in glyphosate pricing compared to the prior year

1011944 114634 103772 228087 124315

416811 9935 47136 40992 6144

174475 9957 1174 1588 414

83048 18667 47410 37405 10005

26.0% 8.5pt 18.2% 29.1% 10.9pt

OGA expenses decreased by $4.7 million during the

yearto $156.0 million The prior years figures included an

expense of $9.9 million for an increase to the Companys

ARO This was offset primarily by wage increases and higher

telecommunication charges related to the expansion of the

Companys wide area network and higher credit card fees

EBITDA for the year was $122.6 million compared to

$276.9 million in the prior year and EBIT was $80.4 million

versus $228.6 million in fiscal 2008

8.4 Food Processing

The Food Processing segment results for the fiscal year

2009 include contributions from Viterras Food Processing

operations in Australia from September 24 2009 to

October 31 2009 for further detail on the contribution

of the Australian operations see Section 7.3

Sales and other operating revenues in Viterras North American

Food Processing operations were $280.8 million compared to

$198.3 million in fiscal 2008 Human consumption sales volumes

from Viterras oat processing facilities were down 8.5% from the

prior year due mainly to decrease in sales to South America

AGRI-PRODUCTS

in thousands except percentages Actual Actual

Twelve Months Three Months

Ended October 31 Better Ended October 31 Better

2009 2008 Worse 2009 2008 Worse

278632 437613 158981 36548 89789 53241

156015 160750 4735 32032 45756 13724

122617 276863 154246 4516 44033 39517

Amortizationtm 42189 48217 6028 10647 14250 3603

EBITtm 80428 228646 148218 6131 29783 35914

Sales and other operating revenuestm 1630990 1686278 55288 240149 308072 67923

Equipment sales and other revenue

Average Margin for North America 1% of Sales
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ncftrdes results for Virerra Austraka operatiorrs from September 24 2009 to October 3t 2009

Operating results for the newly-acquired canola processing

facility were included in earnings beginning in July 2009 Sales

forthe four months ended October31 2009 were $41.8 million

During this period 83300 metric tonnes of seed was processed

Sales contributions from Viterras investment in Prairie Malt

were up 11.5% due to higher selling prices for malt

OGAexpensesfortheyearwere$13.7 million compared

to $6.9 million in 2008 OGA expenses increased in fiscal

2009 due to costs associated with the Companys new canola

crushing facility

EBITDA for the segment was $23.8 million compared to

$29.0 million in fiscal 2008 Included in this years results

is $2.3 million EBITDA contribution fromViterras Food

Processing operations in Australia The primary reasons for

the variance include

$1.9 million EBITDA decline from oat milling for fiscal 2009

due to lower production levels and an increase in OGA
expenses and

Viterras canola plant recorded an EBITDA loss of $1.7 million

primarily reflecting maintenance shutdown in late June and

the impact of FDA border issues discussed in Section 3.5

EBllforthefiscalyearended October3l2009was

$16.4 million decrease from fiscal 2008 EBIT of $23.2 million

8.5 Feed Products

Feed Products segment results for the fiscal year 2009 include

contributions from Viterras Feed Products operations in

New Zealand from September 242009 to October 312009

forfurther detail on the contribution of the New Zealand

operations see Section 7.4

Feed sales for the fiscal year ended October 31 2009 were

$660.3 million an improvement of $34.3 million overthe same

period last year Gross profit on feed for the segment was

$80.6 million $39.26 per tonne for North America compared

to $66.1 million $42.99 per tonne last year The Companys

New Zealand operations contributed $9.3 million to revenue for

the year The higherfeed sales and gross profitwere primarily

result of full year of contributions from the Companys

acquisition of Sunrise Feeds LLC V-S Feed and Agri-Supplies

Ltd Gore Bros Inc and Gores Trucking Inc in North America

Last years results only include seven months of contributions

from these operations

OGA expenses forthe current year were $67.8 million

$4.3 million lowerthan lastyear The decrease reflects the

synergies and cost reductions associated with the new feed

manufacturing plants that were acquired during fiscal 2008

Somewhat offsetting these reductions was increased OGA
expenses for higher wages salaries benefits and other costs

associated with compensation adjustments for employees that

work atthe feed manufacturing plants acquired in fiscal 2008

FOOD PROCESSING

in thousands except percentages and margins Actual Actual

Twelve Months Three Months

Ended October 31 Better Ended October 31 Better

2009 2008 Worse 2009 2008 Worse

Gross
profit

and net revenues from servicese 37459 35948 1511 13657 8418 5239

Operating genera and administrative expenses 13668 6919 6749 6881 1278 5603
EBlTDA 23791 29029 5238 6776 7140 364

Amortization 7389 5842 1547 2768 1452 1316

EBIP 16402 23187 6785 4008 5688 1680

Sales and other operating revenues 280826 198312 82514 2086 54187 66680

North American Operating Highlights

Gross profit 34525 35.948 1423 10723 8418 2305

Tonnessodl 378 330 48 142 80 62

Margin per tonne 91.34 108.93 17.59 75.51 105.23 29.72
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Gross
profit

and net revenues from servicestm 80563

Operating general and

administrative_expensestm 67805

EBITDAtm 12758

Amortizationtm 11950

EBIP 808

Feed sales and other operating revenuestm

North American Operating Highlights

Gross
profit

from feed sales

Feed sales torlnes

Feed margin $per feed tonne sold

Includes results for Viterra Australia operations from 5eptember 24 2009 to October 31 2009

EBlTDAforfiscal 2009 was $12.8 million an improvement

from fiscal 2008s EBITDA loss of $6.1 million EBIT for the fiscal

yearwas$0.8 million an improvementfrom last years loss of

$16.3 million In fiscal 2008 the segment incurred one-time

losses attributable to writedown and provision related to

Viterras equity investment in The Puratone Corporation

8.6 Financial Products

Viterra acts as an agent for Canadian chartered bank through

Viterra FinanciallM Performance is reflection of higher values

of crop inputs and increased lending activities to customers

due to additional financial products available through Viterra

FinanciallM The
profitability

of this segment relates to the type

level duration and quality of credit in given period which

FINANCIAL PRODUCTS

in thousands except percentages and margins Actual

Twelve Months

Ended October 31

2009 2008

in turn is influenced by crop input and feed pricesfarm income

levels and interest rates

Gross profit of $15.6 million for the year ended October 31 2009

increased by $2.0 million compared to the same period last year

because of larger portfolio value in 2009 result of the

expanded credit base and higher sales values this year

compared to the prior year

OGA expenses increased by $1.2 million to $5.9 million in 2009

Annual expenses are up due to increased expenses incurred to

support business development initiatives

Higher gross profit contributed to EBITDA of $9.6 million for the

12-months ended October 312009 as compared to $8.8 million

in 2008 EBIT for fiscal 2009 was $9.4 million an increase from

2008 EBIT of $8.4 million

Actual

Three Months

Ended October31

2009 2008

FEED PRODUCTS

in thousands except percentages and margins Actual

Twelve Months

Ended October 31

2009 2008

Actual

Three Months

Better Ended October31 Better

Worse 2009 2008 Worse

66065 14498 10922 11077 155

72151

6086

10239

16325

4346

18844

1711

17133

12192

1270

2953

4223

18997 6805

7920 6650

2804 149

10724 6501

660296 625947 34349 140427 181751 41324

78747 81120 2373 9854 19467 9613

2006 1887 119 466 501 35

39.26 42.99 3.73 21.15 38.86 17.71

Better

Worse

Gross profit and net revenues from services 15568 13548 2020 4196 5421 1225

Operating general and administrative expenses 5930 4702 1228 1017 1514 497

EBITDA 9638 8846 792 3179 3907 728

Amortization 245 420 175 105 105

EBIT 9393 8426 967 3179 3802 623
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8.7 Corporate

Corporate expenses were $93.0 million for fiscal 2009

up $17.7 million from the previous years expenses of

$75.3 million This increase is the result of increased stock-

based compensation costs and growth initiative expenses in

the fourth quarter noted previously restructuring accrual

related to the enhancement of information technology service

delivery higher external consulting fees in support of growth

initiatives and an increased director compensation program

The increases were offset partially by lower accruals for both

short-term incentive program payments and capital taxes Also

included in the corporate results was $1.0 million of expenses

from the Companys Australian operations for the period from

September 24 2009 to October 312009

88 Outlook

In addition to other sections of this report this section contains

forward-looking information and actual outcomes may differ

materially from those expressed or implied therein For more

information please see Forward-Looking In formation in

Section 20 of this report

The western Canadian harvest was essentially complete by

the end of November 2009 Production forthe six major grains

is estimated to be 51.8 million metric tonnes about 5% above

the 10-year average Crop quality is generally good with later

harvested crops experiencing some quality issues due to

excessive moisture in the fall period

The CWB estimates that 78% of the spring wheat is in the

top two grades which is better than an average year Canola

quality is similar to last year with 92.5% of the crop grading

in the top grade according to the CGC while the average oil

content improved from 44.3% last year to 44.8% this year

Malt barley quality is above average

CORPORATE EXPENSES

in thousands Actual

Operating general and

administratve expenses

Amortization

EBIT

Twelve Months

Ended October 31

2009 2008

leciedes resuds for Viterra Austraha opera905s from September 24 2009 to October 3t 2009

Management estimates fiscal 2010 industry receipts in

Western Canada of32 to 33 million tonnes forthe six major

grains Management currently expects carry-out stocks into

the following crop yearto remain historically high which will

supplement future grain handling volumes

While exports of western Canadian grains and oilseeds are

anticipated to be down from last years high levels the industry

believes that demand for Canadian originated commodities will

remain above historical averages as result of above average

production high quality and competitive prices The CWB

recently released revised 2010 export targetforwheat and

barley of 18.7 million tonnes up fromtheir 2009 performance of

183 million tonnes If achieved CWB exports for the 2010 crop

yearwould be second onlytothe cropyearof2000whenthey

shipped over 19 million tonnes

For open-market grains management acknowledges the

potential impact that import restrictions in China may have on

canola exports but is confidentthat demand from other parts

of the world will keep demand strong In addition Agriculture

Canada recently released an export projection of million

tonnes which while down 24% from Iastyears record level

is still the second largest figure on record for canola It should

also be noted that as result of increased domestic crush

capacity demand for canola is anticipated to remain robust

In Australia total grain production is currentlyforecastto be

36.3 million metric tonnes with approximately 7.5 million tonnes

being produced in South Australia This represents an increase

of 40% over the five-year average As such management

currently expects receivals in the 6.5 to 7.0 million metric tonne

range in fiscal 2010 an increase of 51% against the historical

five-year average As of the date of this report Viterras

Australian operations had received approximately

6.3 million tonnes

Actual

Three Months

Better Ended October 31 Better

Worse 2009 2008 Worse

93028 75345 17683 272011 16993 10208

1284 583 701 661 548 113

94312 $792B 18384 27862 17541 10321

./o
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Viterra intends to report on Australian and North American

blended grain margins going forward Based on current industry

information management expects average annual grain margins

for Viterras entire global Grain Handling and Marketing segment

to be in the $30 to $33 pertonne rangeforfiscal 2010

Lastyearfarmers faced record high fertilizer prices and with

the softening of grain and oilseed prices in fiscal 2009 farmers

chose to reduce their fertilizer use rates resulting in western

Canadian fertilizer shipments declining overall by 11% Due to

favourable growing conditions crop yields did not suffer in the

shortterm however this practice is not sustainable to maintain

yields in the long term With three-year lows on fertilizer prices

and historically favourable projected returns our expectations

are that growers will return to more normal fertilizer use

rates to replenish their soil nutrients this coming year Early

indicators support these expectations as fertilizer movementto

farm has been strongerthan lastyear despite the late harvest

and the inability of growers in certain areas to complete fall

applications As farmers in North America have increased their

demand for nitrogen and phosphate overthe lastfew months

prices for these products have firmed Management expects to

see continued strengthening on both products until spring as

farmers continue to secure productfor spring planting season

In Western Canada seed bookings for the spring have been

progressing as expected while the sales of equipment in

particular corrugated storage bins have remained strong due

to increased producer cash flow in recent years Management

expects this trend to continue into 2010

Viterras Food Processing operations anticipate steady

performance in 2010 Demand for whole grain nutritional food

ingredients continues to remain strong and demand for oat

ingredients is expected to continue to grow With the economic

challengesfacing North America management anticipates an

increase in private label/store brand ready-to-eat cereals and

possibly more consumption of oatmeal Consumer demand

for economical whole grain convenience in the form of granola

bars and meal replacement bars is expected to continue

In the Canadian canola operations anticipated capacity

additions by some competitors is expected to pressure margins

in the nearterm however prospects forthis industry remain

strong longer-term given ongoing demand for healthy oils

In Viterras Australian malt business management believes

that average margins have stabilized and will migrate to more

traditional levels once malt demand increases globally

decision on building the new Minto plant previously announced

by.ABB is under review by management

From feed manufacturing perspective over the long term

management believesthatthe North American land water

and available feed resource base is suitable and competitively

placed for livestock production Beef cattle are typically

grazers and are often raised on land unsuitable for growing

crops They consume naturally grown products like hay silage

and grass as major component of their diet Feed sales by

Viterra to the beef sector comprise low-inclusion vitamin and

mineral supplements pasture/range supplements and feed

ingredient commodities Additional feed inputs made available

from the byproducts of ethanol production are additional

supplement beef feed ingredients

Milk price recovery is slow but future pricing indications are

for prices to be above the cost of production in 2010 Overall

management believes that over the long term the relocation

of industrial milk production will continue from densely human

populated states such as California to more animal husbandry

friendly states such as Texas and New Mexico Total dairy

cow numbers in Texas and New Mexico are roughly half of the

total number of cows in all of Canada and are two of the fastest

growing dairy herd states in the U.S Feed sales to the dairy

sector range from high-inclusion rate supplements in Canada

to low-inclusion mineral pre-mixes in both Canada and the

U.S This segment is also major consumer of feed ingredient

commodities such as barley in Canada and corn and canola

meal in the U.S
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Select Three-Year Annual Financial Information

SELECT ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

in milhons except per share amounts

Twelve Twelve

Months Months

Ended Ended

October31 October31

2009 2008

Sales and other

operating revenues

EBITDA

EBIT

6635.6 6777.6 3875.8

323.7 532 268.0

214.6 425.8 197.6

Net earnings 113.1 2883 111.4

Basic and diluted earnings

per share

Total assets

Total long-term liabilities

Cash dividends declared

per share

0.45 131 0.86

6422.7 39794 3042.1

1508.0 8260 482.8

inciedes results for V1erra Australlu operations from September 24 2009 to October 3t 2009

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

91 Cash Flow Information

91.1 Operating Activities

CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY USED IN OPERATIONS

iii thousands except per share amounts

EBITDA

Add Deduct

Employee future benefits

Equity loss gain of significantly

influenced companies

Other items

Adjusted EBITDA

Integration expenses

Cash
financing expenses

Pro-tax cash flow

Current
provision

for corporate income taxes

Cash flow provided byused in operations

Per share

includes results for Viter ra Austraha operations from September 24 2000 to October 3t2009

In 2007 Viterra changed its financial year-end from July31 to

October31 to better align its reporting period with its business

cycle As result the Consolidated Financial Statements

for fiscal 2007 reflect 15-month transitional period from

August 12006 to October 31 2007 and include the results of AU

from its acquisition date of May 29 2007 including the results of

operationsforthe month of Junefora numberoffacilitiesthat

were later sold to James Richardson International JRI and

Cargill at the end of June 2007 The acquisition of AU materially

increased the assets liabilities sales employees market share

and operating capacity of the Company Fiscal 2009 results

as noted earlier include results for five weeks from Viterras

newly-acquired Australian operations

Sales in 2009 are not materially different than in 2008 despite

the significant change in commodity prices over the past year

The largest decline was felt in the Agri-products segment

where sales prices for fertilizer declined significantly This was

partly offset by an increase in core grain handling shipments

year-over-year in Viterras North America operation

For more complete discussion on the results of the 2008 fiscal

year relative to 2007 please see the Companys MDA in its

2008 Financial Review

Fifteen

Months

Ended

October 31

2007

Actual Twelve Months Actual Three Months

Ended October 31 Ended October 31

2009 2008 Change 2009 2008 Change

323698 $532604 208906 40236 $100258 60022

22875 19918 2957 25924 20422 5502

59 10963 11022 18 4556 4538

2124 24 2148 125 243 368

302888 523625 220737 14455 84149 69694

10191 14622 4431 5143 2358 2785

55130 33315 21815 21898 4753 17145

237567 475688 238121 12586 77038 89624

14144 19422 5278 2579 3907 1328

223423 456266 232843 15165 73131 88296

0.89 208 1.19 0.05 031 0.36
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CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

in thousands Actual

Twelve Months

Ended October31

2009 2008

Free Cash Flow

Cash flow provided by used in operations 223423

Property plant and equipment expenditures 75283

Free cash flow 148140

Includes results for Viterra Austrafo operations from September24 2009 to October31 2009

See Non-GAAP Finariciol Meosores
in

Section tO

For the fiscal year ended October 31 2009 Viterra generated

cash flow provided by operations of $223.4 million decrease

of $232.8 million overthe comparable period lastyear On

per share basis the Company generated cash flow provided

by operations of $0.89 per share compared with $2.08 per

share in the comparable period lastyear The reduced cash

flow from operations reflects lower EBITDA and higher

financing expenses offset by lower integration costs and

lower provision for current income taxes Actual current

income taxes are less than what would be imputed by applying

the Companys prevailing tax rate to pre-tax cash flows The

lower current income taxes primarily result from the tax shield

provided by the Companys capital cost allowance claim and

utilization of its tax loss carryforwards

Free cash flow is measured by cash flow provided by

operations less capital expenditures and does not reflect

changes in non-cash working capital see Non-GAAP

Measures in Section 18 Forthe 12 months ended

October31 2009free cashflow decreased by$252.5 million

to $148.1 million from the comparable period of the prior year

9.1 Investing Activities

Viterras capital expenditures excluding business acquisitions

forthe 12 months ended October 312009 were $75.3 million

NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL

in thousands

2009
_______

Inventories 960896

Accounts receivable 1004674

Prepaid and deposits 89768

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1095366

959972

Actual

Three Months

Ended October31

Change 2009 2008 Change

456266 232843 15165 73131 88296

55583 19700 28110 20409 7701

400683 2525431 43275 52722 95997

which includes $3.1 million related to Viterra Australia This

compares to $55.6 million for 2008 Proceeds from the sale of

certain capital assets totalled $4.2 million forthe currentyear

compared with $5.3 million for 2008

Viterra invested cash of $814.0 million in business acquisitions

of which $697.8 million was for Viterra Australia This was

significant increase from $31.8 million invested in fiscal 2008

See Note of the Consolidated Financial Statements for

further details on all major business acquisitions

On an annualized basis Viterra expects consolidated sustaining

capital expenditures will be approximately $140.0 million These

are expected to be funded by cash flow provided by operations

9.2 Non-Cash Working Capital

Inventory levels at October 31 2009 were $960.9 million

including Viterra Australia $277.5 million compared with

$816.2 million at October 312008 Exclusive of Viterra Australia

inventory levels fell by $132.8 million This primarily reflects

lowerfertilizer and grain inventory levels and prices

Accounts receivable at October 31 2009 were $218.2 million

higher than at October 31 2008 Viterra Australia accounted

for an increase of $312.3 million which was partly offset

816158 144738 277538 132800

786504 218170 312286 94116

91183 1415 30369 31784

919485 1758811 240965 65084

774360 185612 379228 193616

Change

Attributable to

2008 Change Viterra Australia

Change

Excluding

Viterra Australia
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primarily by lower CWB receivables which reflects both lower

quantities and commodity prices

Lower prepaid expenses and deposits of $1.4 million reflect

an increase due to Viterra Australia of $30.4 million offset

primarily by lower inventory prepayments to agri-products

suppliers

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities were up

$175.9 million overthe balance at October 31 2008 After

removing the impact of Viterra Australia $241 .0 million

there was residual decrease of $65.1 million which reflects

decrease in customer deposits accompanied by lower

producer deferred cash tickets

93 Financing Activities

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

in thousands except percentages pts
and ratios

Total Debt

Total Debt Net of Cash

and Cash Equivalents

EBITDA Twelve Months

ended October31 CC

Ratios

Current Ratio

Total
Debt-to-Capital

Long-Term Debt-to-Capital 25.2% 21.6%

Fisca 2009 inSudes resuits for Viterra AustrVia operations free 5eptember 24 2009 to

October3l2009

See Non-GAAP Mearrues in Section 10

Viterras balance sheet at October 31 2009 remained strong

with total debt-to-capital of 31.0% 22.2i at October 31 2008

Viterra had no cash drawings on its $800 million North

American revolving creditfacility at year end and had

approximately $597 million drawn on the $1.2 billion AUD

operating facility
that funds the Australian and New Zealand

businesses In addition Viterra on consolidated basis had

approximately $1.0 billion of cash and short-term investments

on its balance sheet as at October 31 2009 approximately

$800 million of which is not required to finance seasonal

working capital needs and is available forfuture

growth initiatives

The Companys total debt increased by$946.9 million from

the previous year This is primarily due to Viterra Australias

short-term borrowings $291.1 million and long-term debt

$306.3 million new issuance of $300 million in senior

unsecured notes in July 2009 and further draw of $100 million

in December 2008 on the term credit facility partially offset

by principal repayments made during 2009 on the term credit

facility and the total repayment of Member Demand Loans

in September 2009 See Notes 10 and 11 of the Consolidated

Financial Statementsfor more complete details on the above

As result of swap transactions the hedged fixed rate on the

term Credit Facility based upon Viterras current credit ratings

is at approximately 7.4% on $312 million of Canadian dollar

borrowings and 8.1% on $72 million of USD borrowings with

minimum mandatory repayments of4% per annum

The weighted average interest rate on long-term borrowings

for Viterra Australia including interest rate swaps is

approximately 6.2%

At October 31

2009 2008 Change

1574714 $627857 $946857

541639 41153

323698 $532604

The Companys total debt net of cash and short-term

investments increased $582.8 million from the same period

last year This resulted from the increase in total debt explained

above $946.9 million offset by an increase in cash and

short-term investments of $364.0 million This increase in

cash and short-term investments is presented in detail in the

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Some of the major

components from the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

in addition to the debt components detailed abovewere

cash from operating activities 2009$457.4 million

582 792

2008 $283.7 million increases in share capital primarily

due to the issuance of 56.3 million common shares through

208 906
private placement in May 2009 for gross proceeds of

$450 million see Note 16 of the Consolidated Financial

Statements and cash invested in business acquisitions
2.23x 2.54x 0.31

2009$814.0 million 2008-$31.8 million See Note of the

31.0/a 22.2% 8.8 Pt

36
Consolidated Financial Statements The Company maintains

an active role in all decisions affecting cash distributions from

principal subsidiaries those in which the Company has at least

50% interest The Company does not rely on distributions

from subsidiaries or jointventuresto fund its capital spending

programs or to meet its financial obligations
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Short-term debt is used during the yearto finance operating

requirements which primarily consist of inventory purchases

and financing of accounts receivable

In the Grain Handling and Marketing segment the level of

short-term debt can also fluctuate as result of changes in

underlying commodity prices and the timing of grain purchases

while in the Agri-products segment changes in fertilizer prices

can impact inventory values and customer end inventory

prepayments

Management believesthat cash flowfrom operations end

its access to undrawn credit facilities will provide Viterra

with sufficient financial resources to fund its working capital

requirements planned capital expenditure programs and

debt servicing requirements This belief is predicated upon the

Companys expectations offuture commodity and crop nput

prices and the expected turnover of inventory and accounts

receivable components of working capital See Forward-

Looking Information in Section 20 of this MOA

Debt Ratings

On July 31 2008 Standard Poors SP raised the

Companys long-term corporate credit rating from BB to

BB with positive outlook SP also increased the rating

onViterras Revolving Credit Facilityto BBB from BBB- and

the rating on the Companys Senior Unsecured Notes to BB
from BB According to Standard Poors the ratings upgrade

considered Viterras leading position in Canadian agri-business

and improved profitabilityfrom its integration ofAtJ

On October 29 2009 DBRS Limited OBRS confirmed

Viterras Senior Unsecured Notes and Revolving Credit Facility

ratings as BBB Low with stable trend According to OBRS

the rating was confirmed after review focusing on the

potential risks and benefits of the Implementation Agreement

between Viterra and ABB announced on May 19 2009 DBRS

Senior

Corporate Unsecured

Rating Notes

BB BB

n/a BRB Low

has stated that the acquisition of ABB is consistent with

Viterras previously stated ambition to increase investment

for growth and believes ABBs strength in malt processing

will compliment Viterras agri-food business and ABBs grain

handling should enhance access to high-growth Asian markets

On December 82009 Moodys Investors Service Moodys
announced it was maintaining its outlook of under reviewfor

possible downgrade The under review outlook initiated on

May 19 2009 was prompted by the proposed acquisition of

ABB which was completed on September 23 2009 The under

review rating is being maintained as the Company recently

reported thatthere had been technical breach of loan

covenant of Viterra Australia which was yet to be waived by

the Viterra Australia lending syndicate as at October 31 2009

Management considered it unlikelythe syndicates response

to the breaches would be to require immediate settlement of

the outstanding drawings on the syndicated facility
Viterras

corporate credit rating and the credit rating on the Companys

S600 million of Senior Unsecured Notes have been assigned

Bal rating one level below investment grade

Viterra Australia finalized waiver of the covenant breach with

its loan syndicate on December 29 2009

Term Credit Revolving

Facility Credit Facility

n/a BBB

BBBLow n/a

Standard Poors

DBRS Limited

Trend

Positive

Stable

Moodys Investors Service Ba Bal n/a n/a Under Review



95 Contractual Obligations

in thousands

Balance Sheet Obligation

Short-tern debt

Long-term debt

Other long-term obligations

Principal Payments Oue by Period

Total Less than Year ito Years to Years After Years

291128 291128

1301735 324240 34444 742220 200831

142970 21972 40117 21260 59621

1735833 637340 74561 763480 260452

Other Contractual Obligations

Operating leases 86442 20588 25184

Purchase obligations 655384 648819 6249

741826 669407 31433

Total Contractual Obligations 2475659 1306747 $105994

Substantially ilI of tire purchase obligations represent contractual cemrelteronts to purchase commodities arid products for tesalm

10 OUTSTANDINGSHAREDATA

On May 13 2009 the Company completed subscription

receipt offering of 56250000 common shares by way of

private placement to exempt purchasers at price of

$8.00 per common share

The Company raised gross proceeds from the offering of

$450.0 million The proceeds were raised to provide portion

of the funding for the acquisition of ABB Shares were held in

escrow until the closing of the acquisition Underwriters fees

and other costs net of escrow interest associated with the

offering were approximately $18.0 million In accordance with

the capital nature of this transaction the associated costs are

reflected as charge to shareholders equity and reflected in

the retained earnings of the Company

The Company also issued 78296645 common shares and

or CDIs to the shareholders of ABB in accordance with the

Scheme of Arrangementto acquire ABB For purposes of

calculating the value of the share component of the purchase

consideration the Company used the average closing price of

its shares on the TSX around the May 19 2009 announcement

of the proposed acquisition of ABB The resulting value was

$8.84 per common share and gross value of $692.1 million

The market capitalization of the Companys 371.6 million issued

and outstanding shares at January 20 2010 was $3.9 billion or

$10.58 per share The issued and outstanding shares including

options convertible to common shares at January 20 2010 are

summarized in the following table

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

As at January 20 2010

una ited

Issued and outstanding Common Shares

Securities convertible into Common Shares

Stock Options

11 RESTRUCTURING AND INTEGRATION MATTERS

As described in Note of the Consolidated Financial

Statements on September 232009 the Company acquired

all of the issued and outstanding common shares of ABB an

Australian agri-business The results of the operations of the

acquired subsidiary known as Viterra Australia are included in

the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements commencing

upon acquisition

The total purchase price of $1421.6 million consisted of

78296645 common shares and/or CDIs the maximum

amountwhich could be issued atan ascribed price of

$8.84 per share for total of $692.1 million plus $703.4 million

of cash representing an aggregate value of $1395.5 million

plus transaction costs of $26.1 million paid by the Company

To assistwiththefinancing of the cash portion the Company

10859

316

11175

$774655

29811

29811

290263

371596883

1638306

373235189
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issued 56250000 common shares for proceeds of

$432.0 million net of share issue costs of $18.0 million

The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase

method whereby the purchase consideration will be allocated

to adjustthe carrying value of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed based on their estimated fair values as atthe effective

date of the purchase The excess consideration not allocable to

the assets and liabilities orto identifiable intangible assets will

be reflected as goodwill

Integration of the two companies is well underway The change

of control was effectively executed on September 24 2009

The high level organization and leadership structures

were implemented on September 28 2009 with further

announcementsforthe key Grain Finance and Global Enabling

functions announced and implemented on October 62009

Since then the focus has turned to formal integration planning

including the development of detailed operating models

synergy identification and comprehensive l2to 18 month

integration program plans These integration plans detail how

each integration team will deploy their target operating model

achieve their full synergy run rate in line with due diligence

targets and complete other key integration activities The next

quarterly MDA will provide additional information around

key milestones from the integration process

On October 20 2009 ABB and its subsidiary businesses

adopted the name Viterra The Company has begun re

branding site locations business names and various other

communications tools The legal name change will be part

of the integration effort Employees are now part of Viterra

Some product brands will remain in place pending further

research Full execution of the re-branding initiative will take

approximately 6to 12 months

Shareholders should benefit from estimated gross synergies of

approximately $30.0 million with the full annualized benefitto

be delivered in fiscal 2012 These synergies will be generated

primarily through revenue and cost efficiency measurements

over the next l2to 18 months and detailed implementation

plans are currently being finalized to achieve these

targeted synergies

Integration costs related to the ABB acquisition expensed

forthe current quarter were $2.3 million These costs relate

primarily to travel consulting and advisoryfees branding

and other integration costs incurred directly by the Company

Integration costs including severance and closure costs

incurred by or related to ABB have already been accrued

on the balance sheet as part of the acquisition price of ABB

shares in accordance with the purchase method of accounting

with corresponding increase in goodwill On pre-tax basis

estimated total net integration costs for both entities which

include share issuance costs and refinancing costs are

about$113.2 million of which about$71.5 million has already

been incurred including $19.6 million of costs accrued and

outstanding These costs are financed by free cash flow

12 OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

12.1 Pension Plans

At October 312009 the market value of the assets of the

Companys various defined benefit plans exceeded the

accrued benefit obligations valued on an ongoing basis for

accounting purposes The Company reported net defined

pension asset of $86.5 million at October 31 2009 compared

to $47.8 million at October 31 2008 The Company made

$28.1 million in cash payments related to its employee future

benefits for the 12-month period ended October 312009

consisting of cash contributed to its funded pension plans its

defined contribution plans its multi-employer pension plan and

directly to beneficiaries for other plan benefits

The Company reported total pension benefit income of

$23.6 million for the 12 months ended October 312009

comparedto$20.8millionforfiscal2008.AreduCtiOn in

corporate bond rates that are used to value future pension

obligations resulted in an increase in the value of the

Companys pension obligations Under pension accounting

rules the increase in obligation is capitalized on the balance

sheet and amortized into expense overfuture periods However

the increased obligations also cause the reduction of valuation

reserves held againstthe Companys pension assets and those

reductions are recognized immediately into income see Note

2Oa of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following table compares the values of pension plan

assets and liabilities for accounting purposes to the estimated

values for pension funding purposes solvency basis at

October31 2009

Accounting Solvency

in thousands Basis Funding

Market value of pension assets 559994 559994

Pension liabilities $530373 602269

Funded status surplus deficit 29621 42275

Unamortized accounting differences 56902

Consolidated accrued benefit asset 86523

Based on current estimatesthe Company has an $86.5 million

accrued benefit asset net of valuation allowance in its plans for

accounting purposes However from solvency perspective

for pension funding purposesthe plans had combined

deficit of $42.3 million as at October31 2009 The Company

funds its defined benefit pension plans in accordance with

actuarially determined amounts based on federal pension

regulations Management currently estimates quarterly

payments of $2.5 million in 2010 down from quarterly payments

of $5.6 million in 2009 The decrease in payments is the result of

funding relief provided in 2009 that allows pension plan deficits

to be funded over 10-year period if letter of credit is provided

to guarantee payment As resultthe Company has been

required to provide letters of credit of $12.8 million subsequent

to the Companys year end in 2009 Funding requirements may

increase or decrease depending upon future actuarial

valuations The Companys projection is based on funding the

increase in plan deficits over 10-year period and these

payments may change in the future to reflectformal valuations

as at December 31 2009 which the Company expects to

receive in April 2010 Note 20a of the Consolidated Financial

Statements for October 31 2009 describes in detail the

Companys pension plan obligations

12.2 Viterra Financial

Viterra FinancialTM provides grain and oilseed producers with

unsecured working capitalfinancingthrough Canadian

chartered bank to purchase the Companys fertilizer crop

protection products seed and equipment Outstanding credit

was $528.1 million at October 31 2009 compared to

$487.7 million at October 31 2008 Over 90% of the current

48

outstanding credit relates to Viterra FinancialtMs highest credit

rating categories The Company indemnifies the bank for 50%

offuture losses under Viterra FinanciallM to maximum limit of

5% of the aggregate qualified portfolio balance The Companys

aggregate indemnity will vary at any given time with the size

of the underlying portfolio As at October 31 2009 Viterra has

provided $3.0 million for actual and future expected losses

Viterra FinancialTM also provides livestock producers with

secured and unsecured financing through Canadian chartered

bankto purchase feeder cattle and related feed inputs under

terms that do not require payment until the livestock are sold

Viterra FinanciallM approved $94.7 million compared to

$93.4 million in fiscal 2008 in credit applications for Viterras

Feed Products customers of which these customers had

drawn $35.8 million at October 31 2009 October 31 2008

$31.9 million The Company has indemnified the bank for

aggregate credit losses of up to $8.3 million based on the first

20% to 33% of new credit issued on an individual account as

well as for credit losses shared on an equal basis of up to

5% of the aggregate qualified portfolio balance The Companys

aggregate indemnity will vary at any given time with the

credit rating of underlying accounts and the aggregate credit

outstanding As at October 31 2009 the Company had provided

about$0.2 million for actual and expected future losses

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSAC11ONS

The Company hastransactions with related parties in the

normal course of business measured at exchange amounts

which are comparable to commercial rates and terms Related

parties include investees Prince Rupert Grain and The Puratone

Corporation as well as grain pools operated bythe Company

Total sales to related parties were $15.4 million compared

to $18.9 million in 2008 Total purchases from related parties

were $7.2 million compared to $11.6 million in 2008 As at

October 31 2009 accounts receivable from related parties

totalled $24.0 million compared to $24.9 million in 2008

Accounts payable to related parties totalled $5.7 million

in 2008 this numberwas $22.0 million

CRmCALACCOUNTNG ES11MATES

In preparing the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements

management is required to make estimates assumptions



and judgments as to the outcome of future events that might

affect reported assets liabilities revenues and expenses

and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities Such

assessments are made using the best information available to

management atthe time Although management reviews its

estimates on an ongoing basis actual results may differfrom

these estimates as confirming events occur The following is

an analysis of the critical accounting estimates that depend

most heavily on such management estimates assumptions and

judgments any changes which may have material impact on

the Companysfinancial condition or results of operations For

more information about certain assumptions and risks that

might affectthese estimates assumptions and judgments

refer to Section 20 Forward-Looking Information

14.1 Valuation of Long-Lived Assets and

Asset Impairment

Goodwill is not amortized but is assessed for impairment at

the business unit level at least annually or whenever events or

changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount

may not be recoverable Potential goodwill impairment is

identified by comparing the fair value of business unit

estimated using discounted cash flows to its carrying value

Should the carrying value exceed the assessed fair value of

the business unit the goodwill impairmentwould result in

reduction in the carrying value of goodwill on the balance

sheet and the recognition of non-cash impairment charge in

the Consolidated Statements of Earnings While the Company

believes that all of its estimates are reasonable there exists

inherent uncertainties that management may not be able

to control As result the Company is unable to reasonably

quantifythe changes in its overall financial performance if it

had used different assumptions and it cannot predict whether

an eventthattriggers impairment will occur when it will occur

or how it will affect the asset values reported

The Company periodically assesses the recoverability of

values assigned to long-lived assets after considering potential

impairment indicated by such factors as business and market

trends future prospects current market value and other

economic factors In performing its review of recoverability

management estimates the future cash flows expected to

resultfrom the use of the asset and its eventual disposition

If the sum of the expected future cash flows is less than the

carrying value of the asset an impairment loss would be

recognized based on the excess of the carrying value of the

asset overthe fair marketvalue calculated using discounted

future cash flows

14.2 Future Income Taxes

Future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized forthe

future income tax consequences attributable to temporary

differences between the financial statement carrying values

of assets and liabilities and their respective income tax bases

Future income tax assets or liabilities are measured using

enacted or substantively enacted income tax rates expected to

apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary

differences are expected to be recovered or settled The

calculation of current and future income taxes requires

managementto make estimates and assumptions and to

exercise certain amount of judgment concerning the carrying

values of assets and liabilities The current and future income

tax assets and liabilities are also impacted by expectations

about future operating results and the timing of reversal of

temporary differences as well as possible audits of tax filings

by regulatory agencies Management regularly assesses the

Companys ability to realize netfuture income tax assets based

on all relevant information available Changes or differences

in these estimates or assumptions may result in changes to

the current and future income tax assets and liabilities on the

Consolidated Balance Sheets and charge to or recovery of

income tax expense

As at October 31 2009 the Company had loss carryforwards

of approximately$62.6 million compared to $111.3 million at

October 31 2008 These loss carryforwards are available

to reduce income taxes otherwise payable in future years

Of these losses $31.3 million will expire between 2012 and

2029 and $31.3 million associated with Viterra Australia are

not subject to expiry The Companys October 31 2009 loss

carryforwards are associated with its wholly-owned and

less-than-wholly-owned subsidiaries

short-term future income tax asset of$1.2 million and

long-term future tax asset of $17.0 million have been recorded

as at October 312009 in respect of the Companys unutilized

losses valuation allowance of $6.5 million has been recorded

in respect of $25.0 million of losses associated with inactive

less-than-wholly-owned subsidiaries The valuation allowance

represents managements best estimate of the allowance
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necessary tn reflect the future income tax assets related

to losses available for carryforward at an amount that the

Company considers is more likely than not to be realized

143 Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits

Certain estimates and assumptions are used in determining

the Companys defined benefit pension and other post-

employment benefit obligations including the discount rate

the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets and

expected growth rate of health care costs These assumptions

depend on various underlying factors such as economic

conditions investment performance employee demographics

and mortality rates These assumptions may change in the

future and may result in material changes in the pension and

employee benefit plans expense recorded in OGA Changes

in financial market returns and interest rates could also result

in changes to the funding requirements of the Companys

defined benefit pension plans substantial number of the

Companys employees are members of its defined contribution

plans With the exception of the Hourly Employees Retirement

Plan the Companys remaining defined benefit plans cover

closed group of members and all retirees priorto the Companys

conversion to defined contribution plans

For 2009 the discount rate used for calculation of pension

benefit plans was 6.2% 20087.25% and for otherfuture

benefits was 6.0% 20087.25% The expected long-term rate

of return on plan assets for pension benefit plans for 2009 was

5.9% 20086.5% one percentage-point decrease in the

assumed return on plan assets would decrease the pension

income by $5.1 million one percentage-point decrease in

the assumed discount rate would decrease pension income

by$2.1 million and increase the accrued henefitobligation by

$52.4 million and increase the otherfuture benefit expense

by $0.1 million and increase the accrued other future benefit

obligation by $1.0 million one percentage-point increase in

the assumed trend in health care costwould not materially

increase interest costs but would increase the accrued benefit

obligation by $0.3 million The sensitivity of each assumption

has been calculated independently Changes to more than one

assumption simultaneously may amplify or reduce the impact

on the accrued benefit obligations or benefit plan expenses

14.4 Environmental Matters

The Companys other long-term liabilities include the ARO

associated with Western Co-operative Fertilizer Ltds Westco
fertilizer manufacturing and processing plants which

discontinued operations in 1987 The Company provided for site

restoration and reclamation costs related to former production

facilities in Calgary and Medicine Hat Alberta and associated

phosphogypsum stacks and certain closed landfills The period

to complete the reclamation project is estimated to be about nine

years from the current date and management believes thatthe

ARO is adequate The ARO was $17.5 million at October 312009

while at October 312008 the ARO was $22.1 million

14.5 Purchase Price Allocation and Goodwill

Acquisition oIABB

As described in more detail in Section 11 Restructuring and

Integration Matters and in Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements the Company has recorded an amount of

$374.1 million in respect of goodwill and intangible assets

relating to the acquisition of ABB As the acquisition has

recently been completed the preliminary purchase price

allocation between the assets and liabilities acquired including

goodwill and intangibles will be finalized in subsequent period

including allocation of goodwill by segment and determination

of goodwill deductible fortax purposes The determination and

allocation of the purchase price paid for ABB will be based on

managements best estimates In determining the fair value of

property plant and equipment goodwill and intangibles the

Company is using the work of third-party valuation experts

The fair value of the other assets liabilities and obligations

assumed on the purchase will be based on estimated market

values Liabilities relating to the restructuring and integration of

ABBs operations included estimated severance and employee-

related costs professional fees and other related costs

OtiserAcquisitions

As described in more detail in Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements the Company has recorded an amount

of $28.5 million in respect of goodwill and intangible assets

relating to other acquisitions that occurred in fiscal 2009 Some

of these acquisitions have recently been completed and the

preliminary purchase price allocation between the assets and

liabilities acquired including goodwill and intangibles will

be finalized in subsequent period The determination and

allocation of the purchase prices paid were and will be based
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on managements best estimates The fairvalue of the other

assets liabilities and obligations assumed on the purchases

were and will be based on estimated marketvalues

Agricore United

In fiscal 2009 management determined thatthe accrual for

restructuring costs was $5.0 million more than necessary

mainly due to lower-than-expected costs of disposal for certain

assets The after-tax impact of this adjustmentto the purchase

price allocation was $3.4 million and resulted in corresponding

reduction in goodwill recorded for the AU acquisition

Management believes thatthe remaining estimates used for

the purchase price allocation are reasonable however actual

results could differ as confirming events occur which could

require future adjustments to goodwill and related accruals

15 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

15.1 Inventories

Effective November 12008 the Company adopted the

Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants CICA
Handbook Section 3031 Inventories This adoption resulted in

additional disclosures as provided in Note of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

15.2 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Effective November 12008 the Company adopted the CICA

Handbook Section 3064 Goodwill and Intangibles This

adoption had no material impact to the Company

15.3 Fair Value Hierarchy and Liquidity Risk Disclosure

In June 2009the CICA issued an amendmentto Section 3862

to provide improvements to fair value and liquidity risk

disclosures The amendment applies to the Companys fiscal

year ending October 31 2009 This adoption resulted in

additional disclosures as provided in Note 2p and 23 of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

15 FUTURE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

15.1 International Financial Reporting Standards

In February 2008 the Accounting Standards Board AcSB
announced that 2011 is the change over date for publicly

accountable enterprises to replace Canadian GAAP with

International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS The

date relates to interim and annual financial statementsfor

fiscal years beginning on or after January 12011 which will be

applicable for Viterras first quarter of fiscal 2012 Viterra will

also be required to provide IFRS comparative information for

the previous fiscal period

Viterra has undertaken project to assess the potential impacts

of its transition to IFRS detailed project plan was developed

and working teams formed to ensure compliance with the new

standards steering committee of senior individuals from

Finance Treasury Legal Investor Relations and Information

Technology has been established to monitor progress and review

and approve recommendations from the working teams

Quarterly IFRS updates are provided to the Audit Committee of

the Board of Directors

Viterra has committed the appropriate resources and

training to ensure the Company is compliant by the transition

date Part of the work that will be completed will include an

assessment of the impactto accountingfinancial reporting

information technology systems as well as certain contractual

arrangements The project has been broken down into four

key phases including Project Initiation and Initial Assessment

Detailed Assessment Design and Execution

Viterra has completed both the Initial and Detailed Assessment

phases of its project plan Key segments of these phases

included determining accounting policy and disclosure

changes thatwill be required upon transition to IFRS as well

as the exemptions relating to IFRS First-time Adoption of

International Financial Reporting Standards

Set out below is the significant difference between GAAP

and IFRSthatthe Company has currently identified Viterra

continues to monitor standards development as issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board and as standards

change or are issued there may be additional impacts on

Viterras assessment In addition Viterra may identify

additional differences or experience changes in its

business that may have an impact on the assessment

material item was identified for employee benefits based on

differences between GAAP and IFRS relating to the accounting

for defined benefit pension plans IERS has several technical

differencesfrom current GAAP accounting for defined benefit

pension plans As well there are several accounting policy

choices that are available under IFRS for pension accounting
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including choice that is similar to what the Company currently

employs under GAAP Compared to GAAf IFRS introduces

differences in the calculation of the expected future benefit

the liabilityfor minimum funding requirements the valuation

allowance and the interaction thereof

All other identified differences are considered unlikely to

have significant impact on Viterras Consolidated Financial

Statements These differences include

Presentation and Disclosure

Business Combinations

Impairment

Provisions

Share-based Payments

Leases

Foreign Currency Translation

Income Taxes

Viterra has begun the Design phase of its conversion

project Work has focused on areas assessed in the Detailed

Assessment phase to have the greatest impact on results

disclosures and systems Key segments of this phase will

include the design of implementation plansfor all work streams

affected by IFRS and drafting financial statements and notes

to comply with IFRS The Company will also continue to assess

the impact of the transition on information technology and data

systems and on internal controls This phase also includes

ongoing communication and training

17 RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Viterra faces certain risks including weather market credit

foreign exchange and interest rate risk which can impact its

financial performance For additional information on other

general business and environmental risks readers should

review the 2009 Annual Information Form

17.1 Governance and Oversight

Viterras Risk Management Committee the Committee is

senior management committee responsible for assessing

enterprise risks and implementing strategies to reduce the

Companys exposure The Committee meets regularlyto assess

risks and direct risk mitigation activities Regular reports are

provided to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

17.2 Weather Risk

As an agri-business company Viterras most significant risk

is the weather The effect of weather conditions on crop

quality and production volumes present significant operating

and financial risk to Viterras Grain Handling and Marketing

segment Volumes are key driver of earnings for Viterras

grain operations Fixed costs in Viterras primary elevator

system represent approximately 75% to 80% of total costs and

as result reduced volume and inventoryturns negatively

impactthe margin/earnings pertonne achievable

Crop quality is also an importantfactor because the majority of

the higher quality grains and oilseeds move into export position

accordingly Viterra generates margins at each stage of its

value chain through to its port terminals

Grains destined for domestic markets on average generate lower

margins particularly feed grains which require little processing

and handling Thereforethe mix of grains and oilseeds that

Viterra manages in any given year is an importantfactor

affecting margins and earnings Viterra offers number of

programs to its primary customers including drying and blending

opportunities in an attempt to mitigate some of the quality risk

The level and mix of agri-products sales are also dependent on

weather Weather and moisture levels are determining factor

in crop selection by producers at seeding time the variety of

seed sown and the amount of proprietary seed purchased

Crop selection decisions also impactthe amount of fertilizer

and crop protection products Viterra sells since certain crops

require significantly more inputs than others During the

growing season weather determines the type and amount

of agri-products applied to the land Viterras Agri-products

segment works closely with its Grain Handling and Marketing

segmentto anticipate producers intentions for seeding in order

to manage agri-products inventories appropriately

Viterras elevators and agri-products distribution facilities in

Canada are geographically dispersed throughout the Prairie

Provinces diversifying the Companys exposure to localized

growing conditions In Australia the majority of the facilities

are located in South Australia

Viterra has overthe last number of years obtained grain volume

insurance to provide degree of protection to the cash flow of

the organization from significant declines in grain volumes
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resulting from drought or other weather-related events For 2009

the Company had $60.0 million of coverage in place for Canadian

exposure and placed $27.0 million AUD of coverage for Australian

exposure in June 2009 contingent on the successful acquisition

of ABB For 2010 the Company has 46.5% of the $60.0 million of

Canadian coverage in place under multi-year program The

Company intends to place additional coverage for 2010

17.3 Market Risk

significant portion of Viterras sales are derived from its

Grain Handling and Marketing segment Earnings forthis

segment fluctuate based on the volume of grain handled and

the margins earned on the purchase and sale of open market

grains In the case of Board grains Viterra earns CWB storage

and handling tariffs these are established independently of the

market price for grain

CWB grains accounted for about 50.8% of total grain received

by Viterra in 2009 on par with the 51.4% in fiscal 2008 For

these grains the Companys risks are reduced in part through

the terms of formal legal arrangements between Viterra and

the CWB The arrangements provide forfull reimbursement of

the price paid to producers for grain as well as certain costs

incurred by Viterra Adverse impacts can be experienced by

Viterra whereby handling of Board grain results in loss of

grade or in the case of the CWBs tendering program Viterra

fails to meetthe requirements underthe tendering contract

Viterra employs grain grading handling procedures and quality

testing across its value chain to help mitigate these risks

For non-Board or open marketgrains and oilseeds purchased

by Viterra as well as Australian grains and oilseeds the

Company is exposed to the risk of movement in price between

the time the grain is purchased and when it is sold Financial

risk management activities commonly referred to as hedging

where such opportunities exist can reduce this risk Hedging

is the placing in the futures market of position opposite to one

held in the cash market in order to reduce the risk of financial

loss from an adverse price change In so doing the Company

assumes basis risk to the extent the futures market and the

cash market do not change by directly equivalent amounts

Where exchange-traded futures for particular commodity are

not available or where the liquidity of particular exchange-

traded future is volatile Viterra develops cross-hedges using

futures contracts for similar or related products

Viterra employs Commodity Risk Management Policy in

which position limits are used to limit the Companys exposure

to changes in commodity prices Position limits set outthe

amount of market exposure the Company is willing to tolerate

by commodity The Policy defines these tolerance levels based

on the size of the original position liquidity in the futures market

and number of otherfactors The Boards Audit Committee

sets various authorization limits

The Company also utilizesforward sales contracts to hedge

the ownership of grain oilseeds and special crops forward

purchase contracts to fix the costs of supply of livestock

feed inputs and prepaid purchases of agri-products inputs

with future delivery dates The costs associated with these

instruments are included in the cost of sales forthe affected

business segment

In Australia Wheat Exports Australia administers scheme

underwhich all exporters of wheat must be accredited

Viterras Australian operations are accredited To maintain its

accreditation Viterra must provide access to its port services

to other exporters pursuant to access arrangements approved

by the ACCC

Although the majority of Viterras Grain Handling and Marketing

revenue is volume-driven rather than price-driven grain and

oilseed prices are chief determinant of farm income levels

and also influence producers decisions regarding total seeded

acreage and the types of crops grown Such factors affect

Viterras sales mix handling volumes and the level of

Agri-products sales

17.4 CreditRisk

Viterra is exposed to credit risk in connection with credit

provided to its customers including credit provided on agri

products purchases through third party Credit defaults by

Viterras customers could have material adverse effect on

Viterras financial results and financial condition Viterra shares

responsibility for defaulted accounts and loan losses with

Canadian chartered bank through Viterra FinancialTM Viterras

average credit losses since combining its new credit programs

in February 2008 were less than 0.2% of sales

For credit provided through Viterra FinancialTM the Company

has limited its exposure to credit risk by limiting the financial

institutions recourse against the Company for indemnification
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of losses incurred on certain credit sales Additionally

exposure to credit risk is managed through rigorous analysis

of outstanding positions payment and loss history and ongoing

credit reviews of all significant contracts

Viterra regularly evaluates its counterparty risk with respect

to its relationships with global customers and employs risk

management practices to manage those relationships The

Company controls its exposure to counterparty risk through

credit analysis and approvals credit limits and monitoring

procedures Changes in the economic political and market

conditions may impact counterparty risk which could have

material financial impact

17.5 Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company undertakes certain transactions denominated

in foreign currencies and as result foreign currency

exposures arise The Company is exposed to foreign

exchange risk on financial commodity contracts which are

denominated in foreign currencies and on its investment in

foreign subsidiaries The Company uses derivative financial

instruments such as foreign currencyforward contracts and

futures contracts and options to limit exposures to changes in

foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities as well as

anticipated transactions

During the year the Company entered into series of derivative

contracts in connection with its offerto acquire ABB The

Company entered into option arrangements in order to limit

exposure to change in the AUD These derivatives were used

to mitigate the risk of economic loss arising from changes in the

value of the AUD compared to the Canadian dollar between the

announcement of the acquisition and the expected closing date

The acquisition of ABB has exposed the Companyto the impact

of changes in the AJD to the Canadian dollar exchange rate on

its net investment in Viterra Australia For accounting purposes

ABB is considered to be self-sustaining entity and therefore

the impact of changes in the exchange rate will be recognized in

the Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss section of

the Companys Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

To the extentthatthe Company has notfully hedged its foreign

exchange risks fluctuation of the Canadian dollar against the

USD AUD or other relevant currencies could have material

effect on Viterrasfinancial results

176 Interest Rate Risk

The Companys exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily

to the Companys debt obligations The Company manages

interest rate risk and currency risk on borrowings by using

combination of cash instruments forward contracts and

mixture of fixed and floating rates The Company has entered

into interest rate swaps to manage variable interest rates

associated with portion of the Companys debt portfolio The

Company uses hedge accounting for interest rate swaps used

to mitigate the impact of variable rates on long-term debt

177 Other Risks

To address consumer awareness and concern over food

safety and traceability Viterra has established number

of processes to track and identify crops at every stage of

production from seed to customer delivery Its processes meet

international standards including HACCP the internationally

recognized system of quality control for food safety and

ISO 9000 certification for the processing and export of grains

oilseeds and special crops ISO 90012000 registration and

HACCP compliance are verified by third-party audits As

atOctober3l2009 all of the Companys portterminals

except Prince RupertGrainmetthe ISO 9001 2000 Ouality

Management Standard and ISO 220002005 HACCP Food Safety

Standard All of the Companys Thunder Bay Terminals and

are also GMPB2 Good Manufacturing Practices certified

The Companys country elevator network in North America

consists of 85 grain facilities which includes two jointventure

country facilities and nine processing facilities which are

registered ISO 90012000 and are HACCP compliant In

addition the Quality Control department in the Companys

offices in Regina is ISO 90012000 registered The Companys

six Canadian feed mills and pre-mixfacilities comply with all

federal regulations and are HACCP certified or compliant In

addition Canadian operations are inspected by the Canadian

Food Inspection Agency CFIA and U.S feed mills are

inspected by state and federal agencies in the United States

Viterras grain handling and malt operations in Australia are

certified to the ISO 22000 HACCP standards The ISO 90012000

and ISO 90012008 Quality Management System accreditations

cover Viterras Australia and New Zealand broader grain

handling malting operations and feed manufacturing
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respectively As well these accreditations cover these

operations respective associated functions

Consumer perceptions related to food safety are an increasing

industry risk The general public is demanding legislative

response to the perceived threat of food safety and there is

high probability that the U.S will introduce new legislation that

may impact the business

In September 2009 the FDA announced zero tolerance policy

for salmonella in all Canadian canola meal and has since

been rejecting or holding some cars for inspection Viterra is

working with the Canola Council of Canada and other industry

participants to find resolution to this issue with the FDA

detailed commentary on risk factors relating to the Company

and its business is set forth in the Companys current Annual

Information Form Also see Section 21 Additional Information

18 NON-GAAP MEASURES

EBITDA earnings before interest taxes amortization

gain loss on disposal of assets integration expenses net

foreign exchange gain on acquisition and recovery of pension

settlement and EBIT earnings before interest taxes gain

loss on disposal of assets netforeign exchange gain on

acquisition integration expenses and recovery of pension

settlement are non-GAAP measures Those items excluded

in the determination of EBITDA and EBIT represent items

that are non-cash in nature income taxesfinancing charges

or are otherwise not considered to be in the ordinary course

of business These measures are intended to provide further

insight with respect to Viterras financial results and to

supplement its information on earnings losses as

determined in accordance with GAAP

EBITDA is used by management to assess the cash generated

by operations and EBIT is measure of earnings from

operations prior to financing costs and taxes Both measures

also provide important management information concerning

business segment performance since the Company does not

allocate financing charges income taxes or other excluded

items to these individual segments

Total debt net of cash and cash equivalents is provided to

assist investors and is used by management in assessing the

Companys liquidity position and to monitor how much debtthe

Company has aftertaking into account its liquid assets such

as cash and cash equivalents Such measures should not be

used in isolation of or as substitute for current liabilities

short-term borrowings or long-term debt as measure of the

Companys indebtedness

Cash flow provided by operations is the cash from or used

in operating activities excluding non-cash working capital

changes Viterra uses cash flow provided by operations and

cash flow provided by operations per share as financial

measure for the evaluation of
liquidity Management believes

that excluding the seasonal swings of non-cash working capital

assists their evaluation of long-term liquidity

Free cash flow is cash flow provided by operations prior

to any changes in non-cash working capital net of capital

expenditures excluding business acquisitions Free cash

flow is used by management to assess liquidity and financial

strength This measurement is also useful as an indicator of

the Companys ability to service its debt meet other payment

obligations and make strategic investments Readers should be

aware that free cash flow does not represent residual cash flow

available for discretionary expenditures

These non-GAAP measures should not be considered in

isolation of or as substitute for GAAP measures such

as net earnings loss as an indicator of the Companys

profitability and operating performance or ii cash flow from

or used in operations as measure of the Companys ability to

generate cash Such measures do not have any standardized

meanings prescribed by Canadian GAAP and are therefore

unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by

other corporations
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Reconciliations of each of these terms are provided in the table below

NON-GAAP TERMS RECONCILIATIONS AND CALCULATIONS

thousands except percentages and ratios

For the Twelve Months Ended October31

Gross
profit

and net revenues from services

Operating general and administrative expenses

EBITDA

Amortization

EB IT

Net earnings

Amortization

Total debt

Cash and short-term investments

Bank indebtedness

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Debt Net of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total equity

Total capital DI

Total Debt-to-Capital

Long-Terra Debt-to-Capital

849963 1026831

526265

323698 532604

109141

214557 425772

113127 288282

109141 106832

1265435

1574714

1033669

594

$1033075

541639

3508919

5083633

4470

10963

70280

$2422712

952612

2.54

17769

176868

32038

208906

2309

211215

175155

2309

1563

3356

2957

11022

40557

24105

11577

8.8pt

3-6 pt

2009 2008

Better

Worse

Non-cash financing expenses 6033

Recovery of pension settlement

Employee future benefits 22875

Equity loss of significantly influenced companies 59

Future income tax provision 29723

Net foreign exchange gain on acquisition 24105

Loss orr disposal of assets 10314

Otheritems 2124

Cash flow prior to working capital changes 223423

Property plant
and equipment expenditLires 75283

Free Cash Flow 148140

AT OCTOBER31

Current assets 3133149

Current liabilities 1405812

Current Ratio Current Assets/Current Liabilities 2.23

Short-term borrowings 10 291128

Long-term debt due within one year 11 18151

Long-term debt 11

2148

456266 232843

19700

400683 252543

710437

453200

0.31 pt

273359

14703 3448

595385 670050

627857 946857

669665 364004

61

669010 364065

582792

$2200725 $1308194

$2828582 2255051

lircireles results trrurr terra Australia operarisrrs trom 5eprerrrber 24 xux to October 31 zouu

31.0% 22.2%

25.2% 21.6%
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19 EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE AND PROCEDURES

Management including the President and Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer has evaluated the design and

effectiveness of Viterras disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in National Instrument 52-109 of the Canadian

Securities Administrators as of October 31 2009 Management

has concluded that as of October 31 2009 Viterras disclosure

controls and procedures are designed and operating effectively

to provide reasonable assurance that material information

relating to Viterra and its consolidated subsidiaries and joint

ventures would be made known to them by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report was

being prepared except as noted below in the scope limitation

that exists as result of the purchase of ABB

Management including the President and Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer has also evaluated the

design and effectiveness of Viterras internal controls over

financial reporting as defined in National Instrument

52-109 of the Canadian Securities Administrators as of

October 31 2009 Management has concluded that as of

October 31 2009 Viterras internal controls overfinancial

reporting are designed and operating effectively to provide

reasonable assurance that material information relating to

Viterra and its consolidated subsidiaries and jointventures

would be made known to them by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report was being

prepared except as noted below in the scope limitation that

exists as result of the purchase of ABB Viterras management

has used the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSOframeworkto evaluate the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting It should be noted that all internal control systems

no matter howwell designed have inherent limitations

Therefore even those systems determined to be effective can

provide only reasonable assurance with respectto financial

statement preparation and presentation

There have been no other changes in the Companys internal

control overfinancial reporting that occurred during the

year except as noted in the scope limitation below that have

materially affected or are reasonably likelyto materially affect

the Companys internal controls over financial reporting

Limitation on scope of design

Management has limited the scope of design of our disclosure

controls and procedures and internal controls overfinancial

reporting to exclude controls policies and procedures ofABB

and its subsidiaries The chart below presents the summary

financial information of ABB

Balance Sheet Data

millions
At October 31 2009

The scope limitation is in accordance with National Instrument

52-1093.31bwhich allows an issuerto limit its design of

disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls over

financial reporting to exclude controls policies and procedures

of an acquired company not more than 365 days before the end

of the financial period to which the certificate relates

20 FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements iii this Managements Discussion

and Analysis are forward-looking statements and reflect

Viterras expectations regarding future results of operations

financial condition and achievements All statements that

address activities events or developments that Viterra or

its management expects or anticipates will or may occur in

the future including such things as growth of its business

and operations competitive strengths strategic initiatives

planned capital expenditures plans and referencesto future

operations and results critical accounting estimates and

expectations regarding future capital resources and liquidity

of the Company and such matters are forward-looking

statements In addition the words believes intends

anticipates expects estimates plans likely will

may could should would outlook forecast

objective continue orthe negative thereof and words

Current assets

Long-term assets

Current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Income Statement Data

millions

Total revenue

Net income/loss for the period

686.9

1640.7

532.4

1005.9

Five Weeks Ending

October31 2009

139.20

14.3



of similar import may indicate forward-looking statements

Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown

risks uncertainties and other factors that may cause the

actual results performance and achievements of Viterra to

be materially differentfrom any future results performance

and achievements expressed or implied by those forward-

looking statements number of factors could cause actual

results to differ materiallyfrom expectations including but

not limited to those factors discussed underthe heading Risk

Factors in Viterras 2009 Annual Information Form and in the

Companys 2009 Managements Discussion and Analysis

underthe heading Risks and Risk Management adverse

weather conditions political and economic risks changes

in regulation commodity price and market risks employee

relations collective bargaining and third-party relationships

integration risk associated with the merger of Viterra and

ABB and integration risk related to other acquisitions foreign

exchange risk availability of credit and credit costs availability

and cost of water in Australia dependence on key personnel

environmental health and safety risks property and
liability

risks food and agricultural products risks diseases and

other livestock industry risks credit risk commodity trading

risks and reliance on business information systems The

uncertainties and otherfactors include but are not limited

to crop production and crop quality in Western Canada and

South Australia world agricultural commodity prices and

markets producers decisions regarding total seeded acreage

crop selection and utilization levels of farm inputs such as

fertilizer and pesticides changes in the grain handling and

agri-products food processing and feed products competitive

environments including pricing pressures Canadian and

Australian grain export levels changes in government

policy and transportation dereulation international trade

matters global political and economic conditions including

grain subsidy actions and tariffs of the United States and the

European Union current global financial crises and changes in

credit markets and competitive developments in connection

with Viterras grain handling agri-products food processing

feed products and financial products businesses Many of these

risks uncertainties and otherfactors are beyond the control

of the Company All of the forward-looking statements made in

this Managements Discussion and Analysis and the documents

incorporated herein by reference are qualified by these

cautionary statements and the other cautionary statements

and factors contained herein or in documents incorporated by

reference herein and there can be no assurance thatthe actual

developments or results anticipated bythe Company and its

management will be realized or even if substantially realized

that they will have the expected consequences for or effects

on the Company

Although Viterra believes the assumptions inherent in forward-

looking statements are reasonable undue reliance should not

be placed on these statements which only apply as of the date

of this Managements Discussion and Analysis In addition to

other assumptions identified in this Managements Discussion

and Analysis assumptions have been made regarding among

other things

western Canadian and southern Australian crop production

and quality in 2009 and subsequent crop years

the volume and quality of grain held on-farm by producer

customers in North America

movement and sales of Board grains by the CWB

the amount of grains and oilseeds purchased by other

marketers in Australia

demand for and supply of open market grains

movement and sale of grain and grain meal in Australia and

New Zealand particularly in the Australian states of South

Australia Victoria and New South Wales

agricultural commodity prices

demand for oat canola and barley products and the market

share of these products that will be achieved

generalfinancial conditionsforwestern Canadian and

southern Australian agricultural producers

demand for seed grain fertilizer chemicals and other

agri-products

market share of grain deliveries and agri-products sales that

will be achieved byViterra
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extent of customer defaults in connection with credit

provided by Viterra its subsidiaries or Canadian chartered

bank in connection with feed product and

agri-product purchases

ability of the railways to ship grain to port facilities for export

without labour or other service disruptions

demand for oat canola and malt barley products and the

market share of sales of these products that will be achieved

by Viterra

ability to maintain existing customer contracts and

relationships

the
availability

of feed ingredients for livestock

cyclicality of livestock prices

demand for wool and the market share of sales of wool

production that will be achieved by Viterras subsidiaries

in Australia

the impact of competition

environmental and reclamation costs and

the ability to obtain and maintain existing financing

on acceptable terms and currency exchange and

interest rates

The preceding list is not exhaustive of all possible factors All

factors should be considered carefully when making decisions

with respectto Viterra and undue reliance should not be

placed on Viterras forward-looking information

Viterra disclaims any intention or obligation to update or revise

any forward-looking statements whether as result of new

information future developments or otherwise except as

otherwise required by applicable law

21 ADDITIONALINFORMATION

Additional information about Viterra including its most recent

Annual Information Form can be found on the Companys

website atwww.viterra.ca and on SEDAR at www.sedar.com
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Auditors Report to the Shareholders of Viterra Inc

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Viterra Inc as at October 31 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements

of earnings comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows for the years then ended These financial statements are

the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based

on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards Those standards require that we

plan and perform an auditto obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement

An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation

In our opinion these consolidated financial statements presentfairly in all material respects the financial position of the Company

as at October 31 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows forthe years then ended in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

1ottL 4oL uf
Regina Saskatchewan Deloitte Touche LLP

January 202010 Chartered Accountants

Managements Responsibility for Financial Statements

The management of Viterra Inc is responsible for the preparation integrity and fair presentation of the consolidated financial

statements and managements discussion and analysis The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and necessarily include amounts based on managements informed

judgements and estimates Financial information contained in managements discussion and analysis is consistentwith the

consolidated financial statements

To assist management in fulfilling its responsibilities system of internal accounting controls has been established to provide

reasonable assurance thatthe consolidated financial statements are accurate and reliable and that assets are safeguarded

An internal auditfunction evaluates the effectiveness of internal controls and reports its findings to management and the

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors through its Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that managementfulfills its responsibilities for

financial reporting and internal control systems The Audit Committee is composed of independent directors who are not

employees of the Corporation The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the consolidated financial statements and

managements discussion and analysis and recommending them to the Board of Directors for approval To discharge its duties

the Audit Committee meets regularly with management internal audit and Deloitte Touche LLP to discuss internal controls

accounting and financial reporting processes audit plans and financial matters The Audit Committee reports its findings to the

Board of Directors for its consideration in approving the consolidated financial statements for issuance to the shareholders

Deloitte Touche LLP is responsible for auditing the consolidated financial statements and expressing their opinion thereon and

their report is presented separately The external auditors have full and free access to and meet regularly with management

and the Audit Committee

Mayo Schmidt Rex McLennan

President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

January2l2010
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

in thousands

As at October 312009 October3l2008

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash 165200 183536

Short-term investments 868469 486129

Accounts receivable 1004674 786504

Inventories Note 960896 816158

Prepaid expenses and deposits 89768 91183

Future income taxesNote 14 44142 59202

3133149 2422712

Investments Note 9706 7645

Property Plant and Equipment Note 2411105 1154859

Other Long-Term Assets Note 118025 69238

Intangible Assets Note 42766 22133

Goodwill 699974 300121

Future Income Taxes Note 14 8023 2673

6422748 $3979381

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Bank indebtedness 594 655

Short-term borrowings Note 10 291128 17769

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1095366 919485

Long-term debt due within one year Note 11 18151 14703

Future income taxes Note 14 573

1405812 952612

Long-Term Debt Note 11 1265435 595385

Other Long-Term Liabilities Note 12 72471 64183

Future Income Taxes Note 14 170111 166476

2913829 1778656

Shareholders Equity

Retained earnings 425741 325911

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss Note 15 54216 9766

479957 316145

Share capital Note 16 3025486 1883336

Contributed
surplus 3476 1244

3508919 2200725

6422748 3979381

Commitments contingencies and guarantees Note 22

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Thomas Birks Thomas Chambers

Director Director
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings

in thousands

For the Year Ended October31 2009 October31 2008

Sales and other operating revenues 6635572 6777566

Cost of sales excluding amortization see Note 5785609 5750735

Gross profit and net revenues from services 849963 1026831

Operating general and administrative expenses 526265 1494227

323698 532604

Amortization 109141 1068321

214557 425772

Gain loss on disposal of assets 10314 1263

Integration expenses 10191 14622

Net foreign exchange gain on acquisition Note 23 24105

Recovery of pension settlement Note 20 3356

Financing expenses Note 211 61163 37785

156994 377984

Provision for corporate income taxes Note 14

Current 14144 19422

Future 29723 70280

Netearnings 113127 288282

Basic and diluted earnings per share Note 17 0.45 131

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

in thousands

For the Year Ended October 31 2009 October31 2008

Netearnings 113127 288282

Other comprehensive income loss

Realized gain on dedesignated hedged contracts included in net earnings

net of tax of $891 2008 $1675 2080 3057

Unrealized gain loss on cash flow hedges net of tax of $12135 2008 $5110 7337 12397

Realized loss on cash flow hedges net of tax of $1935 2008 $1202 4264 391

Unrealized loss on available for sale assets net of tax of $812008 $25 48 171

Unrealized effect of foreign currency translation of foreign operations 54509 1720

Other comprehensive income loss 63982 16954

Comprehensive income 177109 271328
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

in thousands

Accumulated

Other Retained Total

Share Contributed Comprehensive Earnings Shareholders

________________
Capital Surplus Income Loss Deficit Equity

Notel6 Notel5

As at October 31 2007 1422843 323 1029 50426 1474621

Accounting policy change

Unrealized gain on dedesignatod hedged contracts

netoftaxof$2798 5946 5946

Unrealized gain on available for sale assets

netoftaxof$41 213 213

Livestock receivables net of tax of $36 76 76
Debt acquisition costs using

effective interest method

netoftaxof$60 126 126

Share capital issued 460493 460493

Options exercised 14 14
Stock-based compensation 935 935

Other comprehensive income loss

Realized
gain on dedesignated hedged contracts net of

taxof $1675 3057 3057

Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges net of tax of $5110 12397 12397

Realized loss on cash flow hedges net of tax of $202 391 391

Unrealized loss on available for sale assets net of tax of $25 171 171

Unrealized effect of foreign currency translation of

foreign operations 1720 1720

Future income taxes adjustment 51 51

Future income taxes share issuance costs 6070 6070

Share issuance costs 18968 18968

Netearningsfortheyear 288282 288282

As at October3l2008 $1883336 $1244 9766 $325911 $2200725

Share
capital issued 1142150 1142150

Options exercised

Stock-based compensation 2233 2233

Other comprehensive income loss

Realized
gain on dedesignated hedged contracts

netof taxof $891 2080 2080
Unrealized

gain on cash flow hedges net of tax of $2135 7337 7337

Realized loss on cash flow hedges net of tax of $1935 4264 4264

Unrealized loss on available for sale assets net of tax of $8 48 48
Unrealized effect of foreign currency translation of

foreign operations 54509 54509

Future income taxes share issuance costs 5171 5171

Share issuance costs 18468 18468

Netearningsfortheyear 113127 113127

As at October 31 2009 3025486 3476 54216 425741 3508919
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

Cash From Used in Operating Activities

Net earnings

Adjustments for items not involving cash and/or operations

Amortization

Future income tax provision Note 14

Equity loss gain of significantly influenced companies Note

Recovery of pension settlement Note 20

Employee future benefits Note 20

Non-cash financing expenses Note 21

Loss gain on disposal of assets

Net foreign exchange gain on acquisition Note 23

Other_items _______

Adjustments for items not involving cash

Changes in non-cash working capital items

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Changes in non-cash working capital

Cash from operating activities

Cash From Used in Financing Activities

Proceeds from long-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt

Repayment of short-term borrowings

Repayment of other long-term liabilities net

Increase in share capital Note 16

Share issuance costs

Debt financing cost
_______

Cash from financing activities

Cash From Used in Investing Activities

Property plant and equipment expenditures

Proceeds on sale of property plant and equipment

Business acquisitions Note

Net foreign exchange gain on acquisition Note 23

Decrease in cash in trust

Increase in investments

Increase in other long-term assets

Increase in intangible assets

Cash used in investing activities

______________

increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year

Impact on Cash of Unrealized Effect of Foreign Currency Translation of

Foreign Operations

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year

Cash and cash equivalents consist of

Supplemental disclosure of cash paid during the year from operations

lnterestpaid

Income taxes paid

in thousands

For the Year Ended October 31 2009 October31 2008

113127 288262

109141

29723

59

22875

6033

10314

24105

2124

110296

223423

106832

70280

10963

3356

19918

4470

1263

24

167984

456266

136654

142810

69666

24142

233940

457363

283250

19547

169592

39340

172545

283721

400925

18212

23737

819

450007

18468

11738

777958

299953

4979

338519

2615

460479

18971

7553

387795

75283 555B3

4201 5333

814030 31756

24105

16710

69

1519

9479

870486 66883

364835 604633

669010 64150

770 227

1033075 669010

Cash 165200 183536

Short-term investments 868469 486129

Bank indebtedness 594 655

1033075 669010

58429

17637

61646

16562
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Viterra Inc the Company is publicly traded vertically

integrated international agri-business Business operations

include six reporting segments Grain Handling and Marketing

Agri-products Food Processing Feed Products Financial

Products and Corporate

On September 23 2009 the Company acquired ABB Grain Ltd

ABB an Australian agri-business The results of operations

ofABB are included in the Companys consolidated financial

statements commencing upon acquisition The subsidiary

including its subsidiaries and its direct parent holding company

is referred to herein as Viterra Australia Note

The Grain Handling and Marketing segment includes grain

storage facilities joint venture grain facilities and processing

plants strategically located in the prime agricultural growing

regions of North America Australia and New Zealand This

segment also includes wholly owned port terminal facilities

located in Canada and Australia Activity in this segment

consists of the collection of grain through the Companys primary

storage system shipping to inland or port terminals cleaning of

grain to meet regulatory specifications and sales to domestic

or export markets Earnings are volume driven Revenue is also

derived through grain handling blending storage and other

ancillary services as well as the sale of byproducts

The Agri-products segment includes an ownership interest in

fertilizer manufacturer fertilizer distribution and network of

retail locations Agri-products sales lines include fertilizer crop

protection products seed and seed treatments equipment

general merchandise wool and livestock

The Food Processing segment in North America includes

the manufacturing and marketing of value-added products

associated with oats canola and malt barley for domestic and

export markets At Viterra Australia this segment is comprised

of Joe White Maltings which includes malting plants positioned

across Australia

The Feed Products segment in North America includes

activities relating to formulating and manufacturing feed

products atfeed mills and pre-mixfacilities across Western

Canada and atfeed mill locations in Texas New Mexico and

Oklahoma in the United States U.S Viterra Australias Feed

Products segment operates one of New Zealands largest maize

dryers and cattle feed business

The Financial Products segment offers products including

lending and cash management

Weather conditions are the primary risk in the agri-business

industry Grain volumes grain quality the volume and mix of

crop inputs sold and ultimately the financial performance of

the Company are highly dependent upon weather conditions

throughoutthe crop production cycle The acquisition ofABB

has diversified the risks related to weather

The Companys earnings follow the seasonal pattern of grain

production Activity peaks in the spring as new crops are sown

and in the fall as mature crops are harvested The volume of

grain shipments are relatively stable through the quarters but

can be influenced by destination customer demand customer

export programs and producers marketing decisions Sales of

the Companys agri-products peak during the growing season

supplemented by additional crop nutrient sales in the late fall

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Companys accounting policies are in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted accounting principlesGAAP

All amounts are reported in Canadian dollars unless specifically

stated to the contrary The following accounting policies are

considered to be significant

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptions that affectthe amounts reported in the

consolidated financial statements and accompanying

notes These estimates are based on managements best

knowledge of current events and actions the Company

may undertake in the future Amounts affected include

but are not limited to the fair value of certain assets

recoverability of investments property plant and

equipment intangible assets and goodwill contingent

liabilities income taxes pension plan obligations and

stock-based compensation Management believes the

estimates are reasonable however actual results could

differ as confirming events occur and any impactthereof

would be recorded in future periods

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the

accounts of the Company its controlled subsidiaries

and its proportionate share of the accounts of its joint

ventures The Companys interest in its joint ventures is

recognized using the proportionate consolidation method

at rates that approximate the Companys ownership

interest in the respective joint venture

The Company operates grain pools on behalf of growers and

has
legal

title overthe pool stocks however the majority of

risks and benefits associated with pools principally price

risk and benefit together with credit risk are attributable to

growers As result pool stocks and other related balances

held by the Company on behalf of growers are not recognized

in the Companys consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when risks and rewards of

ownership have transferred to the customer and the

following criteria are met persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists delivery has occurred or services

have been rendered selling price is fixed or determinable

and collection is reasonably assured Revenues from

grain handling are recognized upon delivery of grain

commodities to the customer Transactions in which the

Company acts as an agentfor the Canadian Wheat Board

CWB are recorded on net basis with only the amount

of the CWB tariff included in revenue Revenuesfrom the

sale of agri-products food processing feed and related

products are recognized upon delivery to the customer

Service-related revenues and financial productfees are

recognized upon performance of the service

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash short-term

investments and bank indebtedness Bank indebtedness

consists primarily of current outstanding cash tickets

and cheques All components are liquid with an original

maturity of less than three months Funds on deposit

within joint ventures may not be immediately available

to the Company

Inventories

Grain inventories include both hedgeable and non

hedgeable commodities Grain inventories are valued on the

basis of closing market quotations less freight and handling

costs Agri-products processing and other inventories are

valued atthe lower of cost and net realizable value where

cost is determined on first-in first-out basis

Investments

The Company accounts for its investments in affiliated

companies over which it has significant influence using

the equity basis of accounting whereby the investments

are initially recorded at cost and subsequently adjusted to

recognize the Companys share of earnings or losses of the

investee companies and reduced by dividends received

Investments designated as available for sale are recorded

atfair value in the consolidated balance sheet with

unrealized gains and losses net of related income taxes

recorded in other comprehensive income

Through consortium the Company has
joint and

several interest in Prince Rupert Grain terminal PRG
The Companys non-controlling interest in PRG is recorded

at nominal amount since the value of the debt exceeds

the depreciated value of the terminal At October 312009

PRG had approximately $292 million in loans due to third

party 2008 $296 million The loans mature in 2015

$178 million and 2035 $114 million 2008$182 million

and $114 million respectively and are secured by the

terminal without recourse to the consortium members

Property Plant and Equipment and Amortization

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost

which includes interest costs incurred on construction

of major new facilities prior to the facilities becoming

available for operation less amortization The Company

reviews the carrying value of its property plant and

equipment whenever there is change in circumstance

that suggests the carrying value may not be recoverable

and any resulting write-downs are charged to earnings

Amortization is provided for property plant and equipment

over their estimated useful lives using primarilythe

straight-line method The rates used are as follows

Land 0%

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

Site and leasehold improvements

Corporate Income Taxes

The Company follows the liability method of tax allocation

in accounting for income taxes Under this method future

income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on

temporary differences between the financial reporting

and tax bases of assets and liabilities and measured using

the substantively enacted tax rates and laws that will be

in effectwhen the differences are expected to reverse

The effect on future income tax assets and liabilities of

change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period

in which the tax rates became substantively enacted

valuation allowance would be provided to the extent

that it is not more likely than not thatfuture income tax

assets would be realized Income taxes are recognized in

the income statement except to the extent that it relates to

items recognized directly in other comprehensive income

or equity in which case the tax is recognized in other

comprehensive income or equity

Deferred Financing Costs

Costs incurred to obtain short-term borrowings are

deferred and amortized on straight-line basis overthe

term of the credit agreement Amortization is non-cash

chargetofinancing expenses

Financing costs related to long-term debt are included in

long-term debt and amortized using the effective interest

rate method

Financing costs relating to major construction projects up

to the date of commenced operations are capitalized and

amortized overthe expected life of the asset

2-10%

1-33%

3-20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

Employee Future Benefits

The Company maintains both defined benefit and defined

contribution pension plans for employees The Company

also has closed retirement allowance plan and other

employee future benefits largely in respect of extended

health and dental plans and life insurance to eligible

employees upon retirement The cost of all future benefits

is accrued in the year in which the employee services are

rendered based on actuarial valuations

The actuarial determination of the accrued benefit

obligations for pensions and other retirement benefits

uses the projected benefit method pro-rated on service

which incorporates managements best estimate offuture

salary levels other cost escalation retirement ages of

employees and other actuarial factors Forthe purpose

of calculating the expected return on plan assets those

assets are valued atfair value Past service costs from plan

amendments are amortized on straight-line basis over

the average remaining service period of employees active

at the date of amendment The excess of the net actuarial

gain loss over 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation

and the fair value of plan assets is amortized overthe

average remaining service period of active employees

expected to receive benefits underthe benefit plan

The Company also contributes to multi-employer

defined benefit pension plan which is accounted for as

defined contribution plan as the Company has insufficient

information to apply defined benefit plan accounting

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired in business combination

Intangible assets acquired in business combination

are identified and recognized separately from goodwill

where they satisfythe definition of an intangible asset

and theirfair values can be measured reliably These

assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their

estimated useful lives which range from two to ten

years Should the carrying amount of the intangible

asset exceed its fair value an impairment loss would

be recognized and charged to earnings atthattime

ii Software intangible assets

Software intangible assets are stated at cost less

accumulated amortization and impairment and are

amortized on straight-line basis over their useful

lives which range from three to five years Should the

carrying amount of intangible assets exceed its fair

value an impairment loss would be recognized and

charged to earnings at that time

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over

the fair values assigned to identifiable net assets acquired

The Company assesses annuallywhetherthere has been

an impairment in the carrying value of goodwill based on

the fairvalue of the related business operations Should

the carrying amount of the goodwill exceed its fair value

an impairment loss would be recognized and charged to

earnings at that time

Foreign Currency Transactions

Self-sustaining operations have been translated into

Canadian dollars using the current rate method Monetary

and non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated

atthe period-end exchange rate while revenues and

expenses are translated atthe rate of exchange prevailing

atthe transaction date Exchange gains and losses

arising from the translation of the financial statements are

deferred and included in currencytranslation account

within accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Integrated operations have been translated into Canadian

dollars using the temporal method Monetary assets and

liabilities are translated atthe period-end exchange rate

while non-monetary assets and liabilities revenues and

expenses are translated atthe rate of exchange prevailing

atthe transaction date Exchange gains and losses

arising from the translation of the financial statements are

reflected in earnings during the period in which they occur

For other foreign currency balances of the Company

monetary assets and liabilities are translated into

Canadian dollars atthe rate in effect atthe balance sheet

date and non-monetary items are translated atthe rate in

effect on the transaction date Exchange gains or losses

arising fromtranslations are recognized in earnings in the

period in which they occur

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Deferred share units performance share units and

restricted share units are amortized over their vesting

periods and re-measured at each reporting period until

settlement using the quoted market value The Company

expenses stock options over the vesting period of options

granted based on the fair value method as determined

bythe Black-Scholes pricing model and records the

offsetting amountto contributed surplus Upon exercise

of the option amounts recorded in contributed surplus

are transferred to share capital

Environmental Costs and Asset

Retirement Obligations

Environmental costs that relate to current operations are

expensed or capitalized as appropriate Environmental
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

costs are capitalized if the costs extend the life of the

property increase its capacity mitigate or prevent

contamination from future operations or relate to legal

asset retirement obligations Costs that relate to existing

conditions caused by past operations and that do not

contribute to current or future revenue generation are

expensed Provisions for estimated costs are recorded

when environmental remedial efforts are likely and

the costs can be reasonably estimated In determining

the provisions the Company uses the most current

information available including similarpast experiences

available technology regulations in effect the timing of

remediation and cost-sharing arrangements

The Company recognizes its obligations to retire certain

tangible long-lived assets The fair value of liability for

an asset retirement obligation is recognized in the period

in which it is incurred if reasonable estimate of fair value

can be made The associated asset retirement costs are

capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived

asset and then amortized over its estimated useful life

In subsequent periods the asset retirement obligation

is adjusted forthe passage of time and any changes in

the amount or timing of the underlying future cash flows

through charges to earnings gain or loss may

be incurred upon settlement of the
liability

Financial Instruments

Financial derivative instruments are used by the Company

to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange rates interest rates and commodity prices In

the normal course of business the Company does not

hold or issue derivative instruments for derivative trading

purposes Any change in the value of the derivatives is

reported in earnings unless the derivative qualifies as

cash flow hedge and hedge accounting is applied

Transaction costs related to financial assets or liabilities

other than those held for trading adjustthe carrying

amount of the underlying instrument These costs are then

amortized overthe instruments remaining expected life

using the effective interest rate method and are included

as part of financing expenses Transaction costs related to

financial assets or liabilities classified as held fortrading

are expensed as incurred

Fair Value

The following summarizes the methods and assumptions

used in estimating the fairvalue of the Companysfinancial

instruments where measurement is required The fair

value of short-term financial instruments approximates

their carrying amounts due to the relatively short period to

maturity These include cash short-term investments

accounts receivable bank indebtedness short-term

borrowings and accounts payable and accrued liabilities

The fair value of long-term receivables and payables also

approximates their carrying amounts Long-term

receivables and payables are measured using discounted

cash flows Equity investments classified as available for

sale that do not have an active trading market are recorded

at cost Fair value amounts represent point-in-time

estimates and may not reflect fair value in the future

The measurements are subjective in nature involve

uncertainties and are matter of significant judgment

The methods and assumptions used to develop fair value

measurements for those financial instruments where fair

value is recognized in the balance sheet have been

prioritized into three levels as per the fair value hierarchy

included in GAAP Level one includes quoted prices

unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities Level two includes inputs that are observable

other than quoted prices included in Level one Level

three includes inputs that are not based on observable

market data

The fairvalue of financial instruments initially

recognized is equal to the cost plus directly attributable

transaction costs

Investments that are classified as available for sale

with an active trading market have been recorded at

their fair value based on closing market quotations and

are therefore considered Level one

When financial instruments lack an available trading

market fair value is determined using managements

estimates and is calculated using market factors

for instruments with similar characteristics and risk

profiles The methods and assumptions used in these

limited cases would be assessed for significance and

may be disclosed as Level three

The fair value of long-term debt with fixed interest rates

is estimated by discounting the expected future cash

flows using the risk-free interest rate on an instrument

with similarterms adjusted for an appropriate risk

premium for the Companys credit profile The methods

and assumptions used are considered Level two

The fair value of interest rate swaps is estimated by

discounting net cash flows of the swaps using forward

interest rates for swaps of the same remaining maturity

The methods and assumptions used are considered

Level two
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

The fair value of commodityforward contracts is

estimated based on exchange-quoted prices adjusted

for differences in local markets The adjustments are

generally determined using inputs from broker or dealer

quotations or market transactions in eitherthe listed or

over-the-counterOTC markets Observable inputs

are generally available for the full term of the contract

and therefore the fair value of commodity forward

contracts is generally considered Level two

The fair value of OTC foreign exchange forward

contracts is estimated using observable prices for

similar instruments in active markets and is therefore

considered Level two

The fair value of exchange traded derivatives and

securities are based on closing market quotations and

is therefore considered Level one

Available for Sale

Financial assets classified as available for sale are

carried at fair value with the changes in fair value initially

recorded in other comprehensive income until they are

assessed to be impaired or disposed of atwhich time they

flowthrough earnings

Held for Trading

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are

purchased and incurred with the intention of generating

profits in the nearterm are classified as held fortrading

These instruments are accounted for atfair value with

the change in the value recognized in cost of sales

Instruments designated as cash flow hedges follow

hedge accounting

Held for Trading Designated

The Company has elected to designate short-term

investments as held fortrading These instruments are

accounted for atfair value with the change in the value

recognized in sales and other operating revenues

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are accounted for at amortized

cost using the effective interest rate method

Other FinancialLiabi lities

Other financial liabilities are accounted for at amortized

cost using the effective interest rate method

Hedging

The Company uses hedge accounting to match the cash

flows of some of its processed products sold in foreign

funds with its foreign currency hedging instruments

Under hedge accounting the effective portion of the

change inthefairvalue ofthe hedging instrumentis

recognized in other comprehensive income while the

ineffective portion is recognized immediately in sales and

other operating revenues Upon maturity of the derivative

instrument the effective gains and losses previously

recognized in other comprehensive income are recorded

in net earnings as component of sales and other

operating revenues

The Company uses hedge accounting for interest rate

swaps used to hedge long-term debt Hedge accounting

treatment results in interest expense on the related debt

being reflected at hedged rates ratherthan atvariable

interest rates The effective portion of changes in the fair

value of the swap is recognized in other comprehensive

income while any ineffective portion is recognized

immediately in financing expenses Gains and losses are

recognized in financing expenses in the same period as

the hedged item is settled

Changes to Significant Accounting Policies

Inventories

Effective November 12008 the Company adopted the

Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants CICA
Handbook Section 3031 Inventories This adoption

resulted in additional disclosures as provided in Note

II Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Effective November 12008 the Company adopted the

CICA Handbook Section 3064 Goodwill and Intangibles

This adoption had no material impactto the Company

iii Fair Value Hierarchy and
Liquidity

Risk Disclosure

In June 2009 the CICA issued an amendment to

Handbook Section 3862 to provide improvements

to fair value and liquidity risk disclosures The

amendment applies to the Companys fiscal year

ending October 312009 This adoption resulted in

additional disclosures as provided in Notes 2p and 23
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in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

INVENTORIES

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008

Grain 469196 330704

Agri-products 381485 423602

Feed Products 45354 39095

Food Processing

Raw materials and supplies 20999 9919

Work in progress 24955 2356

Finished goods 18901 10482

960896 816158

Grain cost of sales includes the cost of inventories net realized

and unrealized gains and losses on commodity contracts and

exchange-traded derivatives and freight

Amortization of $30.2 million for the year ended October 31 2009

12008 $41.0 million related to the manufacture of inventory

that has now been sold is included in amortization expense

Write-downs related to Agri-products inventory at

October 312009 of nil 2008 $28.7 million have been included

in cost of sales

INVESTMENTS

As at October 31 2009 2008

Investments in significantly

influenced companies equity method 63 223

Other long-term investments 9643 7422

9706 7645

Equity loss of significantly influenced companies of nil for the

year ended October 31 2009 2008$11.0 million is included in

sales and other operating revenues

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The following summarizes the Companys proportionate

interest in joint ventures before inter-company revenue and

expense eliminations

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008

Cash 21500 2906

Othercurrentassets 49471 25218

Long-termassets 119331 17491

Current liabilities 23761 15112

Long-term liabilities 72991 4275

For the year ended October31

Revenue

Expenses

Net earnings

Cash from operating activities

Cash used in financing activities

Cash from used in investing activities

2009 2008

280427 62546

277970 52225

2457 10321

6430 6278

65 3.986

13043 1741

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

Fiscal 2009

Net assets acquired at fair value

Current assets

Property plant and

equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Other long-term assets

Future income

tax assets net

Current liabilities

Current portion of

long-term debt

Long-term debt

Other long-term liabilities

Total purchase price

Less Cash acquired

688094 19355 707449

1180782 71078 1251860

14973 14973

359087 28462 387549

5615 5615

6395 6395

253287 2637 255924

286168

293654

187 12

1421650 116246

31724

1389926 116246

286168

293654

199

1537896

31724

1506172

Consideration provided

Cash net of cash

acquired 671707 116246 787953

Transaction costs 26077 26077

Cash used in business

acquisitions 697784 116246 814030

Common shares 78.3 million

issued at an ascribed

price of $8.84 692142 692142

1389926 116246 1506172

Acquisition of ABB

On September 23 2009 the Company acquired all of

the issued and outstanding common shares of ABB an

Australian agri-business The results of the operations

are included in the Companys consolidated financial

statements commencing upon acquisition

For purposes of calculating the value of the share

component of the purchase consideration the Company

used the average closing price of Company shares

on the Toronto Stock Exchange TSX around the

May 192009 announcement of the proposed

acquisition of ABB For purposes of calculating

the value of the cash component of the purchase

consideration the Company used the closing

Australian dollarto Canadian dollar exchange rate

on the acquisition date

The acquisition has been accounted for using the

purchase method whereby the purchase consideration

is allocated to the estimated fair values of the assets

ABB Other Total
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acquired and the liabilities assumed at the effective

date of the purchase The table above summarizes

the preliminary fair value of assets acquired and

liabilities assumed

Acquisition costs incurred or accrued in the above

purchase allocation are comprised of professional fees

of $26.1 million as well as $14.6 million of employee

related costs and $6.4 million of other related costs Of

these amounts$19.6 million remained outstanding and

unpaid at October 312009

Forthe period ended October 31 2009 the Company

expensed $2.3 million of incremental non-recurring

costs arising from the integration ofABB The

Companys plan forthe integration of ABB consists of

further costs of either capital or operating nature

related to re-financing activities employees

information technology hardware and software

signage and branding and other integration related

activities The Company plans to complete the

integration and the consolidation of operations over

the next l2to 18 months

As the acquisition has recently been completed the

preliminary purchase price allocation between the

assets and liabilities acquired including goodwill and

intangibles will be finalized in subsequent period

including allocation of goodwill by segment and

determination of goodwill deductible fortax purposes

ii OtherAcquisitions

On June 252009 the Company purchased certain

businesses of Associated Proteins Limited Partnership

of Ste Agathe Manitoba Canada for total

consideration of $76.1 million The acquisition consists of

canola crush plant with capacity of 1000 metric

tonnes per day that supplies North American end-use

markets The net assets including goodwill of

$7.5 million are included in the Food Processing segment

During the yeaithe Company purchased agri-products

retail locations located in Western Canada Total

consideration of $40.1 million was paid The preliminary

purchase price allocation between the assets and

liabilities acquired including goodwill will be finalized in

subsequent period The net assets including goodwill of

$20.9 million are included in the Agri-products segment

These acquisitions have been funded through current

operating cash flows Earnings derived from the

businesses purchased have been included in the

Companys consolidated financial statements

commencing from the acquisition dates

The acquisitions were accounted for using the

purchase method wherebythe purchase consideration

is allocated to the estimated fair values of the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed atthe effective date

of the purchase

iii Changes to Purchase Price Allocation

During the year the Company adjusted the allocation

of the purchase price related to the May 292007

acquisition ofAgricore United During the year

acquisition cost accruals in the amount of $5.0 million

were reversed and resulted in decrease to goodwill

of $3.4 million and netfuture income tax asset

of $1.6 million

Fiscal 2008

On March 32008 the Feed Products segment purchased

certain businesses of Sunrise Feed LLC in Cheyenne and

Elk City Oklahoma U.S The acquisition included feed

mill with 100000 tonnes/year capacity and retail outlet

in both Cheyenne and Elk City Sunrise Feed manufactures

and sells beef horse and other animal feed and pasture

supplements into the rancher market

On April 72008 the Feed Products segment concluded its

purchase of V-S Feed and Agri-Supplies Ltd in Ponoka

Alberta Canada The acquisition included feed pre-mix

mill with 8000 tonnes/year capacity and retail outlet that

sells farm supply and feed products

On April 282008 the Feed Products segment also

purchased certain businesses of Gore Bros Inc and

Gores Trucking Inc for total consideration of U.S

$25.3 million The acquisition added an additional two U.S

feed mills in Clovis New Mexico and Comanche Texas

Net assets acquired at fair value

Current assets

Property plant and equipment

Goodwill

Current liabilities

Cash consideration

These acquisitions were funded through current operating

cash flows

Earnings derived from the businesses purchased were

included in the Companys consolidated financial statements

commencing from the respective acquisition dates

The acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase

method wherebythe purchase consideration was

allocated to the estimated fair values of the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed at the effective date

of the purchase

24040

15160

2849

10294

31755
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PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

2008As at October31 2009

Land 122695 49751

Site and leasehold improvements 82665 10673 73455 6294

Buildings
699811 84260 556702 53944

Machinery and equipment 1597262 236800 690441 171215

Construction in progress 240405 15963

2742838 331733 1386312 231453

Accumulated amortization 331733 231453

Net book value 2411105 1154859

Amortization of property plant and equipmentfor the year ended October 31 2009 is $105.0 million 2008 $99.1 million

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

Accumulated Accumulated

Amortization Amortization

AsatOctober3l 2009 2009 2008 2008

Deferred pension assets Note 20 89938 51564

Deferred financing costs 23434 10914 12673 7296

Other 15610 43 18824 6527

128982 10957 83061 13823

Accumulated amortization 10957 13823

Netbookvalue 118025 69238

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Members Demand Loans

Effective August 12009 the Company discontinued

accepting loans on the members demand loan program

Members demand loans were unsecured funds loaned

to the Company by non-institutional investors and

employees On September 15 2009 all demand loan

balances and accrued interest were paid out

Viterra Australia

Viterra Australia has $1200 million Australian dollar

AUD multi-currency syndicated bank facility of which

$400 million AUD matures July 312010 and $800 million

AUD matures July 312012 Viterra Australia can draw on

the facility at applicable base rates plus 0.88% to 1.20%

As at October 312009 there are drawings of $305.5 million

included in long-term borrowingsNote 11

Accumulated

Amortization

2009

Accumulated

Amortization

2008

Amortization of deferred financing costs of $3.6 million 2008 $3.1 million is included in financing expenses Amortization of other

assets of nil forthe year ended October 3120092008 $4.0 million is included in amortization

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008

Intangible assets acquired in business combination 34906 19498

Software intangible assets 18779 9717

Accumulated amortization 10919 7082

Netbookvalue 42766 22133

Amortization of intangible assets forthe year ended October 31 2009 is $4.1 million 2008 $3.7 million

10 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

As at October 31 2009 2008

Members demand loans
17769

VterraAustraliab 291128

291128 17769

Viterra 2U09 Annual Financial Review



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Revolving Credit Facility

On August 102007 the Company entered into

$600 million senior secured revolving creditfacility

with syndicate of financial institutions On

November 19 2007 the Company exercised its

option to increase the facility to $800 million The facility

is secured by first charge on all assets of the Company

and certain of its subsidiaries excluding Viterra

Australia otherthan the property plant and equipment

of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries and the

capital stock of certain of its subsidiaries collectively the

Term Loan Priority Collateral and second charge on

the Term Loan Priority Collateral The Company can draw

on the facility at an interest rate of Bankers Acceptance

BA plus 0.9% to 1.5% or at prime to prime plus

0.50% subjectto the Companys fixed charge ratio

At October 312009 the 30 day BA rate was 0.3%

20082.56% and prime was 2.25% 20084.0%
The

facility expires on August 102010 and may be

extended atthe option of the Company for an additional

two years subjectto the Companythen being in

compliance with the covenants underthe facility

At October 31 2009 availability underthe revolving credit

facility was $460.0 million and drawings were nil

2008$542.0 million and nil

11 LONG-TERM DEBT

Asat October31

Viterra

2009 2008

Credit facility 312000 225000

Series 2009-1 Notes 300000

Series 2007-1 Notes 200000 200000

Series 2006-1 Notesb 100000 100000

Members term loans 2449 3404

914449 528404

Subsidiaries and proportionate share of

joint ventures debt

Creditfacilitya 77897 90338

Viterra Australia and otherd 309389 2767

387286 93105

Sub-total 1301735 621509

Less unamortized debt costs 18149 11421

Total long-term debt 1283586 610088

Less portion due within one year

Credit
facility 13000 9000

Members term loans 1210 1481

Viterra Australia and other 3941 4222

Long-term debt due within one year 18151 14703

Long-term debt due in excess of one year 1265435 595385

Credit Facility

On May 15 2008 the Company completed $400 million

five-yearterm secured creditfacility with syndicate

of financial institutions The facility is secured by first

charge pan passuwith the Series 2006-1 2007-1 and

2009-1 Notes on the Term Loan Priority Collateral

Note lOc and second charge on all other assets of the

Company and certain of its subsidiaries excluding

Viterra Australia

Based upon the Companys current credit ratings and

interest rate swaps the hedged fixed rate of interest on

the credit facility is approximately 7.4% on Canadian dollar

borrowings 20085.9% and approximately 8.1% on U.S

dollar borrowings 20086.1%with minimum mandatory

principal repayments of 4% per annum An amendment

which was required to allow the acquisition of ABB

resulted in 2% interest rate increase effective upon the

acquisition of ABB

Beginning with the currentfiscal year ending

October 31 2009 if atthe end of fiscal year the

debtto EBITDA ratio as defined in the creditfacility

agreement the calculation of which does not include

Viterra Australia is equal to or exceeds 3.751.0 the

Company must repay portion of the outstanding loans

equal to 50% offree cash flow as defined in the credit

agreement from the fiscal year Forthe currentfiscal year

the Company was not required to repay portion

of the loans

The fair value of the amount drawn on the creditfacility

at October 31 2009 was approximately $312.0 million

2008$225.0 million and $72.0 million United States

Dollar USD 2008 $75.0 million USD
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Members Term Loans

Members term loans are unsecured and consist of

one-year to seven-year loans with non-institutional

investors and employees Interest is payable semi

annually at interest rates that vary from 1.7% to 8.0%

20083.1% to 8.0% and weighted average interest

rate of 4.8% 20084.9% based on the face value of

the debt instrument

As of July 62009 the Company ceased accepting

new term loans or renewals Loans will be paid out at

maturity including principal and accrued interest or may

be withdrawn prior to maturity without penalty Interest

will continue to be paid semi-annually until the loan is

redeemed or matures

The fair value of the members term loans at

October 312009 was approximately $2.6 million

2008$3.5 million

Viterra Australia and Other Subsidiaries and

Proportionate Share of Joint Ventures Debt

Viterra Australia and other subsidiaries and the

proportionate share of joint
ventures debt bear interest

at fixed and variable rates The weighted average interest

rate of other subsidiaries and the proportionate share of

joint
ventures debt other than the Credit Facility

is 6.5% 20086.5% based on the face value of the debt

instrument The weighted average interest rate on

long-term borrowings for Viterra Australia including

interest rate swaps is approximately 6.2% The debts

mature in 2010 to 2014

Viterra Australia debt includes finance lease borrowings of

$0.8 million 2008 nil

The fair value at October 312009 of Viterra Australias

short-term borrowings and long-term debt was

approximately$18.3 million USD 2008 nil

$463.2 million AUD 2008 nil and $130.1 million

New Zealand dollars NZD 2008 nil

The fair value at October 312009 of other subsidiaries

and the proportionate share ofjointventures

long-term borrowings was approximately$3.1 million

2008$2.8 million

Effective October 12009 Viterra Australia entered into

security arrangement such that Viterra Australia has

pledged their assets into security trustforthe benefit of

their syndicated lenders and certain hedging

counterparties the Beneficiaries These Beneficiaries

have taken fixed and floating charge over all the assets of

Viterra Australia as security against their obligations under

their Syndicated Facility and certain hedging arrangements

Senior Unsecured Notes

Termsl Series 2009-1 Series 2007-1 Series 2006-1

Issue Date July 2009 August 2007 April 2006

Principal Amount $300000 $200000 $100000

Interest Rate 8.5% 8.5% 8.0%

Maturity Date July 2014 August 2017 April 2013

Fair Value October 31 2009 $318780 $213240 $102830

Fair ValueOctober3l 2008 n/a $184000 $95000

Redemption Price2

Optional Redemption Prior to July 2012 August 2012

With Net Proceeds of Public Equity Offering 108.5% 108.5%

Without Proceeds of Public Equity Offering 100.0%ARP 100.0%ARP4

Optional Redemption On or After July 2012 August 2012 April 2009

2009 104.0%

2010 102.0%

2011 101.0%

2012 102.125% 104.25% 100.0%

2013 100.0% 103.1875%

2014 102.125%

2015 101.0625%

2016 100.0%

Each Series 2006-1 2007-1 and 2000-1 Nstes rank paripassuwith each other Series and the Credit Facility which inciudes first charge on the Term Loan Priority Collateral and second charge on at other assets of

the Company and certain of to sobsidiaries encluding Viterra Aostraha

Eepresnod an percentage of principai am000t at matority

Redomptior limited to no more than 35% of aggregate principal am050t of each series

When redeeming notes withoot proceeds receined from one or more poblic eqoity offerings the redemption prico is 100% of principal amount thereof pbs Applicable Redemption Premiom ARP as defined
in

the

corresponding Supplemental Trost Indentore Agreement between the Company and CIBC Mellon Trost for each note series
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Viterra Australia was in breach of loan covenant at

October 312009 The Company has been in discussions

with the syndicate of lenders and on December 292009

received awaiverin respect of the breach.Aviolation of the

debt covenant giving the lenders the rightto demand

repayment at future compliance date within one year of

the balance sheet date is not likely and therefore amounts

not expected to be paid within one year have been

classified as long-term

Scheduled Repayments of Long-Term Debt

The following summarizes the aggregate amount of

scheduled repayments of long-term debt in each of the

next five years and thereafter

Total

2010 14210 3941 18151

2011 13517 4360 17877

2012 13489 309167 322656

2013 373223 68631 441854

2014 300010 356 300366

Subsequent years 200000 831 200831

914449 387286 1301735

12 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008

Other employee future benefits Note 20 13883 14095

Asset retirement obligations 13771 13938

Cash flow hedges Note 23b 13014 10121

Stock-based compensation plans Note 18 10223 9638

Contributions in aid of construction 7003 7413

Grain handling agreements 3254 4400

PensionNote2O 3415 3808

Other 7908 770

72471 64183

Asset Retirement Obligations

In 1987 Westco division of the Company which

manufactured phosphate and nitrate fertilizers closed

two of its facilities The asset retirement obligations

representthe best estimate by management of the legal

obligations itwould incur during the reclamation process

Reclamation involves the demolition of the manufacturing

facilities and the reclamation of the phosphogypsum

stacks Uncertainty exists regarding the estimation of

future decommissioning and reclamation costs

At October 31 2009 the Company estimated thatthe

undiscounted cash flow required to settle the asset

retirement obligations was approximately$19.2 million

2008 $23.9 million which is expected to be settled

overthe 2010 through 2018 period The credit adjusted

risk-free rates at which the estimated cash flows

have been discounted range from 4.0% to 7.0% At

October 312009 the aggregate carrying amount including

the short-term portion of the asset retirement obligation

was $17.5 million 2008$22.1 million this decrease is

result of expenditures in Westco of $3.9 million and

reduction of expected discounted cash flows by

$1.4 million
partially offset by accretion expenses of

$0.7 million

Contributions in Aid of Construction

Contributions in aid of construction represent payments

received from producers pursuantto grain storage

licence agreements

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has transactions with related parties in the

normal course of business measured at exchange amounts

which are comparable to commercial rates and terms

Related parties include investees Prince Rupert Grain and

The Puratone Corporation as well as grain pools operated

bythe Company Note 2b

Total sales to related parties were $15.4 million

2008 $18.9 million and total purchases from related parties

were $7.2 million 2008 $11.6 million As at October 31 2009

accounts receivable from related parties totaled

$24.0 million 2008$24.9 million and accounts payable

to related parties totaled $5.7 million 2008 $22.0 million

14 CORPORATE INCOME TAXES

The provision for corporate income taxes consists of

Forthe year ended October31 2009 2008

Current 14144 19422

Future 29723 70280

43867 89702

For the Years

Ending

October31

Subsidiaries and

Proportionate

Share of Joint

Viterra Ventures
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The variation between the provision calculated at the

statutory income tax rate and the Companys provision

is explained as follows

For the year ended October31 2009 2008

Earnings before corporate income taxes 156994 377984

Effective federal and provincial tax rate 29.97% 31.88%

Pre-tax accounting income at combined

Canadian
statutory

income tax rate 47051 120501

Effect of foreign income tax rates differing

from Canadian income tax rates 683 165

Change in effective tax rate on future

incometaxes 1651 21314

Permanent differences 1356 1053

Recovery due to successful appeal

of tax reassessment 5000

Change in estimate of tax accruals 344 4715

Non-taxable portion of capital gain 293 136

Non-recoverable withholding taxes 453

Tax-paid equity earnings 108 1879

Other 110 625

43861 89702

Income taxes allocated to future years are comprised

of the following

As at October31 2009

Future income tax assets

Losses available for carryforward

Refinancing and
restructuring costs not

currently
deducted for tax

Accrued expenses not currently

deductible for tax

Research and development costs not

currently deducted for tax

Reclamation costs not currently

deducted for tax

Investment write-down for accounting

Other

Valuation allowancel

Total future income tax assets

The valuation allowance represents managements best estimate of the allowance necessaty

As at October31 2009 2008

Future income tax liabilities

Net book value in excess of

undepreciated capital cost 183228 180742

Deferred charges currently deductible

for tax 22970 12938

Income not currently taxable 17951 2546

Other 2590 5106

Total future income tax liabilities 226739 201332

Net future income tax liability 118519 104601

Classified in the consolidated financial statements as

Current future income tax assets 44142 59202

Long-term future income tax assets 8023 2673

Current future income tax liabilities 573

Long-term future income tax liabilities 170111 166476

118519 104601

The expiry dates associated with the losses available

for carryforward are

1101

23915

6255

31325

62596

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008

Unrealized gains and losses on

cash flow hedges 404 9117

Unrealized gains and losses on

available for sale assets 42

Unrealized effect of foreign currency

translation of
foreign operations 53818 691

54216 9766

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges of $10.1 million are

expected to be realized and recognized in net income within the

nextyear2008$2.1 million

2012

2013

2029

No
expiry

2008
15 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME LOSS

18183 33173

21908 19856

63234 39586

1915 1798

4652

1741

3091

114724

6504

$108220

6341

1840

891

103485

6754

96731

to reflect the tutute income tax assets telated to lenses anailabie for carryforwatd at an amount that

the Company considets is more likelythan not to be realized
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16 SHARE CAPITAL

Common Voting Shares

Authorized

Unlimited Common Voting Shares

Common Voting Shares

Number Amount

Balance October3l2007 204156350 1422843

Share issuance for cash 32892863 460479

Adjustment to share capital from

contributed surplus for options exercised 14

Balance October 31 2008 237049213 1883336

Share issuance for cash 56250650 450007

Adjustment to share capital from

contributed surplus for options exercised

Issued upon acquisition of ABB Note 78296645 692142

Balance October 31 2009 371596508 3025486

Number of shares are not shown in thousands

Share Issuance

FiscaI2009

On May 13 2009 the Company completed the offering

of 56.3 million common shares through bought

deal subscription receipt offering byway of private

placement to exempt purchasers at price of

$8.00 per common share

The Company raised gross proceeds from the offering

of $450 million.The proceeds were raised to provide

portion of the funding for the acquisition of ABB Shares

were held in escrow until the closing of the acquisition

ofABB Underwritersfees and other costs associated

with the offering were approximately$18 million In

accordance with the capital nature of this transaction

the associated costs are reflected as charge to

shareholders equity and reflected in the retained

earnings of the Company

ii FiscaI2008

On May 2008 the Company issued 28.6 million

common shares on bought deal basis at price

of $14.00 per common share to syndicate of

underwriters as part of $400.4 million offering As

well on May 92008 in relation to the $400.4 million

offering the underwriters exercised in full an Over-

Allotment Option to purchase an additional 4.3 million

common shares at price of $14.00 per common share

for additional gross proceeds of $60.1 million The

underwriters Over-Allotment Option closed on

May 142008

The Company raised gross proceeds from the common

share offering and subsequent over-allotment of

$460.5 million Underwriters fees and other costs

associated with the offering and the over-allotment

were approximately $19 million In accordance with the

capital nature of this transaction the associated costs

are reflected as charge to shareholders equity and

reflected in the retained earnings of the Company

17 EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the year ended October31 2009 2008

Netearnings 113127 288282

Denominator for basic earnings per share amounts

Weighted average number of shares

outstanding 251426 219826

Basicearningspershare 0.45 1.31

Denominator for diluted earnings per share amounts

Weighted average number of shares

outstandingl 251437 219830

Diluted earnings pershare 0.45 1.31

Nsmber of shares in thousands

18 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company operates three active stock-based compensation

plans Deferred Share Unit Plan DSU for independent

directors and Restricted Share Unit Plan RSU and

Performance Share Unit Plan PSUfor designated

participants In addition the Companys Management Stock

Option Plan was reactivated in fiscal 2008 and an Employee

Share Purchase Plan ESPP began on July 12008

Deterred Share Units

Underthe Companys DSU Plan 40% of each directors

annual retainer is paid in DSUs DSU is notional unit

that reflects the marketvalue of single common share

of the Company In addition on an annual basis directors

can elect to receive any percentage from 40% to 100%

of their annual retainer and any additional fees forthe

immediately succeeding year in the form of DSUs

Designated participants have the option to convert RSU

and PSU units into DSUs 60 days prior to vesting Each

DSU fully vests upon award The DSUs will be redeemed

for cash or for common shares of the Company purchased

on the open market atthe holders option upon leaving

the Board or ceasing employment The redemption

amountwill be based upon the weighted average of the

closing prices of the common shares of the Company

on the TSX forthe last 20 trading days priorto the

redemption date multiplied by the number of DSUs held

During fiscal 20097450 RSUs/PSUs were converted

to DSUs by participants 200822000 The total

DSUs granted were 190494 during the year ended

October 312009200880560 The Company recorded

compensation costs related to outstanding DSUs of
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$3.0 million for the year ended October 312009

2008 recovery of $0.5 million

Restricted Share Units

Underthe Companys RSU Plan each designated

participant receives an annual grant of RSUs as part of

their compensation Each RSU represents one notional

common share that entitles the participant to payment

of one common share of the Company purchased on

the open market or an equivalent cash amount atthe

Companys discretion RSUs vest atthe end of three-year

period Holders of RSUs have the option of converting to

an equivalent number of DSUs 60 days prior to vesting

During the year ended October 312009 176800 RSUs

were granted 2008126952 The Company recorded

compensation costs related to outstanding RSUs of

$1.2 million for the year ended October 312009

2008$0.2 million

Performance Share Units

Underthe Companys PSU Plan the Company provides

each designated participant an annual grant of PSUs as

part of their compensation The performance objectives

underthe plan are designed to further align the interest

of the designated participantwith those of shareholders

by linking the vesting of awards to EBITDA over the

three-year performance period The number of PSUs that

ultimately vest will vary based on the extentto which

actual EBITDA matches budgeted EBITDA for the three-

year period Based on performance each PSU represents

one notional common share that entitles the participantto

payment of common shares of the Company purchased

on the open market or an equivalent cash amount atthe

Companys discretion PSUs vest atthe end of three-year

period The final value of the PSUs will be based on

the value of the Companys stock at the end of the

three-year period and the number of PSUs that ultimately

vest Vesting of PSUs atthe end of the three-year period

will be based on total EBITDA and whetherthe participant

remains employed by the Company at the end of the

three-year vesting period Holders of PSUs have the option

of converting to an equivalent number of DSUs 60 days

prior to vesting During the year ended October 312009

483577 PSUs were granted to the designated participants

2008380863 The Company recorded compensation

costs related to outstanding PSUs of $4.3 million forthe

year ended October 3120092008 $0.2 million

Management Stock Option Plan

During fiscal 2008 the Management Stock Option Plan

the Stock Option Plan was reactivated after being

inactive since fiscal 2004 The maximum number of

common shares that may be issued under options issued

pursuantto the Stock Option Plan is approximately

10.2 million 200810.2 million common shares Once

the 1.7 million 20080.7 million common shares that

can potentially be issued under currently granted and

contingently granted options are deducted approximately

8.5 million 20089.5 million common shares have been

reserved for subsequent option grants

The expense related to stock options is recognized over

the vesting period based on the fair value of options

determined bythe Black-Scholes option pricing model with

the following assumptions risk-free rate 2.6% dividend

yield 0% volatility factor of the expected market price

of the Companys shares of 37% and weighted average

expected option life of 4.9 years The Companys stock-

based compensation expense forthe year ended

October 312009 was $2.2 million 2008 $0.9 million

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Number of Average

Number of Grant-Date Exercise Options Exercise

Optionsl Fair Value Price Exercisablel Price

Outstanding October 31 2007 80327 77.50 80327 77.50

Options granted 634412 4.92 12.12

Forfeited 3770 59.83

Expired 1.860 304.00

Exercised 2863 7.06

Outstanding October31 2008 706246 18.55 71834 74.99

Options granted 957594 3.09 9.02

Forfeited 2370 51.25

Expired 3630 168.00

Exercised 650 5.90

Outstanding October31 2009 1657190 12.67 384391 19.59

Number of options are nut shomn in thousands
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The following table summarizes the options outstanding and exercisable as at October 312009

Employee Share Purchase Plan

The Employee Share Purchase Plan became effective

July 12008 lJnderthe plan employees have the option

to purchase shares of the Company The Company

matches 50% of the plan participants contribution and

is responsible for all costs associated with the purchase

of the shares The funds are used to purchase common

shares on the open market The compensation costs

of $3.2 million for the year ended October 312009

are included in operating general and administrative

expenses 2008$1.5 million

19 SEGMENTED INFORMATION

description of the types of products and services from

which the segments derive their revenue is included in the

Nature of Business Note The segments accounting policies

are consistentwith those described in Accounting Policies

Note The Company accounts for inter-segment sales at

current market prices under normal trade terms

Forthe year ended October31 2009

Sales and other operating revenues

Grain Handling and Marketing

Agri-products

Food Processing

Feed Products

Financial Products

Less Inter-segment sales

Inter-segment sales

GrainHandlingandMarketing 131175 45015

Agri-products 537

Food Processing 6477 463

Financial Products 1493

139145 46015

Range of Number of Weighted Average Weighted Number of Weighted
Exercise Options Remaining Average Options Average

Price Outstandingl Life Years Exercise Price Exercisablet Exercise Price

$6.00 6338 4.00 $5.90 6338 $5.90

$6.01-$10.00 957594 6.00 9.02 319207 9.02

$10.01-$70.00 675258 5.75 14.62 40846 53.41

$70.01 18000 1.00 135.14 18000 135.14

1657190 5.84 $12.66 384391 $19.59

Number of options are nor shown in thousands

For the year ended October31 2009 2008

Gross
profit

and net revenues from services

Grain Handling and Marketing 437741 473657

Agri-products 278632 437613

Food Processing 37459 35948

Feed Products 80563 66065

Financial Products 15568 13548

849963 1026831

Operating general and administrative expenses

Grain Handling and Marketing 189819 174360

Agri-products 156015 160750

Food Processing 13668 6919

Feed Products 67805 72151

Financial Products 5930 4702

Corporate 93028 75345

526265 494227

EBITDA1

Grain Handling and Marketing 247922 299297

Agri-products 122617 276863

Food Processing 23791 29029

Feed Products 12758 6086

Financial Products 9638 8846

Corporate 93028 75345

323698 532604

2008

$4180657

1630990

280826

660296

21948

$6774717

139145

$6635572

4299496

1686278

198312

625947

13548

6823581

46015

6777566

EBIIDA earnings before interest naves depreciation and amortization Isos gain on disposal

of assets integration oepnnssn recovery of p000ion settlement and net foreign eschange gain on

acqoisition

Amortization

Grain Handling and Marketing 46084 41531

Agri-products 42189 48217

Food Processing 7389 5842

Feed Products 11950 10239

Financial Products 245 420

Corporate 1284 583

109141 106832
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For the year ended October31 2009 2008

EBIT2

Grain Handling and Marketing 201838 257766

Agri-prociucts 80428 228646

Food Processing 16402 23187

Feed Products 808 16325

Financial Products 9393 8426

Corporate 94312 75928

214557 425772

earnings before interest taxes loss gain on disposal of assets integratios expenses recoxery

of pension settlement and net foreign exchasge gain on acquisition

Capital expenditures

Grain Handling and Marketing 45007 22153

Agri-products 21112 21705

Food Processing 2968 5408

Feed Products 4876 4155

Financial Products 35

Corporate 1320 2127

75283 55583

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008

Assets

Grain Handling and Marketing 2904566 1583048

Agri-products 1099856 1118768

Food Processing 546837 126233

Feed Products 261658 251699

Financial Products 85132 76224

Corporate 1524699 823409

6422748 3979381

Goodwill

Grain Handling and Marketing 35045 35821

Agri-products 204603 187036

Food Processing 7742

Feed Products 10580 10909

Financial Products 66355 66355

Viterra Australia 375649

699974 300121

As the acquisition of ABB was recently completed the preliminary psrchase price allocation will be

finalized in subsequent period including the identification and xaluation of intangible 055ets and the

allocation of goodwill to segments Note

lntangibleAssets

Grain Handling and Marketing 10783 254

Agri-products 16492 17363

Food Processing 80

Feed Products 3139 2573

Financial Products 245

Corporate 12272 1698

42766 22133

Geographic segment reporting

Revenues Assets

2009 2008 2009 2008

Canada 3078165 3942150 3735939 3695279

Australia 312903 221713 2250322

United States 1349397 1409193 251150 279297

Asia 1476588 596046 104284 4805

New Zealand 33865 76541

Other 384654 608464 4512

Total 6635572 6777566 6422748 3979381

20 EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Defined Benefit Plans and Future Benefits

The Company has the following defined benefit plans

which are based on years of service and final average

salary Hourly Employees Retirement Plan Hourly
Out of Scope Defined Benefit Pension Plan OSDB
Supplementary Executive Retirement Plan SERP
Grain Services Union Plan GSU Thunder Bay Hourly

Pension Plan TB Hourly Manitoba Pool Elevators Plan

MPE and Combined Agricore United Pension Plan

Combined The Company is on contribution holiday

for the Hourly OSDB and MPE plans due to income tax

regulations relating to surpluses in these pension plans

These plans have bridged benefits thatallowfor early

retirement The SERP is unfunded and the employer makes

contributions as the retirement benefits are paid All of

the plans are closed benefit plans exceptfor Hourly For

one of the defined benefit plans pension benefits may

increase annually based on the performance of the fund

The Companys retirement allowance benefit is

closed benefit plan Certain groups of the Companys

employees are eligible
for

retiring
allowance if as of

February 12000 the employee had 15 or more years of

service Those employees currently qualifying for this

plan will receive lump-sum payment upon retirement

based on formula comprising years of service and salary

in effect at retirement The Company also provides other

post-employment benefits largely in respect of extended

health and dental plans and life insurance to eligible

employees upon retirement

Defined benefit plans with accrued benefit obligations in

excess of plan assets have an aggregate accrued benefit

obligation of $347.5 million 2008$229.3 million and an

aggregate fair value of plan assets of $323.4 million

2008$211.2 million

Total consolidated Company cash payments for

employee future benefits for the year ended

October 312009 were $16.1 million 2008 $4.2 million
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consisting of cash contributed to its funded pension plans

and cash payments directly to beneficiaries for other

future benefits

The consolidated information presented for 2009 in the

table below is based on actuarial valuation results as of

October 312005 October 312007 December 312008

and October 312009 with extrapolations as required to

October3l2009 The projected accrued benefit

actuarial cost method pro-rated on service is used for

this valuation The assets are valued at marketvalue

on September 30 2009 with extrapolations as required

to October 312009 Comparative figures are valued at

market value at October 31 2008 The effective dates

of the next required actuarial valuations include

December31 2009 October31 2010 and

December 31 2011

Pension Benefit Plans

2009 2008

Other Future Benefits

2009 2008As at October 31

Plan Assets

Fairvalue beginning of period 529004 448493

FairvalueofassetsaddedJulyl2008 233100

FairvalueofsecondaryaccountatJulyl2008 16644

Actual return on plan assets 66406 139085

Employercontributions 15145 3488 959 742

Employees contributions 292 302

Benefits paid 50054 33938 959 742

Settlement 799

Fair value end of period 559994 529004

Accrued Benefit Obligation

Balance beginning of period 477491 315083 10931 12220

Obligations added July 2008 240220

Currentservicecost 1198 1820 280 362

Interest cost 32876 22248 771 699

Benefits
paid 50054 33938 959 742

Actuarial loss gain 70289 67942 1072 1608

Settlement 735

Curtailment 692

Balance end of
period 530373 477491 12095 10931

Funded status plan surplus deficit 29621 51513 12095 10931

Unamortized transitional asset 172 247

Unamortized net actuarial gain loss 88373 52429 1788 3164

Accrued benefit asset liability 117822 103695 13883 14095

Valuation allowance 31299 55939

Consolidated accrued benefit asset liability net of valuation allowance 86523 47756 13883 14095

The consolidated accrued benefit asset liability net of valuation allowance is reflected in these statements as follows

Pension Benefit Plans Other Future Benefits

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008 2009 2008

Other long-term assets Note 89938 51564

Other long-term liabilities Note 12 3415 3808 13883 14095

Consolidated accrued benefit asset liability net of valuation allowance 86523 47756 13883 14095
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The percentage of plan assets by major category is

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

On July 12008 the Company and the Grain Services Union

finalized the settlement of the dispute surrounding the

GSU Pension Plan The financial statement impact

of the settlement in the prior year was recovery of

$3.4 million consisting of the reversal of previous

$20 milliuti provision accrued regarding the potential

liabilityto
dissolve the dispute partly offset bya

$16.6 million expense related to an initial obligation for

payment into the plan as cost of resolving the dispute

The Company including subsidiaries and affiliates

contributes to several defined contribution plans including

multi-employer plans The Companys total consolidated

defined contribution plan expense forthe year ended

October 312009 is $12.0 million 2008 $8.8 million

Pension Benefit Plans

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008

Canadian Equities 28% 25%

Global Equities 30% 26%

Bonds 35% 41%

Other 7% 8%

100% 100%

The significant weighted average actuarial assumptions are as follows

Pension Benefit Plans Other Future Benefits

AsatOctober3l 2009 2008 2009 2008

Discount rate Accrued Benefit Obligation 6.20% 7.25% 6.00% 7.25%

Discount rate expense 7.25% 5.70% 7.25% 5.70%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 5.90% 6.50%

Rate of compensation increase 3.70% 3.60% 3.80% 3.50%

Average remaining service periodyears 4-24 4-25 3-13 3-13

Assumed health care cost trend ratesa 5-10% 6-11%

The health cate cost tretd rate varies depending on the employee group being valued and will decline by 1.0% per yearto an ultimate increase rate of 3.0%

one percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects for 2009

Increase Decrease

lnterestcost 23 21

Accrued benefit obligation 290 259

Net benefit expense income is comprised of

Pension Benefit Plans Other Future Benefits

2009 2008 2009 2008

Costs arising in the period

Current service cost net of employees contributions 906 1518 280 362

Interest cost 32876 22248 771 699

Actual return on plan assets 66406 139085

Actuarial loss gain 70289 67969 1072 1608

Settlement loss gain 44

Valuation allowance provided against accrued benefit asset 24576 6587

Costs arising in the period 13133 88295 2123 547

Difference between expected and actual return on plan assets

fortheyear 33387 172705

Difference between actuarial gain loss recognized and actuarial

gain loss on accrued benefit
obligation

for
period 70003 63729 1376 1390

Amortization of the transitional obligation 139 80

Netbenefitexpenseincome 23622 20761 747 843

Defined Contribution Plans
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For the year ended October31 2009 2008

Interest expense on

Long-term debt 55007 34637

Short-term debt 11003 24988

Interest income 7948 18755

CWB carrying charge recovery 2932 7555

55130 33315

lnterestaccretion 2413 1414

Amortization of deferred financing costs 3620 3056

61163 37785

22 COMMITMENTS CONTINGENCIES

AND GUARANTEES

Commitments

The Company including its subsidiaries and its

proportionate share of joint ventures has operating leases

relating primarily to rail cars motor vehicles buildings and

equipment Future minimum lease payments having initial

or remaining lease terms in excess of one year at

October 31 2009 are as follows

2010 $20339

2011 14814

2012 9671

2013 6373

2014 4486

Thereafter 29811

85494

The Company including its subsidiaries and its

proportionate share of joint ventures has finance leases

relating primarily to rail cars motor vehicles buildings and

equipment Future minimum lease terms in excess of one

year at October 312009 are as follows

2010 249

2011 699

948

The Agri-products segment has contractual obligations

relating primarily to various seed growers forthe

production of seed and forage crops Future minimum

contractual obligation payments having initial or

remaining contractual terms in excess of one year at

October3l2009 are asfollows

$23603

614

460

316

$24993

Letters of Credit

At October 312009 the Company had outstanding letters

of credit and similar instruments of $5.1 million related

to operating an agri-business October 312008

$68.2 million.The terms range in duration and expire at

various dates from November 302009 to March 12010

The amounts vary depending on underlying business

activity orthe specific agreements in place with the third

parties These instruments effectively reduce the amount

of cash that can be drawn on the revolving creditfacility

Indemnification of Accounts Receivable

Viterra FinanciallM

The Company has rolling five-year agreementwith

Canadian Schedule chartered bank to provide credit

for qualifying agricultural producers to purchase crop

inputs The agreement may be terminated at an earlier

date by mutual consent or by either party upon one years

written notice The Company indemnifies the bank for

50% offuture losses to maximum of 5% of the aggregate

qualified portfolio balance The Companys aggregate

indemnity will vary at any given time with the size of the

underlying portfolio As at October 31 2009 outstanding

credit was $528.1 million 2008 $487.7 million and the

Companys obligation for past and future losses is current

with the bank in accordance with the Agency Agreement

The Company also has rolling five-year agreementwith

Canadian Schedule chartered bankto provide loans

to feed product customers to purchase feeder cattle as

well as related feed inputs with terms that do not require

payment until the livestock is sold The agreement may

be terminated at an earlier date by mutual consent or by

either party upon one years written notice The Company

indemnifies the bankfor credit losses based on the first

20% to 33% of new credit issued on an individual account

dependent on the accounts underlying credit rating with

losses in excess of these amounts shared on an equal

basis with the bank up to 5% on the aggregate qualified

portfolio balance The Companys aggregate indemnity

will vary at any given time with the credit rating of the

underlying accounts and the aggregate credit outstanding

As at October 312009 outstanding credit was

$35.8 million 2008$31.9 million and the Companys

obligation for past and future losses is current with the

bank in accordance with the Agency Agreement

Guarantees

The Companys subsidiary Viterra Australia has entered

into Deed of Cross Guarantee with certain controlled

entities The effect of this Deed is that Viterra Australia

and each of these controlled entities has guaranteed to

pay any deficiency of any of the companies partyto the

21 FINANCING EXPENSES

2010

2011

2012

2013
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Deed in the event of any of those companies being wound

up Viterra Australia has also issued letters of financial

supportto its associate National Growers Registers

Pty Ltd and its
jointly

controlled entity Australian Bulk

Alliance Pty Ltd The consolidated net assets of the

entities party to the Deed of Cross Guarantee is

$913.0 million at October 31 2009

Viterra Australia is also contingently liable under

guarantee in respect of joint venture entitys bank

loan As at October 31 2009 the maximum amount of the

guarantee is $13.0 million AUD As at October 312009

the principal outstanding and included in the Companys

consolidated borrowings was $13.3 million 2008 nil

Viterra Australia is self-insurer in South Australia for

workers compensation liability
and is subjectto bank

guarantee for $1.6 million AUD 2008 nil

The Company is contingently liable undertwo

guarantees given to third-party lenders who have

provided certain financing facilities to its wholly owned

foreign subsidiaries As at October 312009 the maximum

amounts of the guarantees are $30.0 million and

Japanese Yen JPY2.O billion or approximately

$53.8 million in aggregate As at October 31 2009 the

principal outstanding and included in the Companys

consolidated borrowings was nil 2008 nil

The Company is contingently liable to finance company

for portion of losses incurred related to potential

producer delinquencies associated with equipment

leases and credit provided for the purchase of fertilizer

bins Given historically low delinquent rates in conjunction

with collateral values of assets the Company has accrued

no obligation

The Company is contingently liable under several

guarantees given to third-party lenders who have provided

long-term financing to certain independent hog producers

As at October 312009 the current outstanding balance

of these guarantees is $2.5 million.These guarantees

diminish as the underlying loans are repaid and

expire in 2014

Director and Officer Indemnification

The Company indemnifies its directors and officers

against any and all claims or losses reasonably incurred

in the performance of their service to the Company to the

extent permitted bylaw The Company has acquired and

maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers

as well as those of certain affiliated companies

Other Indemnification Provisions

From time to time the Company enters into agreements

in the normal course of operations and in connection with

business or asset acquisitions or dispositions Bytheir

nature these agreements may provide for indemnification

of counterparties The varying nature of these

indemnification agreements prevents the Companyfrom

making reasonable estimate of the maximum potential

amount it could incur Historically the Company has not

made any significant payments in connection with

these indemnification provisions

Other Contingencies

As at October 31 2009 there are claims againstthe

Company in varying amountsforwhich provision in

the financial statements is not considered necessary

The occurrence of the confirming future event is not

determinable or it is not possible to determine the

amounts that may ultimately be assessed against the

Company with respect to these claims Management

believes that any such amounts would not have

material impact on the business or financial position

of the Company
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23 FINANCIAL AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING

Fair Value

The following table presents the carrying amount and the fair value of the Companys financial instruments and non-financial

derivatives The table also identifies the financial instrument category

As at October31 2009 2008

Financial

Carrying Fair Instruments Carrying
Fair

Value Value Category Value Value

Cash 165200 165200 HET 183536 183536

Short-term investments 868469 868469 HFT-D 486129 486129

Accounts receivable

Loans and receivables 836448 836448 LR 716447 716447

Commodity contracts and exchange-traded derivatives 167756 167756 HFT 70057 70057

Interest rate swaps 470 470 HFT

1004674 1004674 786504 786504

Investments

Availableforsaleatfairvalue 25 25 AFS 62 62

Available for sale at cost 9618 AFS 7359

Non-financial instrument 63 N/A 224

9706 7645

Other long-term assets

Long-termreceivable 18113 18113 LR 2075 2075

Non-financial instrument 99912 N/A 67163

118025 69238

Bank indebtedness 594 594 OFL 655 655

Short-term borrowings 291128 291128 OFL 17769 17769

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Other liabilities 987741 987741 OFL 837654 837654

Interest rate swaps 7089 7089 HFT 2068 2068

Commodity contracts and exchange-traded derivatives 100536 100536 HFT 79763 79763

1095366 1095366 919485 919485

Long-term debt including current portion 1283586 1353793 OFL 610088 615341

Other long-term liabilities

Interest rate swaps 13013 13013 HFT 10121 10121

Classified as other liabilities 16864 16864 OFL 9638 9638

Non-financial instrument 42594 N/A 44424

72471 64183

Financial instruments category/guide HFT Held for trading

HFT-D Held for trading designated

LR Loans and receivables

AFS Available for sale

OFL Other financial liabilities

N/A Not applicable
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The following table presents the fair value and the levels per

the fair value hierarchy where fair value is recognized in the

balance sheet

As at October31 2009

Level One Level Two

Cash 165200

Short-term investments

Accounts receivable

Exchange-traded derivatives

Commodity forward contracts

Foreign exchange forward contracts OTC

Interest rate swaps

Investments

Available for sale at fair value

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Interest rate swap

Exchange-traded derivatives

Commodity forward contracts

Foreign exchange forward contracts OTC

Other long-term liabilities

Interest rate swaps

Financial Risks and Risk Management

The Company faces certain financial risks such as

commodity price foreign exchange interest rate

credit and liquidity risk which can impact its financial

performance The Company is exposed to changes in

commodity prices foreign exchange rates and interest

rates The Company utilizes number of financial

instruments to manage these exposures Financial

instruments are not used fortrading or speculative

purposes The Company mitigates risk associated with

these financial instruments through Board-approved

policies limits on use and amount of exposure

internal monitoring and compliance reporting to senior

management and the Board

Commodity Price Risk

The Companys diverse range of services are spread

across the agri-business supply chain As result the

Company is exposed to agricultural and other related

commodity price movements within the market as

part of its normal operations The Company uses

exchange-traded futures and options contracts

to minimize the effects of changes in the prices of

hedgeable agricultural commodities on its agri

business inventories and agricultural commodities

forward cash purchase and sales contracts Exchange-

traded futures and options contracts are valued atthe

quoted market prices Forward purchase contracts

and forward sales contracts are valued atthe quoted

market prices which are based on exchange quoted

prices adjusted for freight and handling costs The

Company manages the risk associated with inventory

and open contracts on combined basis

The Companys Risk Management Policy provides limits

within which management may maintain inventory and

certain long or short commodity positions Based on

the Companys October 31 2009 closing positions

$10 per tonne change in commodity market prices and

$2 pertonne change in basis levels would result in

$1.7 million change to the Companys aftertax earnings

on commodity positions 2008 $0.4 million In relation

to the natural gas contracts outstanding at October

312009 $1 gigajoule change in market prices would

result in $0.6 million change to the Companys after

tax earnings 2008$1.0 million

ii Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company undertakes certain transactions

denominated in foreign currencies and as result

foreign currency exposures arise The Company

is exposed to foreign exchange risk on financial

commodity contracts which are denominated in foreign

currencies and on its investment in foreign subsidiaries

The Company uses derivative financial instruments

such as foreign currency forward contracts futures

contracts and options to limit exposures to changes

in foreign currency exchange rates with respect to its

recorded foreign currency denominated assets and

liabilities as well as anticipated transactions

868469

58331

90159

19266

470

25

7089

35993

61708

2835

13013
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The following table illustrates derivative financial instruments used to limit exposure with respectto the Canadian dollar

Canadian Derivative Financial Instruments

2009 2009 2008 2008

Currency Currency Currency Currency

Sold Purchased Sold Purchased

Notional U.S dollars 668490 25230 791551 144830

Notional euros 8467 23959 750

Canadian equivalent 754238 27148 882526 158048

FairvalueCAD 736239 27298 988621 175175

UnrealizedgainCAD 14 106684

UnrealizedlossCAD 18013 150 589 17127

The following table illustrates derivative financial instruments used by Viterra Australia to limit exposure with respectto the

Australian dollar

Australian Derivative Financial Instruments

2009 2009 2008 2008

Currency Currency Currency Currency

Sold Purchased Sold Purchased

Notional U.S dollars 411881 232655

Notional euros 70161 49609

Notional NZD 70154 30144

Notional CAD 25001 12383

Notional JPY 3293053 1493613

Notional SOD 17801 3156
Notional CHF CHF 152 CHF 1216
Australian Equivalent 353518 710180

FairvalueCAD 279012 665208

Unrealized
gain CAD 68447 2728

Unrealized loss CAD 4332 28748

During fiscal 2009 the Company implemented hedge

accounting to match the cash flow of some of its

processed products sold in U.S funds with its U.S

dollar currency hedging instruments Maturity dates for

the foreign exchange forward contracts on anticipated

transactions extend to November 2012 With the

purchase of ABBthe Food Processing segment also

has foreign exchange forward contracts in place to

hedge exchange rate risk arising on the sale of malt

Foreign exchange forward contracts are in place for

periods of up to 18 months As at October 312009

the portion of the forward contracts considered to

be ineffective is insignificant The estimated amount

reported in other comprehensive income that is

expected to be reclassified to net earnings as

component of sales and other operating revenues

during the next 12 months is an aftertax gain of

$1.9 million Previously the Food Processing segment

in North America had discontinued hedge accounting

and had thereby increased the potential for
volatility

in income on these hedged contracts
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Except as noted above the foreign currencyforward

contractsfutures contracts and options used bythe

Company are marked-to-market and unrealized gains

and losses are recognized in income in the period in

which they occur

During the year the Company entered into series

of derivative contracts in connection with its offerto

acquire ABB The Company had entered into option

arrangements in orderto limit exposure to change in

the AUD on 51.1 billion AUD These derivatives were

used to mitigate the risk of economic loss arising from

changes in the value of the Australian dollar compared

to the Canadian dollar between the announcement

of the acquisition and the expected closing date The

arrangements were ineligible for hedge accounting

and have resulted in net realized gain of $24.1 million

as at October 312009 that is reported as Net foreign

exchange gain on acquisition
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lO% increase

CDN/AIJD

CDN/U.S dollars

ALJD/U.S dollars

ALJD/Euro

AUD/Japanese Yen

AUD/New Zealand dollars

AUD/Singapore dollars

10% decrease

CDN/AUD

CON/U.S dollars

AUD/US dollars

AUD/Euro

AUD/Japanese Yen

AUD/New Zealand dollars

AU 0/Singapore dollars

The Companys exposure to foreign exchange risk

has changed in the current year The Company is now

exposed to the currencies utilized in the operations

of as well as its net investment in Viterra Australia

most significantly the Australian dollar In the prior

year exposure to currencies otherthan the U.S dollar

was evaluated as immaterial based on the analysis

performed Due to the Companys risk management

strategy the Companys sensitivity in net earnings

to changes in the U.S dollar was also evaluated as

immaterial The sensitivity at the balance sheet date is

not representative of the sensitivity throughout the year

as the year-end exposure does not reflectthe exposure

during the year The sensitivities should therefore be

used with care

Foreign exchange gains of $8.5 million are included in

sales and other operating revenues for the year ended

October 3120092008 $12.7 million gain and foreign

exchange losses of $4.5 million are included in cost

of salesforthe year ended October 31 2009

2008$12.4 million loss

iii Interest Rate Risk

The Companys exposure to interest rate risk relates

primarily to the Companys debt obligations The

Company manages interest rate risk and currency

risk on borrowings by using combination of cash

instrumentsforwards and mixture of fixed and

floating rates The Company has entered into

interest rate swaps to manage variable interest rates

associated with portion of the Companys debt

portfolio The Company uses hedge accounting for

interest rate swaps used to hedge variable rate

long-term debt As at October 31 2009 the portion

of interest rate swaps considered to be ineffective is nil

The estimated amount reported in other comprehensive

income that is expected to be reclassified to net

earnings as component of financing expenses

during the next 12 months is an after tax expense

of $3.2 million

The following table approximates the hedged fixed

rate of interest on the credit facilities based on the

Companys current credit ratings and interest rate

swaps The table also details the Companys sensitivity

as atthe balance sheet date had the illustrated

changes occurred on the interest rate swaps and short-

term borrowings with all other variables held constant

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

The following table details the Companys sensitivity as atthe balance sheet date had currencies moved as illustrated with all other

variables held constant

2009 2008

Impact On Impact On Impact On Impact On

Earnings Equity Earnings Equity

After Tax After Tax AfterTax AfterTax

144000

711 2042 345

2861 3396

394 336

85 1276

932 3410

10

144000

711 2042 345

3504 4152

480 433

104 1560

289 4168

13

Viterra 2009 Annual Financial Review 89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

Hedged fixed rate

of interest on the

credit facility

Impact of 25 basis

point change on

aftertaxother

comprehensive income

Impact of 25 basis

point change on after

tax net earnings

The fairvalue of the secured notes fluctuates as market

interest rates change However the secured notes

have been designated as other financial liabilities and

therefore changes in their fair value have no impact on

net earnings The Companys short-term borrowings

fluctuate with seasonal working capital requirements

Cash and cash equivalents at October 312009 had

weighted average interest rate of 0.4% 20082.3%

iv Credit Risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk in respect of

trade receivables which the Company manages through

ongoing credit reviews of all significant contracts and

analysis of payment and loss history The absence of

significant financial concentration of such receivables

except as noted below for receivables from the CWB

limits its exposure to credit risk Credit risk exposure

for the Agri-products and Feed Products segments are

also limited through an arrangement with Canadian

Schedule chartered bankwhich providesfor limited

recourse to the Company for credit losses on accounts

receivable under Viterra FinancialTM

The Company is also exposed to credit risk in the

event of non-performance of its counterparties on its

derivative contracts However in the case of over-

the-counter derivative contracts the Company only

contracts with pre-authorized counterparties where

agreements are in place and the Company monitors

the credit ratings of its counterparties on an ongoing

basis Exchange-traded futures contracts used to

hedge future revenues in the Companys grain business

are not subjectto any significant credit risk as the

changes in contract positions are settled daily through

recognized exchange

All bad debt write-offs are charged to operating

general and administrative expenses The changes in

the allowance for losses against accounts receivable

are as follows

Included in trade accounts receivable is $223.0 million

due from the CWB which represents significant

concentration of credit risk 2008 $280.0 million

The Companys maximum credit exposure atthe

balance sheet date consists primarily of the carrying

amounts of non-derivative financial assets such as

accounts receivable and long-term receivables as well

as the fair value of commodity contracts exchange-

traded derivatives and other non-trade assets included

in accounts receivable Short-term investments are

held with two Schedule and one Schedule II Canadian

commercial banks and have maturities of less than

three months

Short-Term Canadian dollar U.S dollar Australian dollar

Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

n/a n/a 7.4% 5.9% 8.1% 6.1% 7.8%

$1756 $1502 $391 $602 $298

$510 $30

2009 2008

Balances at the beginning of the year 11942 9582

Provision for losses 40 5443

Write-offs net of recoveries 3821 13083

Balanceatendoftheyear 8081 11942

The distribution of trade accounts receivable by credit

quality as at October31 is shown in the following table

2009 2008

Notpastdue 515215 488144

Past due

Past due 60 days 62065 19957

Past due 61 days and 90 days 4384 2844

Past due91 days 15710 14427

Allowances for losses 8081 111942

589293 513430
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in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

Liquidity
Risk

The Companys liquidity
risk refers to its ability to settle

or meet its obligations as they fall due and is managed

as part of the risk strategy The Company actively

maintains creditfacilitiesto ensure it has sufficient

available funds to meet current and foreseeable

financial requirements Management believes that

future cash flows from operations and availability
under

existing banking arrangements will be adequate to

support these financial liabilities

Accounts Receivable

Commodity contracts

Exchange-traded derivatives

Interest rate swaps

Bank indebtedness

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Other liabilities

Interest rate swaps

Commoditycontracts

Exchange-traded derivatives

Long-term debt including current portion

Other long-term liabilities

Interest rate swaps

Classified as other liabilities

Total

The following table approximates the Companys

remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities

and matching financial assets as at the balance sheet

date The table details the undiscounted cash flows

of financial instruments based on the earliest date on

which the Company can be required to pay The table

includes both interest and principal cash flows

Contractual For the year ending October31

Cash Flows 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter

2423

119259

7741

Collateral

The Company has charged substantially all assets of the

Company and certain of its subsidiaries as security for

borrowingsNoteslOand 11

96169

1169452

26918

594

987741

7089

70251

1126972

1677024

42467

16864

2636463

93746

1024129

2899

594

987741

3417

67484

995902

395650

13236

1343250

24485

11621

526

24485

96426

12115

1820

99266

1579

4657

1579

1092974

4441

11369

1104127

3146

2767

105006

91974

12675

3675

89820
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in thousands of Canadian dollars except as noted

24 MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

The Companys objective when managing capital is to strive

for long-term manageable level of debt to total capital Due

to the seasonal nature of the Companys short-term borrowing

requirements the Companys objective is to manage the level

of debtto total capital between 30% to 40%

Debtto total capital is defined as total interest bearing debt

divided by total interest bearing debt plus the book value of total

shareholders equity Interest bearing debt is the aggregate of

bank indebtedness short-term borrowings long-term debt due

within one year and long-term debt

As at October 31 2009 2008

Bank indebtedness 594 655

Short-term borrowings 291128 17769

Total short-term debt 291722 18424

Long-term debt due within one year 18151 14703

Long-term debt
1265435 595385

Total long-term debt 1283586 610088

Total interest bearing debt 1575308 628512

Shareholders equity 3508919 2200725

Total capital 5084227 2829237

Debt to total capital

As at the balance sheet date

Four quarter average

The Company has covenant to maintain debt to

capitalization rate as prescribed by the financial institutions

for portion of the long-term financing During the year the

Company is in compliance with external covenants relating to

the management of capital

25 FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGES

International Financial Reporting Standards

In January 2006 the CICA Accounting Standards Board

adopted strategic plan forthe direction of accounting

standards in Canada As part of that plan accounting standards

for public companies would be required to converge with

International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS for fiscal

years beginning on or after January 12011 with comparative

figures presented on the same basis In February 2008 the

Accounting Standards Board confirmed the effective due

date of the initial adoption of IFRS The impact of the transition

to IFRS on the Companys consolidated financial statements

continues to be assessed

26 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain of the prior year comparative figures have been

reclassified to conform to the current years presentation

3169

2971

2278

3070
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Investor Information

ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING

The Annual and Special Meeting of Shareholders will be held

at 200 p.m Mountain Standard Time March 10 2010 atthe

Sheraton Suites Calgary Eau Claire 255 Barclay Parade SW
Calgary Alberta Canada

FISCAL YEAR INFORMATION

First Quarter November ito January31

Second Quarter February ito April30

Third Quarter Mayi to July31

Fourth Quarter August ito October31

Viterra issues its quarterly financial results within 45 days

of each quarter-end Its year-end financial information

which includes its fourth quarter is available within

90 days of year end as required by Canadian continuous

disclosure requirements

SHARE CAPITAL

The Companys authorized common stock consists of

an unlimited number of common voting shares which

participate in earnings and are traded publicly on the

Toronto Stock Exchange As at October 312009 there

were 371596508 common shares issued and outstanding

The stock symbol is VT

As result of the ABB transaction on September 232009

Viterra issued 68629939 CHESS Depositary Interests

CDls As of December 31200931332062 CDls which

are included in the above noted authorized common stock

number remain issued and outstanding CDIs are units of

beneficial ownership held and registered with depositary

clearing house in Australia CDIs can be bought or sold on the

Australian Securities Exchange under the symbol VTA and

are convertible at anytime into Viterra common shares

Common Shares Closing Price vs Volume 2009

MC

12 CC Voktme

2fluId1
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct

08 09

Sourc Toronto Stock Exchnge

CDIs Closing Price vs Volume 2009

SP/TSX INDICES

Viterra is member of the SP/TSX Composite Index SP/
TSX Completion Index SP/TSX Consumer Staples Index

SP/TSX Agricultural Products Index MSCI Canada Index and

the ASX 200 and ASX 300 indices

SENIOR NOTES

Viterra has three series of senior notes outstanding

$100 million of Senior Unsecured Notes the notes pay

interest at rate of 8% per annum and mature on

April 82013

$300 million of Senior Unsecured Notes the notes pay

interest ata rate of 8.5% per annum and mature on

July 72014

$200 million of Senior Unsecured Notes the notes pay

interest at rate of 8.5% per annum and mature on

August 12017

All notes are traded in the over-the-counter market

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INFORMATION

The Companys Code of Business Conduct Audit Committee

Charter Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee and

Compensation Committee Terms of Reference and list of

Board of Directors are available on Viterras website at

www.viterra.ca

PRIVACY OFFICER

Toll-Free 1-866-292-7163

Email viterra.privacy@viterra.ca

Thouronde

Source Thomson Routers
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Investor Information

COMPANY REPORTS

Copies of the Companys Annual Report Quarterly Reports

Annual Information Form and other regulatory filings

are available by contacting Investor Relations and

Corporate Affairs at

Viterra Inc

Investor Relations and Corporate Affairs

2625 Victoria Avenue

Regina Saskatchewan Canada S4T 719

Phone 306-569-4859

Toll-Free 866-569-4411

Email investorviterra.ca

Copies are also available on the Companys website at

www.viterra.ca or through the System for Electronic Disclosure

and Retrieval SEDAR at www.sedar.com

SHARE TRANSFERS/LOST CERTIFICATES

Share transfer inquiries lost certificates changes of address or

other shareholder inquiries should be directed to the Companys

transfer agent Computershare Investor Services Inc

UNITED GRAIN GROWERS/AGRICORE UNITED

SHARE CERTIFICATES

Shareholders who previously held common or preferred shares

in United Grain Growers or Agricore/Agricore United may

contact Computershare toll-free at 1-866-997-0995 for

information on their shares

TRANSFER AGENT INFORMATION

Common Stock

Computershare Investor Services Inc

6005308th Avenue SW

Calgary Alberta Canada T2P 3S8

Toll-Free 1-866-997-0995

Email servicecomputershare.com

website www.computershare.com

CDIs

Computershare Investor Services Inc

Level 5115 Grenfell Street

Adelaide South Australia Australia 5000

Toll-Free within Australia 1300 550 374

Outside Australia 01161 394154072

Email web.queries@computershare.com.au

www.computershare.com.au

INVESTOR INQUIRIES

Investor Relations and Corporate Affairs

Email investor@viterra.ca

Phone 1-306-569-4859

Toll-Free 1-866-569-4411

Fax 1-306-569-4400

CORPORATE OFFICES VITERRA

Calgary Alberta

Bow Valley Square

34002O55thAvenue SW

Calgary Alberta Canada T2P 2V7

Telephone 1-403-440-1119

Fax 1-403-718-3829

Regina Saskatchewan

2625 Victoria Avenue

Regina Saskatchewan Canada S41 7T9

Telephone 1-306-569-4411

ToIl-Free 1-866-569-4411

Fax 1-306-569-4708

Winnipeg Manitoba

CanWest Global Place

201 Portage Avenue

P.O Box 6600

Winnipeg Manitoba Canada R3C 3A7

Telephone 1-204-944-5411

Fax 1-403-944-5454

Adelaide Australia

124130 South Terrace

Adelaide South Australia Australia 5000

Telephone 01161882117199

Fax 01161882311249

LEG AL COUNSEL

MacPherson Leslie Tyerman LLP

Barristers and Solicitors

Regina Saskatchewan Canada

Balfour Moss

Barristers and Solicitors

Regina Saskatchewan Canada

Freehills

Solicitors

Sydney Australia

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche LLP

Regina Saskatchewan Canada
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Glossary of Terms

Accredited Exporter

Grain marketing companies authorized to fulfill

Canadian Wheat Beard ICWBj export sales

coirimitmects on behalf of the CWB

Agent of the CWB
Grain handling companies that enter agreements

with the CWB to purchase procats and thip grain

for CWB accoants

Agronomy

Branch of agricalture that studies craps and

soils Agronomists research
crop rotation plant

breeding soil classification soil fertility tillagn

management weed control and post management

Anhydrous Ammonia

cost-effective nitrogen fertilizer thats also

known an NH jB2-G-G Its applied by injection

bolow the soil sorface either before or

daring seeding

Biofuel

Renewable liquid feels wade from plant wafter not

fossil feels Examples are ethanol and biodiesel

Blending

Mixing varying grades of
grain

to achieve specific

blends Blending also refers to combining fertilizer

fypes
fo meef desired nufrienf levels to

maximize yields

Bundling

Selling complementary products and services

together to provide competitive buying power

to farmers

Canadian Wheat Board CWB
The Canadian Wheat Board in the marketing

authority for western Caxadian wheat

dcrum and barley for export and domestic

human consumption

Cash ticket

Cheque issued to farmer for the purchase of

cereal
grains special ciop grains or oilseeds

Certified seed

Seed that meets basic ofandardn of parity

and
viability

CHESS Depositary Interests CDls

unit of beneficial ownership in an issued share

which is listed on foreign exchange

Contract calls

formal
repoest by CWB

asking farmers to deliver

portion of their wheat and
barley crops into the

primary elevator system

Crop Protection Products

Prodocts such as herbicides insecticides and

fungicides that are applied to fields to manage

weeds insects and diseases

Crop rotation

Yearly crop alternating to control weeds insects

disease and to repincish nutrients and

Deferred cash ticket

deferred payment made at the repaust of

the prsdccer for commodities delivered to

grain companies

Ethanol

bisfuel derived from grain and corn that

can be used instead of or as an additive to

gasoline Ethanol is primarily used in

transportation applications

Fertilizer

Products that contain essential nutrients for

plast growth especially nitrogen phosphoros

and potassium

Fungicide

Chemical applied to toad or crop foliage to control

soppress or kill fongi that cacao plant diseases

Germination

First stage in the development of plant from seed

Glyphosate

Broad-npucfrum foliar applied herbicide that ix

effective in the control of weeds including both

grass
and broadleaf species

Grading

Standard system cued to determine
grain puality

including kernel colour plumpness protein

concentration and size

Grain Marketing contracts

Contracts that provide pricing choices to farmers

and end-users These contracts can be customized

to maef various marketing strategies

Herbicide

Chemical that is used to control sappress or kill

weeds before or after
crop emergence

Hybrid

Gffspring seed produced by combining genetically

different parent plants Typically hybrids are the

result of two varieties being cross-pollinated to

produce third which has more favoured qualifiet

Identity Preserved

IF is
process or system of documenting

the identity of product and maintaining ifs

segregation within the system

Inputs

Components needed to grow crop including

seed fertilizer and crop protection products

Metric tonne

Equals 22G4.B pounds as opposed to an imperial

tot which is 2GGG pounds

MMT
Million Metric Tonces

Multi-car Unit Train

Trains with
up to 112 cars which are delivered to

high fhroughpat grain terminals within specified

fimelina

Open-pollinated

Plant species not genetically altered and capable

of reproducing ix true farm from one generation

to the neat

Pool Return Outlook or PRO

An estimate of the total returns prodacers can

expect when marketing their crops through

fhaCWB

Producer cars

Faucets loaded directly by producers that are made

available through the Canadian Grain Commission

jCGCj and the CWB to specific pre-approved

locations typically export terminals

Producer terminal

Grain handling facility owned and operated usa

business venture by prodacers

Production contract

Legally binding agreement for fixed term signed

before grain production begino grain producer

agrees to tell to the grain company specifically

designated crop raitad on identified acres The

grain producer is paid according to specified farms

Proprietary Seed

Seed owned and disfribcfad solely by one

company Viterra ownt the
rights to several

proprietary seed varieties

Railcar incentives

Efficiency rebate supplied by the railways to grain

companies for loading multiple car units

Special crop

The term special crop refers to diverse
group

of crops such as pulses chickpeas dry beans dry

peas end lenfilsj buckwheat canary teed mustard

seed specialty outs and sunflower seed

Summer fallow

Agricultural land that is left unneeded during

growing seaton Fallowing is often done to

conserve moisture and replenish nutrients

Weed control is accomplished by fillage or

herbicide application

Tendering

Process by which the CWB tenders
portion of its

annual exports to grain companies and companion

bid either at premium ore discount to fuIhIl

eaporf sales

Urea

Urea j4B-G-Gj isa tingle nutrient fertilizer that

contains
large amount of nitrogen and is

manufactured from ammonia and carbon dioxide

Urea conteint the highest nitrogen percentage

j46%j of all granularferfilizert and iu widely used

usa nitrogen fertilizer for crops

reduce erosion
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Viterra performed well in an environment of

declining commodity prices particularly in our

grain operations where we shipped 17.0 million

tonnes of grains and oilseeds record for our

North American operations In Agri-products we

stayed focused on delivering to our customers

specific needs even while experiencing some

challenging weather early in the growing season

We saw fertilizer pricing and margins significantly

impact financial performance in that segment

Net earnings were $113.1 million for 2009

or $0.45 per share compared to $288.3 million or

$1.31 per share in 2008 Cash flow from operations

remained strong at $223.4 million while free cash

flow prior to working capital changes and after

capital expenditures was $148.1 million

invite readers to review Managements

Discussion and Analysis which is contained in

our Financial Review for thorough discussion

of our 2009 performance

We executed our transaction with ABB and as

promised retained very strong balance sheet

The total value of this transaction was $1.4 billion

achieved through an offering to ABB shareholders

of combination of equity and cash in which

ABB shareholders elected the maximum share

consideration The transaction was completed

on September 23 2009 At October 31 2009 our

total debt-to-capital ratio was 31% and we had

over $1 billion of cash and short-term investments

on the balance sheet

The integration of our Australian operations will

create cross-pollination bringing together the

best systems ideas and people from two distinct

agricultural regions We anticipate benefits on

both sides making Viterra stronger Company

globally Current expectations are for synergies of

approximately $30 million delivered we believe

over the next 24 months

We completed the year as more geographically

diverse Company yet we maintained the financial

stability that has become our hallmark It is this

discipline that will allow us to explore additional

opportunities as we move forward while being

careful stewards of the financial resources

entrusted to us by our shareholders and lenders

Our investment guidelines and profile are clear

we strive for profitable growth by investing to

earn more than our cost of capital We intend to

maintain healthy balance sheet with debt-to-

capital ratio of between 30% and 40% We prefer

existing businesses with low risk profile and

that naturally fit our core competencies Where

we see strategic fit or opportunities to acquire

companies that are scalable and are consistent

with our value-chain approach we will act

THE GROWING FOCUS ON FOOD

There is fundamental driver behind our business

the world is going to need more food

The global population is expected to increase

from its current 6.8 billion people to 9.0 billion

by 2050 To meet the needs of this burgeoning

population it is estimated that food production

must increase by 70% with an additional billion

tonnes of cereal crops and 200 million tonnes of

meat requirements

While these are long-term projections it is

important to note that the impact is reality today

It is an ongoing story and one that is unfolding

at an increasingly rapid rate

Countries around the world will be required to

significantly increase their investment in seed

technology fertilizer and infrastructure to support

additional food production Viterras value chain is

built around these growing needs

Viterra 2009 Business Review



$80 million

2005

January31

Viterras market capitalization

has grown to nearly $4 billion

31
as at October 31 2009

investments

The key however is our ability to collect and

market grain to geographically diverse areas Our

high throughput port terminals on Canadas West

Coast are an important gateway to the Pacific Rim
while Thunder Bay Ontario serves Europe and the

United States U.S. Our Australian operations

optimize movement of grain and non-grain

commodities to Asian countries and provide

another source by which we can satisfy customers

Our global operations provide access to the

largest export origination for the core ingredients

we handle Canada and Australia comprise over

40% market share of the worlds aggregate wheat

barley and canola exports With our geographic

diversity multiple originations and shipping

capabilities we can arbitrage vessel logistics

valuable advantage as we build relationships with

destination customers around the world

In November we opened an international trading

office in Geneva Switzerland It is strategically

located in the commodity trading capital of the

world Our team is responsible for developing new

relationships and identifying opportunities in

European regions where large portion of the

worlds new grain production will be grown in

the future

Some areas like the Black Sea region of eastern

Europe will play an increasingly important role in

addressing global food demand but the area also

presents greater risk According to the U.S Food

and Agriculture Policy Research Institute FAPRI
net trade exports of wheat barley and canola from

this region alone will increase by 7.6 million tonnes

over the next 10 years That makes it important

for us to start building relationships in this area

We will approach the region with the same

patience and diligence that has characterized our

previous actions

In other areas of the world our trading offices in

Japan Singapore and China put us closer to

destination customers providing us better insights

and understanding of their needs and challenges

while accessing better market intelligence on

global scale

Much change is occurring around the world and

we must be prepared For instance it has been

reported that Saudi Arabia will end domestic

wheat production by 2016 to conserve water

This could result in imports of more than

2.5 million tonnes of wheat per year In order

to be competitive Canada and Viterra as the

largest grain company in this nation must

ensure that we are efficient competitive and

have high-quality products available to meet

these growing appetites

Given the anticipated rise in global food

consumption we believe our activities now

position us for growth and success in

as at October 31 2009

Viterra has over $1 billion

of cash and short-term

2.

October31

Debt-to-capital ratio

the years ahead
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LEVEL OF TRUST

While our physical assets are essentia for our

success Viterra is aso distinguishing itseR through

our commitment to rehable suppy food quahty and

food safety

Viterra has transformed from handler of raw

commodities to become preferred supplier of

high-quality food ingredients with operations

tailored to meet the specific needs of destination

customers around the world We have designed

systems and processes that protect the integrity

of the ingredients supply allowing us to build

stronger connections to world-class business

partners and enabling us to receive premium

for our products

In short we have established level of trust that

is deeply valued by customers employees and

our communities

This begins with our commitment to Viterras

core values of integrity trust respect and high

performance By remaining steadfast in our

commitment to these values we have given

our people the ability to take pride in their

Company and they in turn have made us

exceedingly proud of their efforts

This becomes an important point of differentiation

one that helps us attract the brightest employees

and the best customers This is an important

building block for our Company one we will defend

vigorously as we continue to grow

PLATFORM FOR GROWTH

As we look ahead to fiscal 2010 and beyond we

believe we are well positioned to continue to

deliver results for our stakeholders

We have the infrastructure to compete on global

level and the relationships to fuel future growth

Most importantly we have built team of people

who are committed to our vision and goals who are

motivated to help Viterra achieve new levels of

success and who are relentlessly focused on

creating value

Given the increasing importance of food

ingredients we expect considerable

opportunities to generate additional value for

our stakeholders particularly in the value-added

sector In North America we intend to expand our

service offerings and agri-products retail presence

and bring more proprietary products to farmers to

reduce their risk In our processing operations we

will look for acquisitions that enable us to capitalize

on core capabilities while addressing the growing

demand for healthy food ingredients

Lljr abiUty to achieve th.s wifl aiways be cioseiy

ked to our core vaues and our continued

ccrnmitmentto serving the farmers destination

cStomers and communities who view Viterra as

trusted business partner

Creating connections is about building on these

relationships It is about connecting supply and

demand and farmers to consumers to build

successful enduring and prosperous future for

our Company

r277

MAYO SCHMIDT

Fresident and Chief Executive Officer

VITERRAS GLOBAL MARKETS

Viterra exports premium-quality

ingredients to over 50

countries worldwide

NORTH

AMERICA

Wheat Feed Barley

Malt Barley Canola

Ourum Flax Mustard

Oats Rye Pulses etc

NORTHERN EUROPE

Wheat Oats Mustard Flax

Canary Seed Pulses etc

Wheat Malt Barley

Feed Barley Cunsla

Canary Seed Msstatd

Csttonseed Pulses etc

MIDOLE EAST

Wheat Barley Canula

Feed Barley Pulses etc

SOUTHERN EUROPE

Wheat Durum Peas

Lentils Beans Mustard etc

AFRICA

Wheat Durum

Beans Mustard etc

SOUTH

AMERICA

Wheat Malt Barley Beaes

Canaty Seed etc

AUSTRALIA

Wheat Barley Malt Berley Canula

Durem Mustard Oats etc

Viterra 2009 BuSinesS Review



Geographically expand core

capabilities focusing on

regions that originate wheat

SELECT CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

in thousands except per share amounts

canola and barley

Actual 12 Months

Ended October31

20091 2008

Sales and other operating revenues 6635572 6777566

Gross profit and net revenues from services 849963 02683

Operating general and administrative expenses 526265 494227

EBlTDA 323698 532604

Amortization 109141 106832

EBlT 214557 425772

Gain loss on disposal of assets 10314 1263

Integration expenses 10191 4622

Net foreign exchange gain on acquisition 24105

Recovery of pension settlement 3356

Financing expenses 61163 37785

Earnings before taxes 156994 377984

Provision for corporate taxes

Current portion 14144 9422

Future portion 29723 70280

Net earnings 113127 288282

Earnings per share 0.45 131

These results include the eperatians at Viterra Australia effective September 24 2009

See Nee-GAAP Measures in Sectien t8 ef Viterres Aenual Financial Reviewer eeline at Viterra.ca

CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

in thousands

Actual 12 Months

Ended October31

20091 2008

Net earnings 113127 288282

Adjustments for items not involving cash 110296 167984

Cash flow provided by operations 223423 456266

Changes in non-cash working capital items 233940 172545

Cash flow provided by used in operating activities 457363 283721

Free Cash Flow

Cash flow provided by operations 223423 456266

Property plant and equipment expenditures 75283 55583

Free Cash Flow 148140 400683

These results include the speratlees of Viterra Australia effective September 24 2009

See Nsn-SAAP Meesures in Secties Ref Viterras Annual Fisancial Reviewer eeline at Vitvrra.ca

Establish an integrated

marketing and trading group

to extend origination pipeline

and expand international

trading and logistics

Invest in grain handling

and agri-products to

establish Viterra as the

supplier of choice

Invest in value-added

businesses to increase

contributions from

processing

Enhance operational

excellence to reduce costs

and improve efficiency

Establish Corporate

Responsibility framework

commitment

Viterra 2009 Business Review
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GRAIN 595%ASCAL 2009

EBTDA BREAKDOWN

Prior corpora expenses

Include contr butions from ABB from

Septo mber 24 ro Or tober 31 2009

AGRI-PRODUCTS 311%

PROCESSING 88%

Viterr is involved in oat and

canol processing ri North

Ame rca and ialt proec ssirig in

anada and Austiaha As one

of the world irqer ndusti ial

oat processors we produce

quahty oat or iducts for all the

najor cereal and breakfast

bar hr mdc are the largest

rnaltster in Austraha with 63c of

that country malt production

supplying major brewers in Asmi

and Aristrali

Sales

EBIEDA

With cuslor mills arid

operations throughout Can di

the and New Zealand

Viterra provides animal feed

products and nutrients to the

dairy beet poultry sheep arid

swine industries This provides

stable non easonal nurains

creates end rr irkets foi our

grain and diversifies our

custornei base

EBITDA

Ic support the purchase aT

ritical crop nput ai feed

Vitorra aUc provides the ii aamr

for our cus ormn to financ

those purchases Through ir

growing redit programi mid

alliance with major ar adia

financial institution xto

up to $05 billie iii timer

loops annually his diversrh

our rcvcnu carw and

deepen oc relation hip with

oui cutomcrs

mm Profit

2008

ED TDA

FOOD PROCESSING FEED PRODUCTS FINANCIAL PRODUCTS

2008

2008

2008

2008

2008

2008 21 08

2808 2008 2088
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Vterra IS Id

CONNEC1NG FARMGATE TO CONSUMER

Grain handhng and marketing remain fundamental

components of our value chain as we earn revenues

from farmgate to dehvery to destination customers in

domslic and freign markets

In Can ida and Australia we operate

190 grain har dung facilities

13 dedicated port facilities

CONNECflNG FARMERS

TO DES11NATION CUSTOMERS

The commodit es purchased from farmers are

cleaned blended and stored byViterra Each piocess

adds value For ur stakeholders Merchandisers

trade producers commodities into domestic and

interna ional markets matching supply with demand

Gui ierchandising teams work closely with those

whu ir inago ow logisticdl rquremtints through

trucking rail vessel and intermodal freight

CREATNG NtJTfflTOUS

FEED FOR ANMALS

In Canada the

United States and

New Zealand we

manufacture sell

arid distribute feed

products nutritional

supplements and

commodity ingredients

to livestock producers

Viterra has

lb feed mills in

North America

and Australia

Construction of an

additional mill in

South Auckland

New Zealand with

total capacity of

180000 tonnes

ADDING VALUE

TO FOOD INGREDIENTS

Adding value to raw

commodities either at

the point of production

or near the point of

delivery allows

Viterra to deliver the

ingredients used by

brandriame food

manufacturers

Viterra has

21f of North

American oat milling

capacity

of industrial

ingredient supply

market

Processing

capabilities in canola

arid barley

Viterra is now

Australias larqest

malt processor with

000000 metric

tonnes caparity ii

eight plants

treaki stu.rea clii

eitth cita Is

11.4 million rt rines of storage capacity

\ite dS kell

SIt EX P15

ul

low

ge It 11 Pd



PLATFORM FOR SUSTANABLE GROWTH
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AGRCULTLJRE MEETS ENVRONMENT
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TAKING LEADERSHIP ROLE ACHIEVING RECORD SAFETY PERFORMANCE

Viterra supports the education of farm customers

in Canada to help them maximize the value of

their operations while protecting their land and

minimizing the impact on the environment In the

past fiscal yea Viterra has contributed in excess

of $1.8 million for this initiative

We have committed an additional $1 million in

funding to support grower training in Australia

drawing upon our experience in Canada and

building on our combined research and develop

ment expertise We envision program that builds

on industry-wide education training and sustain-

ability practices to encourage best practices in

agriculture and that supports continuous

knowledge transfer between our two countries

BUILDING CULTURE OF SUCCESS

Viterras ability to achieve key goals and targets

is directly tied to our ability to attract retain and

reward our employees the people responsible

for our success

In 2009 Viterra launched the program YourTotal

Rewards comprehensive package that includes

an equitable approach to base compensation

performance-based incentive program benefit

and pension plan and an employee share purchase

plan to promote stronger sense of ownership in

Viterras success

In addition we have adopted the same approach

to nutrition inside Viterra that we encourage with

customers around the world By subsidizing fitness

and health programs and keeping free oatmeal

and fruit available throughout our organization

we encourage our people to remain healthy

and productive

Just like farmers pursue record harvests

Viterra has put priority on safety performance

which protects our employees serves customers

and establishes strong relationships with our

communities

Guided by the Environment Health and Safety

policy adopted by the Companys Board of

Directors our people vigorously pursue best

practices and improved performance and results

are reported in real time.This has been built

into our Companys operating systems through

mechanisms that include formal training ongoing

on-site assessments and monthly facility meetings

In 2009 we achieved our best-ever results for injury

prevention reflecting the strong commitment of

our employees and contractors

We use similar approach to safeguarding

communities bringing industry-leading best

practices to our management of fertilizers and

other agricultural products For example we have

worked collaboratively with the Canadian Fertilizer

Institute CFI on its Anhydrous Ammonia Code

of Practice for Storage Handling and Distribution

More of our facilities have completed the CFI

National Code of Practice Audit than any other

company Viterra also has more than 80 specially

trained personnel and 16 equipment depots

strategically located across Western Canada ready

to respond to railcar highway or field incidents

involving fertilizers or farm chemicals

96%
safety index measurement

versus target of 90%

22 Viterra 2009 Business Review



SHARNC OUR COMMITMENTS WTH COMMtJNTES

At ftc heart our isinr 55 is the desire to irnpr ve
pcoplcr qu hty ol life with food ingiedients We
back thi up in communities by supporting evenft

id ctivitie that ci courage hcalthy lfeetyles oi

aquc iltr ral evclopment in the aicas iii which we
wo and liv

lr tot ii we pi ovided $12 million in North Americ

and Austiali in support of our communities

We are always locuscd on identifying areas

ma arc important our stakeholdcrs and that

arc consistent with the goals and values of

our Cornpa ry

As ai exais Ic we partnered with the Canadian

Par alympic Comniittec to launch the Power of the

Prairies prog am in Western Canada As part of

the initiative Paralyinpic ithletes visit schools to

educrte youth about the importance of nutrition

and physical activity his provides forum for

diacussian of the conrieton of proper nutrition

and lie Ithy festyles while emphasizing the role

Viterra plays in providing quality ingredk rits to

prodr cc thc toods th it nourish people across

anita and round tie world

In Au tralia wc hay Community fund which

offe hnanci il grants for conimurrity piojects in

the owns wI eroVite ra conducts its business

Thess small communities are often micscd in

major fundin oroiec herefore the fund ng ihoy

rem ive from Viterra rnakc big difference

Additionally Viterra donated $83 000 AUD to

the Royal Hying Doctor Service of Australia

comprehensive aero medical organization that

delivers exter sive primary health care arid 24 hour

emergency service to those who live work and

travel throughout Australia particularly in remote

and regional areas
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Viterras management team has posUoncdVitena as leader

shapnq the future of ajriculture and expanding ow Companys

roich and influence around the world

Mayo Schmidt

Preudent and

Chef Execuflve Othus

Fran Maecha Rex McLennan

Chiet Operating Ofhcer Chief Finantial Officer

Andrew Muirhead

Semor Voe Preodent

Corporate Development

Rob Gordon Doug Wonnacott Robert Miller Don Chapman

Presde it Soatheast Asia and Scoot VicePresident Scoot VoePresident Senor Vice Presde it
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William Mooney

Senior VicePresir mt
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George Prosk Ray Dean Steven Berger

Senior VicePresident Senior VicePresident and Senior Vice Presidmot
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Corporate Seuctary and Transformation

Colleen Vancha

Serrror Vicm President

lnvestor Relations and

Corpor iti Affairs

Brooks Grant1

Chief lrrfornratiorr Officer arrd VicePresiderit and treasurer Vice President and
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VITERRA INC

NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE HOLDERS OF

COMMON SHARES

TO BE HELD ON MARCH 10 2010

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual and special meeting the Meeting of the holders of the common shares the

Common Shares of Viterra Inc the Company will be held at The Sheraton Suites Calgary Eau Claire 255

Barclay Parade SW Calgary Alberta on March 10 2010 at 200 p.m Calgary time for the following purposes

to receive the Annual Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended

October 31 2009 together with the
report

of the auditors thereon

to elect Directors

to appoint auditors

to consider the Shareholder proposal set out in Appendix of the accompanying Management Information

Circular and

to consider such other business as may properly come before the Meeting

The Board of Directors of the Company has fixed January 28 2010 as the record date to determine which Shareholders are

entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Meeting The accompanying Management Information Circular provides

additional information relating to the matters to be dealt with at the Meeting and forms part of this Notice

Please exercise your right to vote by ensuring that proxy in the enclosed form is submitted for that purpose on your

behalf If your Common Shares are not held in your name and you wish to attend the Meeting in person please refer to the

information in the accompanying Management Information Circular under the title Non-Registered Shareholders If you

are CHESS Depositary Interest CDI holder please refer to the Voting instructions for CDI Holders Unless

otherwise extended by the Company proxies must be received by the Companys agent Computershare Investor Services

Inc by no later than 400 p.m Toronto time on March 2010 or if the Meeting is adjourned 400 p.m Toronto time on

the day prior to any adjourned meeting excluding Saturdays Sundays and holidays The address to which proxies should

be submitted is Computershare Investor Services Inc 100 University Avenue 9th floor Toronto Ontario M5J 2Yl

DATED at Regina Saskatchewan this 1st day of February 2010

By Order of the Board of Directors

signed Raymond Dean

Senior Vice-President and General

Counsel/Corporate Secretary

-3-



VOTING RIGHTS AND SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

Record Date fir Meeting

Only holders the Shareholders of common shares the Common Shares of Viterra Inc the Company or

Viterra of record on January 28 2010 the Record Date are entitled to vote at the annual and special meeting to he

held March 10 2010 the Meeting or any adjournment or adjournments thereof unless after the Record Date holder of

record transfers Common Shares and the transferee upon producing properly endorsed certificate or certificates evidencing

such Common Shares or otherwise establishing ownership of such Common Shares requests not later than 10 days before the

Meeting that the transferees name be included in the applicable list of Shareholders entitled to vote in which case such

transferee shall be entitled to vote such Common Shares at the Meeting

Persons Making the Solicitation

This solicitation is made on behalf of the management of the Company The costs incurred in the preparation and mailing of

the accompanying Form of Proxy the Form of Proxy/Proxy Notice of Annual and Special Meeting the Notice of

Meeting and this Management Information Circular the Circular will be borne by the Company

Appointment and Revocation of Proxies

SHAREHOLDER SUBMITTING PROXY HAS THE RIGHT TO APPOINT PERSON TO REPRESENT

SUCH SHAREHOLDER AT THE MEETING OTHER THAN THE PERSON OR PERSONS DESIGNATED IN

THE FORM OF PROXY FURNISHED BY THE COMPANY TO EXERCISE THIS RIGHT THE

SHAREHOLDER SHOULD INSERT THE NAME OF THE DESIRED REPRESENTATIVE IN THE BLANK
SPACE PROVIDED IN THE APPLICABLE FORM OF PROXY AND STRIKE OUT THE OTHER NAMES OR
SUBMIT ANOTHER APPROPRIATE FORM OF PROXY

In order to he effective each proxy must be completed as outlined therein and delivered to the attention of Computershare

Investor Services Inc 100 University Avenue 9th floor Toronto Ontario M5J 2Y1 by 400 p.m EST on March 2010

The registered Shareholders electing to submit proxy by mail must complete date and sign the Form of Proxy It must be

returned to Computershare Investor Services Inc in the postage pre-paid return envelope provided The registered

Shareholders electing to submit proxy by telephone or Internet should follow the instructions set forth on the Form of

Proxy

Shareholder who has submitted proxy may revoke it by an instrument in writing executed by the Shareholder or his or

her attorney authorized in writing or if the Shareholder is corporation executed by duly authorized director officer or

attorney thereof and deposited with Computershare Investor Services Inc at the address described above or the Company

Attention Corporate Secretary at any time prior to 400 p.m EST on March 2010

Exercise of Discretion by Proxy holders

All Common Shares represented at the Meeting by properly executed proxies will be voted and where choice with respect

to any matter to be acted upon has been specified in the instrument of proxy the Common Shares represented by the
proxy

will be voted in accordance with such specification IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH SPECIFICATION THE COMMON
SHARES REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF THE RESOLUTIONS SET

FORTH HEREIN The enclosed Form of Proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein with

respect to amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting and with respect to other matters which

may properly come before the Meeting

At the time of printing this Circular management of the Company knows of no such amendment variation or other matter
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Non-Registered Shareholders

The information set forth in this section is of importance to Shareholders who do not hold their Common Shares in their own

name Shareholders who do not hold their Common Shares in their own name should note that only proxies deposited by

Shareholders whose names appear on the records of the Company as the registered holders of the Common Shares can be

recognized and acted upon at the Meeting

Only registered holders of the Common Shares or the persons they appoint as their proxies are permitted to vote at the

Meeting Non-Registered Shareholders defined below holding Common Shares are permitted solely to attend but not to

vote at the Meeting unless appointed as proxy holder

In many cases Common Shares beneficially owned by holder Non-Registered Shareholder are registered in the

name of an intermediary an Intermediary/Intermediaries that the Non-Registered Shareholder deals with in respect

of the Common Shares such as among others banks trust companies securities dealers or brokers and trustees or

administrators of self-administered RRSPs RRIFs RESPs and similar plans

In accordance with the requirements of National Instrument 54-10 of the Canadian Securities Administrators the Company
has distributed copies of the Notice of Meeting this Circular and the Form of Proxy collectively the meeting materials

to the clearing agencies and Intermediaries for onward distribution to Non-Registered Shareholders

The Company has retained Computershare Investor Services Inc Computershare and Broadridge Financial Solutions

Inc Broadridge to forward the meeting materials to Non-Registered Shareholders who have not waived the right to

receive meeting materials Computershare or Broadridge will provide such Non-Registered Shareholder with voting

instruction form which must be completed and signed by the Non-Registered Shareholder in accordance with the directions

on the voting instruction form which the Company understands will permit the completion of the voting instruction form by

telephone facsimile Internet vote email or regular mail

The purpose of these procedures is to permit Non-Registered Shareholders to direct the voting of the Common Shares they

beneficially own Please note that Non-Registered Shareholders beneficially owning Common Shares are permitted to attend

the Meeting Should Non-Registered Shareholder wish to attend and vote at the Meeting in person or have another

person attend and vote on behalf of the Non-Registered Shareholder the Non-Registered Shareholder should advise

Computershare or Broadridge as applicable in accordance with the instructions set out on the voting instruction

form

Non-Registered Shareholders should carefully follow the instructions of their intermediaries Comp titers hare or

Broadridge including any instructions as to the time within which Non-Registered Shareholders will be required to return

voting instruction forms to the Intermediaries Computershare or Broadridge as applicable

Non-Registered Shareholder may revoke voting instruction form or waiver of the right to receive meeting materials and

to vote given to an Intermediary Computershare or Broadridge as applicable at any time by written notice to the

Intermediary except that an Intermediary is not required to act on revocation of voting instruction form or of waiver of

the right to receive meeting materials and to vote that is not received by the Intermediary at least seven days prior to the

Meeting

VOTING INSTRUCTIONS FROM CDI HOLDERS

The Common Shares trade on the Australian Stock Exchange ASX in the form of CHESS Depositary Interests CDIs
CDIs are exchangeable at the option of the holder into Common Shares at the rate of one CDI per one Common Share

holder of CDIs has right to instruct CHESS Depositary Nominees Pty Ltd CDN the registered holder of the Common

Shares evidenced by the CDIs on how it should vote such holders beneficial interest in Common Shares with respect to the

matters to be dealt with at the Meeting

Holders of CDIs will receive the meeting materials and voting instruction form VIF from Computershare Investor

Services Pty Limited In order for the holder of CDIs to provide voting instructions to CDN the holder must complete and

sign the VIF and return it to Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited in accordance with the instructions provided
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CDI holder can provide voting instructions by Internet at www.investorvote.com.au Voting is available 24 hours day

through 500 pm Australian Eastern Time on March 2010 If CDI holder provides voting instructions by Internet the

holder does not need to return the V1F to Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited

If CDI holder wishes to submit young instructions by mail or facsimile the holder should complete sign and return the VIF

to Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited by 500 pm Australian Eastern Time on March 2010 CDI holder may

change prior voting instructions by submitting later-dated VIF by 500 pm Australian Eastern Time on March 2010

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES

As of January 22 2010 there were 371596508 Common Shares outstanding each share carrying the right to one vote The

Directors have fixed the close of business on January 28 2010 as the Record Date for the Meeting Only Shareholders who

are on record at the close of business on that date are entitled to receive notice and to attend and to vote at the Meeting

simple majority of votes cast by person or proxy will constitute approval of matters voted on at the Meeting except as

otherwise specified

quorum for the Meeting shall be person or persons present and holding or representing by proxy not less than 5% of the

total number of issued and outstanding shares having voting rights at the Meeting No business shall be transacted at the

Meeting unless the requisite quorum is present at the commencement of such Meeting provided that if quorum is present

at the commencement of the Meeting quorum shall be deemed to be present during the remainder of the Meeting

Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended October 31 2009 are available on SEDAR and on the Companys

website at www.viterra.ca

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Election of Directors

The number of Directors to be elected at the meeting is 13 The Articles of the Company provide that the Board of Directors

the Board shall consist of minimum of five Directors and maximum of 15 with the actual number to be determined

from time to time by the Board The Board has determined that following the Meeting there will be 13 Directors

The table below contains the names of the nominees for election as Directors and unless authority is withheld the

persons named in the accompanying Form of Proxy intend to vote for these nominees Management does not

contemplate that any of these nominees will be unable to serve as Director but should that occur for any reason the persons

named in the accompanying Form of Proxy reserve the right to vote for another nominee in their discretion unless the

Shareholder has directed that the shares be withheld from voting in the election of Directors Each Director elected will

subject to the bylaws of the Company hold office until the close of the next annual meeting of Shareholders of the Company

or until his or her successor is elected or appointed in accordance with the bylaws The information indicated in the table

below is as of January 18 2010

Mr Milavsky Director since March 2003 has elected to retire from the Board at this annual general meeting He is

former Chair of the Audit Committee and he has served as Chair of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee since

joining the Board and responsible for leading numerous changes to governance practices since that time

On November 52008 the Board of Directors resolved that for all future elections of Directors the following policy will be

adhered to with respect to any Director who receives greater number of shares withheld from his or her election than votes

in favour of his or her election
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Directors stand for election each year at the annual meeting of Shareholders Any nominee for Director who

receives greater number of shares withheld from his or her election than votes in favour of his or her election of

the shares represented in person or by proxy at the meeting and voted on the election of Directors will promptly

tender his or her resignation to the Chairman of the Board following the annual meeting of Shareholders Within 90

days of the vote the members of the Board on the recommendation of the Nominating/Corporate Governance

Committee the Committee will decide whether to accept the resignation ii ask the Director to continue on

the Board but address what the Committee believes to be the underlying cause of the withheld votes or iii reject

the resignation The decision of the Board including if it deems advisable the reasons for its decision will be

promptly disclosed in press release This policy will not apply in the case of contested election of Directors in

which case the Directors will be elected by plurality of votes of the shares represented in person or by proxy at the

meeting and voted on in the election of Directors

As disclosed previously during the Companys 2005 recapitalization farmer participation on the Board is solicited through

the Western Farm Leadership Co-operative Ltd WFLC self-governing organization funded by the Company This

organization whose membership includes customers of the Company provides slate of four candidates to the Companys

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee for consideration to form part of the slate of candidates to be voted on by

Shareholders WFLC provided slate of four candidates to the Companys Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

including Messrs Bruce and Ruud both of whom are currently Directors and have been proposed for reappointment The

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee has accepted the recommendation of these two nominees
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Nominees to the Board

Thomas irks

Age 63

Montreal Quebec Canada

Director Since March 2005

Chair of the Board Since 2008

Independent

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board out of meetings

Member of Nominating/Corporate

Governance Committee
out of meetings

Thomas Birks joined Viterras Board of Directors in

March 2005 and was elected as Chair in April 2008

Currently he is the President of Birinco Inc small

merchant bank with investment portfolios ranging from

private equity to passive investments His board

experience is diverse having served as board member

of numerous corporations educational institutions

hospitals and foundations

Previously Mr Birks served as President of Henry

Birks and Sons Ltd in Montreal with direct line and

staff functions for all operations outside Quebec He

earned this distinction through progressively

responsible roles as Merchandise Manager Winnipeg
Western Regional Manager Vancouver and Vice-

President Merchandising Montreal

Mr Birks has worked all over the world including

Australia Japan and South Africa for Coles-Myer

Mitsubishi Bank and Van Zwam Vladykin and

Douglas respectively

Mr Birks graduated from McGill University with

Bachelor of Arts and he holds Master of Business

Administration from the Harvard Business School He

has also studied at the University of Lausanne the

Universifl of Fribourg and the University of Paris

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2008 45004 33676 78680 $601902 annual Yes

compensation

2009 45004 72547 17551 $1210775 annual Yes

compensation

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 $142500

2009 $357625

Public Board MembershipsDuring Last Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Years Memberships

None None None None
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Vie Bruce

Age 61

Tuxford Saskatchewan

Canada

Director Since September

2002

Independent

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board 10 out of meetings

Member of Nominating/Corporate
out of meetings

Governance Committee

Member of Audit Committee out of meetings

As member of Viterras Board of Directors Vie Bruce

is part of the leadership team that provides direction for

the corporation

Mr Bruce served as Viterra delegate from 1987 to

1995 and again from 1997 to 2005 and was elected as

Director in the fall of 2002 He currently serves as

member of the Boards Audit and Safety Health and

Environment Committee

Mr Bruce holds Bachelor of Education degree

majoring in Economics from the University of Calgary

Upon graduation he taught high school for number of

years in Alberta graduate of the Canadian

Agricultural Lifetime Leadership program he has

served on various boards Presently he is delegate for

Federated Co-operatives Ltd and is director of the

Soil Conservation Council of Canada since 2008

Vie and his wife Patty operate family farm

corporation at Tuxford Saskatchewan specializing in

pedigree seed production They have two daughters

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2008 1402 15735 17137 $131098 3xannual No

compensation

2009 1402 33335 34737 $357791 3xannual Yes

compensation

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 $101500

2009 $216125

Public Board Memberships During Last Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Years Memberships

None None None None
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Tom Chambers

Age 65

West Vancouver

British Columbia Canada

Director Since June 2006

Independent

Tom Chambers joined Viterras Board of Directors in June

2006 He is an experienced professional accountant senior

executive corporate director and business advisor most

notably having served for 26 years as Partner in senior

management roles with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

recognized leader on strategic and corporate governance

issues Mr Chambers has assisted wide range of

companies in focusing on their core strategic strengths to

enhance business performance

Currently Mr Chambers through Senior Partner Services

Ltd acts as an advisor and director to number of

companies He has significant board experience which

includes serving on the boards of PricewaterhouseCoopers

Terasen Inc and the Standards Council of Canada and

Elephant Castle Group Inc

Mr Chambers is currently board member and the Chair of

the Audit Committee for Catalyst Paper Corporation

Coopers Park Corporation and MacDonald Dettwiler and

Associates all public companies He also sits on number

of private company boards including Mill Timber

Products Limited Aspen Planners Limited and Highland

Pacific Mortgage Corporation Mr Chambers was the first

Chairman of the Institute of Corporate Directors British

Columbia BC Chapter He is graduate of the Directors

Education Program of Corporate Directors

In 1995 Mr Chambers was recognized by the BC Institute

of Chartered Accountants and was awarded the Fellow of

Chartered Accountants in recognition of his long service to

his profession

Board/Committee
Attendance

Membership

Member of Board Ilout of meetings

Member of Compensation
out of meetings

Committee

Chair of Audit Committee out of meetings

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2008 10000 31906 41906 $320580 annual Yes

compensation

2009 10000 58263 68263 $703108 annual Yes

compensation

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 $115500

2009 $241625

Public Board Memberships During Last Years Public Board Committee Public Board

Memberships Interlocks

2003-present Catalyst Paper Corporation Audit Committee Chair None

Environment Health Safety

Committee Member

2005 Coopers Park Corporation Audit Committee Chair None

2005 MacDonald Dettwiler and Audit Committee Chair None

Associates

2003-2005 Terasen Inc Audit Committee None

2002-2006 Elephant Castle Group Inc Audit Committee Chair None
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Paul Daniel

Age 46

Balaklava South Australia

Australia

Director Since September 2009

Independent

Paul Daniel serves on the Boards Audit

Committee Prior to joining the Viterra Board he

was director of ABB Grain Mr Daniel was

elected to the ABB Grain Ltd ABB Grain

board in 2006 and served as member of the

Finance and Audit Committee

Mr Daniel was founding director of Direct

Fertilizers 1997-2004 one of South Australias

leading fertilizer companies which is now part of

ABB Grain He is currently Fellow of the

Australian Institute of Company Directors

The Daniel Family operates its farming interests

principally grain growing from Balakiava which

is in South Australias main production area for

wheat and barley In addition to his farming

experience Mr Daniel holds the Urrbrae

certificate in Agriculture leading agricultural

college in South Australia

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board out of meetings

Member of Audit Committee out of meetings

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2009 33.182 33182 $341774 3xannual No

compensation Mr Daniel has until

September 2014 to

achieve the

requirement

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2009 $16375

Public Board Memberships During Public Board Committee Memberships Public Board

Last Years Interlocks

None None None none

the shares are in the form of CDIs
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Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board out of meetings

Member of Compensation
out of meetings

Committee

Member of Nominating/Corporate
out of meetings

Governance Committee

Bonnie DuPont joined Viterras Board of Directors

in March 2008 She is Group Vice President with

Enbridge Inc in Calgary role in which she has

accountability for the Corporate Resources function

Information Technology Public and Government

Affairs Human Resources Governance and

Corporate Social Responsibility Ms DuPont has

announced her retirement from Enbridge Inc

effective March 2010 She is director of the

Bank of Canada and of UTS Energy Corporation

Canadian oil sands resource company trading on the

TSX Ms DuPont is member of the Board of

Governors of the University of Calgary and sits on

the Executive Committee She is also past President

of the Calgary Petroleum Club Ms DuPont spent

12 years as an executive in the grain industry

Ms DuPont holds Bachelors degree Great

Distinction with focus in Program Administration

and Evaluation and Psychology from the University

of Regina She earned her Masters degree at the

University of Calgary She is member of the

Institute of Corporate Directors lCD and 2006

graduate of the lCD Directors Education Program

Ms DuPont is also Certified Human Resources

Professional and is member of the International

Womens Forum In 2008 Ms Dupont was awarded

an Honorary Doctorate of Laws degree by the

University of Regina

Bonnie DuPont

Age 63

Calgary Alberta Canada

Director Since March 2008

Independent

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2008 1500 3943 5443 $41638 xannual No

compensation

2009 6500 22393 28893 $297597 annual No

compensation Ms DuPont has until

March_2013_to_achieve

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 69250

2009 $210834

Public Board Memberships During Last Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Years Memberships

May 2008 UTS Energy Corporation Governance Compensation and None

present Nominating Committee Chair

July 1999 AltaGas Ltd Human Resources and None

August 2004 Compensation Committee

Governance Committee

May 2004 Alta Gas Income Trust Human Resources and None

August 2004 Compensation Committee

Governance Committee
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Perry Gunner

Age 63

North Adelaide South Australia

Australia

Director Since September 2009

Deputy Chair of the Board Since

2009

Independent

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board out of meetings

Member of Nominating/Corporate
out of meeting

Governance Committee

Perry Gunner is Viterras Deputy Chairman and

serves on Viterra Nominating/Corporate

Governance Committee Prior to joining the Viterra

Board Mr Gunner was appointed to the ABB Grain

board and as Chairman in September 2004 He is

also Chairman of Australian Bulk Alliance joint

venture between ABB Grain and Sumitomo Prior to

his appointment he was Deputy Chairman of

AusBulk 1997-2004

Mr Gunner is and has served as director of

number of public companies holding current

positions of Chairman of Freedom Nutritional Foods

Ltd and director of Australian Vintage Ltd He was

previously Chairman and Chief Executive of

Orlando Wyndham and was responsible for the

international development of Jacobs Creek He is

also former President of the Winemakers

Federation of Australia and former Chair of both

Workcover Corporation and SA Totalisator boards

Mr Gunner has property at Meningie that

produces branded beef Coorong Angus and

branded lamb Pure Suffolk and that incorporates

feed lot

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009
Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2009 18673 18673 $192331 3xannual No

compensation Mr Gunner has until

September 2014 to

achieve the requirements

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2009 $23562

Public Board Memberships During Last Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Years Memberships

None None None none

the shares are in the form of CDIs
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Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board out of meetings

Members of the Audit Committee out of meetings

Co-Chair of Nominating/Corporate
out of meetings

Governance Committee___________

T.J Tim Hearn joined Viterras Board of Directors in

May 2008 and is the Co-Chair of the

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee and

serves on its Compensation Committee Mr Hearn

served as Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer of Imperial Oil Limited from the time of his

appointment in 2002 to his retirement in 2008 Mr Hearn

is presently the Chairman of Hearn and Associates

Mr Hearns career with Imperial Oil began as

marketing representative in 1967 and evolved through

progressively responsible management positions in

marketing refining and systems and computer services

From 1994 to 1997 he served as President of Exxon

Chemical Asia Pacific based in Singapore In 1997 Mr

Hearn served as Executive Assistant to the Chairman of

Exxon Following the merger
of Exxon Corporation and

Mobil Oil he was appointed Vice-President of Human

Resources for Exxon Mobil Corporation

Mr Hearn is immediate past Chairman of the Board of

Directors of the C.D Howe Institute member of the

Board of Directors of the Royal Bank of Canada past

memberof the Canadian Council of Chief Executives and

serves on North American Trilateral Commission

involving NAFTA and the Environment

For number of years Mr Hearn has served on several

community boards and committees He is the Chair of the

Board of Directors of the Calgary Homeless Foundation

In addition he is Chair of the Advisory Board of the new

Public Policy School and member of the Deans

Medical School Boards both at the University of

Calgary

Born in Regina Saskatchewan Mr Hearn is graduate

of the University of Manitoba
-_______________

Tim Heam

Age 65

Calgary Alberta Canada

Director Since May 2008

Independent

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 20O9

Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2008 30000 3230 32230 $254209 annual Yes

compensation

2009 40000 19560 59560 $613468 annual Yes

compensation

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 36001

2009 $195834

Public Board Memberships During Last Years Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Memberships

2006-- to date Royal Bank of Canada Audit Committee None

Risk Committee

Governance Committee
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Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board 11 out of meetings

Chair of Compensation Committee outof7 meetings

Member of Nominating/Corporate
out of meetings

Governance Committee

Dallas Howe joined Viterras Board of Directors in

March 2005 He served in management role with

GE Medical Systems Information Technology

which acquired the company he formerly owned

BDM Information Systems

Mr Howe served as director for the Potash

Corporation of Saskatchewan Crown corporation

from 1982 to 1989 He rejoined the Potash

Corporation of Saskatchewan Inc board in 1991 and

was elected Chair in 2003 He was member of the

University of Saskatchewan Board of Governors for

several years and served as Chairman in 2005 Mr
Howe also serves as director of Advance Data

Systems Ltd and is board member for the C.D

Howe Institute

Mr Howe was born in Regina Saskatchewan and

received his Bachelor of Arts degree with Honours

from the University of Saskatchewan where he also

completed Masters degree in Mathematics He

went on to the University of Toronto to pursue

graduate studies in Computer Science In 1989 Mr
Howe was the first recipient of the Saskatchewan/

KPMG Entrepreneur Award

Dallas Howe

Age 65

Calgary Alberta Canada

Director Since March 2005

Independent

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009
Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2008 121 29044 29165 $223113 3xannual Yes

compensation

2009 121 54062 54183 $558084 3xannual Yes

compensation

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 $104500

2009 $229125

Public Board Memberships During Last Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Years Memberships

1991 Potash Corporation of Chair of the Board None

present Saskatchewan Inc
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Kevin Osborn

Age 59

Tennyson South Australia

Australia

Director Since September 2009

Independent

Kevin Osborn is member of the Viterra Board

Audit Committee and the Safety Health and

Environment Committee Prior to joining the Viterra

Board he was director of ABB Grain He is also

Deputy Chairman of the South Australian Economic

Development Board and Chairman of the Adelaide

Desalination Cross Agency Steering Group

Mr Osborn had 30-year career in international

financial markets where he held various global

senior management positions with the United States

then fourth largest banking corporation Bank One

which is now part of JPMorgan At Bank One he

was Regional Chief Executive responsible for

Australia New Zealand and Singapore

Mr Osborn was Deputy Chairman of the Bendigo

and Adelaide Bank Limited where he chaired the

Credit Committee and was member of the Audit

and Risk Committees

Mr Osborns early executive responsibilities

included Chief Financial Officers of the Michell

Group and Chief Executive Officer of their

merchant banking interests

He has previously served as non-executive director

of the American Chamber of Commerce in

Australia

Mr Osborn is currently Foundation Fellow of the

Australian Institute of Company Directors and

Fellow Professional of the National Institute of

Accountants

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board outof2 meetings

Member of Audit Committee out of2 meetings

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common DSUs Total Common Total Market Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Shares and Value of Common Shareholding

DSUs Shares and DSUs Requirements

2009 5.907 5907 $60842 annual No

compensation Mr Osborn has until

September 2014 to

achieve the requirements

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2009 $18375

Public Board Memberships During Last Years Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Memberships

2003 2009 Bendigo and Adelaide Bank Limited Deputy Chairman None

Credit Committee Chair
Member Risk Committee

Member Audit Committee
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Herb Pinder joined the Board of Directors in March

2003 On September 23 2009 in order to facilitate

the appointment of four new directors from Australia

as part of the Implementation Agreement with ABB

Grain Mr Pinder resigned although he has

continued to sit as Board observer He served as

member of the Nominating/Corporate Governance

and Audit Committee Mr Pinder is President of the

Goal Group of Companies which provides corporate

governance and investment management services

with particular focus on oil and gas private equity

Formerly the President of Pinders Drugs he has 25

years of experience as director

Mr Pinder has also been active with number of

non-profit organizations currently serving on the

C.D Howe Institute the Fraser Institute and the

Advisory Council for the School of Public Policy

University of Calgary He is active in golf and

skiing and is an Honoured Member of both the

Saskatoon and Saskatchewan Sports Hall of Fame

and the Manitoba Hockey Hall of Fame following

his hockey career

Mr Pinder received Bachelor of Arts from the

University of Saskatchewan Bachelor of Laws

from the University of Manitoba and Master of

Business Administration from Harvard Universitys

Graduate School of Business

Herbert Pinder Jr

Age 63

Saskatoon Saskatchewan Canada

Director Since March 2005

Independent

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

10 out of meetings as
Member of Board Director and the remaining

as an observer

Member of Nominating/Corporate
out of meetingsGovernance Committee

Audit Committee out of meetings

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009
Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common Value of Common Shareholding

Shares Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2008 85633 37266 122899 $940177 annual Yes

compensation

2009 138333 56874 195207 $2010632 annual Yes

compensation

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 $93000

2009 $205625

Public Board Memberships During Public Board Committee Memberships Public Board

Last Years Interlocks

2005 present Arc Resources Ltd HR Compensation Committee Chair None

Governance and Nomination member
Health Safety and Environment member
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Member of Compensation
out of meetings

Committee

Larry Ruud joined Viterras Board of Directors in

March 2008 and serves on its Audit and Safety

Health and Environment Committees He was

Partner with Meyers Norris Penny LLP from 2000

until 2009 and has provided farm management

consulting services in Western Canada for the past

15 years
In March 2009 Mr Ruud was appointed

President Chief Executive Officer of One Earth

Farms newly launched large-scale fully integrated

corporate farming entity

Mr Ruud owns farm south of Vermilion Alberta

He holds Masters of Science Degree in

Agricultural Economics from the University of

Alberta

Larry Ruud

Age 45

Vermilion Alberta Canada

Director Since March 2008

Independent

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board out of meetings

Member of Audit Committee out of meetings

Securities Held asat December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2008 5981 5981 S45754 annual No

compensation

2009 29220 29220 $300966 annual No

compensation Mr Ruud has until

March 2013 to achieve

the requirements

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 62250

2009 $213125

Public Board Memberships During Last Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Years Memberships

None None None None
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Mayo Schmidt is President and Chief Executive

Officer as well as Director of Viterra With

strategic and disciplined approach Mr Schmidt and

his Corporate Management Team have positioned

Viterra as leader in shaping the future of agriculture

and in expanding Viterras reach and influence in

North America and abroad

Mr Schmidt spearheaded plan in 2005 to transform

the former Saskatchewan Wheat Pool from co

operative to Canadian business corporation creating

single class of common voting shares strengthening

the governance structure and positioning the Pool to

raise equity to retire term debt This recapitalization

initiative restored the companys financial strength

and created the flexibility and opportunity to grow the

business and generate value for its shareholders

Under his leadership the company was recognized by Canadian Business Magazine among the top 50 most important

companies in Canadas history In 2009 Mr Schmidt was recognized by Canadian Business Magazine as the Chief Executive

of the Year

Before joining Viterra in 2000 Mr Schmidt led ConAgras expansion into Canada He also held number of key management

positions of increasing responsibility at General Mills Inc throughout the United States

Mr Schmidt is an active participant in business and industry organizations He is member of the Canadian Council of Chief

Executive Officers open to the top 150 Canadian corporations the C.D Howe Institute and contributor to Harvard

Universitys Private and Public Scientific Academic and Consumer Food Policy Group PAPSAC He is the Vice Chair of

The Conference Board of Canada and member of the Executive and Audit Committees he is also member of The

Conference Board Inc USA He is member of Washburn Universitys Board of Trustees Lincoln Society and Applied

Portfolio Management Advisory Board for Washburns School of Business as an Executive in Residence Mr Schmidt also

served on the board of the Saskatchewan Roughriders

Mr Schmidt earned his Bachelor of Business Administration BBA from Washburn University in 1980 At Washburn he

earned both athletic and academic scholarships and was honoured as Washburns 2003 Alumni Fellow

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board 11 out of meetings

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common PSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares and Common of Common Shares Shareholding

RSUs Shares Requirements

2009 414455 346779 414455 $4090670 times annual Yes

compensation

Vatue of Total Compensation Received

Year

2008 See Executive Compensation

Section

2009 See Executive Compensation

Section

Public Board Memberships During Last Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Years Memberships

None None None None

The Company initiated disposition of its hog operations in 2004 through court supervised process under The Companies

Creditors Arrangement Act Canada The securities of certain of the entities that owned and operated these hog operations on

behalf of the Company and other Shareholders were also cease traded by the Saskatchewan Financial Services Commission

Substantially all of the assets related to these hog operations were sold under the court supervised process in May 2004 Mr
Schmidt served as an officer and/or director of these entities

Mayo Schmidt

Age 52

Calgary Alberta Canada

Director Since September 2005

Non-Independent
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Member of Compensation
out of meeting

Committee

Max yenning is member of the Viterra Board

Compensation Committee Prior to joining the

Viterra Board he was Deputy Chairman of ABB

Grain Mr Venning was previous director of

AusBulk and United Grower Holdings Ltd 2002-

2004 and was Chairman of AusBulk in 2004

grower from Bute in South Australia Mr

Venning is heavily involved in the local community

serving on Kadinas Farm Shed Museum and

Tourism Centre Committee of Management and the

Bute Sporting Club Management Committee He has

an intimate knowledge of the grain industry and is

an active member of the Crop Science Society

Max yenning

Age 62

Bute South Australia Australia

Director Since September 2009

Independent

Board/Committee Membership Attendance

Member of Board out of meetings

Securities Held as at December 31 2009 Market Value of $9.87 per share as at December 31 2009

Year Common DSUs Total Total Market Value Minimum Meets Requirements

Shares Common of Common Shares Shareholding

Shares and DSUs Requirements

and DSUs

2009 139679 139679 $1438693 annual Yes

compensation

Value of Total Compensation Received

Year

2009 $16375

Public Board Memberships During Last Public Board Committee Public Board Interlocks

Years Memberships

None None None None

the shares are in the form of CDIs
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APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Action is to be taken at the Meeting to appoint an auditor for the Company Unless such authority is withheld

by Shareholder the persons named in the accompanying Form of Proxy intend to vote for the

reappointment of the firm Deloitte Touche LLP the present auditors of the Company to hold office

until the next annual meeting of Shareholders

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources and Compensation Committee

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee the HRCC is comprised of five

independent directors Thomas Chambers Bonnie DuPont Tim Hearn Dallas Howe Chairman and

Max yenning The Board believes that the members of the HRCC have the knowledge and

experience to effectively perform their responsibilities The members of the HRCC have expertise in

business management human resources and finance

The HRCC held eight meetings during the last fiscal year At each meeting the HRCC met in-

camera without management present

Responsibilities of the HRCC

The HRCC is responsible for developing and making recommendations to the Board on employee

compensation and the Companys human resources strategy The HRCC reports to the Board which

has final approval over all compensation programs including the President and Chief Executive

Officers CEO compensation The HRCC may delegate any of its responsibilities to

subcommittee comprised of one or more members of the HRCC

The HRCC has the following responsibilities as outlined in its Terms of Reference

To annually review and recommend compensation philosophy for the Company that is

market competitive and aligned with the Companys strategic plan

To annually review and recommend the CEOs compensation Related to this process the

HRCC shall also facilitate the annual performance review of the CEO and the setting of

specific performance objectives for the upcoming year

To annually review and recommend to the Board compensation for each corporate officer in

conjunction with the recommendations

To annually review the compensation of all non-corporate officers at the Vice President level

and above as presented by the CEO to the HRCC
To annually review and recommend to the Board the annual grant of medium- and long-term

incentives including individual grants for each corporate officer

To review managements compensation proposals for the broad employee population

collective bargaining mandates and tentative agreements and recommend to the Board for

approval

To annually review the governance and performance of the pension plans and any changes to

the design or provisions of the benefits program
To establish and annually review with the Board succession planning process including

professional development and an emergency replacement plan for each senior level executive

To review and recommend for approval to the Board all compensation aspects of the

Companys proxy disclosure including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and related

tabular disclosures
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10 To annually review the Terms of Reference and the Activity Cycle of the HRCC and

recommend changes if any to the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee and to the

Board

The HRCC reviewed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with management and

recommended that it be included in this Proxy Circular

HRCC Activities and Process

The following chart outlines the compensation approval process

Management/CEO HRCC Reviews and Board Review and

Analysis and Recommends to Board L__1/ Approval

Recommendations on Pay

Program Design and Pay

Levels

ft
HRCC Executive

Compensation Consultant

Analysis and Report to

HRCC

In determining base salary short-term incentive payments and awards under the medium- and long-

term incentive plans the HRCC considers comprehensive analysis including market data for

similar positions within the comparator group and compensation tally sheets that provide information

on target compensation actual compensation progress
towards share ownership guidelines Viterra

career earnings and the Companys share price performance This analysis is used to compare

compensation provided to each executive officer during his/her tenure against the Companys

performance to help ensure that executive pay is aligned with Shareholder interests

The HRCC retains the services of an independent executive compensation consultant Towers

Watson previously Towers Perrin to provide external market data and commentary on the relative

market position of executives Towers Watson reports to the Chairman of the HRCC and provides

input to the HRCC on compensation philosophy the market competitiveness of pay levels incentive

plan design and other market typical and leading-edge executive pay practices Towers Watson also

provides information to the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee on the market

competitiveness of Board of Director pay levels and pay program design During the fiscal year

Towers Watson attended six HRCC meetings

While the information provided by Towers Watson to the HRCC is an important tool in the

HRCCs decision-making process the decisions of the HRCC are its responsibility and may reflect

factors other than the information and recommendations provided by Towers Watson or management

During fiscal 2009 the HRCC engaged Towers Watson to assist with review of the following

aspects of executive compensation

Compensation philosophy

Comparator group
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Total direct compensation levels relative to Viterras comparator group

Short- and long-term incentive plan design

Share ownership guidelines

Executive perquisites and benefits

Recoupment policy

Employment agreements and change in control agreements

Supplemental executive retirement pension plan SERP
10 SayonPay

In addition to executive compensation consulting services Towers Watson provided advice to the two

Defined Benefit Pension Committees on investment decisions for defined benefit pension plans until

June 30 2009 at which time new investment consultant was appointed If additional work is

required from Towers Watson the HRCC reviews the mandate and approves the related professional

fees The total fees for compensation services provided to the Company by Towers Watson during

fiscal 2009 were $583938 of which $439181 was related to executive/Board compensation and

$144757 was for other services

Executive Summary

During fiscal 2009 the HRCC completed comprehensive review of the executive compensation

philosophy and pay programs to ensure they continue to support the Companys growth strategy and

are aligned with Shareholder interests Key outcomes from this process include the development of

compensation peer group comprised of industry-related high growth high performance

companies that Viterra competes with for executive talent

compensation philosophy that targets pay at the median of the peer group subject to the results

of an annual affordability analysis In particular based on the results of this analysis Viterras pay

was limited to near the market 25th percentile for fiscal 2009 As Viterra executes on its growth

strategy it is anticipated that this affordability constraint will eventually allow pay to be targeted

near the market 50th percentile

recoupment policy designed to reimburse the Company in instances where incentive payments

were inappropriately eamed based on misstated financial results

revised short-term incentive plan based on corporate earnings before interest taxes depreciation

and amortization EBITDA performance business unit performance and individual performance

new medium-term incentive plan design which consists of Performance Share Units PSUs
weighted 75% designed to support sustained growth in EBITDA and Restricted Share Units

RSUs weighted 25% to encourage retention

new long-term incentive plan design which consists of stock options with seven-year term that

vest over three years

Overall approximately 70% of Viterras Named Executive Officer NEO target compensation was

delivered in at risk incentive pay during fiscal 2009 Details of actual payouts under the short-term

incentive plan and the three-year PSU plan cycle ending October 31 2009 are as follows

Under the short-term incentive plan STIP the NEOs received an actual award on average of

78% of their target bonus opportunity driven primarily by Viterras EBITDA performance The

Company generated $329.87 million in EBITDA in fiscal 2009 which compared to Board

determined EBITDA target of $440 million for the year

Under the PSU plan the actual payout was at maximum 200% of the grant reflecting EBITDA

achievement for fiscal 2006 and 2007 of $186.6 million compared to an EBITDA targets under the

plan of $165.1 million for approved business plan targets and $164.90 for targets established

annually
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Under the Agricore United AU Transaction/Synergy Attainment Award Programs established in

2007 eligible NEOs received payout under the cash transaction award component This payment

was based on achieving synergies of$121 million which were well above the target of $90 million

The HRCC also discussed Say on Pay during 2009 and is still in the process of reviewing market

practice and determining its approach to Shareholder engagement and Say on Pay advisory vote

The following sections provide further details regarding the executive pay philosophy and pay program

design

Executive Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

Principles of Executive Compensation

Viterras compensation philosophy is designed to

Attract and retain high calibre global executives necessary to successfully execute the Companys

profitable growth strategy
and its operational excellence and customer relationship programs

Provide an attractive market competitive pay opportunity with significant proportion of

executive compensation delivered through at risk incentive-based pay

Align executive and Shareholder interests by establishing clear pay for performance linkages that

have been scenario tested to ensure appropriate value sharing with Shareholders

Reflect market practice and the current governance environment and ensure pay programs do not

encourage executives to take unnecessary and inappropriate risks and

Ensure that the overall cost of the executive pay program and any increase in cost is reasonable

and affordable

Benchmarking of Executive Pay

The following selection criteria were used to determine Viterras executive compensation peer group

Companies with similar revenue scope defined as approximately 0.5 times to times Viterras

revenue

Market capitalization within reasonable range compared to Viterra where companies have market

capitalization higher and lower than Viterra

Companies in similar industries or with similar business characteristics including agribusiness

fertilizer and chemicals transportation construction and engineering and commodities/natural

resources sectors

High performance high growth companies that reflect Viterras growth strategy measured by

three-year revenue growth three and five-year total Shareholder return TSR and price to

EBITDA ratio

Companies with international representation consistent with Viterras international growth

strategy

Organizations that Viterra competes with for executive talent and

peer group that consists of at least two-thirds Canadian-based companies

Based on these criteria Viterras peer group for fiscal 2009 consisted of the following 21 companies

14 Canadian and seven US
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Canadian Companies US Companies

The HRCC regularly reviews the compensation peer group to ensure that it remains consistent with

Viterras strategy Companies are removed from the peer group and are replaced if they experience

major business change such as merger or acquisition

Target Pay Positioning and the Critical Importance of Affordability

To ensure Viterras executive pay remains reasonable in relation to its level of profitability the

Companys philosophy of targeting near the market median for target total direct compensation salary

target bonus and target long-term incentives is subject to the results of an affordability analysis In

particular this analysis compares Viterra to its peers based on aggregate pay provided to the NEOs as

percentage of net income EBITDA and operating cash flow

Based on the results of this analysis for 2009 Viterras target pay philosophy was increased to near the

market 25th percentile As Viterra executes on its growth strategy and as profitability increases it is

anticipated that the affordability constraint will eventually allow pay to be targeted near the market 5O
percentile

Agrium Inc

Barrick Gold Corporation

Cameco Corporation

Canadian National Railway Co
Canadian Pacific Railway Ltd

Enbridge Inc

Finning International Inc

Methanex Corporation

Nexen Inc

NOVA Chemicals Corporation

Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan Inc

SNC-Lavalin Group Inc

Teck Resources Limited

TransCanada PipeLines Ltd

The Andersons Inc

CF Industries Inc

CSX Corporation

Monsanto Company

The Mosaic Company

The Shaw Group Inc

Terra Industries Inc
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Elements of Executive Compensation

The table below summarizes the elements of executive compensation and Viterras target pay

positioning during fiscal 2009

Compensation Form Purpose 2009 Target Pay

Element Positioning

Base Salary Cash Attract and retain top executive talent by Near the

delivering portion of compensation that market 25thi

is not at risk Percentile

Short-Term Cash Motivate the achievement of annual Near the

Incentives one financial and operational performance market 25th

year whether through organic or via Percentile

acquisition

Recognize and reward top performers

Medium-Term Perftwmance Align executive and shareholder interests Near the

Incentives three Share Units by providing an incentive that promotes market 25th

years and Restricted sustained increases in shareholder value Percentile

Share Units Drive the achievement of specific

EBITDA targets

Reward actions that benefit the long term

performance of the company

Incorporate retention through multi-year

vesting

Long-Term Stock Options Align executive and Shareholder interests Near the

Incentives seven by providing an incentive that promotes market 25th

year term vesting
sustained increases in Shareholder value Percentile

over three years Reward actions that benefit the long-term

performance of the Company

Incorporate retention through multi-year

vesting

Benefits Pension Attract and retain executive talent Near the

and Perquisites
market 50th

Percentile

rhere market

quantification

available

otherwise

consistent

with most

prevalent

practice

Severance Cash Attract and retain executive talent Not

Benefits specifically

targeted

Consistent

with most

prevalent

practice
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Share Ownership Align executive and Shareholder interests Near the

Guidelines by ensuring executives have meaningful market 50t1i

ownership stake in the Company Percentile

CEO 4x base salary

CFO COO and SVPs 2x base salary

VPs_ lx_base_salary

Pay Mix

The previously noted elements of the compensation program are designed to provide total pay

package that attracts and retains top executive talent motivates the execution of Viterras business

strategy of profitable growth operational excellence and customer relationship programs and

promotes the achievement of sustained increases in Shareholder value The total value of the

compensation package is weighted towards at risk incentive compensation The following charts

outline the weighting of each component of target compensation for the CEO and the other Named

Executive Officers

President and CEO Compensation NEO Compensation

Base

Long Term

Incentis
Base saary

Target

Short Term

Incentives

Target Short Term

18% Incenties

Target

22%

Base Salary

Base salary is determined with reference to external market competitiveness internal equity and

the results of the previously noted affordability analysis For 2009 base salaries have been

targeted near the market 25th percentile Actual salaries may vary above or below this market

target depending on the executives skills and potential ongoing contribution to the business and

sustained level of performance Individual executive salaries for the corporate officers are subject

to approval by the President and CEO and the HRCC The President and CEOs salary is subject

to approval by the HRCC and the Board of Directors

Short-Term Incentive Plan

The short-term incentive plan SlIP is an annual program designed to drive the achievement of

specific financial operational and individual performance goals and to recognize and reward

accomplishments The design of the program is reviewed annually by the HRCC
The NEOs short-term incentive pay is linked to the achievement of predetermined financial

business unit and individual goals Financial goals are reviewed by the HRCC and approved by

the Board Business unit and individual goals are approved by the CEO at the beginning of the

year Target incentive opportunities which reflect the payout for achieving 100% of

predetermined goals vary among the NEOs from 55% to 85% of salary Actual payouts may

range from 0% to maximum of 200% of target depending upon actual results versus goals

Payouts cannot exceed 200% of target

salary

60%

Executive Pay Program Details
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Under the short-term incentive program the threshold level of corporate financial performance

must be met before payments can be made under the corporate or business unit components

Payments under the individual component can be made if corporate financial performance does not

meet threshold

The corporate objective for the program is EBITDA In November 2008 the Board approved

budgeted EBITDA for FY09 of $390 million The Board set stretch target for the NEO STIP

program For 2009 the resulting EBITDA goals for the NEOs were as follows

Threshold Target Strong Outstanding

Payout as of Target 50% 100% 150% 200%

EBITDA Goal $390 million $440 million $490 million $550 million

For more information on the measurements used for the business unit and individual objectives for the

Named Executive Officers please refer to page 39

The following table outlines the portion of each NEOs target bonus opportunity that is based on

corporate business unit and individual objectives as well as the actual payout for performance during

fiscal 2009

NEO 2009 Target Incentive Award 2009 Actual Incentive

Award

%of %of

Salary Target

Schmidt Mayo 85A 807500 600000 74%

McLennan Rex 65% 276250 175000 63%

Malecha FrancisJ 65% 312000 225000 72%

Robert Miller 55% 192500 210000 10%

Wonnacott Douglas 55% 178750 125000 70%

For fiscal 2009 the NEOs were held to higher standard than other employees for performance targets

under the Short Term Incentive Plan The corporate performance threshold was not achieved and

consistent with the plan design no awards were paid under the corporate and business component of

the plan the individual component was paid To recognize the significant effort and time commitment

made by the executive team in the $1 .4 billion transformational acquisition of ABB Grain operational

excellence efforts and approved safety metrics the HRCC provided an additional discretionary bonus

to the President and CEO and discretionary pool to the CEO equivalent to 75% of the target incentive

to be split amongst the senior executives The amount shown is the combined individual and

discretionary awards

As part of the business planning and ongoing performance measurement an assessment of actual

performance results against pre-established goals is conducted at the close of each fiscal year with

actual payouts in February of each year For fiscal 2009 executives had the opportunity to achieve

compensation near the market 25
percentile of the peer group if objectives were met and to exceed

this level if objectives were exceeded
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The Board at the recommendation of the HRCC determines the total cash available for annual

incentives after reviewing performance against financial and non-financial goals The HRCC may

recommend to the Board for approval an increase or decrease in the amount of the incentive pool

Medium-Term Incentive Plan

The medium-term incentive compensation program MTIP is designed to reward senior executives

and other key employees for sustained performance over three-year performance period The MTIP

reflects 50% of the total medium- and long-term incentive plan opportunity and consists of

combination of PSUs weighted 75% and RSUs weighted 25% Each RSU and PSU represents one

Common Share and entitles the participant to payment of one Viterra Common Share purchased on

the open market at the end of the three-year period assuming financial performance criteria are met for

PSUs

The performance objective for the 2009 PSU plan grant was the achievement of three-year

accumulated EBITDA goals over the 2009 to 2011 performance period Budgeted EBITDA targets

were set with EBITDA increasing year over year The three-year EBITDA targets for the plan were set

above the budgeted three-year numbers The final EBITDA will not be known until the end of the

three-year performance period For fiscal 2009 Viterra achieved an EBITDA of $329.87 against

budget of $390 million which has resulted in performance below the threshold level Given the highly

competitive nature of Viterras business the Companys future financial targets are not disclosed

Forward-looking targets involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and others factors that may

cause the actual results performance and achievement of Viterra to be materially different from

expectations that are expressed or implied by those forward-looking statements Viterras disclosure

policy prohibits the release of net eamings or earnings per share guidance or future financial targets

The number of PSUs and RSUs granted is based on target theoretical award level which is expressed

as percentage of the participants salary at the beginning of the performance period and the average

share price over the 20 trading days immediately preceding the date of the award For 2009 the target

theoretical incentive levels were set near the market percentile and ranged from 7.5% to 137.5%

of salary for both PSUs and RSUs depending upon the NEOs position and potential for contributing to

the future success of the Company

The actual value of the PSU award at the end of the three-year performance cycle will depend on the

companys share price performance and performance relative to predetermined EBITDA targets In

particular if EBITDA performance is below threshold then 0% of the units granted will vest and if

EBITDA performance is above target up to maximum of 200% of the units granted may vest

Vesting for RSUs is not subject to performance and units are payable at the end of the three-year

performance period providing the participant continues to be employed with the Company

The MTIP program is reviewed on an annual basis by the HRCC Changes can be made to future

performance measures and targets at the recommendation of the HRCC to the Board Performance

targets for outstanding grants under the plan may be adjusted to reflect the impact of acquisitions

Under the previous PSU plan 2006 to 2008 one-half of the PSUs vest based on the accumulated

EBITDA for the approved three-year business plan EBITDA targets while the other half vest based on

annual EBITDA targets set each year over the three-year period as approved by the Board The

following table sets forth the percentage of PSUs that vested during the three-year performance period

ended November 2009 With the acquisition of Agricore United in June 2007 the performance

period and performance goals were revised to reflect financial results for Saskatchewan Wheat Pool for

the fiscal year 2006 and 2007 Payments for this grant were made on the original payment date of

November 2008 Overall the 2006 grant paid out at maximum or 200% of target
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EBITDA Targets Achieved Percentage Vested

Approved Annual Approved Annual Approved Annual

business plan EBITDA targets business plan EBITDA business plan EBITDA

EBITDA target Weighted EBITDA target target EBITDA target

Weighted 50% 50% target

$165.14 million $164.90 million $186.6 million $186.6 million 200% 200%

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Long-term incentives are provided through the Management Stock Option Plan and represent 50% of

the total medium- and long-term incentive opportunity The purpose of the plan is to align executive

and Shareholder interests by providing an incentive that promotes increases in Shareholder value and

supports retention through multi-year vesting

Under the long-term incentive plan LTIP the number of options granted is based on target

theoretical award level which is expressed as percentage of the participants salary at the beginning

of the performance period divided by the closing price of the shares on the day immediately preceding

the grant date For 2009 the target
incentive levels were set near the market 25111 percentile Awards

range
from 57.5% to 137.5% of salary depending upon the NEOs position and potential for

contributing to the future success of the Company

Agricore United AU Transaction/Synergy Attainment Award Program

This program was introduced in August 2007 to recognize and reward select individuals integral to the

acquisition and integration of Agricore United and Saskatchewan Wheat Pool Inc Under the program

there were two components transaction award and synergy attainment award Thirty-five

employees were eligible to participate in both the transaction and synergy attainment award program

To be eligible to participate in the program the NEOs were required to waive the constructive

dismissal and relocation clause under their Change in Control Agreements as they related to the

Agricore United transaction In terms of awards to Named Executive Officers awards were made to

Francis Malecha and Robert Miller in August 2007 and an award was made to Mayo Schmidt in

October 2007

Transaction Component

Under the transaction component 43 employees were eligible to participate One-half of the award

was based on remaining with the Company during the performance period The other half of the award

was subject to the achievement of the synergy goal of $90 million at July 31 2009 The payment

amount varied depending on the individuals contribution to the acquisition process If the

participants employment was terminated without cause and within the change of control period

participants were eligible for the greater of the payment defined by the Change of Control Agreement

or the normal termination benefits plus pro-rated transaction/synergy award The reward was pro

rated to the last active day of employment over the 24-month performance period Performance was

determined at the end of the 24-month period and payments were made at the same time as other

payments under the plan If the participant resigned prior to the vesting of the reward the full amount

was not earned One employee was involuntarily terminated from the organization and received pro

rated payment based on length of employment during the performance period
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Syner2y Component

Under the synergy component 40 employees were eligible to participate Payments will be provided

on July 31 2010 to participants for exceeding the target synergy goal of $90 million Participants were

given the option to have payments made as cash or as stock option grant The following table shows

the threshold exceeds and maximum synergy targets The synergy component was capped at

maximum of $1 10 million and Viterra achieved $121 million resulting in the maximum payment

level The achievement against targets has been audited by both intemal and extemal auditors Two

employees who were involuntarily terminated including the employee eligible for the transaction

component will receive pro-rated payment on July 31 2010 based on length of employment during

the performance period

Target Exceeds Maximum Achieved

$90 million $100 million $110 million $121 million

The following shows the value to the Named Executive Officers

Name Transaction Award Synergy Award at Maximum

Mayo Schmidt $500000 336634 stock options

Francis Malecha $200000 141832 stock options

Robert Miller $100000 $514500

1The stock options were granted on January 17 2008 at an exercise price of$12.12 per Common Share

Recoupment Policy

In September 2009 the Board approved policy on Recoupment of Incentive Compensation Under

this policy if the Board leams of any misconduct by an executive of the Company that contributed to

the Company having to restate all or portion of its financial statements it shall take such action as it

deems necessary to remedy the misconduct prevent its recurrence and if appropriate based on all

relevant facts and circumstances discipline the wrongdoer in manner it deems appropriate In

determining what remedies to pursue the Board shall take into account all relevant factors including

whether the restatement was the result of negligent intentional or gross misconduct

The Board will to the full extent permitted by governing law in all appropriate cases require

reimbursement of any bonus or incentive compensation awarded to an executive or effect the

cancellation of unvested incentive awards previously granted to the executive if the amount of the

bonus or incentive compensation was calculated based upon the achievement of certain financial

results that were subsequently the subject of restatement the executive engaged in intentional

misconduct that caused or partially caused the need for the restatement and the amount of the bonus

or incentive compensation that would have been awarded to the executive had the financial results

been properly reported would have been lower than the amount actually awarded In addition the

Board could dismiss the executive authorize legal action for breach of fiduciary duty or take such

other action to enforce the executives obligations to the Company as may fit the facts surrounding the

particular case The Board may in determining the appropriate discipline take into account penalties
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or disciplines imposed by third parties such as law enforcement agencies regulators or other

authorities The Boards power to determine the appropriate discipline for the wrongdoer is in addition

to and not in replacement of remedies imposed by such entities

For the purposes of this policy the term executive shall mean any employee who is eligible to

participate in the Companys short- medium- or long-term incentive compensation programs and is

corporate officer of the Company Nothing contained in this policy will limit the Companys ability to

seek recoupment in appropriate circumstances including circumstances beyond the scope of this

policy and as permitted by applicable law of any amounts from any employee whether or not the

employee is an executive

Benefits

The Company offers the NEOs competitive package of benefits that provides life insurance short-

and long-term disability dental and vision coverage extended health health spending account and

flexible perquisite allowance The objective of these programs is to provide measure of income

stability and to serve as an incentive to encourage the health and well-being of employees Benefit

coverage for NEOs is the same as that provided to all other employees with the exception of the

flexible perquisite allowance The HRCC reviews executive perquisites on an annual basis and

recommends any changes to this program to the Board for approval

Defined Contribution Pension Plans

All Named Executive Officers except for the President and Chief Executive Officer participate in the

Companys defined contribution plan entitled The Pension Plan for Employees of Viterra Inc

Under the plan the Company contributes 10% of the NEOs base salary to the plan until the individual

reaches the income tax maximum contribution limits For 2009 this amount was $22000

Contributions over and above the maximum are paid to the employee as additional earnings through

payroll If the employee leaves the Company after two years of service he/she has the option to

transfer their funds to locked-in pension vehicle Normal retirement age is 65 Benefits under this

plan depend upon the contributions made by the Company as well as the investment earnings

Accounts are invested in accordance with the investment directions of each NEO for his defined

contribution account For the President and Chief Executive Officer the Company annually

contributes 10% of base salary Contributions are contributed to personal RRSP account up to the

income tax maximum with the additional contributions made directly to him as additional earnings

through payroll For 2009 this amount was $21000

Share Ownership Guidelines

Share ownership guidelines are intended to align Viterras senior executives with the interests of its

Shareholders promoting increased Shareholder value without incurring excessive risk Based on this

objective the following guidelines have been established

Title Share Ownership Guidelines

President and Chief Executive Officer base salary

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer and
base salary

Senior Vice Presidents

Vice Presidents base salary
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Executives are expected to meet the guideline within five years from the inception of the plan in

December 2005 i.e by December 2010 or for those promoted or hired after the inception of the

plan by the fifth anniversary of the date of hire the date of promotion or implementation of revised

guidelines The ownership guideline can be met through direct ownership of shares Restricted Share

Units and Performance Share Units Stock options are not counted towards share ownership

In 2008 the HRCC reviewed the share ownership guidelines and increased the level for Senior Vice

Presidents from time to times salary to be competitive with market median practice

The table sets forth for each NEO the number and value of shares held as at October 31 2009 the

value of shares required to meet the ownership guidelines and the value of shares held as multiple of

the NEOs base salary

Value
Named Number Value of

2009 Multiple Required to Meets Percentage
Executive of Shares Shares

Base Meet Guidelines Achieved
Officer Held Held

Salary Guidelines

Mayo $950000 $3800000 761234 $7840710 Yes 206%

Schmidt

Rex McLennan $425000 $850000 67276 $692943 No has until 82%

February

2013

Francis $480000 $960000 110662 $1139818 Yes 119%

Malecha

Robert Miller $350000 $700000 60701 $625220 No has until 89%

March11

2014

Douglas $325000 2x $650000 40331 $415409 Nohas until 64%

Wonnacott March

2014

Based on share price of$lO.30 as at October 30 2009
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Evaluation of the CEO and NEOs

Annually the Board with the President and CEO establish financial and key performance objectives

for the upcoming year At the end of the fiscal year performance relative to these objectives is

reviewed The President and CEO provides summary of his accomplishments against the

performance objectives and his performance is reviewed in-camera by the Board The Chair of the

Board and the Chair of the HRCC meet with the President and CEO to provide feedback Based on

these evaluations the HRCC recommends to the Board in January of each year the President and

CEOs base salary annual incentive award and grants under the medium- and long-term incentive

plans In determining these amounts the HRCC with the assistance of Towers Watson references

market data for the CEOs in Viterras peer group

The President and CEO and the Chief Operating Officer follow similar process for the other NEOs

Each NEO completes self-assessment documenting performance during the year accomplishments

against pre-established objectives areas of strength and areas for development Each NEOs

performance is reviewed together with the compensation data provided by Towers Watson The

President and CEO then makes recommendation to the HRCC on each NEOs base salary annual

incentive award and grants under the medium- and long-term incentive plans The President and CEO

reviews the performance of each NEO and the related compensation recommendations with the

HRCC the HRCC has final approval over compensation recommendations for the NEOs

Performance is assessed using the following scale which ties into the awards under the STIP Plan

Performance

Level Unacceptable Inconsistent Solid Superior Exceptional

STI

Performance Below Threshold Target Strong Outstanding

Payout

Percentages
0% 75% 100% 100% to 150% 150% to 200%

Specific accomplishments of the President and Chief Executive Officer and the Named Executive

Officers for the 12-month period ended October 31 2009 are as follows Under the STIP plan the

individual objectives are weighted at 20% of the incentive The HRCC considers performance in

holistic way in making pay decisions
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Mayo Schmidt President and Chief Executive Officer

Strategic Objectives

Geographically expand core capabilities focusing on regions that originate wheat

canola and barley

Acquired ABB for $1.4 billion establishing Viterra as the leading South Australia agri-business

Completed $450 million subscription receipt offering for ABB acquisition

Established tax effective structure for the acquisition of ABB Grain

Establish an integrated marketing and trading group to extend origination pipeline and

expand international trading and logistics

Opened marketing office in Geneva Switzerland

Added trading and chartering expertise to Viterras portfolio

Established Indian joint venture to extend pulses and special crops pipeline

Invest in grain handling and agri-products to establish Viterra as the supplier of choice

Introduced 11 private label crop protection products in Western Canada

Expanded western Canadian equipment sales network

Invested $37 million to upgrade North American infrastructure

Acquired eight additional agri-product retails for total of 259 locations in Western Canada

Invest in value-added businesses to increase contributions from processing

Acquired canola crush facility with annual processing capacity of 345000 tonnes

Acquired ABBs matting business increasing Viterras malt processing capacity by 500000 tonnes

Enhance operational excellence to reduce costs and improve efficiency

Achieved average 9.5 days in rail cycle times versus industrys 15 day

Created an integrated global information technology platform

Created global enabling functions

Launched Viterras brand corporate-wide

Centralized oat procurement into Viterra

Establish Corporate Responsibility framework/commitment

Completed comprehensive baseline assessment of Viterras sustainability practices against global

assessment criteria

Established as one of Canadas leading agriculture companies involved in carbon credit program with

340000 offsets representing 3.4 million acres

Donated approximately $1 .2 million to charities and organizations focused on health wellness and

safety

Objective Performance
Objective AchievedWeighting

Individual Objectives

25% Launch high potential leaders program and global talent program Superior

Sponsor talent inventory review and undertake development and mentoring
25% Superior

programs at the executive level

25% Sponsor an overall baseline assessment of employee engagement Superior

25% To improve measures of all safety standards Superior

Overall Rating Superior
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Rex McLennan Chief Financial Officer

Objective Performance
Objective

Weighting Achieved

Individual Objectives

Ensure strategic financial viability through the development

20% and timely implementation of corporate financial strategies Superior

and programs to support growth strategy

Ensure Company external financings are well planned timed
Superior

and executed

Establish arid enhance the financial infrastructure of business

0% processes systems and controls to ensure integrity of Superior

reported financial results

O/ Lead the corporate
financial vision direction and execution Superior

Provide effective oversight and leadership in the evaluation

0/a and execution of acquisition transactions related to financial Superior

due diligence and integration of processes and systems

Ensure Company meets all timelines for financial disclosure
0% Superior

and regulatory and rating agency requirements

Lead initiatives to enhance the corporations risk

5% management policies processes
and governance with focus Superior

on enterprise risk management

Meet with the Board major Shareholders and rating agencies

10% on the Companys ability to achieve financial success and Superior

manage risks to maximize value

Implement innovative solutions to improve delivery of
5% Superior

financial services and contribution to business results

Ensure Viterra has the financial talent necessary to meet

5% requirements of rapidly growing publicly traded global Superior

company

Overall Rating Superior
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Francis Malecha Chief Operating Officer

Objective Performance
Objective

Weighting Achieved

Individual Objectives

40% Achieve targeted financial performance Inconsistent

Acquisition of ABB Grain expanding the business outside of
40% Exceptional

Canada

Successful integration of Western Co-operative Fertilizer
5/0 Solid

Limited and achieving synergy targets

Expand international trading with the opening of the Geneva

5% office and joint venture opportunity to extend the pipeline Superior

and build distribution network

Solidify feed manufacturing platform with the integration of
5/0 Solid

Feed Products into Viterra

Implement cost containment measures through optimization

5% of fertilizer distribution decreased grain expenses and Superior

integrated procurement of CanOat Milling with Viterra

Overall Rating Superior
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Robert Miller Senior Vice President Grain

Objective Objective Performance

Weighting
Achieved

Business Unit Objectives

50% Achieve targeted financial results Superior

10% Achieve budgeted grain expenses Solid

20% Achieve budgeted grain pipeline margins Superior

20% Achieve market share targets Solid

Individual Objectives

50% Achieve targeted financial results Superior

10% Achieve consolidated expense target for North America Superior

10% Achieve corporate safety targets
Solid

Promote and raise focus on customer components that create
15% Superior

value

Investigate and implement strategic growth opportunities
Su erior

including growth through value-added processing

Overall Rating Superior
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Douglas Wonnacott Senior Vice President Agri-Products

Objective Performance

Weighting Objective Achieved1

Business Unit Objectives

50% Achieve targeted financial results Inconsistent

5% Achieve corporate safety targets Superior

5% Achieve corporate safety initiatives through training Superior

10% Integration of Western Co-operative Fertilizers Limited Superior

30% Customer and strategic growth Solid

Individual Objectives

50% Achieve targeted financial results Inconsistent

10% Achieve corporate safety targets Superior

30% Execute on business unit strategic plan Superior

Integrate Western Co-operative Fertilizer Limited and attain
10% Superior

synergy targets

Overall Rating Superior
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph shows the cumulative return over the five-year period ended October

31 2009 for Viterras Common Shares of the Company compared to the SP/TSX Composite Index

The graph shows what $100 investment in Viterras Common Shares and the SP/TSX Composite

Index made October 31 2004 would be worth at the end of each of the five
years following the initial

investment

Viterra Inc vs SPITSX Composite Index 5-Year Return Comparison

300
-..SWP/VT .SP/TSX

October 31/04 October 31/05 October 31/06 October 31/07 October 31/08 October 3lI09

Notes

The Company has not paid any dividends on the Common Shares since July 31 2001

The Standards Poor SP/TSX Composite Index is the total return index value including

dividends reinvested

As illustrated in the graph above Viterras share price performance improved during fiscal 2009

following the market downturn in 2008 During this same time period the compensation provided to

Viterras NEOs including the theoretical value of long-term incentive at grant increased in order to

align with the Companys compensation philosophy which is based on the market 25th percentile of its

peers for 2009 The actual value of Viterras compensation however declined during 2009 In

particular the short-term incentive program paid out well below target The most recent PSU grant is

tracking below threshold and all but the 2003 and the most recent 2009 option awards including the

award granted under the AU Transaction/Synergy Program currently do not have any intrinsic value

i.e the option exercise price is currently higher than Viterras share price

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth compensation earned by the CEO CFO and the other three most highly

compensated officers of the Company collectively the Named Executive Officers for services

provided in the fiscal year
ended October 2009

Share- Option- Non-Equity Pension All Other

Name and Based Based Incentive Plan Value Compensation Total

Principal Salary1 Awards2 Awards3 Compensation $6 $7
Position Year

Annual Long
Incentive Term

Plans Incentive

Plans
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Mayo 2009 950000 1306244 1306252 600000 500000 123861 4786357

Schmidt

President

and Chief

Executive

Officer

Rex 2009 425000 244371 244374 175000 22000 20357 1131102

McLennan
Chief

Financial

Officer

FrancisJ 2009 480000 312001 312001 225000 200000 22000 26000 1577002

Malecha

Chief

Operating

Officer

RobertD 2009 350000 201255 201252 210000 614500 22000 13000 1612007

Miller

Senior Vice

President

Grain

Douglas 2009 325000 186875 186876 125000 22000 10500 856251

Wonnacott

Senior Vice

President

Agri

Products

Notes

Amounts reported represent the base salary amount paid to NEOs in 2009

Amounts reported were determined using the average share price during the last 20 trading days

prior to the date of grant and Towers Watsons binomial valuation model Values at award were

$7.37 for PSUs and $8.45 for RSUs which represent 75% and 86% of the then market 20 trading

day average price of $9.82 Towers Watsons binomial valuation model is used to ensure

Viterras long-term incentive awards are valued on consistent basis with the market

compensation data For accounting liability PSUs and RSUs are amortized over their vesting

period and re-measured at the end of each reporting period until settlement using the quoted

market value The number of PSUs that vest depends on the achievement of accumulated

EBITDA over three-year performance cycle Vesting ranges from 0% for performance below

the threshold and up to 200% for outstanding performance For additional information on the

value of the PSU awards at October 31 2009 see Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-

Based Awards

Amounts reported represent the grant date fair value of stock options awarded in 2009 determined

using Viterras share price on the date preceding the date of grant and Towers Watsons binomial

valuation model Values at award were $3.43 per option which is 38% of the exercise price of

$9.02 Towers Watsons binomial valuation model is used to ensure that Viterras long-term

incentives awards are valued on consistent basis with the market compensation data For

accounting purposes the expense related to stock options is recognized over the vesting period

based on fair value of $3.09 determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model which is

fundamentally similar to the binomial model used by Towers Watson For the value of the stock

option awards at October 31 2009 see Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Options-Based

Awards

Annual incentive payments are cash payments under the Companys STIP They are reported as

compensation for the fiscal year in which they were earned For additional information see

Short-Term Incentive Plan
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Amounts paid under the long-term incentive plans represent payments for the transaction and

synergy component of the AU Transaction/Synergy Attainment Award Program For additional

information see Agricore United AU Transaction/Synergy Attainment Award Program

The amounts include the Companys pension contributions to the Companys defined contribution

pension plan for the Named Executive Officers excluding the President and Chief Executive

Officer

For fiscal 2009 other than the amounts indicated the value of perquisites and benefits for each

Named Executive Officer did not exceed the lesser of $50000 and 10% of the total annual salary

and bonus of such officer The amounts reported represent the additional contributions made

under the Companys defined contribution pension plan for the NEOs excluding the President

and Chief Executive Officer For additional information see Defined Contribution Pension

Plans

Contributions to Paid

the Pension Plan Directly to

Name Executive Total Paid

Rex McLennan $22000 $20357 $42357

Francis Malecha $22000 $26000 $48000

Robert Miller $22000 $13000 $35000

Douglas Wonnacott $22000 $10500 $32500

For 2009 this amount includes $21000 in contributions to RRSP on behalf of Mr Schmidt and

$74000 that exceeds the statutory RRSP limit and is paid to Mr Schmidt in cash In addition

Mr Schmidt was eligible for paid executive auto lease in the amount of $22361 and flexible

perquisite allowance in the amount of $6500

Mr McLennan joined the Company on February 42008
10 Mr Wonnacott joined the Company on December 17 2007

Number of securities Weighted average Number of securities

to be issued upon exercise price of remaining available for future

exercise of outstanding options issuance under equity

Plan Category outstanding options warrants and rights compensation plans as of

warrants and rights October 31 2009 excluding

as of October 31 securities reflected in first

20091 column2

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders 1657190 $12.67 8522809

Equity compensation plans

not approved by security

holders

Notes

This represents the number olCommon Shares of the Company issuable upon the exercise of

outstanding stock options

This represents the number of Common Shares of the Company available for future option grants

under the Companys Management Stock Option Plan
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Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards

Option-Based Awards Share-Based Awards

Name Number of Option Option Value of Number of Market or

Securities Exercise Expiration unexercised shares or payout

underlying Price Date in-the- units of value of

unexercised $1 money shares that share-based

options options have not awards that

vested have not

vested

MayoM 18000 135.144 01/12/2010 346779 3554314

Schmidt 18000 51.000 02/21/2011

336634 12.120 01/17/2016

381098 9.02 31/10/2015 487805

Rex

McLennan4 71296 9.02 31/10/2015 91259 58448 549093

FrancisJ 1975 68.400 08/23/2010 90445 986235

Malecha 375 51.000 08/21/2011

375 31.000 08/15/2012

800 5.900 08/14/2013

141832 12.120 01/17/2016

91026 9.02 31/10/2015 116513

RobertD 58715 9.02 31/10/2015 75155 49625 479063

Miller

Douglas 54521 9.02 1/10/2015 69787 36285 268284

Wonnacott5

Notes

Share price for the grants expiring prior to 2013 reflect the recapitalization of shares in February

2005 Class Shareholders received one new Common Share for every 20 Class shares

Value based on the closing price at October 30 2009 or $10.30 per share

The outstanding equity awards in the sixth column represent outstanding awards pursuant to the

Long-Term Incentive Plan for 2007 and 2008 grants The reported number of units is based on the

Company achieving the maximum payout for the 2007 grants based on performance 200% for

PSUs and achieving under threshold 0% for PSUs for the 2008 grants

Mr McLennan joined the Company on February 2008

Mr Wonnacott joined the Company on December 17 2007
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Incentive Plan Awards Value Vested or Earned during the Year

Option-based awards Share-based awards Non-equity incentive plan

Value vested during Value vested compensation -- Value
ame

the year during the year
earned during the year

$2 $3
Mayo Schmidt $127033 $3480750 1100000

Rex McLenna4 $30419 175000

Francis Malecha $38838 $669375 425000

Robert Miller $25052 $401625 824500

Douglas $23263 125000

Wonnacott5

Notes

These amounts reflect the aggregate dollar value that would have been realized if all options vested

in 2009 were exercised on the vesting date

These amounts are the values of the PSUs and RSUs that were granted in fiscal 2006 and paid out

in November 2008 The compensation values previously disclosed for the PSUs and RSUs were

based on the number of units multiplied by the share value based on the $7.65 closing price on the

last trading day prior to the vesting date of $7.65 Payments were made in shares

These amounts are for the STIP payments for 2009 that have been paid subsequent to year end and

the payments under the transaction and synergy component of the AU Transaction/Synergy

Attainment Award Program

Mr McLennan joined the Company on February 2008

Mr Wonnacott joined the Company on December 17 2007

Pension Benefits

The following table outlines the accumulated benefits under Viterras defined contribution plans The

actual benefits payable upon retirement are determined by the amount in each participants account

based on contributions and realized investment returns interest rates at the time benefits commence

and the type of retirement vehicle selected life income fund life annuity joint annuity etc.

Name Accumulated Compensatory Non- Accumulated

value at the compensatory value of year end

start of year

Rex McLennan $18880 $22000 $2698 $43578

FrancisJ Malecha $151759 $22000 $23787 $197546

Robert Miller $63136 $22000 $9575 $947l

Douglas Wonnacott $17828 $22000 $5140 $44968

Notes

The amounts shown represent the employer contributions to the defined contribution pension plan

The amounts shown represent the investment earnings during the year

Termination of Employment

Employment agreements and Change in Control Agreements are provided to senior executives to

provide appropriate severance benefits that take into account the potential difficulty in obtaining

comparable employment The terms of these agreements are based on competitive practice and assist

in the attraction and retention of top executive talent The Company has entered into employment

contracts with each of the Named Executive Officers The employment contracts outline the terms and
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conditions of employment including base salary incentive compensation based on approved short-

term and long-term incentive plans benefits and perquisites In addition the employment contracts

include non-compete clause for period of 12 months from date of termination confidentiality

clause non-solicitation clause for period of 12 months from the date of termination and termination

provisions The Company has also entered into Change in Control Agreements with each of the

Named Executive Officers These contracts also contain non-compete clause for period of 12

months from date of termination confidentiality clause and non-solicitation clause for period of 12

months from the date of termination

Change in Control

Within 24 months of change of control trigger if the employment of the Named Executive Officers

is terminated by the Company without cause or the Named Executive Officer leaves for good reason

the Company will pay severance payment equivalent to the amount listed in the table below For

greater clarity the following is the definition of good reason

Good Reason means

without the express written consent of the executive any changes or series of changes in

responsibilities or status of the executive including any substantial change in remuneration

such that immediately after such change or series of changes the responsibilities or status of

the executive are reduced such that they are not substantially equivalent to such duties and

status with the employer as they existed immediately prior to the Change of Control except in

connection with the termination of the executives employment for just cause or on death

disability or retirement or

the executive has not been employed by received an offer of employment from retained or

otherwise compensated by the purchaser or acquirer as the case may be on terms no less

favourable to those enjoyed by the executive as of the date of the Change of Control or

if the employer as condition of continued employment requires the executive to relocate to

another city not acceptable to the executive

The following table outlines the incremental cost that would have resulted if the employment of the

Named Executive Officers was terminated without cause was terminated following change in

control or retired at October 31 2009
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Mayo Rex Francis Robert

Schmidt McLennan Malecha Miller Douglas

Wonnacott

Resignation

Retirement

Death

Medium-Term incentive Plan 2236782 341225 625780 298.920 159863

Total $2236782 $341225 $625780 $298920 $159863

Involuntary

Termination/Termination

Without Cause

Salary/Severance 2850000 425000 720000 350000 325000

Short-Term Incentive Plan 2422500 207188 468000 192500 178750

Medium-Term Incentive Plan 3909970 391718 1027059 555891 396375

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Pension Benefits and

Perquisites 388257 64633 19.334 59992 56976

Total $9570727 $1088539 $2334393 $1158383 $957101

Termination Following Change

in Control

Salary/Severance 2850000 850000 960000 700000 650000

Short-Term Incentive Plan 2701521 659766 703001 413024 369063

Medium-Term Incentive Plan 3909970 652863 1027059 555891 396375

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Pension Benefits and

Perquisites 388257 129266 159112 119984 113952

Total $9849748 $2291895 $2849172 $1788899 $1529390

The table below gives summary of the compensation that would be paid to the NEOs if terminated on

October 2009

NEO Type of Salary Short-Term Medium-Term Long-Term Pension

Termination payment Incentive Plan Incentive Plan Incentive Benefits and

period STIP MTIP Plan LTIP Perquisites

President and Resignation None None Unvested shares Continue to None

Chief are cancelled vest and are

Executive exercisable for

Officer _________
90 days

Retirement None Pro-rated for RSIJs vest on Continue to None

year of applicable vest and are

termination vesting date exercisable for

based on 12 months

performance PSUs vest based

and paid at the on achievement

same time as of targets on

other applicable

employees vesting date

The number of

RSUs and PSIJs

are pro-rated for

the year of

retirement based

on time worked

during the fiscal

year
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Death None Pro-rated to All unvested Continue to None

date of death RSUs vest vest and are

based on PSUs vest based exercisable for

performance on achievement 12 months

of target pro

rated for the

term of active

employment

The number of

RSUs and PSUs

are pro-rated for

the year of death

based on time

worked during

the fiscal year

Termination 36 months Pro-rated for Any unvested Ability to An amount

without year of MTIP paid exercise equivalent to

cause termination based on during the sum of employer

Additional 36 performance payment contributions to

months based against targets period any pension benefits

on pro-rated for options that and perquisites

performance length of have vested at for length of the

paid at same performance date of payment period

time as other period to date of termination

employees termination

Termination 36 months Pro-rated for Any unvested Subject to An amount

without year of MTIP paid at approval by equivalent to

cause within termination target the HRCC sum of employer

24 months of times the all options contributions to

change of average of continue to pension benefits

control previous three- vest and are and perquisites

year STIP exercisable for 36 months

awards during the

payment

_______________ _____________ ____________ _______________ ________________
period

______

Resignation None None Unvested shares Continue to None
Chief Financial

are cancelled vest and are

Officer
exercisable for

_____________ ____________ ______________ ________________
90 days _____

Retirement None Pro-rated for RSUs vest on Continue to None

year of applicable vest and are

termination vesting date exercisable for

based on PSUs vest based 12 months

performance on achievement

and paid at the of targets on

same time as applicable

other vesting date

employees The number of

RSUs and PSUs

are pro-rated for

the year of

retirement based

on time worked

during the fiscal

year
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Death None Pro-rated to All unvested Continue to None

date of death RSUs vest vest and are

based on PSUs vest based exercisable for

performance on achievement 12 months

of target pro

rated for the

term of active

employment

The number of

RSUs and PSUs

are pro-rated for

the year of death

based on time

worked during

_______________ __________ ________________
the fiscal year _______________ _______

Termination 12 months if 75% of award 50% of any Ability to An amount

without terminated at target pro- unvested MTIP exercise equivalent to

cause after but rated to date of paid based on during the sum of employer

prior to termination performance payment contributions to

year of occurs after against targets period any pension benefits

employment year of pro-rated for options that and perquisites

and 18 employment length of have vested at thr length of the

months but prior to performance date of payment period

thereafter
year and 100% period to date of termination

of STIP at termination prior

target pro- to 10 years of

rated to date of employment

termination plus an

after 2nd year additional 10%

each subsequent

full year up to

maximum of

____________ _________ ______________
100%

_____________ _______________
Termination 24 months Pro-rated for Any unvested Subject to An amount

without year of MTIP paid approval by equivalent to

cause within termination based on the HRCC sum of employer

24 months of times the performance all options contributions to

change of average of against targets continue to pension benefits

control previous three- pro-rated for vest and are and perquisites

year awards length of exercisable for 24 months

performance during the

period to date of payment

termination period

Chief Resignation None None Unvested shares Continue to None

Operating are cancelled vest and are

Officer exercisable for

_____________ _________ ______________ ________________
90 days _____

Retirement None Pro-rated for RSIJs vest on Continue to None

year
of applicable vest and are

termination vesting date exercisable for

PSUs vest based 12 months

on achievement

of targets on

applicable

vesting date

The number of

RSUs and PSUs

are pro-rated for

______________
the year of
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Pro-rated for

year of

termination

based on

performance

and paid at the

same time as

other

employees

retirement based

on time worked

during the fiscal

year

All unvested

RSUs vest

PSUs vest based

on achievement

of target pro

rated for the

term of active

employment

The number of

RSUs and PSUs

are pro-rated for

the year of death

based on time

worked during

the fiscal year

Senior Vice Resignation None None Unvested shares Continue to None

PresidentGrain are cancelled vest and are

and Senior exercisable for

Vice President 90 days

Death None NoneContinue to

vest and are

exercisable for

12 months

Termination 18 months Pro-rated for Any unvested Ability to An amount

without year of MTIP paid exercise equivalent to

cause termination based on during the sum of employer

Additional 18 performance payment contributions to

months based against targets period any pension benefits

on pro-rated for options that and perquisites

performance length of have vested at for length of the

paid at same performance date of payment period

time as other period to date of termination

employees termination

Termination 24 months Pro-rated for Any unvested Subject to An amount

without year of MTIP paid at approval by equivalent to

cause within termination target the HRCC sum of employer

24 months of times the all options contributions to

change of average of continue to pension benefits

control previous three vest and are and perquisites

year awards exercisable for 24 months

during the

payment

period
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Agri-Products Retirement None Pro-rated for

year of

termination

NoneContinue to

vest and are

exercisable for

12 months

RSUs vest on

applicable

vesting date

PSUs vest based

on achievement

of targets on

applicable

vesting date

The number of

RSUs and PSUs

are pro-rated for

the year of

retirement based

on time worked

during the fiscal

year

Death None Pro-rated for

year of

termination

based on

performance

and paid at the

same time as

other

employees

NoneContinue to

vest and are

exercisable for

12 months

All unvested

RSIJs vest

PSUs vest based

on achievement

of target pro

rated for the

term of active

employment

The number of

RSUs and PSUs

are pro-rated for

the year of death

based on time

worked during

the fiscal year

Termination 12 months Pro-rated for Any unvested Ability to An amount

without year of MTIP paid exercise equivalent to

cause termination based on during the sum of employer

Additional 18 performance payment contributions to

months based against targets period any pension benefits

on pro-rated for options that and perquisites

performance length of have vested at for length of the

paid at same performance date of payment period

time as other period to date of termination

employees termination

24 monthsTermination

without

cause within

24 months of

change of

control

Any unvested

MTIP paid at

target

Pro-rated for

year of

termination

times the

average of

previous three

year awards

Subject to

approval by

the HRCC
all options

continue to

vest and are

exercisable

during the

payment

period

An amount

equivalent to

sum of employer

contributions to

pension benefits

and perquisites

for 24 months
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

In fiscal 2009 the Directors of the Company excluding the Chairman of the Board and Deputy

Chairman received an annual retainer of $50000 paid quarterly an annual equity retainer paid in

the form of DSUs of $65000 paid quarterly plus meeting fees of $1500 paid for each Board or

Committee meeting attended In addition the Chair of the Audit Committee received an annual

retainer of $20000 paid quarterly the Chair of the Compensation Committee received an annual

retainer of $15000 paid quarterly and any Director who chaired any other Committee received an

annual retainer of $10000 paid quarterly and any Director who was member of Committee

received an annual retainer of $4000 paid quarterly All Directors are reimbursed for travel and out-

of-pocket expenses incurred while on Company business

The Chairman of the Board did not receive any retainer or meeting fees but received an annual stipend

of $150000 in fiscal 2009 In addition the Chairman received an annual Deferred Share Unit DSU
grant of $125000 He is reimbursed out-of-pocket expenses incurred while on Company business

In September 2009 the Board created the position of Deputy Chair and established an annual stipend

of $172500 In addition the Deputy Chair is eligible to collect meeting fees travel expenses and

Committee retainers as appropriate

Commencing March 13 2008 current Directors are required to hold three times their annual

compensation in Common Shares of the Company within five years to be met in part through DSU

Plan New Directors will be required to hold three times their annual compensation in Common Shares

within five years of their election to the Board to be met in part through the DSU Plan

The DSU Plan provides that minimum of 40% of Directors annual retainer and meeting fees will

be put into the DSU Plan until they acquire three times their annual compensation in Common

Shares/DSUs of the Company Each year Directors have the option to elect to receive larger portion

or all of their annual retainer and any additional fees in the form of DSUs Directors contribute on

quarterly basis to the DSU Plan and these funds are utilized to purchase DSUs In addition

Directors annual equity retainer is paid in DSUs The price for the DSU is determined using the

average of the last 20 trading days prior to the funds being put in Directors are eligible to withdraw

from the plan when they cease to be member of the Board Payments from the plan will be made

either in Common Shares or cash
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Composition of the Board

The Board was comprised of 10 Directors from March 11 2009 to September 23 2009 when Mr
Pinder stepped down from the Board and four former directors of ABB Grain Ltd Messrs Gunner

Venning Daniel and Osborn were appointed to the Board bringing the total number of Directors to

13 As indicated at the time of his resignation Mr Pinders resignation was obtained in order to

facilitate the appointment of these four directors He is being nominated to return to the Board The

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee is mandated to recommend slate of Directors to the

Board for election by Shareholders at each annual meeting Farmer participation on the Board is

solicited through the Western Farm Leadership Co-operative Ltd self-governing organization

funded by Viterra This organization whose membership includes customers of Viterra provides

slate of four candidates to Viterras Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee for consideration to

form part of the slate of candidates to be voted on by Shareholders from which two were selected for

the slate The remaining nominees to the Board which includes the President and Chief Executive

Officer have been recommended by the Committee and have been approved by the Board for

subsequent election by Shareholders

Based upon its review the Board has concluded that other than the President and Chief Executive

Officer the Directors of Viterra are all independent within the meaning of National Instrument 58-

101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices NI 58-101 and National Instrument 52-110 Audit

Committees NI 52-1 10 of the Canadian Securities Administrators

The Directors whose principal occupation is farming typically continue to have business relationship

with Viterra as agricultural producers that regularly do business with Viterra and its subsidiaries

These business relationships do not in the opinion of the Board result in any of the farmer-Directors

not being independent within the meaning of NI 58-101 or NI 52-110

As indicated above Directors have minimum shareholding requirements It is the opinion of the Board

that these minimum investment requirements do not result in any of the Directors not being

independent within the meaning of NI 52-110 See Executive Compensation Compensation of

Directors

The Board as whole elects from its ranks Chairman of the Board Mr Thomas Birks is the current

Chairman of the Board and is an independent Director In addition in September 2009 the Board

created the position of Deputy Chair and appointed Mr Gunner to the position Mr Gunner is an

independent Iirector

The Board in conjunction with each and every Board meeting holds an in-camera session exclusive of

non-independent Board members or management

Directors are not term limited and the Company has not instituted retirement policy

Board Mandate

The current Board mandate which is reviewed on an annual basis is attached as Appendix
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Position Descriptions

The Board has developed position descriptions for Directors in general and specifically for the

positions of President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board and the Deputy Chairman

There are no specific position descriptions for Chairs of Board Committees although each Committee

has mandate by which its members and Chairs are assessed

Orientation and Continuing Education

New Directors participate in Directors orientation program and receive Directors handbooks

containing information on Directors responsibilities terms of reference for the Board and its

Committees together with Board policies and procedures The Board reviews Directors

responsibilities annually

The Boards Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for establishing and

administering subject to Board approval ongoing Board development programs that include both

general Board training activities and individual development activities Examples of these activities

include periodic visitations to Company facilities and presentations by internal and external experts on

emerging issues or matters of particular significance to the Company Development activities are

specifically identified for new Directors in this program

In addition budget is provided annually for each Director to attend industry courses and seminars

Code of Business Conduct

The Company enhanced its Code of Business Conduct the Code in fiscal 2004 and again in fiscal

2007 upon the acquisition of Agricore United The Code applies to Viterras Board of Directors its

officers and its employees each of whom has received copy of the Code In addition new

employees are introduced to the Code as part of their orientation to the Company The Code provides

guidance on topics such as legal workplace and environmental compliance protection of Company

assets conflicts of interest confidentiality and insider trading Guidelines have been provided for

reporting potential violations of the Code In addition Viterra has established an independent

anonymous reporting telephone line that is available to Directors officers and employees

ABB Grain has similar Code and Ethics hotline which continues at this time As part of the

integration of ABB Grain it is anticipated that these programs will be merged

The responsibility for monitoring compliance with the Code lies with the Audit Committee of the

Board Managements Risk Management Committee reports on Code compliance to the Audit

Committee on quarterly basis No waivers have been granted with respect to this Code of Business

Conduct since implementation copy of the Companys Code of Business Conduct and the Audit

Committee Charter are available on the Companys website at www.viterra.ca

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee which is comprised entirely of independent

Directors is mandated to recruit assess and propose slate of Directors for Board approval and

subsequent election by Shareholders

The Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee is also responsible for developing processes to

assess Board Committee and individual Director effectiveness and to consider the development needs

of the Board as whole and for individual Directors

The mandate of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee is attached as Appendix
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Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee olthe Board which is comprised entirely of independent Directors is

governed by this Committees Terms of Reference which is attached as Appendix

The Compensation Committee retained human resource consulting firm during the 2008 fiscal year

to provide assistance to the Committee in assessing the appropriateness of the Companys Board and

executive compensation package

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board which is comprised entirely of independent Directors is governed

by this Committees Charter which is attached as Appendix

The Audit Committees responsibility is to ensure that appropriate due diligence has been directed

towards the control accountability and financial reporting functions of the Company communicate

effectively with the Board external auditor internal auditors and senior management ensure the

independence of the external and internal auditors and to fulfil its oversight responsibility relating to risk

management processes

Safety Environment and Health Committee

In September 2009 the Board of Directors established the Safety Environment and Health Committee

The Terms of Reference for the Committee include oversight regarding operational safety health

grain dust lifting chemicals etc Wl-IMIS Canada Labour Code compliance environmental risk

reclamation work The Committee will provide strategic advice to management regarding government

relations and community interaction

Regular Board Assessments

The Company has implemented process through the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

whereby the effectiveness of its Directors both as whole and on an individual basis is assessed

annually including peer-to-peer review The Company has implemented specific assessment

process for Board Committees These processes were put in abeyance in this fiscal year due to the

significant changes in Board makeup as result of the ABB Grain acquisition It is anticipated that the

Board shall return to its normal processes going forward

When utilizing the survey systems all evaluations are carried out through an anonymous survey

process on secure website The results are tabulated and provided to the Nominating/Corporate

Governance Committee To the extent deficiencies in Board or Director performance is identified

either through the survey systems or through external review by consultants the Committee may

recommend updated Board practices
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Executive Officers

Name Municipality Office

Mayo Schmidt Calgary AB President and Chief Executive Officer

Francis Malecha Calgary AB Chief Operating Officer

Rex McLennan Calgary AB Chief Financial Officer

Steven Berger Calgary AB Senior Vice-President Human Resources and

Transformation

Donald Chapman Singapore Senior Vice-President International Grain

Raymond Dean Regina SK Senior Vice-President and General

Counsel/Corporate Secretary

Karl Gerrand Portage la Prairie Senior Vice-President Food Processing

MB
Rob Gordon Adelaide Australia Senior Vice-President and President South East Asia

Robert Miller Regina SK Senior Vice-President North American Grain

William Mooney West Vancouver Senior Vice-President Feed Products

BC

Andrew Muirhead Calgary AB Senior Vice-President Corporate Development

George Prosk Winnipeg MB Senior Vice-President Financial Products

Colleen Vancha Regina SK Senior Vice-President Investor Relations and

Corporate Affairs

Doug Wonnacott Regina SK Senior Vice-President Agri-Products

Mike Brooks Regina SK Chief Information Officer and Vice-President

Information Technology

Ron Cameron Regina SK Vice-President Group Controller

Grant Theaker Regina SK Vice-President and Treasurer

Notes

All of the above officers have been engaged for more than five years in their present positions

or substantially similar positions or other executive positions with Viterra or its subsidiaries

except for

Rex McLennan who prior to January 29 2008 served as Executive Vice-President and

CFO for Vancouver 2010 VANOC the organizing committee for the 2010 Olympic and

Paralympic Winter Games and prior to that was Executive Vice-President and CFO for

Placer Dome Inc

Steven Berger who prior to January 2007 was Senior Executive Partner Corporate

Strategy/MA Practice with Accenture

Donald Chapman who prior to October 2007 was Managing Director Chief Trader at

Toepfer International Asia Pte Ltd
Rob Gordon who prior to January 17th 2010 was the CEO and Managing Director of

Dairy Farmers Pty Ltd
Robert Miller who prior to April 2005 was Senior Merchandising Manager Grain

Operations at General Mills Inc

Andrew Muirhead who prior to January 2008 was on sabbatical commencing October

2007 and prior to that was Vice-President and Director of Investment Banking at TD

Securities Inc
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William Mooney who prior to November 2008 held senior management positions with

the Company

George Prosk who prior to June 2007 was Vice-President of Financial Markets at

Agricore United

Doug Wonnacott who prior to January 2008 was Vice-President of Agriliance LLC and

Ron Cameron who prior to February 2005 was Vice-President and CFO at Saskferco

Products Inc

At October 2008 the Directors and senior officers of Viterra as group beneficially

owned or controlled directly or indirectly 2025743 Common Shares of the Company which

represents 0.85% of the total outstanding Common Shares

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Company is available on the System for Electronic

Document Analysis and Retrieval SEDAR under the Companys name at www.sedar.com

Additional financial information is contained in the Companys comparative financial

statements for the year ended October 31 2009 and the Companys Managements Discussion

and Analysis relating to the same which are available on SEDAR and on the Companys
website at www.viterra.ca Shareholders may contact the Vice-President Investor Relations

and Corporate Affairs 2625 Victoria Avenue Regina Saskatchewan S4T 7T9 telephone

306 569-4859 or email investor@viterra.ca to request copies of the Companys Consolidated

Financial Statements and Managements Discussion and Analysis

The final date by which the Company must receive proposal for any matter that

Shareholder proposes to raise at the annual meeting of the Company to be held in 201 is

November 32010

BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVAL

The contents and sending of this Circular have been approved by the Board

By Order of the Board of Directors

signed Raymond Dean

Senior Vice-President and

General Counsel/Corporate Secretary
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APPENDIX BOARD OF DIRECTORS MANDATE

Article One Objectives

1.1 ObjectivesThe Board has the responsibility to oversee the conduct of the business of the

Corporation and to supervise management who is responsible for the day-to-day conduct of the

business The Board explicitly acknowledges its role as stewards of the corporations assets The

Board adds value by working with management to build successful corporation and enhance

value for shareholders and stakeholders The Boards fundamental objectives are

To enhance and preserve long term value for shareholders and stakeholders

To ensure that the Corporation meets its obligations on an ongoing basis and

To ensure that the Corporation operates in reliable and ethical manner in compliance

with the Canadian Business Corporations Act the Act the bylaws of the Corporation

and applicable legislation and regulation

Article Two Constitution of the Board

2.1 Constitution of the Board The Board shall be composed of minimum of and maximum of

directors elected in accordance with the requirements of the bylaws as amended from time to

time At least two directors shall be identified by the Western Farm Leadership Cooperative for

consideration by the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee of the Board in accordance

with the terms of the Funding Agreement between the Company and that organization in effect

from time to time After receiving the recommendations of the Nominating/Corporate Governance

Committee of the Board the committee shall recommend some or all of those candidates together

with other appropriate candidates the majority of whom will be Independent Directors and will

include the President and Chief Executive Officer to the Board for approval and subsequent

election by the shareholders Independent Directors will be independent of management and free

from any interest in or business relationship that may materially interfere with such directors

ability to act in the best interests of the Corporation Without limiting the foregoing an

Independent Director will not be or have been in the two years preceding nomination supplier

of material amount of goods or services to the Corporation or relative of director or officer of

the Corporation Independent Directors shall provide diversity of background skills and

competencies for the board e.g financial expertise/professional background

2.2 Chairman of the Board The Board shall annually elect an Independent Director to act as

Chairman of the Board The Chairman of the Board shall not be an officer or employee of the

Corporation However upon and by virtue of being elected Chairman of the Board the individual

shall receive compensation and benefits established by the Board of Directors on recommendation

from appropriate Board Committees from time to time for this position

Article Three Procedures

3.1 Quorum No business shall be conducted at any meeting of the directors unless quorum of the

directors is present at the time the meeting is called to order The quorum shall consist of two-

thirds of the directors who have been elected at the date on which notice of the meeting is given or

if notice was waived on the date the meeting is held

Article Four Authority of the Board

4.1 General Powers The Board of Directors has the general authority to exercise the powers of the

Corporation not reserved to the shareholders directly and indirectly through the employees and

agents of the Corporation The Board is responsible to supervise and direct the management of the
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business and affairs of the Corporation in accordance with the Act bylaws and applicable

legislation and regulation Such responsibility does not include the day-to-day management of the

Corporation which has been delegated to management

4.2 Board Committees The Board of Directors shall constitute such committees of the Board of

Directors as may be required shall develop the terms of reference which set out their authority and

responsibilities shall elect or make appointments to such committees and shall receive reports and

appraise the performance of such committees Such committees shall be comprised of majority

of Independent Directors and shall include

4.2 Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee

4.2.2 Audit Committee

4.2.3 Human Resource Compensation Committee and

4.2.4 Safety Health and Environmental Committee

4.3 Delegation The Board of Directors may delegate to such committees or one or more of the

directors and officers of the Corporation as may be designated by the board all or any of the

powers conferred on the board to such extent and in such manner as the board shall determine at

the time of each such delegation excepting the following powers
To submit to shareholders any question or matter requiring the approval of the

shareholders

To issue securities or to authorize the issue of securities in the manner and on the terms set

by the Board of Directors

To declare dividends

To purchase redeem or otherwise acquire shares issued by the Corporation

To pay commission on the sale of shares

To approve management proxy circular or

To approve the financial statements of the Corporation

Article Five Corporate Responsibilities of the Board

President and Chief Executive Officer The board with the assistance of the committees

identified has the responsibility to

Select and if necessary replace the President and Chief Executive Officer

With the assistance of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee establish and

periodically review the position description for the President and Chief Executive Officer

With the assistance of the Human Resource Compensation Committee establish annual

performance measures for the President and Chief Executive Officer

With the assistance of the Human Resource Compensation Committee annually review

the performance of the President and Chief Executive Officer against the position

description and the established performance measures

With the assistance of the Human Resource Compensation Committee establish the

compensation for the President and Chief Executive Officer

With the assistance of the Human Resource Compensation Committee engage in

succession planning for the position of President and Chief Executive Officer and senior

officers and

Provide advice and guidance to the President and Chief Executive Officer

5.2 Chairman of the Board The board directly and with the assistance of committees identified

has the responsibility to

Elect the Chairman of the Board

With the assistance of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee establish and

periodically review the position description for the Chairman of the Board
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With the assistance of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee annually review

the performance of the Chairman of the Board against the position description and any

established performance measures and

With the assistance of the Nominating/Corporate Govemance Committee annually review

the appropriateness and form of compensation for the Chairman of the Board to ensure that

such compensation reflects the responsibilities of such position

5.3 Senior Management The Board with the assistance of the committees identified has the

responsibility to work with the President and Chief Executive Officer to

Ratify and approve the appointment of senior management

Monitor the performance of senior management

With the assistance of the Human Resource Compensation Committee approve the

compensation of senior management and

With the assistance of the Human Resource Compensation Committee ensure that

adequate provision has been made for training and developing management and for the

orderly succession of management

5.4 Strategic Plannin2 The Board has the responsibility to contribute to the development of the

Corporations strategic direction and to approve strategic plan which takes into account business

opportunities and business risks The Board also has the responsibility to review regularly with

management the strategic environment the emergence of new opportunities and risks and the

implications for the strategic direction of the corporation To fulfill such responsibilities the Board

will

Participate in strategic planning sessions with management to identify and review the

strategic environment and business risks and opportunities

Continually review and approve the strategic plan of the Corporation

Regularly review with management new or emerging risks/opportunities on the strategic

plan of the company
Monitor the implementation of the strategic plan

Annually approve the operating budgets and capital budgets of the Corporation

5.5 Risk Management The Board has the responsibility to understand the principal risks of the

Corporations businesses and to ensure the Corporation achieves proper balance between risks

incurred and the potential return to shareholders The Board is responsible for overseeing and

monitoring managements system for monitoring and managing business risks To fulfill such

responsibilities the Board will

Provide oversight in the identification of business risks as part of the strategic planning

process

Through the Audit Committee of the Board review the activities of the Corporations Risk

Management Committee the Corporations risk management policies and practices and

the Corporations internal control systems and

Through the Audit Committee of the Board review regularly the Corporations

information management systems

5.6 Communications Policy Practices The Board is responsible for ensuring the Corporation

communicates effectively with its shareholders other stakeholders and the public generally To

fulfill such responsibilities the Board will

With the assistance of the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee review annually

the Corporations disclosure policy

Review regularly the Corporations investor relations activities including the relationship

between the Corporation and investment dealers and

With the assistance of the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee review and

approve significant shareholder communications including the MDA and press releases
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respecting quarterly results the AIF and any Management Information Circular to ensure

that the financial performance of the Corporation is adequately reported to shareholders

other security holders regulators and the general public on timely and regular basis

5.7 Director Compensation The Board of Directors will with the assistance of the

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee annually review the adequacy and form of

compensation of directors and Committee Chairs to determine whether the compensation

realistically reflects the responsibilities and risks involved in being an effective director and set

director compensation accordingly

5.t Monitoring Management The Board directly and with the assistance of the identified

committees has the responsibility to

Monitor the Corporations progress towards its goals and objectives and to ensure

corrective action is taken as necessary

Monitor results of financial plans

With the assistance of the Audit Committee monitor the Corporations control and

information systems

With the assistance of the Human Resource Compensation Committee ensure the

Corporation has appropriate human resources policies and practices and

With the assistance of the Safety Health Environmental Committee ensure the

Corporation has appropriate environmental policies and practices

5.9 Expenditure Approvals The board has the sole authority to approve or to delegate to

committee or specified individual the following single capital and operating commitments

investments and disposition of assets exceeding 10 million within the approved capital budgets

and exceeding $3 million for single capital and other operating commitments investment and

disposition of assets outside of the annually approved budgets and that the authority to approve

transactions below said amount is granted to the President Chief Executive Officer

Article Six Recruitment Assessment

6.1 The Board directly and through the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee is responsible

for assessing in light of the opportunities and risks facing the company what competencies skills

and personal qualities are required to add value to the Company and how those competencies

skills and personal qualities will be accessed To fulfill such responsibilities the Board through

the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee shall annually review and consider the selection

process for Directors and the director recruitment and development plans of the Corporation

6.2 The Board directly and through the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee is responsible

for assessing on an annual basis the effectiveness of the Board the Board Committees Committee

Chairs the Chair of the Board and individual directors The Board is responsible for reviewing the

results of such assessments arid determining what measures are necessary to improve effectiveness

Approved hr the Board March 2009
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APPENDIX NOMINATING/CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MANDATE

PREAMBLE

The Board is the most senior decision-making body in Viterra It establishes objectives for the

Corporations direction through the adoption of its strategic plan ii identifies the principal business

risks and ensures appropriate systems are in place to manage these risks iii appoints the President

and Chief Executive Officer gives direction and assesses performance iv establishes

communication policy for the Corporation and ensures the integrity of the internal control and

management information systems The Board also performs an advisory function trustee function

and leadership function All of these are vital to the growth and development of the Company
Individual Board members require thorough understanding of the concepts involved

director is required to work toward the continual improvement of his/her knowledge and skills and

to participate in training experiences in order to provide leadership toward the attainment of objectives

of the organization It is the policy of Viterra to provide Board and director training experiences in

keeping with the needs of the Board as the senior decision-making body of the Corporation

COMPOSITION

The Committee is standing committee of the Board and shall consist of majority of Independent

Directors as that term is defined by Canadian Securities Administrators elected by the Board

The Committee shall elect from its numbers Chairperson of the Committee who will be responsible

for the development of the Committee agendas document review and discussion of issues with senior

management

staff person will act as secretary to the Committee

The Committee may recommend sub-committees of its own members and/or representatives of

management

The Committee may from time to time solicit management and staff support for specific resource

requirements

The Committee may from time to time retain legal or other consultants to gather information and

provide advice to the Committee In this regard it shall be the responsibility of the Committee Chair

on behalf of and in consultation with the Committee to pre-approve in writing the scope of the work
to be undertaken and the fees to be incurred Management shall

prepare report outlining all such fees

incurred and present same at each quarterly meeting of the Committee

AUTHORITY

The Committee gets its authority from the Board Its authority related to policy making is limited to

making recommendations to the Board of Directors The Committee may develop and recommend

plans which commit the Board to participate in training or development activities

The Committee is authorized to undertake process to assess Board of Directors effectiveness ii
consider the development needs of both the Board of Directors as whole as well as for individual

board members and iii undertake
process for Director Peer Assessment reviews
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DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee has the general responsibility for developing the Companys approach to governance

issues and submit its recommendations to the Board for approval In particular the Committee will

Ensure processes are in place to enhance and assess the effectiveness of the Board its

Committees and their Chairs the Chair of the Board and each director

Analyze needs and plan for the provision of training and development policies and programs

for the Board

Continually monitor the composition of the Board and required expertise and industry

knowledge of Board members and shall develop processes
to recruit potential new Board

members should the need arise to fill any Board vacancies amongst the Independent Directors

In conjunction with the Chair of the Board recommend to the Board the composition of all

Board Committees

The committee will annually recommend to the Board an individual to be elected to the

position of Chairman of the Board

Review the list of candidates for directors presented by the Western Farm Leadership Co

operative WFLC and where appropriate recommend minimum of two to the Board to

form portion of the slate of directors

The Committee will undertake the following duties

Annually review evaluate and recommend methods and processes for evaluating Board and

Committee effectiveness

Review and recommend for Board approval the schedule of Board meetings for each upcoming

year

Monitor and review corporate disclosure policies and corporate guidelines for maintaining

confidentiality and recommend changes and action required to deal with breaches of policy or

guidelines

Review and recommend to the Board annually the Governance Section of the Annual

Information Form and the Management Information Circular

Provide guidance to management to ensure an appropriate orientation and education program for

individual directors and the Board of Directors as whole is in place

Periodically review the format and quality of information and presentations provided to the Board

by management

Maintain knowledge of latest developments with regard to corporate governance in general and

directors duties and responsibilities in particular
and make recommendations to the Board in

regard to such matters and developments as may be deemed necessary

Review requests from directors seeking access to professional advisors in accordance with the

Director Access to Legal or Other Professional Services Policy

Review such other matters of corporate governance nature as may be directed by the Board from

time to time
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Annually review all Board Committee Terms of Reference and recommend to the Board of

Directors

Particular duties with respect to Board Training and Development include

Approve training and development for the Board as whole

Approve individual training or development experiences for individual directors based on

specific identified needs

Monitor and assess the value of training programs and recommend changes

Search out and utilize appropriate resource people as required

Ensure maintenance of records of director participation in Board development activities

Training Guidelines

The Committee will take into account the varying needs of individual Board members and the Board of

Directors as whole The following will be considered in needs assessment

The specific responsibilities of the individual Board member

Individual competencies of Board members

Individual experience within the control structure of the company

The experience gained by involvement in other organizations

Training and development experiences for Board members should be provided in order to

Increase individual communication skills verbal presentational and writing

Provide for productive relationship with management and staff

Increase understanding of management responsibilities human resource needs financing the

organization operating policies and programs

Broaden individual understanding of the economic and social environment in Saskatchewan

and Canada

PROCEDURES AND BUDGET

Meetings shall be convened by the Chair and will normally be associated with regular quarterly

meetings of the Board Other meetings may be convened as necessary

Meeting agendas will be developed by the Committee Chair and secretary

Minutes of Committee meetings will be sent to all Board members and relevant executive and

management staff Reports on the conduct of the meetings will be made to the Board

The Committee does not have its own budget Committee member fees and expenses are budgeted as

general Board costs

TERMS OF REFERENCE REVIEW

The Committee will review its terms of reference annually and recommend any changes to the Board

of Directors
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APPENDIX HUMAN RESOURCE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE TERMS OF
REFERENCE

CONSTITUTION

The Human Resource Compensation Committee is standing committee of the Board of Directors

to advise the Board with respect to compensation policy generally and specific responsibilities which

follow

The Committee is standing committee of the Board and shall consist of Independent Directors as that

term is defined by Canadian Securities Administrators elected by the Board The Chair of the

Committee shall be selected from the members of the committee

The Committee shall meet at least three times annually with such additional meetings as may be

required meeting can be requested by the Chair or any two members of the Committee quorum
shall consist of three members

The Committee may appoint Secretary to keep minutes of the meetings Such minutes shall be

distributed to committee members filed with the General Counsel of the Company and made available

to directors by posting on the Directors Website verbal report to the full Board shall be made at the

next meeting of the Board of Directors

The Committee may from time to time retain legal or other consultants to gather information and

provide advice to the committee In this regard it shall be the responsibility of the Committee Chair

on behalf of and in consultation with the Committee to pre-approve in writing the scope of the work

to be undertaken and the fees to be incurred Management shall prepare report outlining all such fees

incurred and present same at each quarterly meeting of the Committee

The authority of the Committee shall be limited to providing recommendations to the Board of

Directors unless the Board has specifically delegated otherwise

Responsibilities

The role of the Committee includes the following

To recommend annually compensation policy for the Company within the context of the

formal corporate strategic plan and the compensation philosophy therein

To recommend to the Board and review annually Chief Executive Officers compensation In

addition and related to this process the committee shall preside over an annual Performance

Review of the CEO and the setting of specific objectives for the following year

To recommend to the Board for approval all forms of compensation of the Officers of the

Company in conjunction with the recommendations of the CEO

To review management recommendations for all forms of compensation for out of scope

employees collective bargaining mandates and tentative agreements

To establish and review annually with the Board succession planning process including

professional development and an emergency replacement plan

To preside over all compensation aspects of Company disclosure including but not limited to

the Executive Compensation section in the Companys Annual Information Form

To review annually the Terms of Reference of the Committee and recommend changes if any

to the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee and to the Board

Reviewed hi the Board March 2009
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APPENDIX AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

OBJECTIVES

Primary responsibility for Viterra Inc.s the Company consolidated financial reporting and control

systems is vested in Corporate Management and is overseen by the Audit Committee on behalf of the

Board of Directors The Audit Committee is standing committee of the Board established to

Regularly report to the full Board to assist the Board in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities in

regard to financial reporting internal control systems relationships with auditors legal and

ethical conduct and accountability for the use of assets

Ensure that appropriate due diligence has been directed towards the control accountability and

financial reporting functions of the Company

Communicate effectively with the Board external auditor internal auditors and senior

management

Ensure the independence of the external and internal auditors

Fulfill its oversight responsibility relating to risk management processes

AUTHORITY

The Board of Directors grants the Audit Committee the authority to carry out the specific responsibilities

outlined in this Charter in order to achieve its stated objectives The Audit Committee shall have access

to personnel documents records and resources necessary to carry out its responsibilities The

Committee shall have the authority to authorize investigations into any matter within the Committees

scope of responsibilities and is empowered to retain special legal accounting or other consultants to

advise the Committee

MEMBERSHIP

The Committee shall be composed of five Directors all of whom will be Independent Directors as that

phrase is defined in National Instrument 52-1 10 of the Canadian Securities Administrators as amended

from time to time selected by the Board on an annual basis The Board will annually elect one of the

Committee members to serve as the Committee Chairperson who has the appropriate level of financial

expertise e.g accounting designation or professional experience All members of the Committee must

have reasonable knowledge of the agricultural industry and be financially literate possesses the ability to

read and understand set of financial statements that present breadth and level of complexity of

accounting issues that are generally comparable to those that could be reasonably expected to be

encountered at the Company or acquire such financial literacy within reasonable period of time after

appointment to the Committee

Each member shall be free of any direct or indirect material relationship with the Company that in the

opinion of the Board would interfere with his or her individual exercise of independent judgement All

members may serve any number of consecutive terms in order to ensure some continuity to the

Committee In the event of mid-term vacancies the Board will elect replacement directors to complete

the term All decisions require majority approval of the Committee
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MEETINGS/ATTENDANCE/AGENDA

The Committee will meet at least quarterly quorum shall consist of three members The Audit

Committee shall determine attendance at all meetings Meetings may be held in person by conference

telephone call or by any individual member participating by conference telephone or videoconference

Meetings may be held at the call of the Chairperson or any member of the Audit Committee or the

external auditor of the Company meeting of the Audit Committee may be held and duly constituted at

any time without notice if all the Audit Committee members are present or if any be absent those absent

have waived notice or signified their consent in writing to the meeting being held in their absence

The Chairperson shall in consultation with management and the auditors establish the agenda for the

meetings and ensure that properly prepared agenda materials are circulated to members in sufficient time

for study prior to the meeting Audit Committee members may recommend agenda items subject to

approval of the agenda by the Committee

The Audit Committee will maintain minutes of its meetings which minutes will be filed with the minutes

of the meetings of the Board of Directors Minutes of Audit Committee meetings will be circulated to all

Board members upon approval by the Committee

SPECIFIC RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

Annual Information

Review the annual consolidated financial statements and recommend their approval to

the Board after discussing with management and the auditors matters pertaining to

the selection application and quality of accounting policies

significant accounting judgements accruals and estimates and

significant disclosure or presentation issues addressed by management the

external auditor and the internal auditor during the course of the audit and

preparation of the financial statements

Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Directors the annual

Managements Discussion and Analysis MDA

Obtain certifications from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer

and considering the external auditors comments if any thereon to their knowledge

that the audited financial statements together with any financial information included

in the annual MDA fairly represent in all material respects the Companys financial

condition cash flow and results of operation as of the date and for the periods

presented in such filings

Review the planning and results of the external audit including

the engagement letter and projected audit fee

the scope of the audit including areas of audit risk timetable deadlines

materiality limits extent of internal control testing and co-ordination with

internal audit

various reports issued by the external auditor including

the auditors report

all critical accounting policies and practices used
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material alternative treatments of financial information within generally

accepted accounting principles that have been discussed with

management

ramifications of the use of alternative disclosures and treatments

treatment preferred by the external auditors and

any material written communications between the external auditors and

management i.e management representation letter internal control

letter schedule of unadjusted differences and

any errors detected by the audit how they were resolved with management and

whether they indicate weakness in the reporting and control system

Any other matters required to be communicated to the Audit Committee by the

external auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable law or

listing standards

Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Directors any news releases

dealing with financial issues in accordance with the Companys Disclosure Policy

Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Directors the Annual

Information Form

Interim Financial Information

Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Directors all interim financial

statements and managements discussion and analysis and any other financial

information to be included in the Interim Filings that are published or issued to

regulatory authorities

The Committee shall obtain reasonable assurance that the process for preparing these

statements is reliable and consistent with the process for preparing annual financial

statements

Obtain certifications from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer

and considering the external auditors comments if any thereon to their knowledge

that the quarterly financial statements together with any financial information

included in the quarterly MDA fairly represent in all material respects the

Companys financial condition cash flow and results of operation as of the date and

for the periods presented in such filings

Review any other matters required to be communicated to the Audit Committee by the

external auditor under generally accepted auditing standards applicable law or listing

standards

Risk Management Accounting and Internal Controls

Review and evaluate the critical areas of risk and exposure as determined by

management for the Company including but not limited to insurance protection

environmental health and safety issues industry factors treasury/credit including

derivatives counter-party credit risk and other areas as determined from time to time

Review any emerging accounting issues and regulatory initiatives and their potential

impact on the companys financial statements and other public disclosures
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Review and approve all significant related party transactions

Obtain reasonable assurance from discussions with and/or reports from management the

external auditor and the internal auditor that the companys accounting systems and

internal control systems are reliable effective and comply with authorities

Direct the external auditors examinations to specific areas as deemed necessary by the

Committee

Review significant control weaknesses identified by the external and the internal auditor

along with managements response

Review management representations regarding salaries and wages source deductions

tax obligations and environmental liabilities orjudgements

External Auditor Independence

The Audit Committee shall ensure that the External Auditor understands their ultimate

accountability to the Board and the Audit Committee as representatives of the Companys

shareholders

The External Auditor shall report directly to the Audit Committee

Strengthen and preserve external auditor independence by

holding periodic in-camera sessions with the external auditor

approving in advance all non-audit engagements undertaken by the audit firm

for the Company after assessing their impact on the external auditors

objectivity and independence

assessing the performance of the external auditor and developing resolutions

related to the reappointment or any proposed change in external auditors to the

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

discussing with management and the external auditors the rotation plan

including the timing and process for implementing the plan for all of the audit

partners active on the engagement

reviewing the co-operation received by the external auditor from management

receiving from the external auditor letter which summarizes the non-audit

services provided during the year and declaring their independence from the

Company

ensuring the establishment of policies relating to the Companys hiring of

employees or former employees of the external auditor if such individuals

have participated in the audit of the Company as required by law and

reviewing report from the external auditor describing

the firms internal quality control procedures and

all relationships between the external auditor and the Company

Internal Audit

Strengthen and preserve the independence of Internal Audit by having regular in-camera

sessions with the Internal Auditor

Approve the appointment replacement reassignment or dismissal of the Director of

Audit Services
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Review and evaluate the scope risk assessment and nature of the internal audit plan and any

subsequent changes including linkage to business objectives and managements success and

risk factors

Consider and review the following issues with management and the Director of Audit

Services

significant findings of internal audit as well as managements response to them

any difficulties encountered in the course of their audits including any

restrictions on the scope of their work or access to required information

the internal audit department budget and staffing

the internal audit charter

compliance with The hA Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal

Auditing

Direct Internal Audit to any specific areas the Committee deems necessary

Review the annual performance and compensation of the Director of Audit Services

Ethical and Legal Conduct

Review and evaluate the adequacy of systems and practices in place to provide

reasonable assurance of compliance with laws regulations and standards of ethical

conduct with respect to the financial affairs of the Company

Receive and review updates from management and general counsel on compliance

matters and litigation claims or other contingencies that could have significant

impact on the financial position or operating results of the Company

Establish procedures for

the receipt retention and treatment of complaints received by the issuer regarding

accounting internal accounting controls or auditing matters and

the confidential anonymous submission by employees of the issuer of concerns

regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters

Require reporting of all fraudulent and illegal acts to the Committee along with

managements response to them

Other

Annually review the Audit Committee Charter and recommend appropriate changes to

the Board of Directors

Annually self-assess whether the Audit Committee has carried out the responsibilities

defined in the Audit Committee Charter and report these results to the Board of

Directors

Arrange for disclosure of or appropriate access to the Audit Committee Charter for all

shareholders of the Company including posting the Charter on the Companys website

The Audit Committee will undertake development and education activities as deemed

appropriate
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Annually review managements succession plans for financial and auditing staff and

approve the appointment replacement reassignment or dismissal of the Chief

Financial Officer

Hold in-camera sessions on quarterly basis and at the discretion of the Chair

Perform any other activities consistent with this Charter the Companys bylaws and

governing law as the Committee or Board deems necessary or appropriate

Review and evaluate managements disaster recovery and business resumption plans

including the results of testing those plans

Annually review the Companys disclosure controls and procedures and submit any

recommended revisions to the Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee for

review and approval
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APPENDIX SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL

Northwest Ethical Investments L.P 800-1 111 West Georgia Street Vancouver British Columbia

V6E 4T6 has submitted Shareholder proposal in the form of proposed resolution the NET

Resolution to be considered at the Annual and Special Meeting of the Shareholders of Company to

be held on March 10 2010 The Company has and assumes no responsibility for the content of the

NET Resolution and related supporting statements including the opinions expressed or the accuracy of

any statements contained therein

The Board of Directors of the Company Recommends Shareholders Vote Against the NEI

Resolution

This NET Resolution is as follows

Whereas

The Carbon Disclosure Project CDP representing 475 institutional investors and $55 trillion USD in

assets sends an annual survey to Canadas largest 200 corporations requesting that companies disclose

their climate change strategies Over 77 percent of Canadian companies by market capitalization

responded to the CDP questionnaire in 2009 however Viterra did not Viterra has also failed to

disclose investment-relevant information in regulatory filings concerning its greenhouse gas GHG
emissions and the risks and opportunities facing the company in relation to climate change

Corporate disclosure of climate change risks and opportunities strategies and GHG emissions

inventories are essential for investors looking to assess the strengths and weaknesses of corporate

securities While GHG emissions may present material risk of increased costs to the companys

operations related to regulatory requirements the physical risks of climate change are also particularly

material for agricultural businesses Global food and feed production levels will be affected by climate

change as floods droughts severe storms adverse weather conditions increase all of which have the

potential to impact the viability of crops and therefore Viterras business model

In 2007 the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Changes Fourth Assessment Report stated that

between 1970 and 2004 agriculture contributed 13.5% of total anthropogenic global greenhouse gas

GHG emissions The report also stated that there was significant mitigation potential in the forest and

agriculture sectors Corporations that choose to proactively address GHG emissions and consider the

risks of climate change will be better positioned for carbon-constrained future

In February 2008 the Ontario Securities Commission issued Staff Notice 51-716 to provide guidance

on what issuers should be disclosing regarding environmental matters The staff notice came after the

OSC reviewed sample of issuers and found environmental disclosure inadequate The OSC

reaffirmed that environmental risks are material to investors and that audit committees have fiduciary

responsibility to review such disclosures while providing oversight of the underlying risk control

framework

In November 2008 the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants CICA published Building

Better MDA Climate Change Disclosures highlighting the need for disclosure of climate-related

risk more specifically The CICA states that ...sooner or later climate change will affect either

directly or indirectly the business operations and financial performance of many Canadian companies

large and small in most sectors
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As an agri-business Company Viterra is both affected by climate change and has direct and indirect

impacts on climate change Despite this exposure investors are not provided with sufficient

information on the risks and opportunities associated with climate change or on corporate or on

corporate strategies for risk mitigation

Be it Resolved that The Board of Directors provide report to Shareholders by September 2010

prepared at reasonable cost and omitting proprietary information describing how Viterra is assessing

the impact of climate change on the corporation the corporations plans to disclose this assessment to

Shareholders and if applicable the rationale for not disclosing such information in the future through

annual reporting mechanisms such as the Carbon Disclosure Project

Recommendation

Viterra management recommends against the resolution pursuant to the following considerations

Management acknowledges the significance of the issue as well as the potential for business

implications to the company and has been in discussions with NET with respect to their proposal

Viterra has an internal team developing company-wide strategy for addressing climate change

issues related to risks opportunities measurement and reporting

The Company is in compliance with greenhouse gas regulatory reporting requirements in North

America1 Viterra Australia has reported greenhouse gas
emissions and energy use information as

required under national legislation and participated in the Carbon Disclosure Project CDP for the

first time voluntarily reporting on its management of climate change including the impact and

risks and opportunities

The NEI Resolution asks for report to shareholders by September 2010 ...describing how

Viterra is assessing the impact of climate change on the corporation the corporation plans to

disclose this assessment to shareholders.. in the future.. Given that Viterra is developing

company-wide strategy on this issue management asserts that the September 2010 timeline is too

early for such report and will not allow the Company to provide information in meaningful way

for the following reasons

With Viterras new expanded geographic and organizational scope the Companys acquisition

of ABB Grain only closed on September 23 2009 there are significant measurement and

technical issues to resolve in order to provide meaningful data comparable across the company

e.g. organizational and operational boundaries determination of standard measurement

protocol data management system implications method of public disclosure We will be

working to resolve these issues through 2010

The competitive implications of disclosure of this information i.e beyond what is required to

meet regulatory requirements must be understood prior to making public disclosures

September is in the middle of Viterras fiscal year report to Viterras 80000 plus

Shareholders outside of its annual reporting process would be very costly The Company

believes that once it has completed the work described above that it is best to provide report

in concert with the annual reporting cycle

In summary Viterra acknowledges climate change as an issue for society and for the company Viterra

has taken and continues to take
steps to understand its climate change impacts risks and opportunities

and is developing an overall corporate strategy on this matter Although this is currently ongoing

September 2010 is too early to provide meaningful information for Shareholders

Greenhouse gas emissions quantities at Viterra facilities in North America are below regulatory reporting

thresholds
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Appointment of Proxyholder
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